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DEFINED TERMS

Capitalized terms used in this Prospectus are e@éfiarms. Please refer to “Glossary of Non-Techriieams” at
the end of this Prospectus for a list and the nmepof defined terms used herein.

CURRENCY

In this Prospectus, unless otherwise indicatedjalar amounts are expressed in Canadian doltatseferences to
$ are to Canadian dollars.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus contains “forward-looking statersénthich reflect management’s expectations regardime
Corporation’s future growth, results of operatiopsrformance and business prospects and oppoesiniEuch
forward-looking statements may include, but are limited to, statements with respect to the futfinancial or
operating performance of the Corporation and itgguts, future mineral prices, the timing and amafrestimated
future production, costs of production, capitaleigiing and exploration expenditures, costs andngjnof the
development of new deposits, costs and timing dbiréu exploration, requirements for additional calpit
government regulation of mining operations, envinental risks, reclamation expenses, title dispoteslaims,
limitations of insurance coverage and the timind possible outcome of regulatory matters. Oftet,nmt always,
forward-looking statements can be identified by thee of words such as “plans”, “expects”, “is expdt
“budget”, “scheduled”, “estimates”, “forecasts”,ntends”, “anticipates”, or “believes” or variatiorfgicluding
negative variations) of such words and phrasestatements that certain actions, events or resulty”, “could”,
“would”, “might” or “will” be taken, occur or be dieved. Forward-looking statements involve knowrd an
unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and ofaetors that may cause the actual results, pedooe or
achievements of the Corporation to be materialffedént from any future results, performance ori@sdments
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statetse Such factors include, among others: genersinbss,
economic, competitive, political and social unciatias; the actual results of current exploratioctivdties;
conclusions of economic evaluations; fluctuationscurrency exchange rates; changes in project praessnas
plans continue to be refined; changes in laboutsomsother costs of production; future prices i@nium and other
mineral prices; possible variations of mineral gram recovery rates; failure of plant, equipmenpuorcesses to
operate as anticipated; accidents, labour dismrdsther risks of the mining industry, includingt Inot limited to
environmental hazards, cave-ins, pit-wall failurispding, rock bursts and other acts of God oraunfirable
operating conditions and losses, insurrection ar, @elays in obtaining governmental approvals pafficing or in
the completion of development or construction &ittis; actual results of reclamation activitiesdahe factors
discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors'this Prospectus. Although the Corporation hasngited to
identify important factors that could cause actamlons, events or results to differ materiallynfirethose described
in forward-looking statements, there may be otlaetdrs that cause actions, events or results terdiom those
anticipated, estimated or intended. Forward-loolstgtements contained herein are made as of tlkeafahis
Prospectus and the Corporation disclaims any didigdo update any forward-looking statements, Wwaetas a
result of new information, future events or reswtsotherwise. There can be no assurance that fdrleaking
statements will prove to be accurate, as actualteeand future events could differ materially fréinose anticipated
in such statements. Accordingly, readers shoulglamte undue reliance on forward-looking statements



PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the principal featucd this Prospectus and should be read togethgr tvé more
detailed information and financial data and statts, including the notes thereto, contained elseg/m this

Prospectus.

The Corporation:

The Property:

Use of Available Funds:

Risk Factors:

The Corporation was formed by articles of incorpiora under the CBCA on
August 24, 2007. The Corporation is engaged inbihginess of the acquisition,
exploration and development of mineral properti€se Corporation owns a 100%
interest in the Property. See “The Corporationd dbescription of the Business”.

The Property is comprised of 100 staked miningnesaiocated in Buckles, Bouck,
Beange, Bolger, Gunterman, Joubin and Lehman Tapsstear the town of Elliot
Lake. The Corporation has obtained a technicabrteép compliance with NI 43-
101 entitled “A Technical Review of the Appia Engrgorp. Rare Earth Metal-
Uranium Property, Elliot Lake District, North-CeakiOntario, Canada” dated July
18, 2011 (the Technical Report’) prepared by Al Workman, P. Geo and Kurt
Breede, P. Eng of Watts, Griffis and McOuat Limite&/GM ”). See “Description
of the Business” and “The Property”.

The Corporation intends to fund its business usiiregproceeds from prior private
placement financings. As at November 22, 2012, @ueporation had cash
resources of $1,844,607. The Corporation intend=xpend its available funds as
follows:

Use of Available Funds Amount
Costs of Prospectus $ 65,000
Completion of one diamond drill hole at Banana Lake $ 300,000
Less deposits and payments made to November 22, 201 $ (160,460)
Metallurgical work on Teasdale Zone drill core $ 7200
Less deposits made to November 22, 2012 $ (8),00
Completion of a Preliminary Economic AssessmeREA")

on the Teasdale Zone $ 169,000
Supporting Work and Studies (including contingeggie $ 294,000
Operating Expenses and working capital for twelA®) (nonths $ 324,000
Unallocated cash $ 696,067
TOTAL $1,844,607

The Corporation intends to spend the funds avalabl it as stated in this
Prospectus. However, there may be circumstancesrewfor sound business
reasons, a reallocation of funds may be necesSeg.“Use of Available Funds”.

The securities of the Corporation are highly spativeé due to the Corporation’s
involvement in the acquisition, exploration and elepment of mineral properties
and its current stage of development. The explamatif minerals involves many
risks, which even a combination of experience, Keodge and careful evaluation
may not be able to overcome. In addition to tHermation presented elsewhere
in this Prospectus, investors should carefully @mersthe risks described under
“Risk Factors”, which are summarized below:

(i) thereis no assurance that any discovery will lomemic;
(i) there may be defects in the title to the Property;




Risk Factors (continued):

Summary of Financial
Information:

Statement of Operations
Data:

(i) the mining industry is subject to significant cortifien;

(iv) commodity prices have historically fluctuated wigel

(v) the exploration for minerals is speculative in matand involves many risks;

(vi) the Corporation’s current operations do not geeesay positive cash flow,
and additional financing will be required;

(vii) there is no assurance that any of the Corporatimysired exploration or
mining authorization permits will be issued oris$ued, will not be revoked
by a government or challenged by third parties;

(viii) government regulations may adversely affect thep@m@ittion’s operations;

(ix) the Corporation is dependent on a relatively smathber of key personnel;
and

(x) environmental compliance may involve significanstso

The following table sets out selected financiabmifation from the Corporation’s
unaudited condensed interim financial statementghfe nine months ended June
30, 2012 and the audited financial statementsHeryears ended September 30,
2011, 2010 and 2009 attached to and forming pattisfProspectus and should be
read in conjunction therewith. Readers should ttedéethe audited numbers in the
tables below for the years ended September 30,, 2 and 2011 have been
reported under Canadian GAAP, while the unauditedbers as of June 30, 2012
have been reported under International FinancigdoR&ng Standards [FRS”).
See headings “Selected Financial Information” adriagement’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiiems”.

Nine months ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 30, 2012 September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010 September 30, 2009
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(%) (%) (%) %)
Revenues Nil Nil Nil Nil
Net Income (932,044) (1,098,682) (116,724) (82,771)
(Loss) from
Operations
Net Income (1,061,323) (1,060,157) (116,724) (16,971)
(Loss)
Basic and (0.03) (0.03) (0.00) (0.00)
Diluted Income
(Loss) Per Share
Balance Sheet Data:
Nine months ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 30, 2012 September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010 September 30, 2009
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
6) (%) (%) (%)
Total Assets 7,529,730 7,608,016 4,256,491 4,312,586
Total Liabilities 1,122,981 675,837 618,054 557,425
Shareholder 6,406,749 6,932,179 3,638,437 3,755,161

Equity




THE CORPORATION
Name, Address and Incorporation

Appia is a corporation formed by articles of inaomgtion under the CBCA on August 24, 2007. Purstmarticles
of amendment dated September 25, 2012, the Coiporegmoved the restrictions on transfer of its Qun
Shares.

The registered and head office of the Corporatsdoc¢ated at Suite 1010, 25 Adelaide Street Easprito, Ontario
M5C 3A1.

The Corporation was incorporated for the purposehef acquisition, exploration and development oheral
properties located primarily in Canada. Seescription of the Business”

Intercorporate Relationships

The Corporation currently has no subsidiaries.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS
Introduction

The Corporation is in the business of the acquoisjtexploration and development of mineral propsrtiCurrently,
the Corporation owns a 100% interest in 100 stakéung claims located in Buckles, Bouck, BeangelgBn
Gunterman, Joubin and Lehman Townships near tha tivElliot Lake (the Property”). The Corporation also
holds between a 50% and a 90% interest in 10 nlipeoperties totalling 26,657ha in the AthabaskaiBaof
Saskatchewan which are prospective for uraniunrareearths (theSaskatchewan Claim¥).

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Corporadimes not have any reportable segments pertainiitg ¢perations.
As of the date of this Prospectus, there were nukdo@tcy, receivership or similar proceedings agaithe
Corporation or any voluntary bankruptcy, receivarsir similar proceedings by the Corporation ompitedecessors
since its inception.

Acquisition of the Property

On November 1, 2007, the Corporation entered igieeement (the CEC Vending Agreement) with Canada
Enerco Corp. (CEC"), a corporation controlled by a Director and offi of the Corporation, pursuant to which the
Corporation acquired a 100% interest in sixty-o8&) (of the claims (theCEC Claims”) comprising a part of the
Property in consideration for 35,000,000 Commonr&haf the Corporation and a 1% Uranium Produdiowgalty
and a 1% Net Smelter Returns Royalty in respegrefious and base metals on the CEC Claims bothenthe
price of uranium exceeds US$130 per pound (collelstithe ‘CEC Royalties’). The CEC Claims are subject to an
area of interest provision whereby any mining ckiatquired by the Corporation within 20 kilometfesm the
existing boundary of the CEC Claims are subje¢h&®CEC Royalties. On November 2, 2007, the Catpur also
entered into two (2) share option agreements wiHC Gvhereby the Corporation had the option to bugkba
1,000,000 of the Common Shares issued to CEC apribe of $1 per share, expiring August 31, 2008 tre
option to buy back 9,000,000 Common Shares issoe@BC at the price of $2 per share, subject tosadjent
downward, in tranches of 1,000,000 shares, expiNogember 2, 2012. In the fiscal year ended Septersh,
2008, the Corporation exercised the first optioftiy back 1,000,000 Common Shares by the payme@GEt of
$1,000,000. These shares were returned to tredsurgancellation in fiscal 2009. The second optiwas
conditional upon the Corporation spending at I184€t million on exploration on the Property priorNevember 1,
2011, to define an NI 43-101 compliant uranium maheesource on the Property. The maximum purchése for
the option was to be determined as $0.10 multighgthe number of pounds of uranium resource ddfinghe NI
43-101 report. In the event that the maximum pasehprice was less than $20 million, the optiorepnf the
9,000,000 Common Shares would be adjusted to ehaahaximum purchase price divided by 10,000,0068e



Corporation did not spend the required $10 millmmexploration and the second option expired onexther 1,
2011. Two (2) of the CEC Claims (th®é&nison Claims) were transferred to Denison Mines IncDg€nisor{)
pursuant to an Assignment and Royalty Agreemergddatily 22, 2009 (theDenison Agreemernt) leaving fifty-
nine (59) active claims. The Corporation retain8% Net Smelter Returns Royalty on the sale of mmduct
produced from ore mined from the Denison Claimdie Denison Claims remain subject to the CEC Rmalti
Pursuant to the Denison Agreement, the Corporatias granted a right of access to or over the serédcany
surface rights held by Denison in the Elliot Lakeaas well as access to all of Denison’s workengs operations
to facilitate the exploration and development of amining claims in the Elliot Lake area in whictetiCorporation
has a beneficial interest, subject to certain iiins.

On February 27, 2008, the Corporation entered sddending Agreement (thePatrie Agreement) with Dan
Patrie Exploration Ltd. to acquire a further si ¢@aims (the Patrie Claims”) that comprise part of the Property in
consideration for $20,000 in cash, 50,000 Commceré&hvalued at $1.00 per share and a 1% UraniuguBtion
Royalty on the Patrie Claims for all Uranium sotdagprice of at least US$130 per pound (tRattie Royalty”).
The Corporation can repurchase one-half of thed”Bivyalty for $1,000,000 and the Corporation haglat of first
refusal on the remaining portion of the Patrie Riyya

A further thirty-five (35) staked claims were acaqa by the Corporation (theStaked Claims) and are subject to
the CEC Royalties. Pursuant to a royalty agreerdated February 2, 2012 (thRdyalty Agreement), CEC and
the Corporation clarified the terms of the CEC Rtigs.

The Corporation is subject to an Assumption of @dtlions Agreement (theEMC Agreement’) dated November
2, 2007 among the Corporation, CEC, Quincy GoldpCand Energy Metals CorporatiorEfMC”) (now owned by
Uranium One Inc.) pursuant to which EMC has thétrig purchase from the Corporation, at the offgipnice, up
to 9.9% of the Common Shares issued pursuant tditdtepublic offering of securities by the Corptiocam by
prospectus resulting in the listing of the Corpors securities on a stock exchange. Alternagivéd the
Corporation effects a reverse takeover, mergettmrdusiness combination with a company liste@d oecognized
stock exchange, EMC will have the right to purchaseclosing of the transaction, up to 9.9% of ¢keurities of
the resulting company at the same price as sezsgtie issued for the acquisition of the Corponatio

Three Year History

The Corporation was formed in August of 2007. Fritsnformation, the Corporation had not undertaleery
significant business activity other than the acitjois of the Property and the Saskatchewan Claewpjoration
activities on the Property and the issuance cfataurities for cash.

Following the Prior Resource Estimate issued in8@fe Corporation completed a 6 hole drill progratmich
included testing for rare earth metals. This l&ad new rare earth and uranium resource calculatéscribed in
the Technical Report. Since the Technical Repax issued in July, 2011, the Corporation has caeble further
drill program as recommended in the Technical Reftbe “Current Drill Program ”). The following are the
results currently available from that program:
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The holes intersected the unmined eastem exiension of the Quirke main zone reefs mined af the past producing
Denison, Stanrack, CanMet, and Ric Algom Cuirks, and Panal mines.

Al Denison these reefs are in descending arder: the UPPER REEF (UR), the INTERBEDDED QUARTZITE (1Q)
and the LOWER REEF (LR). At Rio Algom they were known as the "C" REEF.

Giades afe Ibs. par short (2,000 Ib) tan and are weightad by sample core lenght and reef thickness.
Aszays by AciLabs, Ancaster Ontario.

HOLE Mo AEC124 HOLE Ma. BECT2-14 HOLE Mo. AEC12-2
Gtaring o 481, 08m {87 degroes NW) Swting af 457 J8m (47 degrees NW) Starting a1 181.8m (-85 degrees NE]

R i LR 'UR+IQ4LR uR a LR "UR+IG+LR UR Q LR {UR+IC+LR
LGHT REE 40Tm  30im  2.85m 1013m 420m  Z88m  3.03m 1009m S514m 270m L¥Wm:  B23m
Lanthanurm 1008 o0TE 1,307 1,008 ;1280 0335 O488 D.BEE 18380 Q480 0553 1,153
Carfum 204 1374 2514 . 1963 | 2304 0623 OB 187 31138 o618 1017 2134
Prasaodymium 0184 0133 0245 @ D188 0227 0081 0080 @ 0180 0300 o0dTe QA0 : DS
Maodymium 0818 Os48 0819 | DEa 073 0200 0282 @ 0515 08T 0354 03 @ D684
Sarmsiam Qo4 DOFd 045 | Da0d 012t 0033 O048 : DOBa 0168 0044 0007 ;007
Eurapium 0004 0003 o.0oE 0004 0.004 0.041 o.bg2 0002 0006 0002 DO 0.005
Total LREE 383 2755 5087 ¢ iae2 : kB4l 1253 1838 :  3ITR 6264 1855 2008 @ 4266

‘Windge o from Hole AEC12-1

HEAVY REE
Gadomum 0058  ODe2  0o0ee 0062 0052 Oo0we 0083 0 Dupet 011 ooET o042 ;. 0u0Te
Tarbium 0007 0pas 0uA2 0008 o0 00d6 001 0008 0012 0oD3 D006 0008
Drysprossliem 0032 oo 0OS1 0 G034 ooae 0028 0050 - DOGES G055 Qo012 00 @ 0038
Hoslriiurm 000s 0002 Quood 0005 oo04 D004 0008 000% 0008 Q002 0005 - 0000
Ertilum 0013 0008  0uoR0 0014 1o LI T R X ] 03 0022 QoM 0012 GS
Thudium oodz 0001 0u003 .00 o002 oood 0003 [ Xerd 0003 GO D002 @ 0002
Yitertaum 0010 0008 OHNS 0100 O0pog 0008 0AOMS oo 0017  DoDd DO - 0042
Lubatim oo 0001 0002 ifucr] oo 0001 QU002 oo 0o0dd oo 00 : 0.0z
Yitrliam Dis2  o0e8 02N 0158 oDiiE oaze  oaT 0166 0248 DOos4 D118 0168
Tolsl HREE D281 0188 0428 0285 0252 0239 0408 0285 o47s DOBE D2RS 0.328
TOTAL REE 4214 2841 5485 & 187 aTi2 3388 5386 4129 8733 1752 qad ;. 4588
Uranisn 0312 02351 1058 4511 0M2 082 142 0565 o7 oS8 1408 : Q84T
Thosism 0T38 0545 1007 : 0788 D860 0597 0880 @ 0T 1454 0255 D450 a.785
Totad U+Th 1047 0796 2066 1267 D861 118 3082 1.328 1681 D473 1558 @ 1403
Girend Total 5281 37 T5M 5454 4874 4517  Ta2B 5.458 B&13 2158 378 @ 4001
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The holes intersected the Unmined easiem extension of the Quirke main zone reafs mined &t the past producing

Al Denisan these reefs are in descending order: the UPPER REEF {UR), the INTERBEDDED QUARTZITE (1)
and the LOWER REEF (LR). At Rio Algom they were known as the “C" REEF.

Grades are Ibs, per short (2,000 b) ton and are weighted by sample core lenght and raef thickness,

Aszays by Acilabs, Ancastar Omario.

HOLE Mo, AEC12:3 HOLE Mo, AEC124 HOLE Ma. AECI2-B
Staring o1 179.79m (80 degrees NE) Saring mt 55844 (azm. 123 /-7 deg. 52)  Starting st 215.53m (77 degress 5)

R I3 LR URHIGHR uR B LR URHGHR uR @ LR IURHGHR
LGHT REE 4 8Rm : 485m 218m 212m 0ITm A484m 32Tm  1.75m . B.Bam
Lanikanum 1264  1Qand LR 1.484 0582 1001 - 1157 1357 Ty g - 0.8E3
Carium 2438 Intrudsd and 2895 1081 1867 : 2227 2511 1388 08 1800
Praseodymium 0248 roplaced 0288 0111 0189 :  D2m 0240 0424 0081 :  04T3
Neadymiim 0702 by BH30 0388 083 ;o7 0787 0438 0277 - 0577
S 0127  Nigissing 0154 0083 023 ;015 0032 o088 0051 - .06
El.l'nﬂum 0005 dabazs. 0006 0003 a.008 0.005 fekiel] 0.003 000l - .00
Total LREE aa7e 5755 2218 3918 4488 5032 2807 1881 . 3&33
HEANY REE
Gadofinum 0078 G andLR 0100 0040 0OTT ;0079 0085 0040 003 ;00
Terbium 0010 intruded and G011 0DD4  0OMS . 0009 0011 0005 0008 O00A
Enysproesium 0043  replnced 0048 0048 0040 : 0038 047 0022 00 ;0035
Halmian 0007 by 0008 0003 0007 ;0.8 0008 0003 0005 : 0006
Ertiuam 0018  MNpissng 009 0007 0018 . ODiS 0020 0008 0012 ©  OOIS
Thubium 0002 disbase, 0002 0001 0002 : 0002 0003 0001 02 G002
Yitertiiurn D04 00 0005 0011 ¢ 00N 0017 0007 0010 ¢ 03
Lisatium 0002 €002 DoD1  DOGZ @ 0002 0002 0O 0D ¢ COa2
Yitrum 0,160 0212 007" DABG 0472 D24 0081 0MZ 0962
Total HREE 0368 0410 OAS4 D3 ;0337 0417 081 D223 ;D04
TCTAL REE 5242 8171 2372 4260 4532 5440 ZTET 100N ;337
Urmnium oSk 0542 D207 0858 : 0358 0710 0451 1048 ;0888
Thodim 1.044 1168 D480 0B35S : 0438 0869 D0S28 0400 0722
Tasl L+ Th 1813 1740 0888 17E4 1404 1887 DETE 1448 1410
Giand Total B.A7S THN 30 6043 8318 7438 3704 3353 @ ST
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The holes intersected the unmined eastem sxtension of tha Quirke main zone reafs mined at the past produsing

Danison, Slanrock, Canhtat, and Rio Algom Quirks, and Panal mines.

At Denisan these reefs are in descending order the UPPER REEF (UR), the INTERBEDDED QUARTZITE (1)

and the LOWER REEF (LR). At Rio Algom they wera knowr as the "C" REEF

Grades ame [bs, per short (2,000 Ib) ton gnd are weighted by sampla care lenght snd reef thicknass.

Aszsays by Actlabs, Ancaster Dnlario.

HOLE Mo. AEC12.58 HCLE Ma, AEC128 HOLE Mo AECIZ-T
Stmriing ot 615.64m (azm. 070 /~T8 deg NE) Starting st 289 58m (-89 degrees W) Starting &t 354.82m (-72 degrees §)
uR =] LR |UR++LR UuR le] LA | UR+IGHLR UR [La] LR UR+IQ+HLR

LMGHT REE ¢ 400m  Zeam  2&im:  838m 52%m 15tm  2B0m:  B.53m 454m 2868m 28 1013
Lantharen . 1073 021 1482 - 0BI9  : 1280 0335 048 - 0888 1235 0872 OADA : 0855
Coariam ;2018 os4p3 2783 1773 . L34 pEZZ 0908 - 14827 2Mz2 1358 O 1.558
Prssodymiim ;0 003 0288 0,168 OR332T 0081 0080 - 0180 e 0186 Q082 0,174
MNoodymiam : 0837 0420 0B53 . 0550 o X725 0200 0282 . 0515 0703 0384 02T ;050
Sammnuim ;B0  ooe 0158 0.0e8 ¢ k121 D033 0048 ¢ ODea o1 008T 005 0.088
Ewwapim : 0004 0601 DDOS :  ODO3 ¢ 004 0001 0002  Dooa 0004 0003 0005 ;GO
Total LREE : A4D2 DB 5538 . 3,529 COAB 1283 1.R29 aaTa 4487 ZE5M 1582 am
HEA\Y REE
Gadolmium o088 o2 0103 0082 PokOT peRg 0088 0051 007 0035 0043 n0s3
Tarbiim ooce 0D ootz 0,007 ;o k00 DoeR O.DO4 0007 o008 0004 D007 ooaT
Deymprossium ;003 oooT  oDs 0032 ;0@ DOId 0T 1 Eiel] 003 0018 0OD038 : oan
Helmiwm 0008 QD1 O00a 0,008 : hOO8  DO02 0003 0004 0008 0002 0007 0L0as
Erbiurm : 00 0003 0De 0012 0016 O0D0#¢ 0007 | o2 omMs  opDs Q01T o3
Thulum DoRBiE  Doeo Gpd3 Q002 D002 0001 oo 0002 o002 oo ood2 a2
YHeshium 00z 000 ois LEl] S 0013 0004 D008 oo 0012 0.00E Q013 oo
Lutebiim : Qo0@  ooon 0002 0,002 : kB0Z oo0n Q00 0001 Q002 D001 DDo2 0001
Yorium gie2 o002 02 0138 0180 D.OD4¥Y  QOTS o128 0AT2 007D D74 . 0143

3 —_— } :
Tatal HREE © D30 0DSE D426 | nato 0.340 D088 0942 0242 03X 0440 0304 @ D264
TOTAL REE o 434 D880 SEGE 3,788 4,881 1243 197 ¢ 31520 4813 ZT11 1896 3442
Urmrium : B9 Des 0esg 0404 Do DNie 03238 0380 0387 D24 2351 0848
Thonum : OTEA D143 1076 0884 896 0258 0371 0841 0B42 D485 0532 : 0852
Toial Li*Th DovaT 0Yed4 tEeE 1.088 138 O0H7T Qe . 1001 1.240 0868 2884 1.500
Grand Total ¢ BATE 1044 TSI 4.808 LX 1T I&TT . 451 B033) 3380 478D :© 48
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The holes Infersectsd the unmined eastem axteansion of the Quirke main zone reals mined al tha pasl producing
Denisen, Stanrock, CanMet, and Rio Algom Cuirke, and Pansl mines.

At Denison thesa reefs are in descending order: the UPPER REEF (UR), the INTERBEDDED QUARTZITE (IQ)
and tha LOWER REEF (LR). Al Rio Algom they were knowr 85 the “C" REEF.

Grades are Ibs. per short (2,000 Ib) ton and are weighted by sample core lenght and reef thickness

Assays by AciLabs, Ancaster
HOLE Ma. AEC128 HCLE Ma AEC12.8 HOLE Mo, AEC12-10
Starling et 78, 17m (aem.020 / 48 deg. NE)  Steriing et 327.3%m (azm.230 /-84 deg. 5W) Starling 8t 514.56m (-8 degress M)
wm @ LR UR+IG+LR urR s} LR | UR=G+LR uR e} LR 1UR+IG+LR
LiEHT REE 435m 274m 382m:  10.81m L8Tm  Z8dm  18im: 882m 47Bm 24%n O084m:  T&Tm
Lantharirm QA4 0518 1003 0.819 LB5T 0485 0485 1.088 1200 Q405 088 : 0N
Caarlueri 1521 0840 1833 © 1484 021 D848 0853 . 1948 2198 O7iB 1082 . 1548
Prasaodyrmium 0162 0098 0188 0,145 1394 DDES Q088 - DA pagE Q072 011 ;. D158
Haodymikim 0855 0208 0502 0543 1856 0286 0287 . 0B GBET 0204 0107 : 0473
Samarnim 007 0047 0103 ¢ nore L1858 0044 000D - 0905 o111 Q085 o28d ¢ D2
Eurapium 0003 0DO2  OD0S : D04 1005 0DE2 0005 ¢ DO 0004 0OO7 DOSA ;. DDoE
Total LREE 3257 1800 ATH ;. 30™ 082 1707 1758 @ 3838 4387  14T2 2284 3307
. LR INCOMPLETE DUE TO FAULTING
HEAVY REE i
Gadolinium 008 0028 0088 ;008 1088 007 0047 ;  DDAT 0085 0024 003 : 0050
Tartaim 0008 0OD0E 0010 ¢ 0007 0011 0003 0008 0008 0008 0003 0005 :  0.008
Dyeprissium 00X 0015 D044 : DO3E J048 0013 003 : 0036 003 001 DO22 ;. 00ET
Halmium 0004 0003 DOO7 : 0005 0008 D002 0007 ¢ 0008 0008 0002 D004 @ 0004
Ertilurm 0010 ODDE OOD1A : 02 0018 ODDE ODIF ¢ DS 0015 0005 00i0 : 02
Thulkurn oo 0001 0002 ¢ 002 1003 D001 QD02 0002 G002 0001 o001 @ .02
Yitwrbium ooce oODOS OO014 ¢ D008 G015 0DOS oDl - D92 gof2 oo0be OODDE ¢ 0009
Lusesivifn 0002 0001 0002 ;0002 000 D00 0002 ;0002 oop2 0001 D001 : 000t
Yomm 0124 0081 o08e @ 0AM 1232 00 0973 . Doe g1 o052 02 ¢ 0933
Total HREE 0234 0424 0354 @ D248 43 018 036 © 03T 0324 0402 0182 ¢ 03244
TOTAL REE JA4R 2004 4078 3337 A3 1EIT 2084 ;0 4254 4711 1574 2456 ;3581
Liramnium 0251 0152 1131 ;0534 0477 D108 1983 ;. 0688 G440 0131 0485 : 032
Thonum 05Er D405 O0OB1B © D& 144 D351 0530 . 0787 0B82 0287 D050 @ 0458
Tatal L=Th 083 DEST 1047 1.158 1E21 D847 25 1475 1302 D418 OMS nare
Gaand Total 4330 2581 60N ;4483 61 2374 4587 ©  A7is 8013  1me 3472 4530
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The holes intersected the unmined eastem axtension of the Quirks main zone resfs mined at the past producing
Danison, Slanrock, CanMet, and Rio Algom Cuirka, and Panel mines

At Denison these reels are in descending order; the UPPER REEF (UR), the INTERBEDDED QUARTZITE (12)
and the LOWER REEF (LR). At Rle Algom they were knowr as the "C" REEF.

Grades are Ibs. per short (2,000 Ib) ton and ars waightad by sample core lenght and resf thickness.
Assays by ActLabs, Ancaster Ontanio,

HOLE N AECIZ-11 HEOLE Mo AEC1242 HOLE o, AEC1213

Ssarting ol 395 18m (-8% dag. N) Starting al S63.82m (aem0s [ 67 deg. SW)  Starting at 844.72m (8zm 285 | 58 deg, NV

X LR [[+] LR URSQLR . | R 2 LR ‘URHD+R LR o LR (UR+O+LR
LIGHT REE T413m 283Im  313m | B&m | 18im ADBm S84m; 113¥m | 330m 052m 502m . B.B4m
Lanthanum ro1252 0818 OTed ¢ 0875 : 1882 0883 0658 08948 r 138 0314 1330 12686
Cefiam 2678 1568 1483 1.898 AT 1ade 1582 1.747 . - REM  DpS50% 242 2448
Praasodymium D254 0145 D135 o187 - b oi23 01 16 r e 0053 D32E2 0238
Neadymium © DBIR Q482 0485 . 08X D180 DagD  Ddg3 0582 : DTE 0Ty 038 @ AT
Bamarum D43 0083 0082 Q108 1187 00E7  ouoEn o.0er ¢ B2 0030 00 - 0928
Europium ¢ 0005 000X 0.004 0.004 : 008 0003 U006 0005 : Oobd 0D 0003 - DN0Dd
Tolal LREE 5168 3904 2.884 3.380 o TAB1 Z544 1162 3515 1 ABBE 1138 5952 @ 4858

! LR and B2 pot complete dus tn faulng, ]
HEMY REE ! LR contafmirdod by chicfitic veinlsts, :
Gadolinium :oDfde1 OB 0063 b.oa7 oMNT iM0 0065 0083 o ROTT 0021 0UDEa 0.0
Tesrtium ;0011 00DE 0007 0.008 ¢ A0 0005 0008 o008 ¢ D0oe  000F 002 ooig
Dysprosslium ¢ 0047 0025 003 0.038 ¢ 2082 0030 0043 - 00N ¢ 00ER 0012 0050 @ 0044
Halmium | 0007 0004 0008 0.o008 {010 0004 00007 0.008 ¢ D008 000z 0000 0.008
Erbdum ! 0Me om0 O3 .S {2024 oooR  0uME oois i D06 0008 0020 o.oia
Thafivem ;0003 0007 0002 0.002 OA00d 000 0002 oo ¢ bodd 0000 0000 0,002
Yiterisiam ! 405 0008 0011 o012 LoM0E 0007 0013 ooz N 0008 0S @ D01
Lutatiurm ¢ 00d2 000 000 0002 toa003 0007 000R : 0002 T 003 0001 o00@ ;D002
ftiriurn 7 B3 04 0280 0.208 P86 0OeT 0182 0182 ¢ DIEE 00eY 0238 . 019
Tolai HREE ;D408 0217 04D 0.355 ¢oasiT 04 0304 o3 ¢ D348 D08 0424 D3TE
TOTAL REE { 5578 331 3385 %254 ¢ TETR ZTIe 3500 3526 i B33 145 557 534
Unaniyim i D487 0427 0838 0582 1673 M3 085S 0584 : Da8T  4NT 144 0837
Thorum ¢ 0968 0585 0583 : 0.750 ¢ ADET  0o4E3 0800 - 0.504 ;1027 0253 116 1.058
Total L+ Th ¢ 1455 1022 1430 1332 VLM 0806 1755 1273 1514 03T 2304 1,696

Grand Total TOI 434 AT 5,568 ¢ kT4B 3545 5255 | 510 ;. BB5T  1m3  TRE . T30
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The holes inlersected the unmined eastem extenson of the Juirke main zone reefs mined at the past producing
Danizan, Stanrock, CanMed, and Rio Algom Quirke, and Panel mines.
Al Danison thase reefs are in descending ordes: the UPPER REEF (UR), the INTERBEDDED QUARTZITE (1Q)
and the LOWER REEF (LR). At Rio Algom they were known as the "C* REEF.
Grades are ibg. per short (2 000 Ib) ton and are waighted by sampla core lenght and reef thickness.
Assays by AciLabs, Ancaster Ontaric,
HOLE Mo, BEC12-14 HOLE Mo. AECHZ-15 HOLE Na. AEC1218
Biating sl 8171 2m (aem 127 [ 60 deg. 5W)  Starling ot 252.18m (-T0 degees N)

R 2 LR R 0L R LR [+] LR (URHOLR UR i LR [UAR+Q+LA
LIGHT REE | 48Bm 330m J4im;  V4dm 596m 218m 31Tm: 11.28m
Lanthanum -'Hnlnhrnh-dld. 1414 D3RO 0383 0680 2239 1402 1251 .: 1727
Cedium - Hole antesed Holmes-Hogan taull systern 1044 D730 O7DO 128 4038 1704 2989 @ 3074
Prasesdymium : 35m wide with dabass innmicns, 0196 0086 0071 o121 o404 0178 0227 0311
Headymium : projecied 2 200m aast frem past ezl 0228 D328 : 038R 1277 04880 oOy20 @ 0983
Bamamm | producing Canbdel mine, 0105 0038 0051 0.0&8 Q213 0081 0124 ¢ 0,164
[Europium " 0o04  pO00r o002 0003 007 0004 0005 : 0.008
Total LREE 4089 1453 1A52 @ 2537 8476 3547 4535 6285
HEAVY REE
Gadalinium 00es 0033 0029 0.D43 D425 0085 0078 ; 0.09a
Tartéum ooa 0003 0004 0.005 s 00D 0019 ooiz2
DOrysgi cesSum oas o012 oo 0024 00E3 0027 0043 0,251
Halmium (o008 0002 0O 0,004 0002 0004 0003 : 0,007
Erbitam 0014 00085 D009 o.oin 0024 0090 .0.018 noig
Thidlhum oo2 2001 QDod LR 0003 0001 00D@ @ 0 G003
Yimrbim M2 o004 TD00 p.ooa 0019 DDDE 0013 | ES
Ligedum o0 o007 000 0001 0003 o007 oD0@ ;  0uD02
Yeirim (154 0048 0080 ;0904 0280 01¥8 DT ;0228
Tatal HREE L2086 0087 0468 ;0200 T T .
TOTAL REE 4388 1550 1618 @ EZTAT 872r 3778 45D : 6887
Uraniutm ¢3e5 0308 0T : haz2e aTea 0377 oTse o.rar
Tharium 0785 0208 D344 | PE Sk 1470 DES50 0850 1.138
Tatal L= Th 1190 DADd 1935 0E4E 2268 1026 1510 1.845
Gaard Total 5578 1855 2754 14884 : 10888 4805 G4TR B8543



Al Workman, P.Geo, an independent Qualified Perasrdefined in NI 43-101, has reviewed and apprdhed
technical information set out above relating to €erent Drill Program.

Share Issuances
No financings were completed in the fiscal yeardeghSeptember 30, 2009 or 2010.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014 ,Gbrporation issued 1,385,833 flow-through uniisqa at

$1.50 per unit for gross proceeds of $2,078,7%ach flow-through unit consisted of one flow-thrbughare and
one-half of a share purchase warrant with eachwalrant entitling the holder to acquire a furt@mmon Share
at $1.50 for one year from closing. The Corporatiso issued 1,082,000 units priced at $1.25 pirfor gross
proceeds of $1,477,500. Each unit consisted of@aramon Share and one-half of a share purchasentasith

each full warrant entitling the holder to acquirkigther Common Share at $1.25 for one year frassiob.

Subsequent to September 30, 2011, the Corporatsred 9,000 flow-through units priced at $1.50 yo@t for
gross proceeds of $13,500. Each flow-through coitsisted of one flow-through share and one-hal& ghare
purchase warrant with each full warrant entitlihg holder to acquire a further Common Share atdfb5one year
from closing. The Corporation also issued 22, 7@ifsypriced at $1.25 per unit for gross proceeds2®,400. Each
unit consisted of one Common Share and one-hadf stiare purchase warrant with each full warrantliewgt the
holder to acquire a further Common Share at $1o2%iiie year from closing. For further details bese issuances
please see “Prior Sales”.

THE PROPERTY

The following disclosure concerning the Propertyailken from the report titled “A Technical Revieftbe Appia
Energy Corp. Rare Earth Metal-Uranium PropertyioElLake District, North-Central Ontario, Canadadteld July
18, 2011 written by Al Workman, P. Geo and Kurt@&te, P. Eng (collectively thétithors”) of Watts, Griffis and
McOuat Limited (the Technical Report’). The Technical Report has been prepared in rdece with the
requirements of National Instrument 43-101- “Staddaf Disclosure for Mineral ProjectsNI' 43-101").

Property Description and Location
General Location

The Property comprises a group of 100 mineral dalatated in Buckles, Bouck, Beange, Bolger, Gumnéar,
Joubin and Lehman Townships and near the town laft Elake in northcentral Ontario. Elliot Lake liscated on
Highway 108 approximately 26 km north of Highway, Afso known as the Trans-Canada Highway. The iarea
situated in UTM zone 17. The geographic co-ordisatf the town of Elliot Lake are 288'N latitude and 8839'W
longitude. The map below shows the location ofRhaperty.
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Property Location

The Property is located in Buckles, Bouck, BeanBelger, Gunterman, Joubin and Lehman Townships in
northcentral Ontario. The claims are unpatented laave not been surveyed. As is typical for exlion
properties, Appia does not own the surface rightth¢ underlying mineral claims. The surface sgiotthe claims
belong to the Crown and some belong to the Citflibt Lake. Surface rights can be acquired angrehis
sufficient area to construct the infrastructureassary for mining and processing operations.

Property Administration and Status
The Property consists of 100 staked mining clainith wecording dates ranging from 19 October, 200411
December, 2009 as set out in the table below. itally, 58 of the claims were held by CEC, howet€0%

ownership in these claims was transferred to Agmia27 July, 2009. As can be seen from the follgwtable,
excess expenditures have been filed against tiraknsuring that they remain in good standing.

Location of Appia Claim Blocks

.1 Claim Recording . . Total Total
Township Number Date Due Date Status  Ownership Work Required Applied Reserve
BEANGE 4201498  2005-May-02  2013-May-02  Active 100% $4,800 $28,80 $0

BEANGE 4201499  2005-May-02  2013-May-02  Active 100% $4,000 $20,00 $0
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Township* Nculs]igé ; Relggiging Due Date Status  Ownership Work Required A;gﬁael d Rzzzarlve
BEANGE 4201500 2005-May-02  2013-May-02 Active 100% $6,400 $88,4 $0
BEANGE 4201501  2005-May-02  2013-May-02 Active 100% $6,400 $88,4 $85,693
BEANGE 4201502  2005-May-02  2013-May-02 Active 100% $6,400 $88,4 $0
BEANGE 4201503  2005-May-02  2013-May-02 Active 100% $6,000 $86,0 $0
BEANGE 4201504  2005-May-02  2013-May-02 Active 100% $6,000 $86,0 $0
BEANGE 4205717 2005-Jun-28 2013-Jun-28 Active 100% $2,400 e, 4 $0
BEANGE 4207326  2005-May-02  2013-May-02 Active 100% $6,400 $88,4 $0
BEANGE 4219904 2007-Mar-27 2013-Mar-27 Active 100% $800 $3,200 $0
BEANGE 4219907 2007-Mar-27 2013-Mar-27 Active 100% $1,600 $6,40 $0
BEANGE 4219941 2007-Mar-27 2013-Mar-27 Active 100% $1,600 $6,40 $0
BEANGE 4219969 2007-Mar-27 2013-Mar-27 Active 100% $1,200 $0,80 $0
BEANGE 4219977 2007-Mar-27 2013-Mar-27 Active 100% $1,600 $6,40 $0
BEANGE 4243832 2008-Sep-12 2013-Sep-12 Active 100% $1,600 ™,80 $0
BEANGE 4248859 2009-Dec-11 2012-Dec-11 Active 100% $1,600 $1,600 $0
BEANGE 4248860 2009-Dec-11 2012-Dec-11 Active 100% $6,400 $6,400 $0
BOLGER 4219968 2007-Mar-27 2013-Mar-27 Active 100% $2,400 $9,60 $0
BOLGER 4248857 2009-Dec-11 2012-Dec-11 Active 100% $1,600 $1,600 $0
BOLGER 4248858 2009-Dec-11 2012-Dec-11 Active 100% $3,200 $3,200 $0
BOUCK 3019176 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $3,600 18,0 $0
BOUCK 3019177 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $3,200 16,0 $351,866
BOUCK 3019230 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $6,400 32,0 $310
BOUCK 3019231 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $6,400 32,0 $0
BOUCK 3019232 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $4,800 $24.,0 $0
BOUCK 3019233 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $3,200 16,0 $0
BOUCK 3019234 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $4,800 24,0 $458,808
BOUCK 4205718 2005-Jun-28 2013-Jun-28 Active 100% $400 $2,400 $0
BOUCK 4207259 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $4,000 $20,0 $0
BOUCK 4207262 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $6,000 $30,0 $0
BOUCK 4215011 2007-Feb-27 2013-Feb-27 Active 100% $400 $1,600 $0
BOUCK 4215012 2007-Feb-27 2013-Feb-27 Active 100% $3,200 .8 $0
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Township* Nculs]igé ; Relggiging Due Date Status  Ownership Work Required A;gﬁael d Rzzzarlve
BOUCK 4215013 2007-Feb-27 2013-Feb-27 Active 100% $1,200 2,80 $0
BOUCK 4215302 2006-Dec-29 2013-Dec-29 Active 100% $1,600 $8,00 $0
BOUCK 4218619 2007-Aug-01  2013-Aug-01 Active 100% $4,000 $16,00 $0
BOUCK 4219908 2007-Mar-30 2013-Mar-30 Active 100% $400 $1,600 $0
BOUCK 4221243 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $5,200 $66,4 $0
BOUCK 4221244 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $2,800 $00,6 $0
BOUCK 2 4221245 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $6,400 $aa,8 $0
BOUCK 4248854 2009-Dec-11 2012-Dec-11 Active 100% $400 $400 $0
BOUCK 4248855 2009-Dec-11 2012-Dec-11 Active 100% $400 $400 $0
BUCKLES 3009193 2004-Oct-19 2012-Oct-19 Active 100% $1,200 $@,20 $0
BUCKLES 4201526 2004-Nov-16  2013-Nov-16 Active 100% $800 $5,600 $0
BUCKLES 4202357 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $800 $5,600 $169,870
BUCKLES 4202381 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $6,400 $20,8 $163,015
BUCKLES @ 4205719 2005-Jun-28 2013-Jun-28 Active 100% $4,800 18,8 $0
BUCKLES * 4215303 2006-Dec-29 2013-Dec-29 Active 100% $5,200 $26,0 $0
BUCKLES 4215314 2006-Dec-21 2012-Dec-21 Active 100% $2,000 $8,000 $110
BUCKLES 4215315 2006-Dec-21 2016-Dec-21 Active 100% $400 $3,200 $349
BUCKLES 4216851 2007-Nov-13  2013-Nov-13 Active 100% $6,000 $20,0 $0
BUCKLES 4216852 2007-Nov-13  2013-Nov-13 Active 100% $6,400 $Pb,6 $0
BUCKLES 4216869 2007-Nov-13  2013-Nov-13 Active 100% $6,400 $Pb,6 $0
BUCKLES *® 04216870 2007-Nov-13  2013-Nov-13 Active 100% $6,400 $PB,6 $0
BUCKLES 4216871 2007-Nov-13  2013-Nov-13 Active 100% $4,800 $09,2 $0
BUCKLES 4216872 2007-Nov-13  2013-Nov-13 Active 100% $1,200 $0,80 $0
BUCKLES 4219974 2007-Apr-13 2013-Apr-13 Active 100% $400 $1,600 $0
BUCKLES 4219978 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $400 $2,800 $0
BUCKLES 4219979 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $400 $2,800 $0
BUCKLES 4219980 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $400 $2,800 $0
BUCKLES 2 4221246 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $6,000 $a0,0 $0
BUCKLES ® 4221249 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $6,000 $a0,0 $0
BUCKLES 4221250 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $6,400 $aa,8 $208,663
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Township* Nculs]igé ; Relggiging Due Date Status  Ownership Work Required A;gﬁael d Rzzzarlve
BUCKLES 4221251 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $4,000 $028,0 $111,180
BUCKLES 4221252 2004-Oct-19 2013-Oct-19 Active 100% $6,400 $4a,80 $0
BUCKLES 4222197 2008-Feb-19 2013-Feb-11 Active 100% $4,800 $4,800 $0
BUCKLES 4222202 2008-Feb-19 2013-Feb-11 Active 100% $6,000 $6,000 $0
BUCKLES 4222203 2008-Feb-19 2013-Feb-11 Active 100% $800 $800
BUCKLES 4226849 2008-Aug-21  2013-Aug-21 Active 100% $1,600 $4,800 $0
BUCKLES 4226852 2008-Aug-21  2013-Aug-21 Active 100% $1,600 $4,800 $0
BUCKLES 4228612 2008-Jan-24 2014-Jan-24 Active 100% $1,200 $4,800 $0
BUCKLES 4228970 2008-Feb-19 2013-Feb-19 Active 100% $1,600 2,80 $0
BUCKLES 4228971 2008-Feb-19 2013-Feb-19 Active 100% $400 $1,200 $0
GUNTERMAN 3019178 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $1,200 $6,000 $0
GUNTERMAN 3019179 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $4,400 $22,00 $0
GUNTERMAN 3019180 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $2,400 $12,00 $0
GUNTERMAN 4215008 2007-Feb-27 2013-Feb-27 Active 100% $4,800 $19,20 $0
GUNTERMAN 4215009 2007-Feb-27 2013-Feb-27 Active 100% $800 $3,200 $0
GUNTERMAN 4215010 2007-Feb-27 2013-Feb-27 Active 100% $800 $3,200 $0
GUNTERMAN 4215014 2007-Feb-27 2013-Feb-27 Active 100% $4,800 $1®,20 $0
GUNTERMAN 4215015 2007-Feb-27 2013-Feb-27 Active 100% $1,600 $6,400 $0
GUNTERMAN 4217961 2008-Feb-19 2013-Feb-07 Active 100% $1,200 $1,200 $0
GUNTERMAN 4218458 2008-Feb-19 2013-Feb-07 Active 100% $1,200 $1,200 $0
GUNTERMAN 4218459 2008-Feb-19 2013-Feb-07 Active 100% $1,600 $1,600 $0
GUNTERMAN 4218461 2008-Feb-19 2013-Feb-07 Active 100% $1,200 $1,200 $0
GUNTERMAN 4218620 2007-Aug-01  2013-Aug-01 Active 100% $2,400 $9,600 $0
GUNTERMAN 4218621 2007-Aug-01  2013-Aug-01 Active 100% $4,000 $16,00 $0
GUNTERMAN 4248851 2009-Dec-11 2012-Dec-11 Active 100% $3,200 $3,200 $0
GUNTERMAN 4248852 2009-Dec-11 2012-Dec-11 Active 100% $4,000 $4,000 $0
GUNTERMAN 4248853 2009-Dec-11 2012-Dec-11 Active 100% $1,600 $1,600 $0
JOUBIN 3019312 2006-Dec-21 2013-Dec-21 Active 100% $6,000 $30,00 $0
JOUBIN 3019313 2007-Feb-02 2013-Feb-02 Active 100% $3,600 $11,40 $0
JOUBIN 4205720 2005-Jun-28 2013-Jun-28 Active 100% $3,600 $21,60 $0

$0
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Location of Appia Claim Blocks

Township* N%'ﬂg; ; Resgiging Due Date Status  Ownership Work Required A-ggﬁzl d RI:Z:earlve
JOUBIN 3 4214928 2007-Feb-27 2013-Feb-27 Active 100% $400 $1,600 $0
JOUBIN 4215016 2007-Feb-27 2013-Feb-27 Active 100% $1,600 $6,400 $0
JOUBIN 4215309 2006-Dec-29 2013-Dec-29 Active 100% $4,800 $23,00 $0
JOUBIN * 4215313 2007-Feb-02 2013-Feb-02 Active 100% $3,600 $14,40 $0
JOUBIN 4226850 2008-Aug-21  2013-Aug-21 Active 100% $3,600 $10,80 $0
JOUBIN 4226862 2008-Aug-21  2013-Aug-21 Active 100% $3,600 $10,80 $0
JOUBIN 4226863 2008-Aug-21  2013-Aug-21 Active 100% $3,600 $10,80 $0
LEHMAN 4243828 2008-Sep-12 2013-Sep-12 Active 100% $6,400 $19,200 $0

Totals $324,400.00  $1,500,400.00  $1,549,864.00

Notes:
(1) The township is designated as per the locatfdhe #1 claim post.

(2) Surface Rights Exclusion - The surface rigHtthese two (2) claims are the subject of an ageztrbetween CEC and the City of Elliot
Lake dated November 1, 2005.

(3) Environmental Exclusion - These three (3) ctaare the subject of a Canada Nuclear Safety Cosionisecommissioning licence.

(4) Surface Rights Exclusion - The surface rightthese two (2) claims are the subject of an agesgrnetween CEC and the City of Elliot
Lake dated January 19, 2009.

(5) This claim number was issued by the Ministr\Noithern Development and MinesMNDM ”) twice and the Ministry determined that the
Appia claim should receive a “0” prefix to reduamtusion rather than issue a replacement claim eamb

The anniversary dates for the individual claims pdeing the Property are shown in the table aboVee total
work commitment required to maintain the claimgaod standing is C $324,400 per year. At this tikmgpia has
filed excess expenditures totalling C $1,549,864ctviniemain in reserve for meeting future requiretserAppia
has no relinquishment plans at this time, and do¢see a need to relinquish any claims in theréutu

Certain of the mining claims (#4214928, 4221249 &R&05719), while valid, are currently subject to a
decommissioning licence issued underfhelear Safety and Control AciThe licence holder, Denison Mines Inc.,
is obligated to undertake a work program relatimgantrol of environmental impacts and restoratibrthe land.
Appia is required to avoid exploration activitidgat might interfere with the execution of such warograms.
Denison does not have the authority to grant adoetgese claims for the purpose of exploratiotidg.

CEC transferred some surface rights to the Citlglbét Lake under an agreement dated 1 Novembeb 2@0allow

the construction of a road. The mining claims Bected were 4221245 and 4221246. A similar agesgron 12

January, 2009 transferred the surface rights fad monstruction to the City of Elliot Lake on claim215313 and
4215303.

A block of claims in Buckles Township at the eastend of the Property were previously the subjéemoption
agreement between CEC and EMC which had an opti@ain a 50% interest. That option has been rgbhed,
and all outstanding shares of EMC have been puechbg Uranium One Inc. In exchange for terminating
option agreement, CEC issued C $250,000 worth afks{250,000 Common Shares) of Appia to EMC (now
Uranium One). In turn, CEC and now Appia, mustntan in good standing those claims that were sittijethe
original agreement until such time as Appia congdetn initial public offering (PO”). In addition, Uranium One
retains the right to participate in any Appia finarg (for up to 9.9%) until and including an IPO reverse take-
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over. These claims cover the historical uraniusouece located in the Teasdale Zone which is deesttrin later
sections hereof. No other Appia claim units ardearroption to a second party at this time.

Lastly, pursuant to the Denison Agreement, Appiaveged Denison the right to construct a new tasling
infrastructure on claims numbered 4221247 and 4221id exchange for a 3% net smelter royalty on any
production from the subject claims. Denison alemted Appia the right of access onto claims hgldbnison in
the Elliot Lake area as well as the right to usenfer Denison mine workings to facilitate the explaon and
development of Appia’s Elliot Lake Project.

Accessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrastruture and Physiography
Access

The Property is located approximately mid-way bemvéhe city of Sudbury (126 km by road to the east) the
city of Sault Ste. Marie (181 km to the west).cdin be reached via the Trans-Canada Highway (#hd)then via
Highway #108 approximately 26 km north to the toefrElliot Lake. The town can be reached by regalaithern
Ontario bus service, but it is not currently seeddy air. Regularly scheduled air travel fromdrdo is available
on a daily basis into both Sudbury and Sault Sterié/

Climate

The Elliot Lake area has a northern boreal climatederated by its proximity to Lake Huron, with wasummers
and cold dry winters. The coldest months are Jyrarad February which average 21@ -18C. The summers are
hottest during July and August with maximum tempees of 22 to 24C, however, summer nights tend to be cool
with minimum temperatures of 1o 12C.

Most of the precipitation in Elliot Lake falls dag the spring months of April through May and dgriBeptember
and October. Absolute summer and winter tempegatare moderated by the area’s proximity to LakeoHuone

of the largest of the Great Lakes. Although omatdude equal to that of Kirkland Lake, the Ellladitke area does
not experience the cold weather that the formetreerceives.

Local Resources

Elliot Lake, with a 2006 population of 11,549, ismall fraction of its former size during the urami boom of the
1970’s when its population exceeded 30,000. khd# a local supply centre for recreation areashin rtorth,
offering a wide variety of food sources as wellgeneral mechanical supplies and services (equipmegratir,
welding, auto maintenance etc). All the major Ghaia banks are represented in the city: Royal B#nRanada,
TD-Canada Trust, Bank of Nova Scotia, CIBC andBhak of Montreal.

The Ontario government maintains two offices inidElLake: the Office of the Worker Advisor which enates
under the Ministry of Labour, and an office of Maistry of Northern Development and Mines.

A new integrated health centre has been construct&tliot Lake that houses the community’s doctargl other
health care professionals. The city is serviceth i#4-hour 911-response ambulance service proviethe

Algoma District Services Administration Board. Theard provides one on-site ambulance and crewo24sha
day and an additional crew on weekdays from 8 ton¥ for transfers to service the other outlying ardeor

emergency transportation to other centres, a hgtkcdanding pad is located at the Elliot Lake Htadp Air Bravo

Corporation operates an air ambulance servicejcaegvall of northeastern Ontario and provides tdraservices.
Policing services in Elliot Lake are provided b thlliot Lake detachment of the Ontario Provinétalice (OPP).
Officers patrol the streets and are on duty 24 fieuday 7 days a week. The Elliot Lake fire seryoovides 24-
hour service with a complement of 34 firefighteithey have a fully equipped fire hall with an aepamper and a
complement of rescue vehicles.

Elliot Lake is located near the northern margirtted developed corridor along the Trans-Canada HighwAs a
result, there are no paved roads extending more2fi&km north of the city. Elliot Lake Municipaliyort has no
regularly scheduled flights, and is currently beirsgd for occasional auto racing.
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Local and long-distance communication facilitiee arell developed in Elliot Lake, and many hotela paovide
internet services.

Most types of field supplies and equipment are itgalailable in Elliot Lake, although the selectits not as
complete as might be found from major supplierth south. Outdoor recreation equipment is gelyeiralgood
supply in order to support the local recreatiomahmunity. Other supplies such as office equipnaeat materials
are readily available.

Infrastructure

The Property is situated in the Elliot Lake uraniomiming camp. Located at the end of a regionahhiy, the city
of Elliot Lake contains a full complement of locabvernment, health, education and other serviddése town has
good drinking water, sewage treatment, communioatiand electrical services which are sufficientstpport
mining operations.

Agriculture

There is relatively little agriculture in the profearea due to the thin soils and the short growiegod having only
112 frost-free days (versus 160 days for Torortiojh representing major obstacles to market-oréeatgicultural
development. Some private gardens are grown jot@mjproduce vegetables for local consumption.

Silvaculture is a major industry in the area whichduces pine and spruce for the construction imguas well as
cedar and a few hardwoods such as birch as spegiatids. Some renewed cutting is expected in tha af the
Property.

Physiography

Located in the Canadian Shield, the project arggigly rolling with occasional bedrock scarps agimas 25 m in
height. Elevations range from approximately 30680 metres above sea level. The city of Elliokd.& situated
at 312 m above sea level. The area is dottedamviffeat number of lakes which is typical of theekhi The largest
of these is Quirke Lake. The lakes drain towahdsgouth into the North Channel, a body of wateiciwliorms

part of Lake Huron.

Soils in the project area are generally thin assallt of protracted periods of glaciation during fleistocene age.
Areas between bedrock ridges are generally fillétth wlacial till with an upper muskeg or peat-caersurface.
Drainage may be poor locally.

History
Regional Exploration History

The discovery of pitchblende on the shore of GEear Lake, NWT in 1930 and the discovery of uraniaim
Beaverlodge, northern Saskatchewan in 1952 brakentbnopoly that the Belgian Congo had on the priboluof
uranium ores. During 1948, a modest staking rustuwed in the area now known as the Blind Rivestiiit.
Several samples from Long Township, 122 km eaSaflt Ste. Marie contained low but measurable atsooh
uranium. Having examined mineralized samples dufif49, famed geologist Frank Joubin was convirtbed
surface oxidation of pyrite had resulted in thedacieaching of uranium from the rocks. Joubin aged to
persuade Joe Hirshhorn to finance a drilling proged Elliot Lake. Of 56 samples sent for analySi$,returned
values that were economically interesting averadirid% 0. Convinced they were onto a major discovery,
they flew in stakers and managed to stake 1,40fhslaovering 56,000 acres which were simultaneofildg on
11 July, 1953 within the prescribed 30 day peribdhe first claim date. The claims were parceliettd groups,
each group allocated to a newly formed company.

Two weeks after Joubin and Hirshhorn registered taims, Art Stollery, Fred Jowsey and James Keystaked
83 claims on what they considered to be the bestiréeng ground. Stephen B. Roman, convinced they had
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something good, optioned the claims through hismamg North Denison Mines Ltd. paying $30,000 inhcasd
500,000 shares. The first drill hole was compldted depth of 2,706 feet in late 1954. Althougis thole failed to
intersect economically interesting mineralizatitire next 28 holes were successful, outlining aiurardeposit that
was more than 2.4 km in length totalling more tB&0 million tons grading an estimated 2.5 Ibbper ton. It
was on the foundations of this discovery that tle@iBon mining empire was founded.

The surface exploration work and diamond drillimgtially carried out in the Elliot Lake area in tH®60s and
1970s, and in areas now held by Appia, was congblasepart of the deposit evaluation and ore défimiprocess
that gave rise to the historical mines. Little Wwaras done during the 1980s as uranium prices imatecline.

Mining History
General Overview

During 1956, the Quirke Mine at Quirke Lake and tderdin Mine near Elliot Lake commenced
operations under the new companies Preston East@oich Algom Uranium Mines Limited. Eldorado, tleeddral
Crown corporation which was the sole buyer of Caaradiranium production, gave a $206M uranium supply
contract to Algom and a $55M contract to Prontoowidver, before the Algom Mine could begin productithe
company was taken over by the U.K.'s Rio Tinto ltedi (Rio Tinto). By the end of 1957, Rio Tinto haldo
bought control of Nordic Uranium Mines Ltd. and mped its interests in three additional mines intath&pan
Uranium Mines Limited. Finally Rio Tinto acquirddilliken Lake Uranium Mines from Hirshhorn. By thend of
1958, Rio Tinto had seven mines in operation supgI¥0% of Canada’s uranium concentrate productidlgom
Quirke, Nordic, Pronto, Milliken Lake and three @pan mines.

At this same time, another small explorer nameardtk Uranium Mining Ltd. commissioned its mill in
1958 and started production. Realizing the valukigh yttrium (“Y”) contents in the Elliot Lake ores, Stanrock
began producing yttrium as a by product in 196%e Pproduction was quite simple as the metal wetntsnlution
together with uranium. After the uranium ores wet@pped from the pregnant solution, the leacltatetaining
approximately 75% of the Y and 20% of the othee rearth elements REES") plus some thorium was neutralized
with lime and injected air in Pachuka tanks to agftdbout 8.5. Following this, the oxidized slummgs thickened
and the sediment bearing Y-rich underflow was reced for further treatment. Yttrium and rare eanere re-
dissolved using sulphuric acid to generate a smiutvith a pH of about 4.2 from which other metdidso(Fe, Th,
Al) were filtered off. The resulting second staggution was then neutralized with ammonia gas ioguthe rare
earths and yttrium to be precipitated. The sludgse then thickened and dried.

During this same period, Denison sank two shaftgsodiscovery, one a 5-compartment and the other a
compartment shaft, and a mill was constructed tzgss 6,000 tons per day. Eventually reorganizeDemison
Mines Ltd., the company negotiated a $280,600,08@tract to supply 28 M Ibs of 4@s to the United States
between 1957 and November, 1963. When supply acstito the United Kingdom were added to this, Igear
$500M of uranium was sold by 1963.

In 1959, the United States announced that it wowddlonger accept Canadian uranium production,
although existing contracts were extended into 1986 a result, the Algom, Northspan, Pronto andilkéin Mines
were reorganized under a single company, Rio Algdines Ltd. However, as contracted deliveries were
completed, the mines closed until only the Nordiméand the Denison Mine were operating during 1965
Denison’s production fell from 5,379,168 Ibs ofQ4 during 1961 to 3,950,364 lbs during 1964 whileicigithe
same period uranium recovery rose from 93.18% t6735.

In 1966, Stephen Roman forecast that uranium copgamfor peaceful nuclear power generation would
soon outpace predicted uranium requirements foroter purposes. He was correct, but internatidoedes
intervened in the supply-demand curve, and this d@dofound impact not only on mine production, biso on
uranium exploration in Canada.

Having observed the Stanrock yttrium operation, iBam decided to capitalize on the growing market fo
yttrium which had previously been identified ascéemtial by-product in Elliot Lake ores. In 196t&ium circuit
was added to Denison’s mill and production staftéter that year with 10,307 kg (22,724 Ibs) ofO¥ produced.
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The following year, the Elliot Lake camp reachedemith in its output with 78,268 kg (172,551 1bg)¥6,0;
produced. The camp’s output gradually diminiskeedthe US market turned more and more to lower cost
production from its own mines, including the Mount&ass Mine in California, a major producer ofiwer and
lanthanum. By 1970, the output was only 33,112 %8000 Ibs). No production was recorded in 19717@.
Stanrock merged with Denison Mines Ltd. in 1978ear that saw only 181 kg (400 Ibs) ofQ4 produced, but the
yttrium market revived the following year which savwollective output of 39,366 kg (86,787 Ibs) gD¥ from the
Elliot Lake mines. During the period 1975 throuifv7, output from the Denison mine alone averade84% kg
(67,340 Ibs) of yttrium oxide, however by 1978 iytitn production became uneconomic due to increasadent
costs.

Driven by market demand, the international priceuianium oxide rose above all previous highs rzach
$43.40 per pound during the summer of 1978. Thiswing in commodity prices enabled many of théoElLake
uranium mines to resume production, including thgnéw Lake Mine to the east, and fuelled a secoadium
exploration boom in the Elliot Lake area.

Those forces contended with the Three Mile Islacmdeent on 30 March, 1979, described by veteramsnew
commentator Walter Cronkite as “the worst nuclearident of the atomic age”. The fact that the deot was in
fact a faulty pressure release valve that resufteanly a minor release of radioactivity was lost the general
public, and a major slow-down in reactor constauttin the United States did result. What hurt tianium
exploration sector and mining industry far more wasever accumulating overhang in uranium stoekpil

In the late 1980s, the main contractor for uranftom Elliot Lake mines was the province’s publiceeyy
utility Ontario Hydro. Political pressure on thevgrnment and softening international uranium prif@rced the
government to renegotiate its contracts with Demistines Ltd. Faced with high mining costs, the l@naining
uranium mines in the Blind River Area were forcedctose. Before closure, the Denison and Agnewelaknes
attempted various innovative means to drasticafjuce mining costs, such as through in-stope flfapdin-situ
leaching) and heap leaching, but recoveries fddemieet expectations. In 1985, Denison evaludtegobtential of
supplying 300,000 pounds of yttrium oxide per ygardapan, a plan that was never realized as at rekthe
company'’s inability to sustain operations at itsnium mine.

The Agnew Lake Mine, located 80 km west of SudharfHyman Twp., experienced similar difficulties
with the down-turn in uranium markets brought abbutthe closure of the United States markets toaGem
uranium. Development work was suspended in 19&tduow uranium prices, but by the mid 1970s recmg
uranium prices supported a decision to dewatemntime to the 535 m (1,750 foot) level. In prepamatior mining,

a decline was driven from surface to the 580 m Q1f@@t) level. It was collared on the north sideadedge about
760 m south-southwest of the shaft. Undergroungldement then proceeded to prepare a test stape-&tu
leaching (1SL"), a relatively new technology at the time.

ISL was developed for use in fast-tracking sandstoosted uranium deposits to production in the
southwestern United States. Rather than strippwverburden and open pit mining low grade resourtsk,
allowed leachate to be injected into the uraniuaripg formation via a series of injection wellsdagxtracted from
the formation by a second series of wells. An outgg of holes was used to dewater the formatiod prevent
leachate from migrating beyond the vicinity of ttheposit and contaminating important aquifers. Mbkes were
cased to the depth of the ore-bearing horizon. &aycerns for the use of ISL include the mineralo§ythe
uranium (must be ISL-leachable) and the permewltalitd porosity characteristics of the host formatidExcessive
clay alteration, for example, impedes leachate flovd uranium recoveries. Oxidation of the fornmatie also
necessary to liberate uranium and a failure toipgesufficient oxidation can dramatically depressaveries.

At the Agnew Lake Mine, the comparatively low prim@ermeability in the host formation prevented the
use of conventional ISL. Therefore, the mine steglected was prepared by closely spaced blastdeviglopment,
and then explosives were used to induce permeabilipre-fracturing the ore. Leachate was thengmdrinto the
sealed stope and re-circulated for a period of titdeanium oxide was precipitated from the pregrsattition. The
success of the Agnew Lake ISL test program led pooguction decision in June, 1977 at a proposedymtion
rate of 455,000 kg of 4Dg per year to complement mine production from cotieeal long-hole, blast-hole
stoping.
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By the end of 1980, Kerr had 3,397,000 tonnes dferia actively being leached. Initially a sprigkl
system was used to spray the ore with leachateinbiutll-scale operation, the overall leach effiuiy (recovery
rate) was lower than the test case. As a resdtsprinkler system was replaced by a flood legstes to enhance
the recovery of uranium through greater saturatibthe blasted and fractured in-situ ore by leaghabDespite
Kerr's best efforts, the mine failed to achieve éimticipated rates of production, and undergrousgebbpment was
terminated in May, 1980.

The 1984-85 Canadian Mines Handbook reports thatngl 1982, 2,221,000 tons (2,130,000 t) of broken
in-situ ore and 1,449,000 tons (1,315,000 t) ofame stockpiled ore was continuously leached ustivember
when the leachate was drained in preparation foerslosure. The amount of uranium recovered frois 3.536
Mt of ore was not reported. All leaching ceaseckarly 1983 and production amounted to only 39,&lor
19,533 kg of YOg that year.

At one time, 13 uranium mines operated at Ellidtéd,amost of which were owned by Rio Algom Limited.
However the largest mine was the Denison Mine.

Much can be learned from the mining history of taenp. The mining of deeper and lower grading ases
near surface resources were depleted, offers ingnghh what might be accomplished today given digaitly
higher commodity prices. Most of this mining wasmpleted using conventional room and pillar methodise
miners of the time also used innovative technigoekiding in-situ leaching and bio-leaching as raétive lower
cost methods of production. The possibility thattstechniques could be modified for use at preseatls to be
carefully assessed.

Denison Mines was one of the innovators in respethe application of bio-leach technology. Sitice
early 1960s, the company used bacterial leachirsgsadvage method for recovering additional uranitom mined
out stopes, waste piles, ore left behind after mgréind from pillars. At the Stanrock Mine, an ipdiedently
developed bio-leaching program was implemented9®4land the following year 147,750 Ibs of uraniuride
were produced using this technique. Bioleachinghat Stanrock operation continued until sometimel@70.
Stanrock’s technology was developed independentlyitawas not until its amalgamation with DenisarlB73 that
the two technologies were merged.

The “in-place” uranium bioleaching programs prasticat Elliot Lake consisted in part of spraying
acidified mine water into mined-out stopes. Sotoeding of stopes was also attempted, and additiorplace
leaching was practiced on blasted, rubblized @decause the Elliot Lake area experiences cold vangedistinct
improvement in uranium recovery was observed duttregwarmer months. Biologically induced oxidatifithe
pyrite in the uranium ores generates sulphuric aciplace, and this in turn leaches uranium inghesence of an
oxidant, namely ferric ions generated from bio-@tidn of pyrite. Similar processes are known tounmaturally
in the Witwatersrand, South Africa area where sonirge waters can contain moderately elevated uramawels.
Acidophilic iron-oxidizing bacteria are also abteleach uranium by oxidizing ¥Wto U** in dilute sulphuric acid
solution. The mechanism is generally consideredetdndirect, i.e. the organisms maintain a higlutsm redox
potential through oxidation of ferrous ions deriviegdm iron sulphides in the ore. Ferric ions oxaliaraninite
(UO,) to UO,* which then forms soluble [UEBO,) 1**" species.

Denison established a task force in 1982 to exartfiaebroader application of bacterial leachingte t
recovery of uranium from its ores as a primary mgnimethod. Denison’s research contributed to atgre
improvement in the effectiveness of the companglsage operations. Follow-up laboratory work, fioglly and
technically supported by the Canada Centre for Minand Energy Technology (“CanMet”), resulted @adh
efficiencies of +/- 75% being achieved from trickkaching and flood leaching. As a result, a decisvas made in
1984 to proceed with full scale flood leach testglving taking down pairs of stopes after convemél mining is
completed. The prepared stopes were then seatbdcamcrete bulkheads and flooded and drained womthly
basis over a period of 18 months to achieve 70%aetkon. At one point, Denison had 90 flood leaghstopes in
varying stages of operation, and more than 840|p8®f uranium oxide came from bacterial leachinglp87.
Recovery efficiencies were more or less governethbysize of ore fragmentation, however as the teokled to
break along mineralized planes, a direct relatigngid not exist as many of the larger block sinese generally
unmineralized. A fragmentation size of 73% passinigich (10 cm) screen was achieved using a 612xct2
(2'x4") drilling pattern. After initial flooding,draining is required to provide oxygenation as pdirthe sulphide
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oxidation process. Additional air was also prodideom 2 inch polyethylene pipes laid on the fl@frthe stopes
before blasting. Heightened radon release wasuodesirable collateral effect of the bioleach pssceesulting
from the large quantities of broken rock undergcbunAdditional ventilation requirements were met lbgth

increased airflow and an exhaust system to drawaafbn. Ventilation eventually became a major afieg cost
item in the Denison Mine.

Collectively, the foregoing Denison mines produsethe 156 Mlbs of kDg from 75 M tons of ore grading
approximately 2.1 Ibs i@g per ton. The Rio Algom mines produced approxinya2flé Mibs of 4Og from 92 M
tons of ore grading approximately 2.3 IbsOdper ton. The total production was approximateég &1lbs of Os.

The mining history for each of the mines is sumaediin the following sections. These former pradac
are now managed under the Federal Nuclear Safetyn@ssion and the Joint Review Commission, a body
composed of Ontario government ministries and fadgpartments.

Denison Mines Limited

Can-Met Mine

The Can-Met Mine had a brief history of producticommencing in May, 1958 and ending in
April, 1961. During 1958 and 1959, production lieth approximately 2,495,709 Ibs o£Q from 1,477,160 tons
of uranium ore averaging approximately 1.8 Ibs/tdine estimated production for 1960 was 1.1 M toinere at a
similar grade.

Denison Mine

The Denison Mine was one of the great successestofithe Elliot Lake camp. In its first year of
production in 1957, the mine produced some 2,14B6l86 of L,Og from 908,972 tons of ore averaging 2.36 Ibs/ton.
The initial mill capacity was 3,000 tons/day andotighput for the first year averaged 2,676 tons/dayring the
second and third years, capacity was doubled amdighput rose to an average of 5,672 tons by theor1959.
During 1962, the milling rate was reduced as highexde ores were mined — total production in 1968 w
5,078,760 Ibs of kDg from 1,586,600 tons of ore averaging 3.2 Ibs/tbenison’s generally higher grades persisted
through 1971 after which uranium grades graduadiglided. In the meantime, the plant went througtumber of
modifications with the addition of a yttrium oxiaércuit in 1967. The plant was up-graded severaés, and as
Denison amalgamated with Stanrock Mines in 1973gnmaging of the mill and mechanization of the mine
continued such that the uranium mill capacity wageased to 6,000 tons/day in 1976 and to 10,00€/day in
1979. The increased throughput was also implerdetateallow Denison to maintain uranium output usioger
grade ores which were averaging 2.03 Ibs/ton dutBifp (4,495,757 Ibs 4@g produced). Mill capacity was further
increased to 15,000 tons/day in 1981 and the fatigwear, production reached a record high of 632 Ibs of
UsOg from 4,025,000 tons of ore averaging 1.65 Ibs/ton.

During 1984, 5,840,000 Ibs of;0g were produced, including 513,000 Ibs from a heshing
operation. During 1987, bacterial leaching wasetkdor the first time and 840,000 Ibs ofQ4 was recovered.
Having produced more than 5 M Ibs of@4 in 1988, Denison’s production commenced a rapdike which saw
only 3.56 M Ibs produced in 1990 and approximatbly same amount during 1991. Underground productio
ceased on 11 March, 1992, with the mine produci®ag,576 Ibs of YOg from 464,163 tons of ore grading 1.65
Ibs/ton. Total production for the mine was 146,808 Ibs of UOg from 69,484,027 tons of ore grading 2.2 Ibs/ton.
The average life of mine metal recovery was 95.4%.

The Denison Mine was also a major producer of wttrioxide concentrates as a by-product.
According to the Canadian Minerals Yearbook for@,9Be yttrium concentrates averaged 60% total earéhs of
which the relative rare metal contents were 0.8%40La3.7% CeQ 1.0% PgO;1, 4.1% NdO;, 4.5% SmO;,
0.2% EyOs, 8.5% GdOs;, 1.2% ThO, 11.2% Dy0s, 2.6% H@Os;, 5.5% EpO;, 0.9% TmOs;, 4.0% YhOs;, 0.4%
Lu,O3 and 51.4% YOs. The recovery of total REEs to the concentragrayed approximately 88.6%. Following
the leaching of uranium ores and the stripping @nium from the pregnant solution, the leachatetainad
approximately 75% of the Y and 20% of the other REBm the ore plus some thorium. Lime and injeéctiE was
used to reduce the acidity of the solution in Paehianks to a pH of about 8.5. The slurry was tinekened, and
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following decantation the yttrium-rich sediment wasovered for further treatment. Yttrium and ressths were
re-dissolved using sulphuric acid to generate atwol with a pH of about 4.2 from which other metalids (Fe,
Th, Al) were filtered off from the second stagewiain. The rare earths were then precipitatedcarsbtime using
ammonia gas, thickened and dried to produce aigttrich mischmetal.

Stanrock Mine

Following the sinking of two shafts to 3,000 feahe Stanrock Mine likely produced
approximately 528,000 tons of ore during 1958. | Rhipacity was 3,000 tons/day and approximately,@22Ibs of
UsOg were recovered. Ore treatment and uranium oufjpat thought to have doubled the following year.
Production reached a new high during 1961 when36B8 Ibs of YOg were recovered from 1,111,442 tons of ore
indicating a recovered grade of 1.89 Ibs per t@onventional mining ceased during October, 1964yever a
yttrium circuit was added in 1965 and a small antooin yttrium concentrate was produced. By thatedat
approximately 6,898,000 tons of ore had been miinesh which 11,508,000 Ibs of 405 had been produced
(recovered grade = 1.67 Ibs/ton).

A bio-leaching program was implemented in 1964 @rodiuction of 147,750 lbs of uranium oxide
was reported in 1965 followed by 142,806 Ibs durk®$6. Bioleaching continued until sometime in @.9But
additional production data were not available to MIGThe mine was placed on care and maintenandegi®71,
and despite being acquired by Denison Mines thr@ugbrporate amalgamation on 12 February, 197 35téerock
Mine never returned to production.

Rio Algom Mines Ltd.

Algom Mine

The Algom Mine started mining on 21 October, 195%hva mill rated at 3,000 tons per day
starting production on 1 May of the following yeafhe mine closed on 30 September, 1959 after piodu
2,495,709 lbs of &Dg from 1,477,160 tons of ore grading approximate8/Ibs/ ton. Average mill throughput was
actually 2,485 tons per day.

Lacnor Mine

Few if any details of production from the Lacnorndiare available because its production was
consolidated with and reported as part of Rio Algotatal production. A summary record indicateattthe mine
produced 3.4 M tons of uranium ore between 1956 E9®D. A mill with a capacity of 3,800 tons/dayswva
constructed during 1957 and production may haveadigtcommenced during September of that year.

Nordic Mine

The Nordic Mine commenced production in 1957 withmdl rated at 3,000 tons/day, and
maintained an average throughput of 2,722 tons/didye mine closed in 1959 having milled a totaB¢f31,826
tons from which 7,162,303 Ibs of;0g were produced for an average recovered grade28flBs/ton (2.46 Ibs/ton
ore grade). Interestingly, the Nordic Mine was &duais first producer of REE-bearing yttrium concatgs in 1964
however there appears to be no record as to thfispmounts produced.

Milliken Mine

A 3,000 ton/day mill commenced operations on 11d1al958 at Milliken. Throughput that year
averaged 2,575 tons/day, however output of 3,048/tay somewhat exceeded design capacity durin@.195
During those two years, the mill processed 1,79 {68s of ore and produced approximately 3.17 MotbE;0g.
After 1959, the reports available to WGM showed enimoduction consolidated with other Rio Algom nsinélhe
Milliken Mine produced for several years after tiate, reportedly closing in 1964 after producirndg Bl tons of
ore.
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Panel Mine

A 3,000 ton/day mill was constructed at the Pan&leVl The mill commenced operations on 11
March, 1958 and closed on 30 June, 1964. Durirf$,18ngineering studies were undertaken pursuantteasing
mill capacity to 3,300 tons/day and reopening tleenm late 1979. As of the end of 1978, $71.8 &d heen spent
on refurbishment, and the mine restarted operation$980 producing 1,006,000 tons of ore (2,883stday)
grading 1.7 Ibs/ton for 1,897,000 |bs of recoveueahium oxide. The mined grade increased to ZQdb during
1981 and likely declined thereafter.

Production at the Panel Mine is reported by RiooMgin consolidation with others of its mines.
Production in 1981 totaled 2,149,000 Ibs @f/from 1,106,000 tons of ore. The mine continuetis@perations
until its official closing on 31 August, 1990, hovez there appears to have been little or no préciuetfter 1988.
Experiments with underground bacterial leachingenmearried out during 1986 and the program was edgn
during 1987. In 1988, the mine produced 370,0@00bU;0g from its underground leaching program. It is not
know how much of this production, if any, was dedvrom conventional milling.

Pronto Mine

Construction of a 1,000 ton/day mill at the Proktime commenced during 1956 and production
followed the next year, totalling 1,972,521 lbsWjOg from only 507,122 tons of ore (recovered grade3.%
Ibs/ton). Operations were suspended in May, 19%0vhich time 7,007,999 Ibs of uranium oxide had rbee
produced from 1,633,788 tons of ore at an averagevered grade of 4.3 Ibs/ton, a relatively higadegrfor the
Elliot Lake camp. After uranium production ceastéd mill changed over to copper production and tgeration
continued until 1970 at a rate of 600-700 tons/dByring 1980, Rio Algom undertook studies to reswmanium
production at Pronto, but declining prices prevert® mine’s reactivation.

Quirke Mine

The Quirke Mine was one of Rio Algom’s more impattairanium deposits at Elliot Lake.
During late November 1956, a vertical shaft wasstatted to a target depth of 1,220 feet with deelent on 9
levels. A 3,000 ton/day mill was constructed. ®liproduction commenced during 1958 with the pradacof
2,178,171 Ibs of kDg from 963,835 tons of ore averaging 2.43 lbs/tdihe mine closed in January, 1961, but last
reported production for 1960. Total mine outputswlia962,652 tons of uranium ore averaging 2.4 dhsftom
which 4,437,377 Ibs of 40g were recovered (93.0% recovery).

During 1966, the mine workings were dewatered ambvation of the mill was initiated. With
modifications completed the following year, the minas reopened with a mill capacity of 3,300 toag/dThe mill
was further up-graded in 1970 to a design rate 59@tons/day, however, the mine and mill were stmn at the
end of 1971. A third expansion of the mill was eridken during 1975 at a planned cost of C $76 hdtcease
capacity to 7,000 tons/day, and completed in 1978naactual cost of $68.9 M. Mine output was reparted
separately during this period of time. Reportdesthat the mill ran at an average throughput @@8,tons/day
during 1978 and at design capacity the followingry€/,004 tons/day). The mill was used as Rio Algomain
regional facility during the 1980’s processing mretnantly Stanleigh Mine ore during 1990 and thiesaintil the
Stanleigh’s closure in late 1996. A summary of enimoduction indicates that 44 M tons of ore wetspced from
the Quirke Mine.

New Quirke Mine

Development of the New Quirke Mine commenced dufifg5. Rather than constructing a new
mill, Rio Algom elected to refurbish and increase tcapacity at its existing Quirke Mine located yo2l4
kilometres away. Production from the new mine canoed in October, 1968. No detailed records padt978
were available to WGM for the mine’s production doeRio Algom’s tendency to report consolidateddarction
data. During 1978, the mine produced 4,952,00@fhsanium oxide from 2,166,000 tons of ore havémgaverage
grade of 2.3 Ibs/ton. The ore was processed abrilgenal Quirke mill and uranium recovery repottedveraged
99% during the year. The following year, produetinocreased to 5,294,000 Ibs of®@4 from 2,452,000 tons of ore
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at the same grade (94% recovery). Production wskised at between approximately 4.5 M Ibs and\s Ibs
until 1986.

Experiments with underground bacterial leachingeaearried out during 1986 and the program
was expanded the following year. No specific manthas been made concerning uranium production fhasn
program, and it seems to have been discontinu&@88 probably due to less than satisfactory resditse grade of
the ore being leached is not reported in the géfiezeature available. Mining operations ceased3d August,
1990 after nearly 22 years of continuous activiBartial records covering about eight years of atans (1978-
1986) show production of 23.3 M tons of ore fromiehh¥5.5 M Ibs of YOg were produced making this one of Rio
Algom’s great mines.

Spanish-American Mine

A 2,000 ton/day mill was constructed at the Spa#isterican Mine in 1957, but the mine closed
little more than a year later in February, 195%e Total reported production was 276,000 tons efafran uncertain
grade. In response to rising uranium prices, arpireary study was undertaken during 1980 to astes$easibility
of reopening the mine, and resuming productiomatrhine remained part of Rio Algom’s long term péemnlate as
1988.

Stanleigh Mine

Stanleigh was the last of the Elliot Lake Minesctose, ceasing production in June, 1996. The
initial mine development occurred in 1958 and @Q,®n/day mill was constructed. That year, 210,&fHs of ore
were produced having a low average grade of orfdyilds L;Og per ton from which 293,166 Ibs of uranium oxide
were produced. Recovery averaged 93%. Mill capacas doubled in 1959 and the mining of highedgrg ores
(2.1 Ibs/ton) led to production of nearly 1.7 M kifsU;Og. Production was suspended on 30 November, 1960 du
to the low grades and was not resumed until mid319Buring the intervening period, 15,300 m (50,Zf)0of
mostly successful deep diamond drilling was congalein 1967, but despite this, most of the plant arde
equipment was sold during 1969.

In 1975, mineral economics studies were undertédea-examine the possibility of reopening the
mine under stronger uranium market conditions. oliding project was started in 1979 and refurbishroérthe
mill commenced with a goal of resuming productiommid-1983. Rio Algom met its target and the mieepened
that year, with the mill’s design capacity (4,2504/day) being achieved in March-April, 1984. Rrcttbn figures
are available for the period 1988 through 1996e @rade varied between 1.6 and 2.0 Ig®d.per ton during that
period. Mine throughput was initially 3.5 M tonerpyear, however, after 1989 it rapidly declinecpproximately
900,000 tons/year (+/-250,000). The productioarahium oxide declined from 6,100,000 Ibs in 1988 400,000
in 1991 before returning to a level of approximat&)800,000 during the period 1992 through 199%e ine
produced 1,055,000 lbs of;0; from ores estimated to grade approximately 1.&dhsduring 1996 in the nine
months leading up to the mine’s closure. The nisrgought to have produced between 14.0 and 15t@ns! of
ore.

Property History
General Overview

As mentioned in the foregoing, the closure of tHmB_ake Mines was triggered by a collapse innium
prices due to a tremendous over-supply of uraniwmhe world market far exceeding any demands frben t
military or from energy utilities. The inventory aranium in various forms had been building forrmthan 20
years, and the fall in prices came as no greatriserpo those working in the industry at the timMining in the
Elliot Lake camp continued despite the new econaroiwditions due largely to long-term supply contsabat Rio
Algom and Denison had negotiated with Ontario Hydnal a few other energy utilities. As these catsravere
satisfied or, in the case of Ontario Hydro, carezklihrough a buy-out negotiation, the mines wecedawith the
reality of substantially lower revenue and everaésting costs. As a result, the mines closed tepeonsiderable
lower grading uranium resources in the ground.elated aspect of the closure was the loss of jotdseapertise in
the uranium sector that even today cannot be e@glgced.
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At the time of closure, it was simply assumed tHkibt Lake would never again produce uranium, nor
would the region be of interest for uranium duette higher grades found in the Athabasca Basirkeeatsewan.
All mining infrastructure was removed and the siteslerwent a program of restoration that contirtoday. Little
thought was given to the substantial undevelopsdurees remaining at Elliot Lake as well as resesiremaining
in mine pillars.

With the run-up in prices seen during 2006 and 20®ién they were poised to exceed the inflation-
adjusted record uranium market prices establishathgl the period 1977-1979, the Elliot Lake aregoged a
renaissance. The exploration drilling by Pele MaimResources PMR”) that defined new Mineral Resources in
Pecors Township is proof of both renewed interest the potential for success. The mineralizationRMR
property was known previously from considerablelepgiion work that outlined the uranium-bearing eseveral
decades ago, a fact that is not apparent to thopgrang the information from the PMR website. Jldeposit is
situated approximately 10 km south of the PropeRMR have announced a NI 43-101 compliant InfeMéaeral
Resource of 30.05 million tonnes grading 0.05%4X1.0 Ibs UOg per short ton) having a minimum thickness of
2.44 m (no average thickness given) and using affudf 0.03% WOs. The company has also stated that it
believes that additional (conceptual) potentiabtsxfor 25 to 30 million tonnes of mineralizatidngeades of 0.04%
to 0.05% UWOs.

Known uranium mineralization occurs in five maireas of the Property based on drill hole evidence,
summarized as follows:

Teasdale Zone located in Buckles Township approtéimd km east of the former Can-Met
Mine and situated obliquely on strike (and down)dipout 4 km southeast of
the Panel Mine.

Gemico Block 3 located on boundary between Buckdad Joubin Townships and situated
obliguely down-plunge from the Stanrock Mine

Gemico Block 10 located in southeastern Bouck Tdimsand down-dip of the Spanish
American Mine

Banana Lake Zone located in Beange Township anteweBouck Township, and situated in the
centre of the Quirke Lake Syncline.

The Canuc Zones located in west-central Bouck Tovpnsand situated southwest of the Spanish
American Mine in an area not intensively drilled.

Teasdale Zone

The area near Teasdale Lake has been drilled dumiagy periods, but the major drilling
programs were completed during the mid-1950s édsvigt

1954-1955 Conecho Mines Ltd. 19 diamond drill helesholes not filed
with Mining Recorder.

1954-1956 San Antonio Gold Mines Ltd. 6 diamondl tioles totalling 4,496.5 m
(14,753 feet).

1954-1957 Roche Long Lac Gold Mines Ltd 5 diamorilii laoles totalling 3,246.9 m
(10,653 feet).

The foregoing holes were targeted on the southdastetension of the main uranium-bearing
zone on the north limb of the Quirke Lake Synclirihe area of drilling was centred only three kikires ESE of
the Can-Met Mine and four kilometres east of them8ick Mine.
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The Conecho Mines Ltd. Conechd) drilling program was evidently designed to taking strike
of the Panel Mine in an area where the uraniumibgadviatinenda Formation occurs at a relatively kivaldepth.
All of the holes were drilled vertically. Four tife holes reviewed by WGM produced interestingrggetions:

C-4 48.8-52.1m 3.3m 0.4 Ibs YOy/ton (0.020% 4O5)
(160.0-171.0 ft) (11 feet)
C-6 59.0 — 59.4 0.4m 0.68 Ibs WOy/ton (0.034% 4Oy)
(193.6-194.9) (1.3)
c-10 241.5- 244.4 2.9m 0.2 Ibs YOy/ton (0.010% 4O5)
(792.3-801.7) (9.4)
c-13 312.7-322.6 9.9m 0.54 Ibs YOy/ton (0.027% 4O5)
(1026.0-1058.4) (32.4)

WGM was not able to obtain logs for all of the Come drill holes because records for many
holes (C9, C10, C12, C14 through C19) do not appetire MNDM assessment files. Nevertheless, ¢vends for
the other holes show that the overlying sequenceethe top of the Matinenda ranges in thicknessfeero to
234 m (768 feet), with only three holes having mibian 37 m (122 feet) of overlying material.

An undated independent report written by the late Dboug Sprague, P.Eng., formerly Chief
Geologist of Rio Algom Ltd., for Artisan Gold Infrom which CEC acquired the claims, reports that finst 11
holes failed to intersect commercially interestimgnium mineralization. This seems to reflect thet that the
intersections in holes C-4, C-6 and C-10 (repoaiedve) are generally thin and/or low grade. Initaaldto what is
in the assessment files, the following Conechasetetions have been reported:

C-12 interval not available 1.5m 1.23 Ibs YOg/ton (0.062% WJOg)
(5 feet)

C-14 as above 1.5m 1.12 Ibs YOg/ton (0.056% JOg)
(5 feet)

C-15 as above 1.5m 1.38 Ibs WOg/ton (0.069% JOs)
(5 feet)

C-16 as above 1.5m 1.00 Ibs WOg/ton (0.050% JOs)
(5 feet)

C-17 as above 1.5m 1.07 Ibs YOg/ton (0.054% JOg)
(5 feet)

C-18 as above 1.5m 0.98 Ibs YOg/ton (0.049% WJOyg)
(5 feet)

C-19 as above 1.5m 1.42 Ibs YOg/ton (0.071% YOy)
(5 feet)

The foregoing Conecho drill holes C-12 through Cwide evidently completed sometime in late
1955 or in 1956. As the host rocks are not stedjglging in this area, the intersection lengthliméthe Conecho
holes is very close to the true thickness of theemdlized zone, and it very closely matches theahchining height
for room and pillar mining. A compilation map pragkd by independent mining engineer Robert MacGre§o
Sault Ste Marie, and supplied to WGM shows that4Gathd C-15 intersected, respectively, 1.2 1©dlon over
4.0 feet (1.2 m) and 1.8 Ibs@s/ton over 3.9 feet (1.1 m), effectively confirmitige numbers previously reported.

The San Antonio Gold Mines Ltd. $AGM”) drilling program consisted of a single fencesif
vertical holes along a north-south section locamath of Teasdale Lake, and immediately east oPtioperty. In
moving towards the south, the holes progressivetpentered an ever thickening assemblage of sikadying the
basal Matinenda conglomerates. Holes SA-1 and @#e6sufficiently close to the Property to be daerest.
Unfortunately, no assays were filed with the SartoAio drill logs. Sprague reported that none & tioles
intersected values of interest. It is clear thalet SA-4 and SA-5 were not drilled deep enoughetich the
Matinenda Formation. The third hole was drilledoinvhat may be a basement high which stands abue t
elevation of the Matinenda Formation. The geolabieformation from hole SA-2 is not present in i&IDM file
below 3,322 feet (1,012.5 m), and with a total tbngf 4,215 feet (1,285 m) it is clear that theehotossed the
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prospective Matinenda horizons to basement. Stradigactivity was reported from a pitchblende \ieifole SA-

1 at 2022.5 ft (616.5 m), but no assay is reportétie drill core from hole SA-6 between 2,945 andl8 feet

(897.6-917.4 m), located immediately above the mgtne basement, was removed before the core wgedand
no description is available in the public recordsis is very unusual and leads immediately togfheculation that
the core was well mineralized, because the hateerly on the trend of mineralization from the Bladine.

The Roche Long Lac Gold MinesRbche’) holes were completed on the islands and near the
main shoreline of Quirke Lake, approximately 4 kionfi the Panel Mine and as little as 1.5 km from Glam-Met
shaft. Of the seven holes drilled, the MNDM resmbntain the logs and assays for five. Of thtéwee holes
reported intersections ranging between 2 m andn9gbading between 1.1 and 1.8 IbsOd per ton as follows:

R-1 556.4 — 557.0 m 0.6 m 1.1 Ibs YOg/ton (0.055% WOs)
(1825.3-1827.3 ft) (2.0 feet)
560.3 — 561.7 m 1.4m 1.14 Ibs YOg/ton (0.057% UOs)
(1838.4 - 1842.9ft) (4.5 feet)
652.4 —563.3 m 0.9 m 0.94 Ibs YOy/ton (0.047% UOs)
(1845.0 — 1848.2ft) (3.2 feet)
R-3 626.9 — 628.4 1.5m 1.8 Ibs YOg/ton (0.90% Oy)
(2056.8 — 2061.8 ft) (5.0)
R-5 576.7 — 579.6 2.9m 1.5 Ibs YOg/ton (0.075% 4Oy)
(1892.0 — 1901.5 ft) (9.5)

Hole number R-4 showed anomalous radioactivityhim interval 611.1-614.8 m (2,005-2,017 ft)
but only very low uranium values of 0.01-0.02%Qg (0.2-0.4 lbs/ton) were reported. Similarly, Roah@l hole
R-2 showed anomalous radioactivity at 733.0-742.82m05-2,436 ft) in the hole, but the samples iy show
significant uranium assays.

Gemico Block #3

Gemico Block #3 was defined by Rio Algom Ltd. witithe boundaries of a group of claims that
it acquired from Gemico during the late 1970s.

This area includes a down-dip location of the wrembearing conglomerates. Within this area,
Rio Algom had estimated that “potential” resourpparently based on a single drill hole, KM-144-@t down by
Kerr McGee near the northwestern boundary of taend. According to the original drill log that VWGobtained
from the MNDM assessment files, the mineralizedezonntains a higher grading interval at 1,118.21.4 m
(3,668-3679 ft) averaging 0.46 Ibs@} per ton over a thickness of 3.4 m (11 ft). Théuwee of the mineralized
zone is confined to the Gemico claims and is trtettdy the inferred margin of the mineralized zotteis clear
that uranium mineralization extends to the eastthnand west of the Gemico claims. The truncatidrthe
mineralization to the south is not justified as tales, Nasco #2 and Nasco #3 intersected minatializof interest
approximately 500-800 m south of the Gemico claif&sco #2 intersected 0.8 IbgQ@d per ton over a thickness
of 1.5 m (5 ft), the grade being an average ofititéal intersection (0.76 Ibs 4@Dg/ton over 1.5 m) and a second
wedged cut (0.84 Ibs 4Dg/ton over 1.5 m). Nasco #3 intersected 0.5 1§9glper ton over a thickness of 4.5 m
(14.9 ft).

Given Rio Algom’s experience as one of the two maianium producers, and based on the
foregoing evidence, WGM accepts the above-menti@stidnate as a reasonable estimate of an explorttiget
within the Gemico #3 block which shows that a higiading core zone is present, likely grading @.81bs UOg
per ton, that could positively influence the vidilof mining this zone. The potential quantitydagrade is
conceptual in nature, there has been insufficigptogation to define a mineral resource and itrisartain if further
exploration will result in the target being delitehas a mineral resource. As the area held byafgdpo covers the
area surrounding the Gemico block, WGM concludeat the mineral potential on the Appia claims ishataly
greater than that estimated for the block alond,that additional drilling is justified to increaee resource base.
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Gemico Block #10

Rio Algom estimated that the uranium-bearing congimtes underlying the Gemico #10 block
contained a “potential resource” of 20.7M tons waétfh average grade of 0.75 lbgQd per ton with an average
thickness of 3 m (10 ft). This historical estimatdich does not comply with current NI 43-101 regments, was
based on Kerr McGee drill hole KM-150-1 (1.6 IbgQgd per ton over 1.5 m [5 ft]), drilled in the northstern area
of the zone, as well as two drill hole intersecsiamn the Denison block completed by Denison Min&bs and
Uranez Mitsui:

DU-76-2 0.62 Ibs YOg per ton over 2.1 m (6.9 ft).
DU-76-3 0.65 Ibs YOg per ton over 3.8 m (12.4 ft).

Like the Gemico #3, the mineral potential of theéd#dlock is constrained by the geographical
boundaries of the claims available to Rio Algont isl significant that a large block of ground tce thorth,
previously owned by Denison Mines Ltd., is locatesnediately down-dip of the Stanrock and Spanishefioan
Mines. This block is now part of the claim grouglchby Appia. The historical resource estimatedtiie #10
block was further constrained by the limits of #ene thought to be of ore grade at the time ofetftemate. The
western margin of this mineralized zone is delichity the Ramsey Lake Scour, within which the middississagi
boulder conglomerate was deposited in a channaledralownwards through the uranium-bearing Matinenda
guartz-pebble conglomerates.

The intersection in Kerr McGee drill hole 150-1 Hmeen previously confirmed but earlier work
also refers to an intersection in hole DU-76-2 @ft0lbs UOg per ton over 46.1 feet (14.1 m). This clearlyeeds
the intersection reported from other sources, atjhahe two are not mutually exclusive. The sandjalia were not
available to WGM however it has been rightly assbthat this represents the entire Denison maie zeefs of the
Quirke Ore Zone. The narrower intersection of 0b&2U;0g per ton over 2.1 m (6.9 ft) is the lower reef only

WGM successfully located the intact casing for hkl-150-1 in the field and surveyed its
location by GPS. WGM'’s review of the Kerr McGedéhfsom the original log taken from MNDM assessmides
shows that the zone in hole 150-1 can be widenettadat to take in the lower grading shoulders aedetby give
a mineralized width of 2.6 m (8.5 ft) grading 1b% L;Og per ton.

Hole DU-76-1, collared near Quirke Lake, immediat@bwn dip of the Stanrock Mine, and less
than one kilometre east of the Gemico block alsmpced an interesting intersection of 0.72 |k®4ber ton over
4.7 m (15.4 ft).

For the same reasons as cited in respect to thac@Gef3 block, WGM accepts the foregoing
historical estimate as a reasonable expressioheofrtagnitude of the exploration target in the Gen#t0 block.
The potential quantity and grade is conceptualature, there has been insufficient explorationdfing a mineral
resource and it is uncertain if further exploratigifi result in the target being delineated as aemal resource. As
the area held by Appia also covers the area sudingrthe Gemico block, WGM concluded that the eration
potential on the Appia claims is probably greabemt that estimated for the block alone, and thditiadal drilling
is justified to increase the resource base.

Banana Lake Zone

The area west, north and east of Banana Lake vehsdied in the Gemico #2 claim block. This
area has been well tested by deep diamond driflshohost of which were completed by Kerr McGee Cofpe
area north of Banana Lake was also drilled muchieeaduring 1955-56 by Buffalo Uranium, however tfoar
holes completed totalled only 1,227.1 m (4,026rfone being greater than 343.5 m (1,127 ft) intlengnd none
was sufficiently deep to reach the uranium-beakiaginenda Formation.

Based on the drilling completed, Rio Algom estindatiee “potential” uranium resources for that
part of the uranium-bearing Matinenda located betbe Gemico #2 claim block. As with above-mentibne
estimates for the Gemico #3 and #10 blocks, thenest for this area is constrained by the geolddiouts of the
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mineralized trend which may extend from the StahiéVline to the southeast. It is also constraingthb physical
limits of the claim blocks available to Rio Algonkor example, the uranium-bearing conglomeratesrlgiextend
to the east onto a large claim block formerly colied by Denison, however this resource area wasnctuded in
the Rio Algom estimate. According to MacEachereni3on did not complete its own forward-lookingrestte of
the uranium resources on its own claims. The Rgo# historical resource estimate is also constchiby drill
holes that returned trace values for uranium dedafo intersect the Matinenda conglomerates atatfiecipated
depths, for example in drill holes KM-149-2, KM-186nd KM-150-4.

Rio Algom estimated that the Gemico #2 block clapoatained a potential uranium resource of
175.8 M tons of WOg with an average grade of 0.76 lbsQd per ton, and with an average thickness of
approximately 5.4 m (17.6 ft). These historicdireates of grade and tonnage are viewed as relaiderelevant
based on the information and methods used at tiie. tHowever they are not compliant with resourcindens
under NI 43-101 and must be considered only asfiist resources. Neither Appia nor its Qualifiegef$dns have
done sufficient work to classify the historical sasce as a current mineral resource under curr@mgral resource
terminology and are not treating the historicabtese as a current mineral resource. The histaiésaurce should
not be relied upon.This historical resource estimate wWassed on a collection of the company’s widely sgalrdl
holes which are summarized as follows:

KM-156-5 0.65 Ibs WOg per ton over 10.4 m (34 ft)
KM-150-5 0.88 Ibs WOg per ton over 13.4 m (44 ft)
KM-150-2 0.68 Ibs WOg per ton over 3.4 m (11 ft)

WGM successfully located the collar and casingtfer KM-150-2 drill hole, and surveyed its
position by GPS to within an estimated positioroeof less than 3 m. As this was purely a tesSiM@M'’s ability
to locate a hole using the historical records gaide, WGM did not attempt to locate the other b¢sribsequently
located by Appia)

The foregoing historical Banana Lake resourcesessptt an approximate exploratory target that is
confined not only by Gemico claim boundaries, st dy drill holes completed by Kerr McGee to toeth (149-2
and 156-4) and to the north (150-4) which failedntersect the Matinenda conglomerates. The pialemantity
and grade is conceptual in nature, there has bemidficient exploration to define a mineral res@uand it is
uncertain if further exploration will result in tharget being delineated as a mineral resourceBebmge Twp., a
few kilometres to the northwest, hole 156-1 intetsd 1.76 Ibs kDg per ton over 0.6 m (2 ft) in an area which is
excluded from the foregoing resource. This holggegts additional potential to the west althoughabonomically
interesting uranium grades are present in a thiizéwo that would not be minable unless greaterktieésses were
discovered nearby.

Summary of Historical Uranium Resources
The historical resources in the foregoing zonesiimmarized as follows.

Historical Non-Compliance Resources on the AppleoBLake Property

Zone Quantity Grade Contained YOg
(tons) (Ibs U;Og/ton) (Ibs)
Teasdale Lake 17,458,200 1.206 20,787,200
Gemico Block #3 42,800,000 0.38 16,264,000
Gemico Block #10 20,700,000 0.75 15,525,000
Banana Lake Zone 175,800,000 0.76 133,068,000
Canuc Zone 7,000,000 1.86 13,020,000

Total 263,758,200 0.76 199,204,200
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The historical estimates of grade and tonnagelgedlmve are viewed as reliable and relevant basebe
information and methods used at the time. Howelvey fare not compliant with resource definitions emiI 43-
101 and must be considered only as historical ressu Neither Appia nor its Qualified Persons hdeme
sufficient work to classify the historical resouscas current mineral resources under current mimesmurce
terminology and are not treating the historicaloteses as current mineral resources. The historgsurces
should not be relied upon.

The foregoing historical resources summarized atéble above were estimated by mine operatorg usin
practices that were common at the time, but whizimot comply with current regulatory standards guoitielines.
It is doubtful that quality control standards ussdthe time would meet more rigorous requirementpractice
today. Specifically, the operators relied on exgece and assumptions of continuity rather tharu&drill hole
geology and assay data.

It is worth noting that WGM could find no mentioff liistorically estimated rare earth metal resoyrees
reflection of the fact that such metals were a#fddby weak markets during the peak uranium produagberiod,
and that yttrium-REE production was incidental tanium. As a result, drill core was not routinesayed for such
metals.

Geological Setting
Regional Geology

The Elliot Lake area is located on the southerngmaof the Archean component of the Superior Prowiof the
Canadian Shield. As is typical across North Anerihe margin is marked by a series of structuaains and
troughs which contain late Archean to early Prateio sedimentary rocks. These rock formationsraportant in

that they host significant iron formation depositswell as most of the known occurrences of uremife quartz-
pebble conglomerate. Although the deposits arerd@; and differ in age by as much as several lednahillion

years, they share many sedimentary and structhiaiacteristics. The sedimentary sequences laichdmwthe
shield margins record several transgressive cyedeh resulting in deposition of fluvial-to-marine glacial-to-

marine conglomerates and sandstones, followed aNosirmarine clastic or carbonate rocks. Genertily final

cycle of sedimentation ends with deep-water-madaek shales, greywacke and volcanic rocks. Epsaife
extension, compression, intrusive magmatism andametphism occurred during the same approximategef

time.

The structural basins or troughs that contain wrarbearing conglomerate formed within or on the héan
continental crust, and apparently near its mardginyever the southern limit of the Archean has restrbprecisely
located because Paleozoic, and younger sedimerdgekg cover most of the area south of the earlyefoaoic
basins.

The Lake Huron region, within which Elliot Lakelecated, contains the early Proterozoic Huroniapesgroup, of
which the basal deposits in the Elliot Lake disttontain the world’s most important deposits odnium in
Precambrian conglomerate.

The Huronian Supergroup is a southward-thickernimginly clastic succession which is well exposedmof Lake
Huron. It forms as east-west trending belt ovadyihe southern portion of the Superior Provincéhef Canadian
Shield. The rock succession is divisible into éhneegacycles, each composed of coarse-grainedlfflsedstones
overlain by glacio-marine/lacustrine mixtites andrime/lacustrine siltstone plus shale with a cagpiteltaic
succession which is overlain by coarse sedimeidsdiawn during the next transgressive cycle. Padog deltas
and abandoned channels combined with non-synchsosmutheast to northwest flooding to add a largetdionous
element to lithofacies boundaries.

Each megacycle can be sub-divided into a threegactession beginning with the development of aigla
outwash plain, followed by isostatic depression #adding as the ice sheet advanced into the andatlzen an
interval of glacio-marine deposition with developthef a fine-grained marine/lacustrine successisngkacial
melting raised the water level, and finally deltagradation as isostatic rebound began to outstepising water.
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The ore-bearing conglomerate beds in the distreetf@und in the Matinenda Formation, the basal ahthe Elliot
Lake Group within the Huronian Supergroup. Thenuna-bearing conglomerate is a clean, well sortedyrse-
pebble conglomerate which was apparently deposited mixed littoral and fluvial-deltaic fan envinment,
possibly as the early Proterozoic sea transgragsexhto the Archean craton. The conglomerate élawn by and
interfingers in a time-transgressive relationshifhwhe shallow-marine McKim Formation.

The Elliot Lake Group is successively overlain bg tHHough Lake, the Quirke Lake, and the Cobalt @spaach of
which begins with basal paraconglomerates whiclwsegidence of being deposited in a glacial or glaoarine
environment. Each of the paraconglomeratic forometiis succeeded by shallow-marine clastic or ceatgorocks.
The entire succession, as well as most individaahétions, thickens to the southeast and featharmto the
Archean craton to the north.

Pyrite is the main iron mineral found in the Matida Formation, whereas superseding formations itonta
predominantly hematite. The Th-U ratio in radidastplacer deposits first increases to greater tieanin the
Lorrain Formation. This is thought to present sgrevidence that during the early Proterozoic diposof the
Huronian Supergroup, a profound change in the Eagtmosphere resulted in a transition from nordizing to
oxidizing conditions. Neither the uranium in theagtz-pebble conglomerates nor the iron formatiepogits found
elsewhere on the edge of the Archean craton woale been stable had the earth’s atmosphere notdvemic at
the time of deposition.

This prevailing view concerning the atmosphere lsuded somewhat by some who argue that episodit- pos
depositional modification of the uraniferous comgkrates leached iron from detrital ilmeno-magnegitains,
caused some uraninite to be replaced by coffiflteTh]SiO;) and resulted in the dissolution and alteration of
monazite to uranothorite ([Th,U]Si> Brannerite was also a product of the reactibtJcand TiQ. Further
alteration resulted in the precipitation of secagdayrite under conditions of low to moderate Ehl atightly acid

pH for ilmeno-magnetite leaching, and low Eh andrageutral pH for pyrite precipitation. Under sumdnditions
uraninite and coffinite are relatively stable. ThAethors conclude that the simple presence andeprason of
detrital uraninite cannot be used to draw conchsiabout the oxygen content of the late Archearogpimere at
approximately 2,350 Ma.

Mafic volcanic rocks underlying or interbedded witte lowest beds of the Matinenda are most abunidattte
vicinity of two east-trending fault zones (the Mayrand Flack faults), which also mark zones of pbahange in
style of sedimentation and the thickness of stragigic units. These basin-bounding faults appbreatdted as
hinge lines that were zones of crustal bendingltifeyy and minor volcanism during deposition of tHeronian
strata.

The Huronian Supergroup lies unconformably uponofign granitic rocks which have been dated at ab&@0
Ma. They are intruded by a series of post-Hurom@oks, the oldest of which is the Nipissing Diahadated at
about 2,100 Ma.

Geology of the Elliot Lake Area

The Elliot Lake area is underlain by an approxityateast-west trending basin within which the Husmi
sedimentary strata on-lap the Archean basemenhdonbrth, and presumably also to the south. Umaniu
mineralization occurs in the predominantly quarezasd arkosic rocks of the Matinenda Formationatied near
the base of the Huronian sequence and unconfornoablyying the Archean basement.

The Huronian succession is folded into an east-tveatding syncline, the Quirke Lake Syncline, whishocated
immediately north of the city of Elliot Lake. Uram-bearing Matinenda Formation strata are exposetthe limbs
of the fold, but occur at vertical depths of +/500Q m (5,000 ft) near the centre axis of the baginanium mines
are located on both limbs and the Quirke Lake sirechas been well tested and explored by undengrmoine
developments as well as deep exploration drillifidne Can-Met, Denison, Panel, Quirke, New Quirken&ck
and Spanish American mines are located on the rionth whereas the Buckles, Milliken, Lacnor, Nordiad
Stanleigh mines are situated on the south limb.
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During the mid-1980s, more than half of Canadaasomably assured uranium resources, though exgetsiv
develop and mine, were contained in the Quirke Layecline despite the addition of high-grade depdsiund in
the Athabasca Basin of northern Saskatchewan.

The Matinenda Formation is the coarse-grained sandsunit at the base of the stratigraphically Istveegacycle.
To the north, it on-laps over an irregular Archdaasement surface, filling paleo-valleys and drapavgr
intervening hills. Uranium-bearing quartz-pebbbmglomerates occur within the sandstones in theldgart of the
Matinenda Formation, forming laterally extensiveadsts with NW-trending long axes. In a generalsse the NW
end of the conglomerates either abuts against bexgeon is cut off by an erosive scour at the bdgeeoverlying
Ramsay Lake Formation. The conglomerates dieotlitet southeast by an increase in the proportiontefbedded
sandstone wedges and a general reduction in geain s

The uranium-bearing portion of the Matinenda Foromatis divided into three members. From uppermost
downwards, these are the Manfred Member, the Stifdember and the Ryan Member. The presence and
thickness of these members and their uranium-bgaames is dependent on the relative elevatiomefArchean
unconformity and the topography of its surface.

Two principal ore zones are present: the Quirke Zamge on the north limb of the basin (the Quirk&e.&yncline),
and the Nordic Ore Zone on the south limb. ThekguDre Zone occurs in the Manfred Member of theildada
Formation. The Nordic Ore Zone occurs in the Ryember. It is important to note that there is n@aiRMember
on the north limb and the Manfred Member is absenthe south limb.

The Stinson Member of the Matinenda Formation lasksiium in economically interesting concentratiorighe
base of the Stinson in some areas of the NordicZOne is marked by angular, grey granite-clast tmmgrate (as
compared to quartz pebble clasts in the ore reafsially with a matrix of mostly smaller grey gramimaterial and
some, mostly minor, pyrite. This horizon, is uspdl0-5.5 m thick and is called the Stinson basaiglomerate - it
can be very useful as a marker or reference hotizondicate the top of the Nordic Ore Zone ree$ting Ryan
Member.

On balance of evidence, a fluvial placer mode ddioris accepted as the most reasonable genetieinfodthe
uranium deposits hosted in the Matinenda Formatithe model is consistent with that for the propbeggin of
the gold-uranium paleoplacers in South Africa, llike the Witwatersrand, however, the uranium-lmgasection
at Elliot Lake does not contain intraformationatanformities. The deposits occur as laterally esitemsheets that
do not show the evidence of reworking that is appam South Africa. Rather, at Elliot Lake thecomence of
large-scale flood events has been proposed as amsnudawidely depositing detrital uranium. The doanted
presence of glacially derived mixtites associatétth Wiatinenda sediments leads to speculation thtdstrophic
ice-margin lake drainage flowing down an outwaghdaposited the uraniferous conglomeratic unitsgmein the
lower Matinenda Formation.

The Quirke Ore Zone is a classic sedimentary dgfta of deposit. Quartzose and conglomeratic sedisnbearing
detrital uranium were introduced through a narrg800 m (6,000 ft.) wide valley in the basement spbad out to
the east and southeast to cover an area of appatelyr80 square kilometres (30 sg. miles). Thereery little
Stinson Member and no Ryan Member between the Mdriffember and the basement in the Quirke Ore Zone.
Where the Manfred Member is thickest, there are paios of reefs separated by 36 m (120 feet) oftgit@. The
past producing mines of the Quirke Ore Zone wernifbon, Stanrock, CanMet, Quirke (1), New Quirke Eanel

and Spanish American.

Outside of the mined areas at its southeast endn miuthe Nordic Ore Zone is not well defined byface diamond
drilling. It has been thought to begin approxinhate5 kilometres (4 miles) northwest of Bananadals a 1.5 - 2.5
km (1 - 1.5 mile) wide basement depression chawithlrelatively steep basement. It extends forrapipately 11

km (7 miles) south and southeast of Banana Lak#ening to approximately 13 km (8 miles). There maysome
Stinson Member but no Manfred Member overlying fy@n Member in the Nordic Ore Zone. Where the Ryan
Member is thickest there are three reefs in theddoOre Zone. In descending order these are théeBathe
Nordic and the Lacnor Reefs. The past producingesdf the Nordic Ore Zone were: Stanleigh, Miltikkacnor,
Nordic and Buckles. Most of the uranium producedsirom mining in the Nordic and Lacnor Reefs. Véhbere
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is sufficient thickness of the Ryan Member abowe ardee Reef, thin conglomerate or pebble béldsl C&loater
Reefs” may be present, but to date these occurseareevery thin and do not appear to be economic.

Below the Lacnor Reef, Appia holes BL-07-01, BL08-and BL-08-03 have intersected reefs composed of
rounded 8-15cm (3-6 inch) white quartz cobbles (@elReef or Cobble Quartzite), with pale olive grésegular-
shaped siltstone clasts and a few black chertsclasanium grades in these rocks appear to beetetatthe amount

of pyrite in the individual beds.

Another zone called the Pardee Zone is locatedoappately 4.5 km (3 miles) east of the Nordic Mieast of the
southeast corner of the Nordic Ore Zone. The Rafime is approximately 2.5 square kilometres (lasg mile)
in size and is separated from the Nordic Ore Zone lhigh basement ridge. Pele Mountain Resouraesbben
working on the Pardee Zone since early 2007 anddapleted 188 surface diamond drill holes. Thegany has
most recently referred to its deposit as the Eag®&iDeposit.

The uranium-bearing conglomerates are massivelyddmd but do show localized evidence of horizontal
stratification. Trough cross-stratification duerteandering deltaic channel development is presetité pebble
conglomerates in areas where numerous sandstosesleccur. Occasionally the cross-sets can bedifaem the
conglomerate into sandstone lenses. Sandstorextajmred with the conglomerate and forming unégasating
conglomerate packages are generally trough crossfistd with cross-set amplitude averaging apprately 12
cm.

Detrital uraninite and brannerite is concentratethie more massive portions of the longitudinakhkas well as in
lags along horizontal reactivation surfaces inlgddars. The bars themselves represent rareettidtigh energy
events in a succession that is dominated by braéauel deposits (trough cross-stratified sandsjon€ke gravel
bars are localized in the lower portion of the fation, usually being confined to paleovalleys.

The water-borne transport of uranium detritus wamfnorth to south during deposition of the lowertjpns of the
Matinenda. As time passed the regional paleoflinection gradually changed to NW to SE and evehual
WNW to ESE. The counter-clockwise rotation in palerrent direction is thought to reflect crustabsidence to
the east of the area in which the Matinenda Foonatias studied.

One interesting aspect of the Matinenda Formasdhe presence of pyrobitumen in and near ore+hgduarizons.
The occurrence of stratiform and dispersed kerogenthe Matinenda Formation has been reported wWith
conclusion that the kerogens formed from mats @nopacteria that were affected by diagenetic amddiade
metamorphic processes including partial remobilirat

During burial and metamorphism, rising temperaturasked the kerogens to form petroleum, which ategt into
fractures and subsequently became pyrobitumen ghr@ combination of water-washing and thermal dragk
which converted the oil into a more tarry form. thés tarry material detached from the wall, itff@d spheroids
that floated upward and were trapped in vuggy amgnin the fractures. It is clear to WGM that firesence of
kerogens might have contributed to the stabilizatib uranium minerals under strongly reducing ctiads in the
mineralized beds.

Economically interesting uranium mineralizationnist pervasive throughout the basin. The favourabigzon is
affected by the topography on which the conglonesratere deposited, as well as scours (river chanmglich
eroded down through the conglomerates followingrtimitial deposition. As is also clear, large asdan the deep
basin such as that near Banana Lake, have beenmstwwontain uranium values exceeding 0.5 Ibs per t
Yttrium-REE minerals have long been known to cesewith uranium.

Deposit Types
General Classification
The Elliot Lake (and Agnew Lake) deposits are knasnpaleoplacers and classified by the Geologinaley of

Canada as sub-type 1.1.1. Uraniferous conglongemateur in many parts of the world, and are sintibathose of
other metal commodities, notably gold, platinumugrenetals, tin, tungsten, rare earth mineralsitita, zirconium
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and chromium. The economic minerals are typicadiposited in conglomerates at the base of a sethnyetycle
which may, over time, see a gradual transitioroteelr energy deposition. Although similarities ¢Xistween these
deposits through the geological timescale, the geudeposits tend to be hematite-rich (subtype)lvhereas late
Archean and early Proterozoic deposits tend tosBeaated with pyrite. This difference is one éaaif many that
indicate that the early Earth’s atmosphere was iaramd transitioned to an oxygenated atmospherewtiat later.

The paleo-placer deposits are stratabound, commoodyrring in stacked sheet-like bodies of conglate

Mineralization is entirely disseminated and thehleigt grades are associated with quartz-pebble aorgates. The
pebbles are generally well rounded, and some adgmtibetween pebble size and uranium grade isinoBacer
deposits are created wherever rapidly flowing wallows heavy mineral particles to settle out whédss dense
mineral particles and rock fragments are transpdtieough the depositional site. The term palemmlés generally
reserved for only such mineral concentrations astitoite economically interesting deposits in figd strata. The
erosion of the parent rock and transport of deétnitaterial results in degradation of all but thedest minerals.

The simple mineralogy of the Elliot Lake ores hagrb well documented. This simplicity has been usegreat
advantage in the beneficiation of uranium usinchbminventional solvent extraction processes as agelh using
heap leach and bio-leach technologies.

Mineralization
Ore Mineralogy

The ore mineralogy consists primarily of detritalaigs of brannerite and uraninite, together withnani
uranothorite, monazite and secondary coffinite @ssed with pyrite, pyrrhotite, zircon, rutile afiddmagnetite as
interstitial fill in a quartz pebble conglomerat&€he pyrite content is typically 10-15% of the rocks the pebbles
are quite competent, only rarely does pyrite oesufracture fillings.

The main ore mineral is brannerite which occursoesid, reddish-brown grains associated with bladeile
surrounded by uranium oxides and rare earth oxidgsinnerite generally contains small inclusiongwifrhotite
and radiogenic galena. The second most importantmneral is uraninite which occurs as black sdbhlegrains
up to 0.1 mm in size. Regionally, the uraniniteteéins approximately 6% Thy substitution. This has been
noted as an indication that the uraninite origiddr®m a granitic or pegmatitic (magmatic) protolitather than
being of hydrothermal origin. The relative impaorta of brannerite or uraninite varies from minentine.
Uraninite is the most important ore mineral in Meardic Mine and in the C-Reef at the Quirke Mirdonazite is a
lesser ore mineral, however it is important atdElliake as it contains an unusually high uraniumteot. Monazite
occurs as rounded to subangular grains typicadly than 0.3 mm in diameter. When the grains ag igr colour,
they are strongly radioactive as a result of ekatranothorite or thorite contents (inclusion®yrite is also an
inclusion forming phase in monazite. Uranothoaitel coffinite have been identified as minor mingtases in the
deposits.

The mines of Elliot Lake are the only deposits en@da which have seen REE production. During #7®4 and
1980s, yttrium was a major by-product of uraniunmimg at both the Denison and the Rio Algom operatioThe
Canadian Minerals yearbook documents productiotthafigh significant concentrations of rare earthatsewere
recognized, exceeding even that of yttrium, glglrédes for such metals at the time did not favowommercial
operation. The Technical Report represents anat@-df the previous WGM work to take into accoums t
considerable unrealized value of rare earth metaéralization present in the Elliot Lake deposifo the best of
WGM'’s knowledge, no historical resource estimatagehever been made for these metals which havertzecibal
to many current technologies. According to the &#an Minerals Yearbook for 1980, the yttrium caorcates
from the Denison Mine averaged 60% total REEs dttvithe relative contents were 0.8%,0g, 3.7% CeQ, 1.0%
PrsO11, 4.1% NGOz, 4.5% SmO;3, 0.2% EW0s, 8.5% GdOs, 1.2% ThO;, 11.2% DyOs;, 2.6% HEeOs, 5.5% EpOs,
0.9% TmOs, 4.0% YOs;, 0.4% LyOs;, and 51.4% YOs.

Rare earth and yttrium mineralization occurs agiegs on uraninite and brannerite grains and dsisitns within
uraninite. Brannerite is typically found as oveet-brown to black grains in the metamict statewshg bladed
rutile surrounded by a uranium oxide and rare-eaxttles. The previous mines operated by Stanradkzension
capitalized on the association by first removingnimm from the pregnant solution, and then preaiipiy a REE-
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yttrium sludge that was further leached and repietied to make a mischmétaloncentrate. Analytical data
shows that REEs in the Elliot Lake ores are primaéepresented by Ce, La and Nd.

In contrast to the Elliot Lake mining area, whene tleposits were relatively rich in pyrite, brarnteeand other
uranium minerals such as uraninite and coffiniterothorite (after uraninite), the Agnew Lake miniagea
(approximately 60 km to the east of the Propagygistinguished by significantly higher thoriumntents, a general
lack of uraninite, lower brannerite contents anel pinevalence of monazite. These ores also cavagdble but
relatively minor amounts of base metal sulphiddwl@pyrite, sphalerite, galena) as well as lesseounts of
stibnite, pyrrhotite, arsenopyrite, skutteruditeibanite, linnaeite, cobaltite, niccolite, pentldadand related
minerals. REE contents were reported to be hitieer at Elliot Lake, yet no such production was enfxdm these
ores. Researchers attribute differences in miizatédn to variances in source areas between tlwe mining
districts. The source area for the mineralizatwrAgnew Lake is thought to be to the northwestnpasing a
sequence of granitic rocks that were particulanigahed in thorium.

The non-metallic gangue minerals in the matrixhef tonglomerate are represented by quartz, feldsphsericite.
In some mines a dark grey to black hued ore isrtegdo contain fine grained chlorite and somehig tock was
especially high grade.

Thucholite, an organo-uranly compound (U-bearingigactive bitumen), occurs as thin laminae and a®id-

filing mineral phase within ore zones at Elliotkea The potential for buried organic (hydrocarbamgterial to
adsorb uranium is well documented. The minergldst-depositional in origin as it coats and invadesins of
uraninite. Its origin is uncertain; a biogenicgami has been proposed, but an alternative consepat it formed by
radiation-induced polymerization of mobile hydrdwams in pore spaces. Interestingly, this mineral$o found in
the uranium deposits of the Witwatersrand, SouttcAf

The ores are very well indurated, and some eviddnme the mining history suggests that the degrée o
cementation increases down dip, deeper into thek®uiake Syncline. As a result, the ores are Kigldrasive
when milled and fines tend to act as sand-papemternal mill surfaces. One added consequence thais
aggressive agitation of bioleach solutions resuited significant mortality rate for the bacteriaspended in the
leach solution.

Uranium Deposits

The deposits at Elliot Lake are referred to as iurandeposits because of the far greater econonpoitance of
uranium production than that of REEs and thoriuAowever, in many areas of the mining camp, REEsiogt
greater abundance than uranium.

There are few references as to the physical dirnesasf the Elliot Lake deposits. They are commaefgrred to

as stratabound and 3-5 metres in thickness andhdpdgood lateral continuity”. The largest of thepdsits, the
Denison Mine, measured 19,500 m long by 1,400 18,800 m wide. The deposit carried an average goa@e5

Ibs of W;Og per ton of ore. The next largest at Rio Algom'sifRe Mine measured 13,000 m by 1,800-5,500 m
wide. The Quirke A Reef at the #1 mine was 3.5hivkt The Quirke #2 mine’s C Reef was 1.8-3.6 mktand
other uranium-bearing horizons were present.

Mischmetal is an alloy of rare earth elements inotes naturally occurring proportions. Generalig tomposition includes
approximately 50% cerium and 25% lanthanum withlsaraounts of neodymium and praseodymium and lessgmunts
of the other rare earth metals. Yttrium may beiraportant component depending on the ore sourdeifferences in
solubility of the individual REE’s is used in refiig each to an oxide or metal state.
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Exploration by CEC and Appia
Present Status

CEC contracted Fugro Airborne Surveys of Torontois@iésauga), Ontario to fly an airborne MegaTem
electromagnetic and magnetic survey over the Prpphiring 2006. Most recently Appia has complete
programs of diamond core drilling.

Between 18 November, 2007 and 12 March, 2008 Agdplhatested both the Teasdale Zone and the Bahahe

Zone. The drilling was designed by Appia to comate some of the previous drill holes in the Taess@one and
thereby provide a means to produce a NI 43-101 GantpMineral Resource estimate for this zone. TAasdale
Lake six holes were drilled for a total of 2,6528,695 feet) of drilling. On the Banana Lake gpAppia drilled
four wedged holes from two previous holes put ddoyrKerr McGee in an effort to corroborate the poexs deep
intersections. Appia wedged holes from the lowastisns of Kerr McGee's historical drill holes KM% and
KM156-5, respectively completed in 1969 and 191 successfully cut the uranium-bearing Matinenalarfation

in four new locations, drilling a total of 1,235 (#,052 feet). The 2007-08 program resulted inperditure of
approximately C $2 million.

A second program of diamond drilling was complebyd Appia between October and December, 2008 which
resulted in the drilling of two new cored holesnfrsurface as well as a short wedge cut from thergetole.
Appia drilled a total of 3,109 m (10,200 feet).

Sampling Method and Approach

Given the depth to mineralization on the Propertysurface samples have been collected by Appre 2ZD07-08
drilling program was completed using diamond duiligder contract from Boart Longyear Canada Ltd.r(hN&ay,
Ontario). All drill holes were located ashore ar an island in Quirke Lake. Thin ice developmergvented
drilling from locations on the lake. All core ihd Teasdale Lake area was drilled using BQ-sizegpetent (36.5
mm core) whereas the deeper wedged holes at Bd@keawere drilled using BTW-sized equipment. Aataif
1,105 half-core samples were collected from th# Hdles for analysis as well as 53 quality assoefguality
control (“QA/QC”) samples that were inserted by the Appia geotogis

Subsequent to the initial sampling, and in respaosecreasing commaodity prices for rare earth tsedad oxides,
samples were selected from the uranium-bearings’rder analysis for REE’s, major elements (rocksing
oxides) and trace elements. Also included werepsssnfrom the zone located between the reefs suahthe
sample series represented a continuous record jfretrabove the stratigraphically highest reef tst joelow the
lowest reef. Material for analysis was taken freample rejects which had remained in storage atptbgect
laboratory in Ancaster, Ontario (Activation Labanaés).

Sample Preparation, Analysis and Security
The sampling procedure utilized by Appia’s persdmieing the drill program is summarized as follows
1) the core was geologically logged and sections veslected for analysis based on geology and

radiometric activity using a hand-held RS-125 Su®REC portable gamma ray spectrometer
manufactured by Radiation Solutions of Mississa@#ario, Canada;

2) the mineralized core intervals were split in theecghack in Elliot Lake using an impact splittetilua
diamond core saw was purchased after the firdthihie was completed — all core thereafter was cut;

3) one half of the drill core was bagged, a pre-numthesample tag was placed in the bag and the
samples was sealed before being sent to Activatadioratories (Actlabs”) in Ancaster, Ontario for
analysis;

4) the remaining half of the core was retained indbie tray as a permanent record,;

5) at the lab, the samples were dried, crushed anepzéd in preparation for analysis for uraniumd an

selected samples were also analyzed for gold atttdoum; and
6) the trays of split drill core are stored in coreksthat are inside a locked building in Elliot keak
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The un-split cores from overlying formations arenigestored outside of the core logging buildingyss-stacked
and covered within a fenced area.

The reject material used for REE, major oxide aade element analysis was processed in the sameemas the
original samples. REEs contents were determindtleaAncaster lab in accordance with the Code 8-RE&ay

Package. Major elements were determined by safy@n with an ICP (WRA) finish. Trace Elementsreve
determined also using sample fusion with an ICP(MRA4B2) finish.

Data Verification

Due to the time that the site visit was undertalkerd the nature of the assignment, no samples dmutdken of
historical core for characterization purposes. W@l not believe that analysing samples from th&t paoducing
mines would materially contribute to the projecAn immense amount of data is available on the hisib
operations from Geological Survey of Canada soueseb various research papers. Many high-levelnieah
papers are also available for purchase (download)m f internet sources such as Springerlink
(http://springerlink.metapress.com), the Interrmadio Atomic Energy Agency website (http://www.iagg/o
DataCenter/index.html), the Geological Society ofmekica (http://www.gsajournals.org/perlserv/?retres
myprofile&a=ppv) and the British Library (https:i¥dct.bl.uk/bld/Logon.do).

No information was available for WGM to verify caraing the estimation of mineral resources and raine
reserves in the Elliot Lake mines. WGM was abléotate and review a document regarding practices @&t the
Agnew Lake Mine where “geological reserves” werkedated using a cut-off grade of 0.75 lbgQd per ton (0.38
kag/t). “Proven” reserves were restricted to reserthat occurred within 200 feet (61 m) of undeugbworkings
and were developed on two or more sides (Agnew IMies, 1980). “Probable” reserves were uraniuraring
beds that occurred within 200 feet (61 m) of wogsinbut were only developed on one side, or altieelg, were
uranium-bearing beds that had drill hole intersexgicloser than 400 feet (122 m) apart. “Inferneferves were
defined as uranium-bearing beds that had drill dkrsections greater than 400 feet (122 m) apart.

WGM believes that similar practices were used lierElliot Lake deposits. The continuity of thei&llLake ores is
a well established fact. The reliance on data fradely spaced drill holes was common practicehatttme, and
supported by the uniformity of the ore and itst#fisam character.

WGM had no information on the REE grades of théohisal drill core. The logs that report uraniumades lack
REE data. WGM believes that REE assaying was selg@actised as a result of the weak commodity pribat
prevailed during much of the uranium mining thatwced in the Elliot Lake camp. WGM believes ttiat assured
by-product nature of the yttrium-REE production pleal with the relative uniformity of yttrium and EBEgrades
did not provide sufficient incentive for mines agxplorers to incur the additional analytical costs.

Historical Data

The historical nature of the previous exploratiom #he lack of surface outcrop of the mineralizatitd
not, nor could it, provide a basis for Appia or WGWMcollect representative or meaningful samplea akeck on
the previous exploration work.

WGM has accepted the historical data as factuad. rédisonable amount of effort on WGM'’s part could
corroborate the previously reported drill hole datathe amount of resources remaining in undergtommnes.
Proper verification of the past mineral resourca#ree estimate, which would include a substantigthed hole
drilling program, was not possible under the curreinrcumstances. No data or information sources WGM
gained during the course of this review could dbote materially to evaluating or auditing the sthtmine reserves
in respect to the remaining mineral resources.thieamore, as no historical drill core was availaldle WGM to
sample, no sampling of surface outcrops by WGMhéa time could measurably impact current estimaties
remaining reserves or resources which should kentak order-of-magnitude.

WGM was able to verify some of the previously reépdrdrill hole intersections insofar that the
intersections are referred to in several documendggnated by independent authors. WGM has no efdgnowing
whether the authors are quoting the same origimatce which WGM believes to be the mineral titlsemsment
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files of the MNDM. In the case of key data, WGMagfs to corroborate information with the MNDM meith
mixed success. At the time, companies did notivecassessment credits for filing assay results smanany
tended to withhold assay information at the timidl dole reports were filed. Companies could afée partial
records for a drill hole, for example filing onliget upper part of a hole, which might result in isight assessment
credits to maintain the claims in good standingafioother year.

Original drill hole assay certificates were unaahbié for review, however many drill core assays are
provided in the lithology logs. WGM had no meagsathich to verify the previous intersections, ardimdication
that an original assay data base was preservegertfieless, given the well documented nature ofrtf@@mation
available, WGM believes there is no reason to dtlubtveracity of the historical records. WGM alsieves that
it is likely that such data exists in private file would be quite unusual if those companiesaisstorical roots in
the Elliot Lake mining camp did not maintain recordf the work completed by their predecessors, this
information may be available under certain condiio WGM also found it difficult to acquire commédnformation
regarding uranium mining data (tonnes and gradeejfand production data from published and intesoarces as
much of the information available is highly fragntesh

Drill Hole Collars

WGM attempted to relocate the collars for Kerr MeGlill holes as WGM believes these provide a means
for Appia to both confirm original intersectionsaell as to build a resource base through wedgfhthe original
holes. WGM used the figures attached to the Halk logs contained in the Ministry’s assessmdes fas a means
of locating the holes. The locations were wellvghand accurately drawn. Some difficulty was eigrared in
establishing the correct geographical frame ofregfee in respect to roads and terrain, howevefighees were the
key to relocating the holes.

WGM was successful in locating the first two Kerc®ke holes selected. The MNDM provided WGM
with GPS co-ordinates for a selected group of tele tocations, however the co-ordinates proveddablittle
value as they had been measured from existing maber than having been measured in the field. W@Givhd
these co-ordinates to be in error by 315 m in retsfgehole 150-1 and 152 m in respect to hole 15042e direction
of shift was not consistent between the two hadesWGM concluded that the inaccuracy vests in tapsrand not
in a systemic shift (co-ordinate displacement). M/&tempted to locate hole 144-1, however time @rations
did not allow for the hole to be found. WGM didteienine that it was not located on a large bednodge
composed of Gowganda Formation on the southeaso$iQuirke Lake as indicated. Rather, it seentsettocated
between the shore of the lake and the bedrock.ridge

Each of the drill holes located by WGM is situatedbedrock. Where the drill was located on a badro
rise, the thin soil cover has generally preventesl forest from re-establishing itself. Howevenleh150-1 was
drilled in a small depression made where a tramtdoulldozer excavated the soil cover to exposedmd- this site
was substantially over-grown by trees to 10 cm ei@m and it was difficult to see the casing pipenefrom within
5-10 m distance. The casing in each hole standeogjmately 75-100 cm above the ground level. Thsing
appears to be BW size which would be typical for @&@ pipe (core). Several sets of hold-down bditre also
present at each site. These are 2-3 cm rods wieoh used as a means of anchoring the drillingorigedrock.

WGM measured the co-ordinates for the holes usitly the NAD-27 (Canada) datum used by the MNDM
as well as with the WGM-84 datum which is more anmtionally used for GPS navigation at mid-latitudgshe
locations were determined using the long-countagiag function of the GPS instrument. At eachl thalle collar,
500 readings taken at a rate of one reading p@nseevere averaged giving an estimated positioor @frless than
3.5 metres. The chart datum was then changedhenthéasurements were repeated. The differencesbetthe
two set of co-ordinates was 2.7 and 4.7 metres thithWGS-84 locations due (precisely) west of thEDN27
locations.
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Averaging the UTM co-ordinates for each of the Bdteated by WGM, the locations are as follows:

150-1 Zone 17T 03771275 E 5146200 N 428daw.
150-2 Zone 17T 0371857.5E 5145545 N 399diaw.

On the basis of its fieldwork and conversation\WwitNDM personnel and others, WGM believes that Kerr
McGee made a consistent practice of leaving itshgas the bedrock to provide a point of entry skoadditional
coring and sampling be required in its drill hol&a&/GM acquired a set of drill logs for the holedldd in the area
of the Appia Property, however no information waaikable for Kerr McGee holes 150-1 and 156-5. M/ the
offices of the MNDM in Sault Ste. Marie, WGM spested several of the records provided to it by Agpid found
them to compare favourably with the Ministry’s reds.

Subsequent to WGM'’s efforts, Appia retained stalterselocate all of the previous holes deemed to be
relevant to the major deposits discussed hereimesé efforts were largely successful, and as dtréise original
drill hole locations were essentially confirmed.

Airborne Geophysical Surveying

On 24 January, 2007, Fugro Airborne Surveys ofv@ttaOntario carried out an airborne MEGATEM magnend
electromagnetic survey of the CEC Claims that nomprise part of the Property. A total of 429 lkiesmetres of
surveying was completed on 56 profile lines usingeaHavilland Dash 7 aircraft as a survey platforirhe line
length varied from 4 to 11 kilometres, and the pacing was 200 m. WGM reviewed the summarizedlte of
this survey and some of the flight line data. Heere the usefulness of the initial survey reporswaited by a
complete lack of interpretative analysis. This veasrected in a Fugro report dated April, 2007 Whis an
interpretation of the survey data.

The magnetic survey showed a low magnetic feakpeesenting the Quirke Lake syncline (basin) invilcaity of
Quirke Lake. A lobate magnetic high was observEdBQuirke Lake and interpreted by Fugro to repnés near-
surface intrusion. A series of NW-trending feasuamd WNW-trending lineaments were also noted andlzed to
magnetic dikes and possible faults.

The electromagnetic survey resulted in the deteaticseveral small anomalies and several broad alors zones,
all of which were ascribed to cultural featureswoTweak near surface anomalies were interpretédaasiuctive
lake bottom sediments”.

I nduced Polarization Surveying

During September, 2006, Quincy Energy Corp. (latebhecome Energy Metals Corp. through amalgamation)
completed a 3-line IP survey over portions of thep@rty in Buckles Township as a means of testiegability of

the surveying technique to detect broad regioraadds that might provide guides to uranium mineadilin. An
electrode spacing of 500 feet (152 m) was used withpole-dipole configuration to collect data forl to n=6.
Some deep electrical sounding was also performBde survey was completed by Gradient Geophysics dfic
Missoula, Montana.

The resistivity data from the survey showed “lasgale structures” which did not have a coinciddrargeability
anomaly. Drilling was recommended by Gradient Ggscs Inc. to test the potential use of the sungynethod.
Vertical, near-surface fault structures were iderdias targets.

Given the depth to the Matinenda Formation in theaaf two of the profiles (line 0 and line 1),iesited to be
approximately 1,160 m (3,800 feet) based on KerGk drill hole 144-1, WGM is of the view that these
virtually no possibility that the IP survey provilleiseable information concerning the uranium-bgadoartz
pebble conglomerates. Survey line 2 extended frormarea near the Roche drilling on the western gid@uirke
Lake southwards to the main access road. As thiénde the Matinenda Formation at the north enthefprofile is
approximately 600 m (2,000 feet), this line mighavé provided some useful information, however adar
percentage of the survey profile was lost due tdase interference. WGM does not agree that dgllthe
conductive zones identified by Gradient Geophysics represents a workable plan for future exploratn this
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area. The depth to the uraniferous Matinenda Btiom is relatively well known on the Property indkles
Township, and only geological modelling based anwrell established geometry of the uranium-beahiogzons
can be used as a way forward in exploration plannin

Drilling
Phase One Drilling Program
Summary

Between 18 November, 2007 and 12 March, 2008, Appiapleted a total of 10 diamond drill holes
totalling 3,885.2 metres on its Elliot Lake claimsing two Longyear 38 drills. This drilling consd of six new
holes in the Teasdale Lake area and 4 holes thet wedged at depth from existing holes drilledhie Banana
Lake area by a previous operator:

All of the drill hole locations were situated onest due to seasonal conditions when the drillirud folace
and/or thin ice conditions that prevailed during thinter of 2007-08. The Teasdale drilling prognaas supported
by helicopter which enabled Appia to place onehef drills on a small island in Quirke Lake. A BARAL type
helicopter owned and operated by Superior Heliaggtased in Longlac, Ontario was used.

A summary of drill hole locations and other statsstfollows in the table below. All drill hole dats were
surveyed by GPS using the NAD 83 datum. Appia assithgle GPS location measurement which was ccedpar
two subsequent measurements. If the readings wihén the estimated position error, the first regdwas
accepted by Appia as the official hole location.

Down hole control in all holes was provided usinReflex EZ-Shot, a down-hole surveying instrument
that provides electronic single shot surveying incen-magnetic environment. The instrument can omeasix
parameters in one single shot: azimuth, inclinatimagnetic tool face angle, gravity roll angle, metic field
strength and temperature. All measured data i®dtantil the start of the next survey, and posepssing of
survey data is possible with the Reflex Proces$icgtion.

Appia Diamond Drill Hole Locations and Set-Up Infoation, 2007-08 Drilling Program

Drill Hole '\ICL:jIrz:\qitr)r(;r Geographic and UTM Co-Ordinates Bearing | Dip Leénmg)th
Latitude Longitude | Zone | Easting| Northing
Q-07-01 3009181 | 46°2916.33" 82°31'20.97"17T 383151 5149382 0 -90 327.
Q-07-02 3009180| 46°28 45.52" 82°31'24.33"17T 383061 5148432 0 -90 609.
Q-07-03 3009192 | 46°28'52.28" 82°31'49.52"17T 382528 5148651 0 -90 546.
Q-08-04 3009180| 46°29 02.17" 82°30'55.30"17T 383690 5148934 0 -90 410.
Q-08-05 3009181 | 46°2912.41" 82°31'09.89"17T 383385 5149256 0 -90 375
Q-08-06 3009183 | 46°28'55.43" 82°29'51.32"17T 385050 5148700 0 -90 377.
BL-07-01-W1 3019234 | 46° 27 03.30" 82°41' 24.35" 17T 370200 5145537 0 -90 345.
BL-07-01-W2 3019234 | 46° 27 03.30" 82°41' 24.35" 17T 370200 5145537 0 -90 317.
BL-08-02-W1 3019234*| 46° 27 18.85 82°41'56.75" 17T 369519 5146032 0 -90 125.
BL-08-02-W2 3019234*| 46° 27 18.85 82°41'56.75" 17T 369519 5146032 0 -90 453.

oo o O oo oo o O

Note: * - very close to the west boundanythvalaim # 4201501.

Appia analysed a total of 1,158 samples from thelizéhond drill holes during the course of the 2087-
drilling program. This included a total of 1,1CG&gular drill core samples and 53 QA/QC samples.
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Banana Lake Drill Holes BL-07-01-W1 and W2

In the Banana Lake Zone, two holes were wedgeth@# KM 150-5, a historical hole completed in 1969
by Kerr McGee that intersected 0.88 Ibg0g per ton over 13.4 m (44 ft).

The first wedged hole (BL-07-01-W1) commenced aepth of 1,179 m and extended to 1,524 m. The
hole was drilled in order to confirm mineralizatioeported by Kerr McGee. The uranium-bearing lmjzan
interbedded quartzite and quartz-pebble congloreeiat the Matinenda Formation was intersected from
approximately 1,414.41 to 1,481.9 m. The totatkhess of the zone within which the uranium-beatingzons
are located was about 67.5 m. The best mineralioe@, averaging 0.433 Ibs/tonQ@}, occurred at 1,440.68 to
1,476.25 m over an intersected length of 35.57 The highest uranium values were localized withimrawa
(centimetre to decimetre thick) quartz-pebble congirate beds containing with smoky quartz pebbled a
approximately 5-15% pyrite. The top of the basenreck, which is mafic metavolcanic in compositiomas
intersected at 1,481.9 metres. Between 1,120.821a66.61 m, the drill hole intersected 0.461Uk®g per ton
across a core length of 45.79 m. Additional sestiwithin this zone are summarized in the tablewel

The second hole wedged at this set-up (BL-07-01-W& started at 1,169.59 m and drilled to a depth o
1,487.2 m for a total completion length of 317.61 nThe uranium-bearing horizon was intersected from
approximately 1,411.40 to 1,479.22 m, over an appathickness of 67.82 m. The best mineralizaticas
intersected over a 15.85 m interval between 1,448 1,457.85 metres — this averaged 0.55 Wi3/tdn. This
and other intervals are summarized in the tablevibelThe top of the metavolcanic basement rock weessected

at 1,487.2 m.
Uranium-Bearing Intervals in Wedged Appia Drill ldsIBL-07-01-W1 and W2

DDH Name Interval (metres) Width Grade
From To Width (Feet) Ibs UsOg/ ton | Ibs ThO, / ton
BL-07-01-W1 1420.82 | 1466.61 45.79 150.24 0.461 n/a
including| 1435.86 | 1466.61 30.71 100.89 0.556 0.18
1444,09 | 1466.61 22.52 73.89 0.688 0.20
1444.09 | 1461.22 17.13 56.20 0.782 0.18
1448.40 | 1451.3(0 2.9¢ 9.51 1.058 0.22
145757 | 1461.22 3.65 11.98 1.096 0.18
1459.74 | 1461.22 1.48 4.86 1.880 0.29
BL-07-01-W2| 1421.54| 1462.18 40.64  133.34 0.41 0.16
including| 1442.00 | 1457.85 15.84 52.00 0.55 0.12
1442.00 | 1444.54 2.56 8.40 0.81 0.20
1443.70 | 1444.56 0.86 2.82 1.39 0.28

The intersections achieved in these steeply diphilgs are considered to be very close, within 5-@86
the true thickness of the mineralized zones. Titervals and grades in the Appia holes are sirtolénose reported
by Kerr McGee. Appia’s intersections are 18%-28¥ger and the grades are 11%-37% lower which deinates
a normal trade-off between volume (tonnage) andegra

Banana Lake Drill Holes BL-08-02-W1 and W2

A second pair of wedged holes, BL-08-02-W1 and W&s drilled from former Kerr McGee drill hole KM
156-5 which intersected 0.65 IbsQ@} per ton over 10.4 m (34 ft).

The first wedged hole was initiated at a depth,887.4 m and was drilled a total length of 125.6mtil it
was terminated at 1,523 m. This hole was locateia835 m north-northwest of former Kerr McGedldrole
KM 150-5. The interbedded quartzite-conglomeratét in the Matinenda Formation that contains uramiu
mineralization was intersected between 1,444.0 B488.91 m. The total intersected thickness ofutanium-
bearing zone was 44.91 m. The better mineralizetign of this zone was located at 1,444.0 to 1,48t — an
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apparent thickness of 37 m averaging 0.425 [kSgltbn. The better uranium values were associatéil marrow
(normally a few centimetres thick) quartz-pebbleglomerate beds containing smoky quartz pebblds atibut 5-
15% pyrite. This hole intersected several, narroigher grading intervals with values greater thatbsb
U;Og/ton including a narrow interval containing 8.68 Ib;Og/ton over 0.15 m at 1,469.5-1,469.65 m and 6.52 |bs
UsOg/ton over 0.28 m at 1,457.25-1,457.53 m. Many io8@mples carried between 1 and 4 |k©dton. The
various uranium-bearing horizons are summarizedlbsvs in the table below. The top of basemewrkravhich is
mafic metavolcanic in composition, was interseeted,516.4 m.

Uranium-Bearing Intervals in Appia Wedged Drill ldsIBL-08-02-W1 and W2

DDH Name Interval (metres) Width Grade
From To Width (Feet) Ibs U;0g/ ton | Ibs ThO, / ton
BL-08-02-W1 1444.00 | 1481.0Q 37.0( 121.40 0.425 0.14
including| 1457.25| 1471.95 14.7( 48.23 0.625 0.16
1457.25| 1459.47 2.27 7.28 1.148 0.23
1457.25| 1457.53 0.2 0.92 6.521 0.81
1466.50 | 1469.65 3.15 10.34 1.206 0.23
BL-08-02-W2| 1440.68| 1476.25 35.57 116.71 0.433 0.06
including| 1451.92| 1476.25 24.33 79.83 0.510 0.08
1462.73 | 1465.9( 3.17 10.40 1.259 0.30
1463.71 | 1465.9¢ 2.19 7.19 1.480 0.37
1464.11| 1464.8( 0.69 2.26 2.039 0.48

The second hole wedged from Kerr McGee’s KM 156&s wstarted at 1,169.59 m. Appia drilled to a final
depth of 1,520 m. The top of the uranium-bearingzon was intersected at 1,434.27 m and it coetinover a
core length of 41.98 m to a depth of 1,476.25 ravegal narrow higher grading intervals were presétit values
exceeding 5.0 Ibs 4@g/ton, including zones up to 7.64 Ibg@y/ton over 0.1 m at 1,460.85-1,460.95 m and 7.24 lbs
U;Og/ton over 0.13 m at 1,465.77-1,465.90 m. The majanium-bearing intervals are summarized in thieta
above. The top of the basement sequence wasdaotedsat 1,505.28 m.

Like with the first wedged set of holes, the Appitersections are considered to be very close,invih
7%, of the true thickness of the mineralized zonEle intervals and grades in the Appia holes endas to those
reported by Kerr McGee, and are actually highesefected intervals are taken to match the Kerr McGe
thicknesses. In one cut, Appia’s intersection 180dlonger yet the grade is only 4% lower. In tleeond cut,
Appia’s intersection is more than twice (234%) liregth of the Kerr McGee intersection yet the gradenly 21%
lower. The Appia assays show a normal trade-dffr#éen volume (tonnage) and grade, but possibly ghatential
for grade/tonnage improvement in the historicabuvese estimate made by Rio Algom.

Teasdale Drill Hole Q-07-01

This hole, drilled to a total depth of 327 m, wasdted on the eastern shore of Quirke Lake andsitted
several narrow, uranium-bearing conglomerate hogzanging in thickness from a few centimetres taetion of
a metre. The top of the uranium-bearing horizamictvis an interbedded quartz-pebble conglomenadegaartzite
of the Matinenda Formation, can be placed at 23162nd the bottom of the horizon is at 248.7 nhe Total
thickness of the mineralized horizon is approxinyage07 m with an average grade of 0.52 Ihglton and 3.00
Ibs REEoTa/ton. An additional uranium-bearing horizon was@amtered over a 93 cm interval in the lower
portion of the Matinenda at 286.87 m with an averaglue of 0.91 Ibs {Dg/ton but significantly less REEs (0.67
Ibs REEoral/ton). The upper and lower uranium-bearing zoneseveeparated by an essentially barren 38.17 m
thick horizon of quartzite. The top of the basetngranite was intersected at 288.19 m. The miizel
intersections are summarized in the table below.



42

Uranium-Bearing Intervals in Appia Holes Drilled thre Teasdale Zone

Interval Interval Width Grade
DDH Name (metres)
From To Metres Feet Ibs U;Og / Ibs Ibs ThO, /
ton REEs/ton ton
Q-07-01 239.68 248.7( 9.07| 29.76 0.519 3.00 0.67
including| 246.82 248.7( 1.88 6.17 0.734 1.94 0.45
247.35 248.7 0.65 2.13 1.008 3.37 0.55
286.87 287.8( 0.93 3.05 0.91 0.67 n/a

Q-07-02 544.35 551.8( 7.45| 24.44 0.644 4.14 0.90
including| 548.06 551.8 3.74| 12.27 1.051 5.70 1.27
548.06 550.0 1.94 6.37 1.391 5.87 1.33
549.70 550.0( 0.30 0.98 2.690 5.23 1.31
Q-07-03 486.38 493.94 7.56| 24.80 0.709 3.95 0.77
including| 490.70 492.34 1.64 5.38 0.908 3.31 0.67
490.70 491.0] 0.37 1.21 1.404 5.48 1.18
Q-08-04 349.05 354.9( 5.85| 19.19 0.505 3.53 0.65
including| 349.55 351.6( 2.05 6.73 0.821 6.31 1.11
349.55 350.5( 0.95 3.12 1.123 9.10 1.54
Q-08-05 296.93 302.9( 5.97| 19.59 0.656 2.80 0.61
including| 300.52 302.9 2.38 7.81 1.004 2.00 0.51
301.26 302.9( 1.64 5.38 1.214 1.79 0.45
302.09 302.9( 0.81 2.66 2.350 2.86 0.71
Q-08-06 326.81 333.3] 6.44| 21.13 0.404 241 0.53
including| 331.11 333.3] 2.20 7.22 0.712 1.52 0.43
331.66 332.2¢ 0.60 1.97 1.439 2.66 0.35

The average content for rare earth elements aetegpas total REEs

Teasdale Drill Hole Q-07-02

Q-07-02 was a 609.0 m deep hole that was drillethereastern shoreline of Quirke Lake and locatsg v
close to a collar of a historical DDH named R-1ttlwas drilled by Roche Long Lac Mines (Roche) ie #950s.
Mining Recorder records show that R-1 intersecte@l@am thick horizon (556.4 - 557.0 m) averaging s
UsOg/ton. The Appia hole intersected several uraniwaring conglomerate horizons ranging in thicknesmfa
few centimetres to a fraction of a metre startin§s4.35 m. The various intersections are sumredria the table
above. The top of the metavolcanic basement rakintersected at 572.6 m.

Teasdale Drill Hole Q-07-03

Drilled near the eastern shore of a tiny islandited in eastern Quirke Lake, this hole was located to a
historical Roche 1950-era drill hole collar for R-6As of the date of the Technical Report, no infation
concerning R-6 was available to WGM. The holersdeted several uranium-bearing conglomerates mgngi
thickness from a few centimetres to a fraction afetre. These intersections are summarized ifotiegoing table.
Basement rock comprising pink granite was encoedtat 520.0 m.
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Teasdale Drill Hole Q-08-04

This hole was drilled near the southwestern shoeetif Teasdale Lake, a small lake located immelgliate
east of Quirke Lake. The hole was collared neasldrdiamond drill hole collar for a hole named &-teportedly
drilled by Conecho Mines Ltd. in the early to miedl950s. Mining Recorder records indicated that9C-
intersected a 1.5 m thick zone with an averageegodd..42 Ibs WOg/ton (0.071% WOg). The Appia hole Q-08-04
intersected several uranium-bearing intervals isarat 343.6 m, however better values were encoeditérom
349.05 to 354.9 m in a 5.85 m thick interval avergg0.505 Ibs WOg /ton. The intersection that most closely
matched the historical report returned 0.821 Ik©dJton across 2.05 m between 349.55 m and 351.60 m.
Compared to the original hole, this intersectiorrkaa 44% increase in apparent thickness and adi¥ease in
grade — these results appear to be a trade-offadegagainst volume. The intersections in thie laok summarized
in the table above. Pinkish granite basement wak encountered below 410.0 m.

Teasdale Drill Hole Q-08-05

The Appia hole was collared close to the collahistorical drill hole collar C-15, a hole completedar
the northwestern shore of Teasdale Lake by Conigctiee early to middle 1950s. Conecho reportethersection
of 1.5 m with an average grade of 1.38 I®©kkon (0.069% WOg). In the Matinenda Formation Appia’s new hole
intersected a 12.9 m thick uranium-bearing zon2%t0-302.9 m with an average value of 0.451 I®gion
(0.0225% W0Og). Within this zone, Appia’s intersection of 1.2k U;Og/ton over 1.64 m at 301.26-302.90 m
confirmed the earlier Conecho report. The Apptarsection was 9% longer with a 12% diminishmengde.
Mineralization was hosted within a section of ibtuided quartz-pebble conglomerate and quartziseseg&n in all
other Appia holes, high uranium values were assediaith quartz-pebble conglomerate horizons amdehhat
had the higher pyrite contents generally had highianium contents. The Appia intersections arersarized in
the table above. Metamorphic basement in the fdfrpinkish granite was encountered at 349.1 m.

Teasdale Drill Hole Q-08-06

Appia drill hole Q-08-06 was collared near the herh shoreline of Teasdale Lake. As the most dgste
hole drilled by Appia in the area, it was situagdmbut 1.6 km east of Q-08-04 in the vicinity oftbigcal 1950s-era
Conecho hole C-12. Appia was unable to relocatecdsing for this hole, however, Mining Recordesords
provide sufficient evidence to indicate that thepi&phole must have been relatively close to thesroldole.
Records indicate that C-12 intersected a 1.5 nkthane with an average value of 1.23 lbsOpton (0.062%
UsOg). The Appia hole intersected a uranium-bearingezfom 326.87 to 333.31 m (6.44 m thick) having an
average grade of 0.404 Ibs@¥/ton (0.02% WYOg). A narrower zone and higher grading zone at&@3832.26 m
(0.60 m) averaging 1.439 Ibs@g/ton may approximate the reported historical restihese results are summarized
in the table above. Pinkish granite basement wakpresent in the hole below 361.5 m.

Phase Two Drilling Program
Summary

Between October and December, 2008, Appia comptetechew diamond drill holes and a short wedged
hole cut from the latter of the two holes. Alltbk drilling was completed to test the Banana La&re. In total,
3,109 m (10,200 feet) were drilled in holes BL-0B-BL-08-04 and BL-08-04-W1. The holes were intxhés
step out holes to extend the known Banana Lakeiwramineralization in a northerly direction awawprn those
intersections achieved in Appia’s 2007-08 Phase @ifleng program.

BL-08-03
According to Appia’s core logs, the drill hole irgected a relatively thin (8.62 m or 28.3 ft.) Rydember

at the base of the Stinson Member at 1,507.29n%429ft.). The basal Stinson conglomerate rested.81 m of
cobble reef followed by 4.94 m of quartzite andntty 0.47 m of pyritic quartz-pebble conglomerateed with
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paleosol resting on basement paledsolThe cobble reef, quartzite and paleosol hadageeuranium contents of
0.60, 0.20 and 1.37 Ibs;0g/ton, respectively. The Pardee, Nordic and Lageefs were either not deposited at
this location or, were subsequently eroded or reedaluring the deposition of the overlying Stinsoanvber which

is extraordinarily thick at 108 m (357’). Twentgtfr samples of core were taken for analysis. Tast b
intersections are summarized in the table belownakow higher grading horizon in the quartziteraged 1.48 Ibs
U;Og/ton over a thickness of 0.55 m (1.80 ft.). In&ddwith its wider lower grading shoulders, the honi
produced an average of 0.60 IbsOglton over a thickness of 3.21 m (10.53 ft.).

BL-08-04

In this Appia drill hole, the Ryan Member is a maanventional 31 m (102 ft.) thick, and is overlain
the Stinson basal conglomerate. The hole intezddbie hanging wall of the Lacnor Reef at 1,4715827.8 ft.).
The reef was 4.56 m (14.9 ft.) thick and 38 samplere collected for analysis. The Pardee and Ndreiefs were
not deposited at this location, or if they weresgm at one time, they were subsequently erodetidpverlying
Stinson Member which is 68.67 m (225.3 ft.) thickhe sample series spanning the Lacnor Reef haverage
grade of 0.85 Ibs Dg/ton over a thickness of 8.50 m (27.9 ft.). Adulitdl mineralized sections are presented in the
table below. The footwall of the Lacnor Reef wateisected at 1,480.02 m (4,855.7 ft.) and the danohbasement
was reached at 1,498.39 m (4,915.9 ft.). Thereewer significant uranium values over economicatigiesting
widths in the cobble beds between the Lacnor Regflae basement.

Uranium-Bearing Intervals in Appia Holes Drilled tire Banana Lake Zone

DDH Name Interval (metres) Width Grade
From To Width (Feet) Ibs UsOg/ ton | Ibs ThO, / ton
BL-08-03 1507.29| 1510.50 3.21 10.53 0.600 0.09
including| 1509.95| 1510.5Q 0.55 1.80 1.484 0.16
BL-08-04 1471.52| 1480.02 8.50 27.89 0.853 0.14
including| 1471.72 | 1474.23 2.51 8.24 1.039 0.17
1475.30 | 1476.40 1.1d 3.61 1.402 0.09
1477.24 | 1480.07 2.78 9.12 0.872 0.13
BL-08-04 W1 1472.69| 1481.01 8.32 27.30 1.028 0.14
including| 1472.69 | 1475.35 2.64 8.73 1.217 0.18
1476.25| 1479.35 3.1d 10.17 1.024 0.14
1479.71| 1481.01 1.3( 4.27 1.577 0.17

BL-08-04-W1

This Appia hole was wedged off the initial pilotlbdL-08-04. The purpose of this wedge cut was to
have two reef evaluations close to one another ithereasing the confidence level of the resulthie §eology of
the comparable sections are essentially the sarhe.thickness of the Ryan Member is 31.6 m (108)6/érsus 31
m in the pilot hole. The hanging wall of the Lacieef was intersected at 1,472.69 m (4,831.7 This point was
4.82 m (15.8 ft.) below the bottom of the Stinsoreriver basal conglomerate. Forty samples were téken
analysis. Over a 8.32 m (27.3 ft.) section spamnire reef, the average uranium content was 1.82&}4Og/ton.
Other narrower intersections within this zone aespnted in the table above.

Given the geometry of the hole and the uraniumihganorizons, the intersections essentially represe
true thicknesses.

2 Paleosol, also called regolith, is dark green gnallack silt or mud-like material lying on top tife weathered surface of

the Archean unconformity. Itis very rare for gadel to contain significant amounts of uranium.
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The Archean basement was intersected at 1,499.¢8919.4 ft.). As in the pilot hole, no economigal
significant uranium grades were found in the coltiglds between the Lacnor Reef and the basement.

WGM believes that it is likely that potentially aresting uranium mineralization will extend furthesrst-
southeast to the vicinity of historical hole KM-120 This would extend the total strike length loé tmineralized
zone to at least 3 kilometres in this area. Thgra potential for significant tonnage of lower djreg uranium
mineralization in the Banana Lake Zone. Appia’sstm@cent drilling (BL-08-03, ‘04 and ‘04-W1) cléashows
potential for higher grading mineralization to therth and northwest.

WGM is of the opinion that the current drilling B®ppia in the Banana Lake Zone has demonstrated
sufficient continuity of grade and thickness thasipossible to undertake a NI 43-101 compliasbtece estimate
for portions of the mineralized zone. Consideraditional drilling will be required before it Wibe possible to
complete a NI 43-101 compliant resource estimatéhi® entire zone.

Sampling Method and Approach

During the drilling program, uranium-bearing intelw were delineated on the basis of diagnosticora€iric
signatures as measured with a hand-held RS-125r-8RfeC portable gamma ray spectrometer manufactuyed
Radiation Solutions of Mississauga, Ontario, Canad&e specifications and capabilities of this riastent are
described in Section 9.3 of the Technical Repdittis important to understand that the equivaleotapsium,
uranium and thorium data provided by portable spewtters allow insight into the elemental make-dpao
radioactive source, but they do not provide anedytdata. Such data can only be reliably provitdedugh
conventional analytical means. Equivalent metah ds calculated based on statistical algorithnegdral to the
instrument’s software, and the accuracy of such tainfluenced by the manner in which the instrotig used, its
performance, ambient conditions and operator egped. Radiometric data was used as a guide irctisge
intervals to be sampled.

Appia’s 2007-08 drilling program generated 1,1581gkes of which 1,105 were regular drill core sarspad 53
were QA/QC samples that were inserted into the gastpeam. All samples were analysed as batchadshanlab
was not aware of the QA/QC samples. One of thpéelA, UTS-4 and BL-3) standards from CANMET and €D
Laboratories Ltd. of Burnaby, B.C. (DL 1A, UTS-4daBL-3) was inserted into the sample stream. Iditaxh,
duplicate samples and one field blank (from baceuantry rock) were also collected and inserted this sample
stream. Control samples constituted approximdiétyof the samples submitted by Appia. This QA/QGgpam
was in addition to the internal control programriest out by Actlabs, a fully accredited geochemiedloratory
located in Ancaster, Ontario meeting both ISO/IE25 with CAN-P-1579 standards as recommended &y th
Toronto Stock Exchange-Ontario Securities Commissiineral standards taskforce.

On receiving the samples, Actlabs dried and crushedentire core sample to a nominal 85% passi#ijlamesh
screen, before repeated riffle splitting of thestrer product to generate an aliquot of approxiga28&0 g. The
subsample was then pulverized to a nominal 95%imass#150 mesh screen using a ring and puck pabrer
Cleaner (wash) sand was used between each sanyplevent carry-over.

The analysis of samples for uranium was primanhAgtlabs’ Code 5D which uses neutron activatiod derlayed
neutron counting (DNC). Approximately one gramsafnple was weighed into a polyethylene capsule winic
turn was sealed into a carrier vial for neutroradiation within a slowpoke nuclear reactor. Thegusatially
irradiated samples are transferred automaticallpheo BF3 counting array detector using a computtoraated
system. Calibration is achieved with certifiedereihce materials. All elements in the sample d&bsautrons
which produce a subsequent emission that can liktasaeasure the composition of the sample usingreay of
BF3 neutron detectors. This technique, more gélgereferred to as neutron activation analysis,deal for
measuring uranium and many other trace elementa &ob-ppm to percentage levels. The method does ha
limitations as certain interferences can occumesures total metal content which may not bevaelein the sense
of mineral economics, for example, it measures| tatanium rather than soluble uranium. While tliéedence
may be trivial in most geological environments, DN@alysis may include non-recoverable uranium tkat
contained in the crystal lattice of resistate mateisuch as zircon. Samples greater than 1% (Q@Pt) U are
reanalyzed by using a lithium metaborate/tetrateofiagion in platinum crucibles with analysis of tjlass bead by
XRF. This, again, is a very robust digestion whitdly report uranium in resistates.
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Other elements were determined by Actlabs Code 8 &) by which pulverized sample material is weidhato
small polyethylene vials specially fabricated fartibs to ensure they have a low background in liitegdements.
After the weight is recorded, samples are irradiatéh control international reference material QANT STSD-2
and NiCr flux wires at a thermal neutron flux ok 7.0'2 n/cnf/s in the McMaster slowpoke reactor. Following a
7-day decay cycle (cooling time) the samples arasueed by an Ortec high purity Ge detector witesolution of
1.67 KeV for the 1332 KeV Cobalt-60 photopeak. Hetector is linked to the Canberra Series 95 rchlinnel
counting system and is fully computer automatedtiities for each element are decay and weightembed and
compared to a detector calibration developed frouttiple international certified reference materiaBTSD-2 is
used solely as a control to verify the system israfing properly. Selected samples are re-measunmeédompared
to the original as part of the QA/QC procedure.

A few samples were analysed for gold using an Astl@ode 1A2 procedure which is a conventional 050e

assay on a 30 g charge with an atomic absorptistnuimental finish with a 5 ppb lower detection kirtthe upper
limit is 3,000 ppb). Samples exceeding the uppeit lof 3,000 ppb are reanalyzed using a gravimdiriish in

which the prill is weighed.

The second drilling program, carried out during g#ezond half of 2008, employed the same Actlabsipiiag

practices and techniques, and essentially the saagtical techniques and protocols. Gold wasrdeted using
the same Actlabs’ fire assaying code (1A2) withiastrumental AA finish. Uranium was determinedngsi
Instrumental Neutron Activation Analysis commongfarred to as INAA. All samples were analysedd@uite of
56 trace and indicator elements (Ag, Al, As, Ba, Be Ca, Cd, Ce, Co, Cr, Cs, Cu, Dy, Er, Eu, Fe, Gd, Ge, Hf,
Ho, In, K, La, Li, Lu, Mg, Mn, Mo, Na, Nb, Nd, NRb, Pr, Rb, Re, Sb, Se, Sm, Sn, Sr, Ta, Tb, TeTlTAmM, U,

V, W, Y, Yb, Zn and Zr) using an Actlabs UltraTrabeprotocol employing a 4-acid (total) digestiontrwan

instrumental finish employing a mass spectrometer.

WGM'’s experience from comparative analysis usingdNNAA and conventional 4-acid digestions has smow
that some systemic differences can be expectechengeochemical populations generated by each dfethe
techniques. Data levelling could be a legitimabacern if the Appia exploration program was dirdct the
detection of subtle anomalies. Aqua regia digestican produce far greater variances with neutctimagion and
total digestion techniques. However, in the cdsth@® Appia program, the differences are relativatyall and are
not significant within the context of an exploratiprogram directed at the testing of known mineeali zones
having economically interesting levels of mineratian. The differences in analytical techniquenssin the first
and second drilling programs have very limited iotgan the overall project database.

Sample Preparation and Security

For reasons cited herein, no surface sampling leas lzarried out by Appia on the Property, and athges
submitted for analysis have been derived from dizddrill core.

Mineralized core intervals were sawn/split in ti@d, one half was retained in the core tray asmhived record
and the other half was placed in a plastic samatg bealed and sent for analysis to Actlabs. TiygisAgeologist
retained possession of samples until they wereeleld to the courier for shipping to the lab.

In order to ensure that QA/QC protocols are folldwa system of blank and standard samples was inepited.
All drill holes were surveyed with down-hole loggirequipment including a spectrometer to ensure dksaty
intervals were confirmed and accurately reported.

All the split cores are currently being stored amecracks that are inside a locked building intthven of Elliot Lake.
The un-split cores are being stored outside thilimgj, cross-stacked, in a fenced area. Sampégvials from the
drill program are permanently recorded in drilldagpmbined with the assay results.

WGM is satisfied with the adequacy of the sampkgppration, security and analytical proceduresHergurposes
for which the data is being used and that the itlsed is adequate for the purposes for which lieéing used.
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Data Corroboration
Overview

The WGM geologist used a Garmin 76MAP GPS instrunberaudit the locations of selected mine infrastuce
and drill holes reported in the Technical RepoRrocessing used the GPS Utility (Version 4.02.4wsoe
available as freeware from Alan Murphy’'s websitétsp://www.gpsu.co.uk. WGM uses a licensed upgraf this
software which permits the handling of large datis.s

The WGS-84 datum, the international default datanmiid-latitude regions, was used to provide albsweements.
The MNDM uses the NAD-27 (Canada) datum for itoords of drill hole locations stored in its ERMESatzase,
and so all WGM measurements were also recordedAiD-Rl7 (Canada). The physical difference in co-nadés
between the two datums was 3-5 metres as measnrdte @round. The GPS Ultility software convertetineen
the two datums and between geographic co-ordireatddJTM co-ordinates with no significant variandteathe
data is discounted for the estimated position error

WGM found the MNDM co-ordinates for previously dill holes to be inaccurate, even allowing for agasonable
degree of GPS error. Differences between plottsitipns shown in the Mining Recorder’s assessmresgrds and
the actual locations varied by 155 to 330 metM&GM understands that the recorded co-ordinates we@sured
from existing maps, and that these maps are imggecWGM also found that the graphical locationswah on
sketch maps that accompanied the drill hole lolggl fby Kerr McGee Corp. were reasonably accuré®me
diligence was required on the ground to ensurettietorrect geographic features were being usetl tlds was
not always easy given the 30 years of forest grdhdhhad occurred since many of the holes had bespleted.

Due to the nature of the previous deep drilling aathpling programs, little of the historical corasaavailable for
inspection at the core library, and none of it aasilable for check sampling.

WGM confirmed the location of Banana Lake drill @@L-08-02 which is located at 287’ 18.4” north latitude
and 82 41’ 56.8” west longitude (UTM Zone 17T 369518E 6020N) using position averaging over a 5-minute
count (300 readings). The hole was completed a&le@ration of approximately 391 metres. The edthaange of
error on the GPS was 1.9 m. at an elevation of 391 Appia’s reported UTM location was 369519E and
5146032N, a difference of approximately 12 m anthimithe overlapping spheres generated talking autmount
estimated position errors. The WGM location waseolaon the instrumentally generated average oftedeGPS
measurements measured automatically every secarcad+minute interval with an estimated positiomeof two
metres. The WGM procedure for measuring the looatias more precise than that used by Appia duhiagnitial
drilling program carried out in 2007-08. The féwat Appia used the NAD-27 datum and WGM used tH@SA84
datum was shown to have negligible affect in actagrfor any differences in location.

Bedrock Sampling

As mentioned in the foregoing text, the mineralizetiglomerates in the Matinenda Formation rarelgrap and
do not outcrop on the Property. No amount of srfsampling can provide Appia with the answers ithaquires
in respect to the deep uranium-bearing conglometats have been intersected previously in theept@rea.

Prior to the 2007-08 drilling program, no receninpéing work had been carried out on the Propertyg, so during
its site visit WGM was not able to observe any swonk being completed. Nevertheless, it is WGMswthat no
amount of surface sampling carried out at the tifniés site visit or in the future could provideefisl information in
respect to confirming the deep mineralization kndaexist on the Property.

Appia followed WGM’s recommendation for a programdeep drilling using the previous drill holes asast-
effective means of quickly placing a wedge at atllep 1,000-1,300 m. New holes were wedged offdfiginal
hole in such a way as to provide new drill corarfrthe uranium-bearing conglomerates below the depttne
wedge. Rather than providing a twinned sampletptie intent of this drilling was to maximize haleflection off
the wedge and below, and thereby provide additisaahpling points at a maximum possible distancenftbe
original hole. Therefore, the new Appia assay dedes not expected to precisely match that of ttstotical
intersections. Appia’s analysis of the new coreeasially confirmed the earlier results althougladgs and
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thicknesses were somewhat different. Appia’s seabilling program resulted in the drilling of twatep-out holes
which also corroborated the geological model arel ahticipated potential for uranium resources i Banana
Lake Zone.

Appia also followed WGM'’s recommendation for a ling) program intended to corroborate some of ttstohical
drill holes in the Teasdale Zone. The Appia halese positioned as close as possible to the casarging the
collars of the historical holes, and drilled at #ane vertical orientation as the original holéd¢lowing for some
variations attributable to sample interval selattithe new Appia assay data was expected to dipltbat of the
historical intersections. Some variations were oentered, however no variations were found sucht tha
mineralization was absent where formerly reportéd. addition, the thicknesses of the mineralizedemowere
comparable.

As mentioned in the foregoing text, no amount affame sampling will provide Appia with the answehst it
requires in respect to the deep uranium-bearingloomerates that have been intersected previoustlgamroject
area.

Evaluation of Laboratory Performance

Given the historical nature of the previous expiorawork, WGM did not attempt to determine whictibbratories
were used previously.

The WGM geologist and Qualified Person, Al Workm&n(eo., was active in the uranium industry dutime
period 1975-1982, and believes that the existibgratories at the time were very capable of praaybigh quality
analytical data for uranium and thorium. In admiitto laboratories such as the Technical Serviedmtatory and
the X-Ray Assay LaboratoryXRAL” (now SGS-Lakefield) in Toronto and the Barringkaboratory in
Mississauga, both Actlabs in Ancaster and XRAL wenaviding neutron activation analysis through tise of the
Slowpoke reactor at McMaster University in Hamilt@ntario. Detection limits at that time were coomty in the
range of 1-2 ppm uranium. WGM has no way of deteimg the precision with which the uranium contewere
determined for historically analysed drill core.

WGM reviewed the results of Appia’s quality assweiquality control (QA/QC”) program carried out during the
recent diamond drilling and noted the following rfdailures of standards:

Uranium Assay (ppm)

Hole ID Actlab’s File No. Sample No. Standard Actlabs Certified Value

Q-08-04 A08-0423 32896 Std. DL 1A 21 116
BL-08-02-W1 A08-0915 A 160300 Std. DL 1A 140 116

Q-08-04 A08-0423 32923 Std. UTS-4 870 1,011.5
BL-08-02-W1 A08-0915 A 160290 Std. UTS-4 1,210 1,011.5

Appia noted that most industrial standards wer@ntepl to have uranium contents close to the acdeyratues.

Appia averaged the test results on these standamdsagain noted that the average of all deterioimaitwas very
close to the accepted assay. WGM reviewed theadatanoted the foregoing assays of standardsehatuitside of
what WGM would accept as a normal range of valulstlab’s internal checks that were inserted attthree of

analysis performed well, so it is possible thatftikires represent anomalies within the standasdufilikely as that
may seem). These findings were discussed withinitial Appia project geologist, Sonny Bernalesdah was

agreed that additional tests would be made in tiberé on any samples associated with unusual asgasisch

standards.

WGM Check Sampling

WGM collected a set of check samples during its gisit in June 2008. These samples were subntittédtiabs
for analysis. In order to investigate the impdaetttanalytical technique might have on the repoasshy, WGM
requested that each sample be analysed usingtdulesiques: (1) a delayed neutron count (DNC)rdetetion
that duplicates the original analytical procedura aeports total uranium; (2) a multi-element asslyby
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instrumental neutron activation analysis (INAA)ttheports total uranium; and, (3) a mass spectrensetalysis of
the sample following a moderate acid digestiongisigua regia to liberate easily leachable uranium.

In general WGM'’s numbers from check samples fordograding samples are higher than the originaild, tae
high grade originals came back lower in WGM’s cleeckrhe duplicate samples analyzed by the DNC ndetho
(same as Appia) show a moderate variance in uramésults as compared to the original values. /Asislpy
INAA seems to have produced data for most sampkesi$ closest to the original values. The usarméqua regia
extraction combined with an instrumental mass spewtter finish predictably produced significantbyver grades

in the WGM samples than in the original assays. MMzlieves that this is due to incomplete sampgesiion in a
moderately acidic medium. Clearly, a stronger hede is required to fully liberate the uranium froime sample,
but this usefully does illustrate the fact thatlgti@al techniques involving irradiation result iatal uranium being
reported and this can produce very different restiin acid extraction techniques. The differerzamot be
explained by laboratory error as Actlabs interfedak samples produced acceptable results.

Mineral Resource and Mineral Reserve Estimates
General

WGM prepared Mineral Resource estimates for miierdl zones belonging to the Teasdale and Banana Lak
Zones that have sufficient data to show continaftgeology and grades set out in the tables belBiease see the
table entitled “NI 43-101 Compliant Uranium Minef@kesources on the Appia Property” on page 68 utider
heading “Interpretation and Conclusions — Explomtind Mineral Resources” (th€rior Resource Estimate).

The current Teasdale Zone Mineral Resource estimaseprepared from a polygonal model using a gecdbgut-

off and a minimum bed thickness of 2.44 metred.{8nhich takes into consideration the continuifygoade within
the various mineralized beds and historical minangctices. No grade cut-off or high capping wasduie this
estimate as the grades were themselves quite radsthe utilization of a cut-off grade would regucomplex
economic modelling of individual metals that is metuired at this time. The estimate was basetbtat REE
content (TREE") as the main subject of interest, however theraye grade of the most abundant individual rare
metals was estimated. The mineralized zone wa®gjeally constrained by the well defined markersyided by
the upper surface of the highest mineralized betithe lower surface of the basal bed. The estishbBtREE
resource is a smaller volume (tonnage) of minezdlimcks that is contained within the Prior ReseuEstimate
which was a U-only resource estimate.

Current Mineral Resource Estimate

Summary of Teasdale Zone Rare Earth Metal and UnaResource Estimate

Average Contained Contained

Category Tonnes Tons TREE U3Og Thickness TREE UsOg
('000) (*000) (%) (Ib/ton) (m) (‘000 Ibs) (‘000 Ibs)
Indicated 3,366 3,710 0.146 0.506 9.76 10,852 1,878
Inferred 21,217 23,388 0.181 0.615 7.22 85,895 1,3
Notes:

1. The Mineral Resources are effective as of J8|y2011.

2. Mineral Resources which are not Mineral Resed@esot have demonstrated economic viability. &kémate of Mineral
Resources may be materially affected by environalepermitting, legal, title, taxation, socio-patal, marketing, or other
relevant issues.

3. The quantity and grade of reported Inferred Resgs in this estimation are uncertain in naturd #rere has been
insufficient exploration to define these InferredsRurces as an Indicated or Measured Mineral Res@und it is uncertain
if further exploration will result in upgrading timeto an Indicated or Measured Mineral Resourcegcaye

4. The Mineral Resources were estimated using tweadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petrote standards on
Mineral Resources and Reserves, Definitions andd&ines prepared by the CIM Standing Committee @selRve
Definitions and adopted by the CIM Council Decembkr2005.

5. S.G. of 2.85 tonnesfnfor 3.14 tons/rf) was used.

6. Indicated amounts may not precisely sum dueuading.
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The average grades for the most abundant REEs ngpthe TREE are shown in the table below.

Individual REE Resource Grade Composition Summary

Light REE (Ibs/ton) Heavy REE (Ibs/ton)
Categor
La Ce Pr Nd Sm Eu Gd Th Dy Ho Er Tm Yb Lu Hf Y

ind. 075 133 013 043 007 0.00p 004 001 003 00040010 0002001 0002 001 011

it 093 164 016 053 009 0004 006 001 003 00160012 0.002 0.01 0.002 001 0.13

Notes:

1. The Mineral Resources are effective as of J8[y2011.

2. Mineral Resources which are not Mineral Resed@esot have demonstrated economic viability. €hémate
of Mineral Resources may be materially affectededmyironmental, permitting, legal, title, taxatiospcio-
political, marketing, or other relevant issues.

3. The quantity and grade of reported Inferred Resgs in this estimation are uncertain in naturé grere has
been insufficient exploration to define these IrddrResources as an Indicated or Measured MinersbiRrce
and it is uncertain if further exploration will rds in upgrading them to an Indicated or Measuremhdvhl
Resource category.

4. The Mineral Resources were estimated using theadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petrgie
standards on Mineral Resources and Reserves, Da@fimiand Guidelines prepared by the CIM Standing
Committee on Reserve Definitions and adopted byCiivé Council December 11, 2005.

5. S.G. of 2.85 tonnes/m3 (or 3.14 tons/m3) wasl.use

6. Indicated amounts may not precisely sum dueuading.

The Banana Lake Mineral Resource estimate in thie taelow was prepared from a block model usingéali®
UsOg/ton cut-off grade, a minimum vertical thickness5oifn, and based on the assumption that materiad this
deposit would be refined in a central milling fétgithat would accommodate neighbouring mining agiens in the
Elliot Lake camp, thus significantly reducing capiand operating costs. The increased minimunkiieiss was
imposed by WGM to provide a basis for the use ofda underground equipment as a cost-reductioneglya
however this restriction had little impact on tlwmtained resources.

Summary of Banana Lake Zone Mineral Resource Ettima
(using 0.6 Ib YOg / ton Cut-Off Grade)

Tons S.G. Total Ibs UOg
Category ('000) (tons/n) Ibs U;Og/ton (:000)
Inferred Resources 30,315 3.14 0.912 27,638

Notes:

1.
2.

The Mineral Resources are effective as of J8|y2011.

Mineral Resources which are not Mineral Resedesot have demonstrated economic viability. €kemate
of Mineral Resources may be materially affecteddmyironmental, permitting, legal, title, taxatiospcio-
political, marketing, or other relevant issues.

The quantity and grade of reported Inferred Ress in this estimation are uncertain in naturé grere has
been insufficient exploration to define these IrddrResources as an Indicated or Measured Minasburce
and it is uncertain if further exploration will rds in upgrading them to an Indicated or Measuremhdval
Resource category.

The Mineral Resources were estimated using theadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petrote
standards on Mineral Resources and Reserves, Dafimiand Guidelines prepared by the CIM Standing
Committee on Reserve Definitions and adopted byCiive Council December 11, 2005.

S.G. of 2.85 tonnes/m3 (or 3.14 tons/m3) wasl.use

Indicated amounts may not precisely sum duedading.

Teasdale Zone

The current WGM Mineral Resource estimate abovep@ye 49) on the Teasdale Zone takes in both uraand
rare earth element mineralization and is basedersix holes completed by Appia. This represerasieet of the
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total 22 holes drilled on the deposit and usechi dforementioned WGM audit. Because only theseAppia
holes were assayed for rare earths, the currengéfslifResource estimate has been restricted ta¢laeod influence
of this data and the historical drill holes haverbhaecessarily excluded. The estimated U-REE resads a smaller
volume (tonnage) of mineralized rocks that is ciored within the Prior Resource Estimate which wad-anly
resource estimate.

The estimate was prepared from a polygonal modagus C$:US$ exchange rate of 1:0.9 and on thevatig

metal prices (per kilogram, unless otherwise noteéd)O; $12.53; CgO; $10.80; P1O; $31.66; NdO; $32.49;
SmOs $7.71; GdO; $7.91; EWO; $506.09; DyO; $152.25; %03 $22.05, and; uranium US$55/ItNo per cent
TREE cut-off was used for the reporting of resosrd®mwever implicitly there is an internal cut-gfade of about
0.05% TREE (i.e. the lowest grade interval includedhe mineralized envelope at the hanging watl footwall

contacts). The resource envelop was geologicaligitained by the geological contacts of the zan®lkows:

. the upper surface of the stratigraphically highd4tearing conglomerate (reef); and,
. the under surface of the stratigraphically lowedidaring reef.

WGM imposed a 2.44-metre (8 ft) minimum thicknesguirement on the Teasdale Zone which reflect®tst
mining practices in the Elliot Lake district. Adf the Appia drill hole intersections exceeded ttiikkness.
Indicated and Inferred Mineral Resources are regiart the table below and are summarized in detad hole-by-
hole basis as follows:

. Tonnes Tons TREE U304 Average Contained TREE Contained YOg
Drill Hole  (:gqq) (000) (%)  (Ibfton) Thickness (m) (000 Ibs) (000 Ibs)
Indicated Mineral Resources
Q-07-01 1,570 1,731 0.150 0.519 9.07 5,193 898
Q-08-05 1,795 1,979 0.143 0.495 10.37 5,660 979
TOTAL * 3,366 3,710 0.146 0.506 9.76 10,852 1,878
Inferred Mineral Resources
Q-07-01 3,444 3,796 0.150 0.519 9.07 11,389 1,970
Q-07-02 2,599 2,865 0.285 1.051 3.74 16,329 3,011
Q-07-03 5,156 5,683 0.200 0.718 7.42 22,733 4,081
Q-08-04 1,680 1,852 0.277 0.704 2.55 10,261 1,304
Q-08-05 3,565 3,929 0.143 0.495 10.37 11,238 1,945
Q-08-06 4,774 5,262 0.123 0.393 6.87 12,945 2,068
TOTAL * 21,217 23,388 0.181 0.615 7.22 85,895 1437

* Totals may not sum due to rounding.

WGM'’s previous audit showed that a representatiea af influence (search ellipsoid) with a radidg® m would
be appropriate for the deposit as this providedltes/ery close to the historical estimate. Howevmsed on
WGM’s experience and mining practice in the BlindveR area, we believe that a search radius of 8% m
conservative for a stratiform uranium deposit sasithose in the Elliot Lake area. Mining practieanonstrated
that a spacing of several hundred metres can be taspredict grade. In light of the geological urat of the
deposit, especially its great lateral continuitypalygonal radius of 140M was used for defining drea of
influence for Indicated Resources. For compagagiurposes, this radius is well within the 200 ntehgpacing
recently recommended by the consultants workinghenPele Mountain Resources Elliot Lake project dpr
grading Inferred Resources to Indicated Resouraesupnt to a NI 43-101 compliant preliminary fedgibstudy
(Cochrane, Hwozdyk and Hayden, 2007). The InferRabources were calculated with a similarly defined
polygonal radius of 280 m.

General Mineral Resource Estimation Procedures

The polygonal model Mineral Resource estimate ploceincluded:

¢ importing/compiling and validation of data from Masoft Excel to Gemcom GEMS v6.2.4 to create a
Project database;
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e statistical analysis;

< validation of geological model for use as resoweelope;

e compositing assay intervals within the mineralibedndaries - limited to one composite per hole;

e extruding polygons around each drill collar withradius of 140 and 280 metres, and assigning
thickness’ equivalent to individual composite ldrggt

e reporting volumes and grade in each of the extrymdyhjons; and

e categorizing the Mineral Resources according td}L01 and CIM definitions.

Database
General

Data used to generate the Mineral Resource essniginated from Microsoft Excel files
supplied to WGM by Appia. A GEMS project was etitdied to hold all data and to be used for the maations
necessary for the Mineral Resource estimate.

The Teasdale drill hole database consisted of thevé Appia drill hole collar locations in the
UTM co-ordinate system and geological descriptifimsles Q-07-01 to Q-07-3, and Q-08-04 to Q-08-06)e
database consisted of key data such as drill hollarc survey, assay, and lithological informatiaa well as
geological codes and 360 assay intervals contaiméiges for TREE (%) and Ibs30g/ton (and other elements
including: Th (ppm), ThO2 (%), LREE (%), HREE (%) (%), Ce (%), Nd (%), Gd (%) and Y (%)), of whidR
were not assayed for rare earths. Assay interwasaged 0.31 m in length, with the smallest interaaasuring
0.03 m and the largest measuring 2.21 m. Lithokdgicoss-sections of each of the drill holes weigptied in PDF
format, as well as original digital assay certifesaas supplied by Actlabs of Ancaster, Ontario.

Like with the Banana Lake sampling, the distribotaf assay intervals within the various rock
type units heavily favoured conglomerate (307) dampersus quartzite (51 samples) and argillitegiaple). The
high concentration of samples in the conglomerafe(85% of total) coincides with uranium mineralion in the
quartz pebble conglomerate of the Matinenda Foomati

Geological Modelling Procedures

A single inclined section was defined for the TedsdZone which closely paralleled the dip of the
mineralized zone. The inclined plane strikes apipnately 103 degrees to the east, and dips geniyutakl6
degrees to the south.

Geological Interpretation

The mineralized zones used for the resource aieedeby the volume between the upper surface of the
highest reef and the basal contact of the lowest aecording to Appia’s designations. These arfelisvs:

« Q-07-01 239.63m to 248.70 m
« Q-07-02 548.06 m to 551.80 m
« Q-07-03 486.38 m to 493.80 m
+ Q-08-04 349.05m to 351.60 m
+ Q-08-05 292.69m to 303.06 m
+ Q-08-06 326.44m to 333.31m

Topographic Surface Creation
A topographic surface or triangulated irregularek (“TIN”) was generated using collar elevations of

the holes drilled from surface for the entire Tedsd®one. This was not seen as being crucialhigratage of the
Mineral Resource estimate, as the zones wouldylixelmined by underground methods.
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Statistical Analysis, Compositing, Capping And Spefic Gravity

Statistical Analysis and Compositing

The original assay intervals varied in length, iggg normalization to a consistent length in
order to carry out the Mineral Resource grade jraiation. A set of equal length 1-metre compositas generated
from the raw sample intervals. A total of 43 cormsipes were generated of which all but two (in ceite} fall
within conglomerates. The statistics of the contpssinside the defined mineralized zones for TRE WO,
which were used for the Mineral Resource estimate,summarized in the table below. For its ang)y¢iGM
examined the zones as a whole.

Basic Statistics of the One Metre Composites

Mean TREE Mean U308 C.OVv.*» C.OVv.*
Zone Number (%) (Ibs/ton) (TREE) (4O
Teasdale 43 0.174 0.627 0.54 0.60

*Co-efficient of Variation

Cut-Off Grade and Grade Capping

WGM did not use a cut-off grade in its estimatethas value-matrix of the U and REE contents
would be quite complex to model. WGM's review bétREE data indicated that the grades were suifigieobust
and continuous to support mining the entire reefige as a single minable zone as was the praictite past. The
variability between individual REEs also favourefbaus on TREE content rather than individual nmetaHence
the use of geological constraints rather than aiBpeut-off grade. One major consideration inefeining a cut-
off grade would be whether or not the ore from tihéposit could be processed in a central millinglifs that
would accommodate neighbouring mining operationshi Elliot Lake camp. This would significantlyduce
capital and operating costs. It is clear that e@lifdinary Assessment of the Teasdale Zone is netmledplore
mining and processing options.

While the resources have been constrained foregbeurce estimate solely by geological marker
horizons (boundaries), the hanging wall and fodte@htacts of the mineralized zone include assagatgr than or
equal to 0.05% TREE. Much of this low grade mateviill likely be considered internal dilution fdsulk
underground mining (e.g. room and pillar). Theseameters were chosen based on a preliminary revieive
parameters that would likely determine the econoriability of an underground mining operation aranparison
to similar projects in the area that are curreb#ing mined or are at an advanced stage of stddyglopment.

Due to the low composite sample population, ther@sufficient data to support the use of high-
grade capping at the Teasdale Zone. Grade cappisg,sometimes referred to as top cutting, assaglegr is
commonly used in the Mineral Resource estimatimtgss to limit the effect (risk) associated wittremely high
assay values since high-grade outliers can coméritaxcessively to the total metal content of theodd.
Philosophies or approaches to establishing andyusigrade cap is variable across the industry adddes, for
example, not using grade caps at all, arbitraelyisg all assay grades greater than a certairevala high grade
“limit”, choosing the grade cap value to correspoodhe 95 percentile in a cumulative distributienaluation of
Mean Grades + multiple levels of Standard Deviaiand the evaluation of the shape and values tdgnams
and/or probability plots to identify an outlier pdation. Another rule of thumb is to set the cagplevel to lower
the top 10% of the metal content in the depositGMVrecommends that further geostatistical invesiigabe
conducted as new drilling data becomes availaldegelver, there is no historical basis for high-gradpping given
the laterally continuous nature of the minerali@ati Also, the low C.O.V. for both TREE and;®@} 1-metre
composites would suggest that top-capping is urgsacg. Typically, capping is only warranted if t8e0.V. is
above 1.0.

The statistical distribution of TREE shows relaljvgood lognormal distributions, whereagQ{
appears to exhibit a more bi-modal distribution.
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Density / Specific Gravity

A specific gravity factor of 2.85 tonnes per culbietre (3.14 tons/fh was used for volume
conversion based on 14 samples tested by Appiaeatittlabs laboratory. WGM has accepted this SGras
approximation as it compares favourably with thiveen similar deposits in the Elliot Lake area.

WGM recommends that the SG results, like all assstysuld also be stored in an assay database
table for ease of use and comparison purposes.

Polygonal Model Parameters, Grade Interpolation andClassification of Mineral Resources
General

The Mineral Resources have been estimated usinBdhgonal method whereby a circular area
of influence is assigned to each drill hole comggdgrom which a volume can be calculated usingthe thickness
of the composite interval.

Polygonal Model Set-Up and Parameters

The polygonal model was created using the GEM226Goftware package to create two sets of
polygons around each drill hole composite. Thet et of polygons were generated based on a 14@dins of
influence and the second set on 280 m. The arglheopolygon was determined by the area of influeteemed
appropriate for the individual drill hole based anilling density. The thickness of the polygonsdahus volume,
was determined by the hanging wall and footwalltaonof the composite.

Polygon data including area, volume, density, tgenagrade and hole-id, was stored in a multi-
tabled workspace in GEMS.

Grade Interpolation / Bed Composites

Variograms were generated in an attempt to chaiaetethe spatial continuity of the
mineralization in the defined zones, however, duhé lack of data, meaningful variograms couldb®tomputed.
The geology and geometry is fairly well understosalthe area of influence and orientation of thiygmms were
based on this geological knowledge, as opposedriograms.

Thus, grades were assigned to the polygons based single length-weighted average bed
composite.

Mineral Resource Classification

To categorize the Mineral Resources, WGM classifiach of the smaller polygons (140 m radius)
as Indicated, and the larger sets of polygons [@8fadius) as Inferred. Also, smaller polygons whditi not
intersect adjoining smaller ones, were automatiaidwngraded to the Inferred category due to insieffit drilling
density, thus eliminating the less than ideal “sutlye” effect.

All drill holes were included in the resource esites; none failed to exceed the minimum vertical
thickness of 2.44 m for the mineralized zone whécthe historical minimum used when the Elliot Lakines were
in production. WGM recommends that subsequentesush the Property include preliminary undergroariding
studies to determine the appropriateness of thé ghdtre minimum vertical height restriction in lighf recent
developments in the design of mining equipment.chSstudies should also consider the potential dgsés in
mining recovery due to mineralized rock left irusits supporting pillars.

The Mineral Resource estimates contained hereimatoaccount for mineability, selectivity,
mining loss and dilution.
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Banana Lake Zone
Introduction

WGM has prepared a NI 43-101 compliant Mineral Rese estimate for the Banana Lake deposit. The
Mineral Resource estimate is based on a totalwers€7) diamond drill holes, the results of whick aummarized
in the table below and described in greater détaihis section. The estimate was prepared frobhoek model
using a 0.6 |Ib Og/ton cut-off grade based on a uranium price of LBAHEand a C$:US$ exchange rate of 1:0.9,
and a minimum vertical thickness of 5 m to accomatediarger mining equipment at this depth. Thédlehge for
Appia is to demonstrate that sufficient tonnagestsxto justify mine development. It is clear thaPreliminary
Assessment is needed to estimate the resourceefcammd grade) threshold that the deposit shoulah ¢te be
economically viable, as well as exploring miningdgsrocessing options. One consideration in detengisuch
inputs as a cut-off grade would be whether or hetdre from this deposit could be processed inn&ralemilling
facility that would accommodate neighbouring minogerations in the Elliot Lake camp. This woulgrgficantly
reduce capital and operating costs and allow fowar cut-off.

Banana Lake Zone Mineral Resource Estimate
(using 0.6 Ib YOg/t cut-off)

Tons S.G. Total Ibs YO,
Categor Ib U;O4ft 8
gory ('000) (tons/m) 0o (‘000)
Inferred Resources 30,315 3.14 0.912 27,638

Notes:

1. The Mineral Resources are effective as of J8|y2011.

2. Mineral Resources which are not Mineral Resedesot have demonstrated economic viability. €sgmate
of Mineral Resources may be materially affectedelnyironmental, permitting, legal, title, taxatiosncio-
political, marketing, or other relevant issues.

3. The quantity and grade of reported Inferred Res#s in this estimation are uncertain in naturé gaere has
been insufficient exploration to define these IrddrResources as an Indicated or Measured MinesburRce
and it is uncertain if further exploration will tdsin upgrading them to an Indicated or Measureahédval
Resource category.

4. The Mineral Resources were estimated using taeadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petrote
standards on Mineral Resources and Reserves, bafmiand Guidelines prepared by the CIM Standing
Committee on Reserve Definitions and adopted byCtive Council December 11, 2005.

5. S.G. of 2.85 tonnes/m3 (or 3.14 tons/m3) was.use

6. All tonnage and total Ibs U308 amounts roundeddarest thousand or thousandth. Totals maydtbtup due
to rounding

General Mineral Resource Estimation Procedures

The Mineral Resource estimate procedures considted

» Database compilation and verification;

» Statistical analysis and assay compositing; and

¢ Generation of a geological and block model usingeastatistical approach applying the Inverse
Distance Squared (“if%) method.

Database
General
The data used to generate the Mineral Resourceast originated from Microsoft Excel files
containing key data such as drill hole collar, syrvassay, and lithological information. The dhible database

consisted of 7 collar locations in the UTM co-owtim system (of which 5 are wedges off of newer@niistorical
holes) covering approximately 41 hectares, geodgilescriptions, and 974 assay intervals of varieumgths
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measuring lbs Dg/ton, Au (ppm) and Th (ppm). Lithological crossisens of each of the drill holes were
supplied in PDF format, as well as original digéakay certificates as supplied by Actlabs of Arera®©ntario.

Data Validation

Following receipt of the Appia data, WGM performiae following validation steps specifically
checking for:

< location and elevation discrepancies by compacoii@r coordinates with the available
cross-sections;

¢« minimum and maximum values for each quality valefand confirming/modifying those
outside of expected ranges;

e comparison of assay values in database to thogeated on original digital assay certificates;

¢ inconsistency in lithological unit terminology andhgaps in the lithological code; and,

e gaps, overlaps and out of sequence intervals fitr &gsays and lithology tables.

The database was determined to be in good ordémarrrors were identified that would have a
significant impact on the Mineral Resource estimate

Database Management

The drill hole data were stored in a Gemcom GEMSftware multi-tabled workspace
specifically designed to manage collar and intedath. Other data, such as surface contours, stered in 3-D
wireframe (or TIN) workspaces. The project databalso stored the block model data such that & partaining
to the project are stored within the same projetalohse. A copy of the GEMS project data is store@VGM’s
file servers in Toronto.

Geological Modelling Procedures

In general, the modelling procedures were as falow

« database manipulation and assay compositing;

e 3-D surface and solid (TIN) wireframe creation;

e statistical analyses;

¢ block grade estimation; and,

« classification and reporting of Mineral Resources.

Statistical Analysis and Assay Compositing
General
In order to carry out geostatistical analysis @& #ssay database for the Mineral Resource block
modelling, a set of equal length sample compositelsmetre length was generated throughout theestgngth of
each drill hole intersection. Sample lengths weregular and determined by geological factors. m@ling

continued contiguously through and just beyondntiivgeralized zone to the Archean basement.

Compositing By Cut-Off Grade

The vertical extents of the mineralized zone wateniified in each of the drill holes by
compositing each drill hole based on single cutgfide (or “optimal value” as it is defined in GEMSThe
optimal value compositing method considers sevesaameters including: the minimum composite len(@ththis
case, 2.44 m); the minimum composite separatientfie minimum distance between adjacent compcadiveg the
same drill hole, if any - in this case, this wasteedb m); and the cut-off grade. For each cutgpéide (from 0.4 to
0.7 in 0.1 Ib YOg/ton increments without REE credits), a seriesaafér composites was generated within each drill
hole, and stored in a separate table in the databas
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3D Surface and Grade Shell Generation

The large composite intervals from the previousr@se were used to generate hanging wall and
footwall contacts for the mineralized zone at tlagious cut-off grades. Using a Laplace griddingpathm, a 3D
surface was generated for each contact. Eachtgmgill and footwall were then “stitched” to forn88® solid of
the mineralized zone for each cut-off grade, ammfrwhich volumes could be derived for the block elod
interpolation. The resulting wireframes were visueompared to the locations of the predominarmkstype units
and were deemed consistent with the geologicahaindral structure of the deposit.

Back-Coding of Composites

The 3-D solids that represented the interpreteceralized zones were used to back-code a tag
field in the drill hole workspace. Each compositerval in the 1 m composite table was assignedique “tag”
value based on the solid that the interval midpfattwithin.

Mineral Resource Block Modelling

General Approach

The Mineral Resources were estimated using therdev®istance Squared @Destimation
technique. The “inverse distance” technique beddioga distance-weighted interpolation class ofhwas, similar
to Kriging, where the grade of a block is interpethfrom several composites within a defined distarange of
that block. This estimation procedure uses therse of the distance between a composite and tduk lls the
weighting factor.

Back Coding of Rock Type Model

For each cut-off grade, a separate rock type aadegblock model was generated. Individual cut-
off grade shell wireframes were used to back codeparate rock type model, and subsequent graei@atation
runs were calculated based on these rock codes.

Block Model Grid Parameters

The Mineral Resources have been estimated in desgrgl of regular sized blocks. The block
model grid covers the extents of the mineralizeakezevhich is between 1300 m and 1500 m below serfac

Grade Interpolation

WGM used examinations of geology and overall dirdlle spacing to determine appropriate search
ellipse ranges for the selection of Mineral Resewategories. The overall strike and dip directiothe Banana
Lake deposit is predominantly flat, thus no rotatid the search ellipse was deemed necessary. Bésause of the
wide drill hole spacing, a large search ellipsegeawas used to establish grade continuity. As sihehresults of the
block modelling exercise approximate that of a gohyal estimate. A separate grade block model wasrgted for
each cut-off grade.

Cut-Off Grade and Specific Gravity

Of major consideration in determining the cut-aofade, is the assumption that material from this
deposit would be processed in a central millinglifgchat would accommodate neighbouring miningeogtions in
the Elliot Lake camp. This would significantly rezk capital and operating costs. As a stand-ateineng and
milling operation, a significantly higher uraniumiqe would be required than exists as of the dathe Technical
Report. Alternatively, a much higher average grafdere would need to be mined necessitating tieeofi® higher
cut-off grade.



58

Due to the low composite sample population, ther@sufficient data to support the use of high-
grade capping at Banana Lake. WGM recommends thititefr geostatistical investigation be conductechew
drilling data becomes available, however, ther@ashistorical basis for high-grade capping givea taterally
continuous nature of the mineralization.

Based on the above assumptions, and on a uranium gece of US$65/Ib with a C$:US$
exchange rate of 1:0.9, the overall cut-gfade of 0.6 Ib kDg/ton was selected as a base case, based on a
preliminary review of the parameters that woul@hkdetermine the economic viability of an undergrd mining
operation at Banana Lake. While no current orohisal underground uranium mine has operated athdep
comparable to the Banana Lake deposit, the gradev@lome of mineralized material identified in thidsposit are
significant enough to suggest that bulk extractimaethods may be feasible, although further invesiog is
required to support this hypothesis.

The Mineral Resource estimates contained hereimatoaccount for mineability, selectivity,
mining loss and dilution.

The specific gravity (8§G”) used by WGM to derive mass from the block volsmeas constant at
2.85 tonnes/f(or 3.14 tons/r) as provided by Appia based on tests carried béiclabs. WGM has accepted
this SG as an approximation as it compares favdyaith those from similar deposits in the Ellioake area.

Mineral Resource Classification and Tabulation

WGM classified the Banana Lake Mineral Resourcamede as Inferred Resources. The
following table summarizes the sensitivity of tharBna Lake Mineral Resources to cut-off grade & tdble
below.

A single interpolation pass was used to establiadgyand resource categories within each cut-off
grade shell. A search ellipse (1,000 m in bothxtlaed y directions, and 100 m in elevation) waedu® categorize
Inferred Resources. A minimum of five (5) and aximum of six (6) composite samples were required fo
interpolation, with no more than five (5) origingyi from a single drill hole. Samples used for trade
interpolation were derived from a minimum of twadlldroles to establish geological continuity.

To verify the block interpolation parameters, cosites intervals were visually compared with
block grades on both vertical cross sections aad plews. This comparison confirmed the continoitgrade both
along strike, and down dip.

Banana Lake Mineral Resources Showing Sensitiuit@ut-Off Grade

Cut-off Grade Inferred Resource

(Ibs U;Og/ton) Tons (‘000)* Grade (Ibs §Dg/ton UsOg (‘000 Ibs)*
0.40 51,527 0.668 34,424
0.50 42,149 0.823 34,684
0.60 30,315 0.912 27,638
0.70 24,520 0.922 22,602

* All tonnage and total Ibs 4@ amounts rounded to nearest thousand or thousafdttals may not add up due
to rounding. The reader is directed to the quidgynotes to the table on page 55 for referencpqags.

All resource blocks within a 280 m radius of thél droles were classified as Inferred (This radius
corresponds to the radius of influence applied iBMJs previous resource estimate completed in 2@08, is just
under half the distance between the two most gJagmced holes: holes BL-08-04 and BI-08-03).

Market

Renewed interest in nuclear power, partially dueriergy market growth and partially due to concever the
greenhouse gas emissions of alternative methoderdrating base electrical load, has resulted iesaalation of
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uranium prices and consequently an increase inoeagbn spending. A range of undeveloped or meiited

deposits are present in the US, the largest béiagvtount Taylor deposit in the Ambrosia Lake didtof New

Mexico. Developed by Gulf Minerals Resources @othie late 1970s, the deposit has never seenrdlugtion.

As with other metals, exploration expenditures Vel increased commaodity prices, but will thereaféand to track
price trends quite closely. Since the mid-1980anwm exploration expenditures have been at aaligtandstill
except in the Athabasca Basin where a collectioaestdiblished producers and junior companies harssped due
to the high grade character of the unconformityetygeposits (high reward/risk ratio). Improved exation

techniques and equipment will assist the industrfyniding ever more deeply concealed deposits.|dgps are also
active in countries which were not open to westmpanies during the 1970s uranium boom, counstues as
Kazakhstan, Mongolia, China and Russia. As meatiprustralia will be a major focus because ofkit®wn

potential and the change in uranium politics.

The demand for uranium is also likely to be affddg more widespread use of nuclear-generated wiifesgall-

scale reactors are installed to service remote aamtias and/or industrial sites. Mitsubishi hagtevorking in

co-operation with Japan’s Central Research InstitiitElectric Power Industry (CRIEPI) and fundedtbg Japan
Atomic Energy Research Institute (JAERI) to devedop MWt, 200 kWe Rapid-L reactor which uses lithig (a

liquid neutron poison) as control medium. As cowned, the reactor would be pre-built in a factonglanstalled on
site in a secure underground facility. Accordingthe World Nuclear Organization website, the fweluld be

highly enriched (40-50% uranium nitride) and comt2j700 fuel pins with a 2600°C melting point. Thel would

be packaged into a disposable cartridge or “intedréuel assembly”. The whole plant would be al&&tm high
and 2 m in diameter, and its operation would reguio skill due to the inherent safety design festur The
reactivity control system is passive, using lithierpansion modules (LEM), which as the reactor &natpire rises,
would expand into the core to quench the reactR®etuelling would take place every 10 years.

Toshiba and CRIEPI are developing the “Super-S&imall and Simple” @S nuclear battery) system in
collaboration with STAR work in the USA. The systeises sodium as the coolant and it also has pasafety
features. It is capable of three decades of coatia operation without refuelling. The fuel cotsisf uranium-
zirconium or U-Pu-Zr alloy in 169 1-centimetre dieter pins that are enriched to less than 2093 till relatively
highly enriched compared to conventional fuel fght water reactors. Both 10 MWe and 50 MWe versiof 4S
are designed to automatically maintain an outletartt temperature of 510°C - suitable for poweregation with
high temperature electrolytic hydrogen productid?lant cost is projected at US $2,500/kW, and posests are
estimated at 5-7 cents/kWh for the small unit, st tlvat is very competitive with diesel in manydtions including
Alaska where the design has gained considerablsosup

Uranium Production Outlook

A collateral effect of the low uranium prices sus¢éal during the latter 1980s and through the 199@ke lack of
investment in new refining and fuel fabricationradtructure. The plans announced by major nudeantries to
greatly expand the number of reactors in servide phidce demands on the fuel fabrication industrgttwill be
challenging. Thus, simply producing more uranitsnnot sufficient to meet growing reactor demanddine
production must be matched by a capacity to matwfaenore reactor fuel. A great deal of informatamncerning
new infrastructure development is available onWwarld Information Service on EnergyWISE”) website found
at (http://www.wise-uranium.org/index.html). WISE an information and networking centre for citigeand
environmental organizations concerned about nuckrergy, radioactive waste, radiation, and relat=sdes.
Despite (or perhaps because of) its anti-nuclearcst, WISE can be a good source of new industrgldpment
information.

Cameco Corp., the world’'s largest uranium produbes on several occasions announced plans to gecithe
production capacity of its Blind River uranium redry. Some of its refined uranium trioxide (,)@s sent to the
BNFL Springfields plant in the United Kingdom foortversion to uranium hexafluoride. The companyortgul
during 2010 that Springfields Fuels Ltd. converfe@ million kilograms of uranium into Ufthrough its toll
processing agreement with Cameco. During 20053@8neco involved a proposed 33% increase to theahnnu
licensed production capacity of the Blind River iRefy from 18,000 tonnes to 24,000 tonnes uraniard@. In

a move seen to increase its vertical integratiotihénindustry, Cameco announced in early 2006cigiigition of a
100% interest in Zircatec Precision Industries,lad?ort Hope, Ontario based manufacturer of nudies bundles
for sale to companies that generate electricitynf@ANDU reactors. Zircatec is planning to prodaceew fuel
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product containing slightly enriched uranium diaxi(SEU) and blended dysprosium and natural urarixites
(BDU). The required feed materials (SEU and BDU ders) will be exported to foreign markets. Sinkese
plans were announced earlier, Cameco met its ptisugoals, and in its 2010 annual report, it amuad
achieving 22.8 Mlbs of §Dg production during the year and confirmed its plamproduce 40 Mibs of iDg by
2018.

The US is largely playing catch-up on the constamcof new infrastructure. During 2006, the US mdwo
approve construction and operation of a new gagifigge uranium enrichment plant in Lea County, Ne\xico
to be operated by Louisiana Energy Services. Qipasawere planned to begin in 2008, with full caipain 2013.
However, the first centrifuge was not installedilugeptember 2009 pointing to the long lead time germitting
nuclear infrastructure. The plans for constructibmew infrastructure at the American Centrifudgnpin Piketon,
Ohio planned during 2005-06, also ran into delays t cost over-runs and uncertainties over loawmapiees. The
estimated cost increased from $1.7 billion to $3liBon and the commercial viability of the projestnow in doubt.
The estimated completion date for the facility,reatly in redesign, has been pushed back to 2042lanned
National Fuel Service plant based in Tennesseddam-blending of HEU to slightly enriched uranius r@actor
fuel for the Tennessee Valley Authority was delaf@dseveral years due to challenges by environahembups.
During 2006, the US Nuclear Regulatory Commissieceived an application from Shaw AREVA MOX Services
requesting a license for possession and use ofdjdpt and special nuclear materials for the Migedde Fuel
Fabrication Facility to be built on the SavannaheRiSite in Aiken, South Carolina.

As can be seen, the construction of new nucleassimg infrastructure seldom meets planned timetaliéans were
made in the year 2000 by the Brazilian Governmentcanstruct a new 100,000 SWU/year gas centrifuge
enrichment facility near Rio de Janeiro. The US$a8llion Resende plant would supply about half émeichment
services needed to provide fuel for the countryigga-1 and -2 reactors with enrichment activitiegihning in
2003. During construction, the Brazilian governmegfused to allow IAEA inspectors to examine theility on

the grounds that the Government was protecting rigtpy technology. Agreement was finally reachad
November, 2004. On 5 May, 2006, the Minister ofeBce and Technology inaugurated the first unitthef
Resende plant. The completion of the plant wasexpiected until 2010, at total investment costdJ8f5267
million, however limited enrichment was initiated iinid-2009 and as of the date of the Technical Repmrea,
China and France are negotiating supply agreeni@nénriched uranium with Brazil.

In November, 2005 regulatory approval was beingghbfrom the UK Government by URENCO to enrich ey
uranium at Capenhurst as the company already ddissfdmelo Plant in the Netherlands. The potanticrease in
nuclear power around the world was seen to prositeed for enriched recycled uranium fuel. Theliegjon
covers the potential to enrich to higher levelsitbarrently licensed in anticipation of new reqments in the civil
nuclear power industry as new generations of reacice developed. In the meantime, British Nuckeals plc
ceased uranium hexafluoride (UF6) conversion oferatat its Springfield facility during March, 200énd sold its
uncommitted UF6 conversion capacity to Cameco Corp.

URENCO, an independent, global energy and techgyofirgup with production from plants in Germany, the
Netherlands and the United Kingdom, was interestediuilding an enrichment plant in Australia. UREN
believed that Australia represented a good basedbricing the growing Asia-Pacific market for reed power
fuel. The company was interested in assessing to@osnics of building an enrichment plant using atsn
centrifuge technology in Australia if it were in@it to do so. Contrarily, Areva, the French nationelear power
company, ruled out any interest in investing innimen enrichment in Australia, as it believed thatts facilities
were not commercially sound unless Australia wapared to accept nuclear energy.

Australia’s decades-long opposition to domestiaiiua fuel manufacturing has been underscored lexSlystems
Ltd.’s decision to license its laser-based uranemichment technology to General Electric in the 106 fuel

fabrication. The agreement includes a provisiantifie potential construction of a test loop, pipdnt and a full-
scale, commercial enrichment facility built at GE'sclear energy headquarters in Wilmington, Nor#grdlina or
another suitable location in the United States, dv@w not in Australia where the technology was tgped.

Although at this moment, nuclear energy in Aus&rés being viewed more favourably, the nuclear stiu
competes with a significant coal lobby seeking tintain its position as the country’s energy choice
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Japan announced in late 2000 a project to construntxed uranium and plutonium oxideMOX ™) fabrication
plant adjacent to Japan Nuclear Fuel Ltd.3NFL") Rokkasho-mura reprocessing plant then under tcoctson.
Planned to produce 130 tonnes of MOX fuel per ydae, plant will cost approximately US$1.1 billionThe
agreement to build the Rokkasho plant was finalppraved during April, 2005, nearly 4% years latein
November, 2006 JNFL announced its existing Rokkastqrocessing plant had produced its first uranium-
plutonium mixed oxides, the first step in produciM®dX fuel. The plant expansion plan was slowedcbyl
actions, but construction began in October, 201d the facility entered an initial testing phaseidgr2012. Its
planned use of laser uranium enrichment technologgler development since 2001 (or earlier), willshelved in
preference to an improved centrifuge method. Télayd have resulted in the large accumulation ofoplium at
Rokkasho adding even more to Japan’s already hlugenum stockpiles, mostly in MOX (9 tons in Japamd 38
tons in Europe which it is obliged to take badkternet sources

In 2006, Russia planned to build a uranium enriafitreentre on the premises of the Angarsk Electisl@hemical
Combine in Irkutsk. The centre was expected tinbaperation in 2007, however in late 2008 it dtited strong
opposition from Russian and Japanese NGO's and iincertain to WGM whether construction had started
Kazakhstan has made a decision to join Russidigtine to set up an international nuclear-cyclatoe under the
control of the International Atomic Energy AgendAEA) on Russian territory. Japan is especiallieiasted in
this as a means of reducing its accumulated plutorstockpile.

China is forging ahead with new fuel fabricatiofiréstructure and has announced its plan to usedhgment
from the never operated Siemens Hanau MOX fuel yctidn plant for a planned 500,000 SWU MOX fuelmla
at Lanzhod. The Government of Germany, which licenses théarielogy, has made no decision yet on an
export license for the equipment. The MOX fuetdsbe used in fast breeder reactors. A 65 MW lfmseder
research reactor is currently under constructiordngshan County near Beijing. This sodium-coaksttor is
expected to begin delivering power in 2010 (Chid@09). The plutonium required for the MOX fueltes be
recovered from the spent fuel of China’s eight @nmtional reactors, though a commercial reprocespiagt
does not yet exist. Of international concern is ffact that the excess plutonium to be bred suaetor would
be highly weapons grade. Russia has sold two lfaseder BN-800 (880 Mwe) reactors to China with
construction to begin in 2011 and commissionin@@18-2019. Both China and Japan are participdtinpe
design and testing of a new BN-1200 reactor. THaskbreeder reactor designs are significant eg bave the
capacity to produce nearly as much fuel as thegoore.

REE Fundamentals
The major uses of the rare metals are summarizéteitable below. The recent FOB market pricedexorm) as
of March, 2011 is indicated in US Dollarsofircewww.metalmarkets.com except for Ho, Er, Tm andprbvided
by Baotou Research at www.baotou-rareearth.coiflese prices reflect an increase of approximaté sver a
12-month period.

Major Industrial Applications of Rare Earth Metalsd Compounds

Market

Element Symbol Price

Applications

Lanthanum sLa® | $93.00/kg Catalyst used in the cracking of hydrocas to produce fuel, fuel calls and
batteries, in optical glass to modify the refraetindex, NiMH batteries fo
computers, in phosphors for X-Ray films. Useddduce radiation dosages
in MRI, CAT and sonogram imaging techniques.

3 This annual capacity is sufficient to fuel 5 typide000 MW light water-cooled reactors, each of ethcould power a city

of about 600,000 population.
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Element

Symbol

Market
Price

Applications

Cerium

58C e'].40

$96.00/kg

Catalytic converters, additive for diesel fuelsolishing compound for hig

performance glasses (television screens, mirrgts;al glass, disk drives and
silicon microprocessors). Decolouring agent foasgl and photographic

filters. In high-strength, low alloy steels, usad itmprove performance in
chrome plating baths. Used with Th in phosphorgrikzolour lamps and
compact fluorescent lighting. Used with ZirconiumiZr() in high-
performance insulating ceramics (Space Shuttle).

Praseodymiun

59P T141

$138.50/kg

Colouring pigment in ceramic tile/glass. High-gtyamirrors. Used with Nd
in photographic filters to reduce certain wavelésgbf light. Pollution-
control catalysts. Used to make electric motagistér.

Neodymium

60N d144

$150.00/kg

Nd-Fe-B magnets for mobile phones, portable CDglmpand computers. Nd

capacitors in mobile phones. Nd-lasers for surgergl in manufacturing
sector. Strong magnets for MRI units. Anti-glanetcanobile glass and
mirrors, CRT glass. Sky-blue colouring pigmentsénamics and glass.

Promethium

61P rn’l45

n.a.

Very scarce — no stable isotopes — longéistifea(Pr'*9) is 17.1 years.

Samarium

62Sm>°

$91.00/kg

Filter glasses for Nd-lasers. Used to stabilize thigh-temperature
performance of REE magnets (Sm-Cobalt magnets hee stronges

available). Used with titanates as dielectric coommts in capacitors operatirlg

at microwave frequencies. Glass and tile pigméortat

Europium

63E ul52

$660.00/kg

A photon emitter used as the red phosphor in tgil@viand computer screen

Used in fluorescent lights to reduce electrical stonption. Used as a

luminescent tag in living tissue medical research.

Gadolinium

sG>

$100.50/kg

Magnetic properties make it useful in magneto-optiwording technology -
e.g. bubble-memory in super-computers. Enhancagiitg in MRI devices
Used in the detection of radiation leaks in nucfearer-plants.

Terbium

65-|—b159

$780.00/kg

Improves energy efficiency in fluorescent lampssetd in magnetic filmg
used for recording data in magneto-optical appbeast

Dysprosium

66Dy163

$467/kg

Allows electronic devices to be smaller and fastéxdded to ceramics to
produce high-capacitance miniaturized capacitofglded to NdFeB high-
strength permanent magnets to improve coercivity.

Holmium

67H 0165

uncertain

Very scarce and has few practical uses

Erbium

eeEr'®’

uncertain

Used in amplifiers for optic data traission. Medical and dental laser
Only stable pink pigmentation for glass (sunglassesdecorative glass).

Thulium

GQTmlfSQ

uncertain

Rarest of the REEs — similar chemigiryttrium — can be used in sensiti
X-Ray phosphors to reduce the required radiatigrosures.

Ytterbium

70Ybl73

uncertain

Similar chemistry to Y — when under higfness, increases its electrigal

resistance by 10x — and therefore used in stresgegato monitor seismic
ground movements.

Lutetium

71LU175

n.a.

One of the least abundant REEs — Ce-dopetiunt oxyorthosilicate (LSO
is used in detectors in positron emission tomogydPIET) applications.

2

2

e
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Market Lo
Element Symbol Price Applications
Yttrium 30Y®° $105.50/kg | Used in oxygen sensors for engines to improve timebaistion of fuels. Y-Fg

garnets used as resonators in frequency metersnatiadield measuring
devices, tunable transistors and Gunn oscillataser crystals. Stabilizer an
mould-former for light-weight engine turbine. Stier in rocket nose cones.
In ceramics used for melting radioactive metalssed) as nozzles for jg
casting molten alloys. Used as a primer for ottmatallic coatings (e.g
titanium coatings).

o

—

The REEs are also used in the defence industryainynapplications including precision-guided mumsqsmart
bombs), rangefinder lasers and target designadetection devices for underwater mines, commuranati aircraft
control mechanisms, high-temperature ceramicstiarjgines, information displays, radar systemstings, optical
equipment, sonar applications and in electronictaumeasure technologies.

During the early part of the last decade, minecahemists and metals market forecasters prediactath in REE

demand that in reality has fallen short of expéatat WGM believes this is largely due to the ictpaf the global
financial crisis that initially affected the markeduring late 2008 (and continues today). As alresietal demand
declined in the west while Chinese growth continneale or less unaffected due to its population graving

economy. India also contributed to increased deindrhe market has certainly grown, but clearly a®expected
a few short years ago.

On the supply side, the growth in demand has neh llanced by increased supply. WGM believesttiistis
mostly due to the time required to make discoverssablish a resource base, design a new miniagatpn and
secure the necessary operating permits to allowrine to be constructed. More recently, economnicertainty
has somewhat impeded the ability of companiesise r@apital for projects.

As a result of the foregoing impacts, REE demarsidhawly out-stripped supply and created an imbzdarChina,
with approximately 95% of global REE productionaasesult of its aggressive actions against congustiis now
faced with the possibility that it may not be atdesatisfy its own fabrication demands. Even lssss ability to

meet the foreign demand that it created by driviagpetitors out of production. During 2010, Chreacted by
reducing rare metals exports to Japan, a major faeturer of products containing REEs, and REE prieacted
accordingly. China will remain confronted with tpeoblem of balancing competing interests for tbee$eeable
future.

The need for increased REE production has not gargoticed by the international mining communiflypically,

the junior mining sector was quick to respond tefasts made a decade ago regarding the curreaticit. Old
projects and more recent discoveries have beewnewyviand fresh venture financing has been foundupport
renewed exploration projects. Unfortunately, tivearicial crisis has negatively impacted severalom&EE
projects that sought financing during the crisiven now, investment has been slow in coming toeffect that
both the Mount Weld and Nolan’s Bore REE mine depeients are behind the schedule originally envesiony
the owners. This situation appears to have clediethg mid-2010 for both projects. Lynas Corpumatis

currently mining and processing Mount Weld ore teate a REE-rich concentrate that is being stoeHpiintil the
company’s processing facility in Malaysia is consted. Arafura Resources has carried out bulk Bagpest
concentrate production and pre-leach testing atldisin’s Bore project. Both projects have caugjiet interest of
foreign REE purchasers, mainly in Japan, and Lyress substantial off-take agreements already ineplac the
commencement of REE production in Malaysia.

China’s minerals infrastructure that supports tmedpction of rare earth metals is thought to be wueld's

strongest. Previously, China’s position was in tibye three, with the other two comprising the Uditgtates and
Japan. However, in the last decade, China’s outasitsoared, with the major effect of lowering @si@nd driving
its competitors out of the market. In 2007, Chivess responsible for 96.8% of global rare earth hgtaduction,
most of which is from mines located in Inner Morigol The Inner Mongolian Baotou Steel Union Cod.lis the
largest rare-earth metal manufacturer in ChinaenBhough about 42% of global REE resources arethwes are



64

situated outside of China, its cheap labour ande@uwment subsidies ensured that Chinese companies wedl

supported in respect to investing in new mines@odessing plants during the 1980s. This infrastme included
rare earth metals research and development labi@stbat worked to undercut China’s rivals. |e #arly part of
the 1990s, China could produce neodymium very iaggely for the market, resulting in a price dfapn $11.70
per kilogram in 1992 to $7.40 in 1996. In a relaly short time, the REE market volume increasednfd0,000
tonnes per annum (tpa) to 125,000 tpa. For n&drlyears, China has pursued a policy to make it @REC of
rare earth metals

Since 2008, China has restricted its REE exporensure that its domestic needs can be satisftaslas predicted
that sometime in 2011 or 2012, Chinese domesticadenis expected to surpass Chinese domestic produet
view that WGM found surprising given the countryast resources. However, WGM has observed thatyman
Chinese companies are engaged in a global searahirieral deposits. Both state-sponsored Chinete@ises as
well as nominally private companies are seekingifpr REE supplies. China Non-Ferrous Metals Miniag, Ltd.
(CNMC) has offered to take a controlling interestAiustralia’s Lynas Corporation Ltd., owner of tkleunt Weld
deposit which potentially has the capacity to aotdar as much as 25% of world production. Theid&u Eastern
China Non-Ferrous Metals Investment Holding Co..L#&dunit of East China Exploration & Developmentr&au,
agreed to acquire a 25% stake in Australia’s AfResources Ltd., a gold and mineral mining compemgh has

a rare earth and phosphate deposit at Nolan’s BAr€hinese private investment company, Creat Graapuired
about 20% of emerging Australian mining and chehtompany Galaxy Resources Ltd., and China hasettvied

to a acquire a controlling interest in the US campMolycorp Inc. which owns the now dormant buenserging
Mountain Pass Mine, arguably the world’s richesbdyenium mine outside China. The takeovers havedain
both occasions, and since July, 2010 Molycorp sha@/e been publicly traded. China National Naoies
Metals, San Huan and Sextant MQI Equity Holdingsceeded in acquiring Magnequench in 1995, a depaitof
General Motors created for the commercialization aofneodymium magnet. In 1997 a merger between
Magnequench and the Canadian company AMR foundedvacompany named Neo Material Technologies, a REE
producer that is also active in rare metal recgchvith operations in China and production centar€hina and
Thailand.

According to the Peterson Institute for InternagibBconomics (www.piie.com), China’s rare metalusily could
be characterized by what industry observers ca#idfdierly competition” and “price chaos”. Locatrfis have
engaged in a price war leveraged on expanded ptiodudn 2008, China’s annual smelting capacityR&EE metal
production exceeded 200,000 (short) tons, whichetime was more than double global demand. Igu&t 2009,
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technologgued a draft policy recommending an annual e>xquoota of
35,000 tons, improvement in mining and environmigotactices and a potential ban on exporting fil&ER seen to
be in short supply and essential to China. Thd geams to have been to consolidate the domesticsiry and
stabilize prices while trying to attract investmantiownstream applications and fabrication.

This “disorderly” competition from Chinese produgevas the principle reason for the closing of theuktain Pass
Mine in California at which time overproduction Ikidl the market and drove out higher cost producéssvery
different market exists at this time, especiallgcgi 2007, with China reducing its REE exports aotemqtially
restricting the export of some metals entirely.in@hhas apparently pursued this policy for two oeas firstly to
assure itself of a supply of metals vital to it$ethse industries and manufacturing sectors, anohsiyto pressure
western manufacturers to establish productionifessilin China. The 22 September 2010 embargok# Bxports
to Japan in retaliation for Japan seizing a Chitieseler has caused ripple effects through the shguwsince Japan
was totally reliant on Chinese sources for metalsduin the production of REE magnets. Japan’stipnsas a
major supplier of magnets to the West has provakedJS Government to consider a bill to subsidimerevival of
its domestic REE industry. Molycorp has been pseitgy stockpiled ore at the Mountain Pass mineasite has
produced about 3,000 tons of rare earth oxide mtsdper year since 2008. As such, the compankdsonly
current rare earth miner in North America or Europolycorp is slowly moving its Mountain Pass Mibhack into
full production. Following the execution of thengpany’s “mine-to-magnets” strategy and completidnit®
modernization and expansion efforts at its Mounfass processing facility, it expects to be on¢hefworld’s
most integrated producers of rare earth productdiding oxides, metals, alloys and magnets. Mufyaurrently
expects to see output increase to 20,000 tonsrefearth products per year by the end of 2012. tdta capital
outlay for Molycorp is expected to be in exces&)8f $500 M.
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The United States imports about 87% of its lantth@mnetals from China. While potentially having gecond
largest rare-earth reserves, the US ceased produattivities at its largest REE mine, Mountain®R astensibly for
reasons relating to resource conservation, but raoceirately due to higher costs than competing ymed in
China. As a result, the US imports substantialntjtias of rare earth products (mostly metals aridias) from
China. Some of this is reportedly being stockpiled

Several other REE mines could be developed in tBe hdwever, none are closer to full mine productioan
Mountain Pass. The Bokan Mine is Alaska could fmught back into production, however it is likehat delays
relating to resource definition and permitting webwdtall production in the short term. No other @s@pis as
advanced.

In respect to non-US production, Australia’s Arafand Lynas Corp. will be able to produce some@®DtBnnes or
more of rare earth metals by the middle of thisadec(2015-2016). Various forecasters have pratiittat this
production will not be sufficient to meet surgingnld demand. Certainly Lynas has moved to lock matits

production into off-take agreements, and so mayg Hidile spare capacity to satisfy additional regmients.

Several potential producers are advancing proj@eterds mining. One is Avalon Rare Metals IncCanadian
company with its 100%-owned Nechalacho ProjecthairLake in the Northwest Territories. This depdsiown
for more than 20 years, is emerging as a majorveidped REE resource. The company has advanceutdfect
with the view that it is enriched in heavy raretbalements (MREES”), however in order of declining abundance
the major metals are Ce, Nd, La, Y, Pr and Sariuvtt is the only HREE metal that is present in arications
above 0.1%. Nevertheless, the deposit is sizedld®7 Mt averaging 1.24% LREE, and 0.22% HREE;.. The
company is well funded, has no debt and its wodgmms are essentially unaffected by market vdiatilts plan,
assessed through a recent scoping study by SNdihave to construct a separation plant with areimted
production capacity of 25,000 tonnes per annum.is Tglant capacity is intended to handle the prégent
contemplated production of 10,000 t/a from NecHatacany future Avalon production increases, andcg@se
material from other potential future producers,eesgly those producing chemical precipitates iiictthe heavy
rare earths.

An effort similar to that of Molycorp sees Rare taExtraction Co. moving the past-producing Steembskraal
Mine back towards production in South Africa witlaaget date a few years in the future. Australieertainly on
the cusp of ramping up production even while theumoWeld Mine is stockpiling ore on site and Lynas
completing the construction of its 30,000 t REEfyeancentrator, having completed the task of sagumarkets
for its REE output. At the same time Arafura Reses is working towards 10,000 t REE/year producfiom
Nolan’s Bore deposit. With this backdrop, it iffidult to see any production from new Canadian esiim the near
future.

Japan, a major fabricator of REE-bearing goodspitspmore than 10,000 tons of rare earth metalygear, while
about a fifth of the country’s total annual constimmp is believed to enter the country through avthg black

import network, without which Japan would alreadyib a severe supply crisis. China has been logets export
quotas for rare earth metals substantially sin€&@82®ith Japan allotted only 38,000 tonnes in 2009.impu2011,
only 30,246 tonnes are allowed for export. Toyatd Honda alone will consume about that quantity experts in
Australia have predicted a wider global supply ctumwithin three years as demand surges beyondrexisfinery
and extraction capacity. In view of the importamdéeare earth metals to its economy, the JapaGesernment
has initiated a search for alternative supply sesiion Vietnam, Kazakhstan and elsewhere. Howelagan is
being forced to compete against very aggressiveesitny Chinese companies which are attempting totiztg

deals to finance prospective miners that are egpeirig financing difficulties in Australia (Lynasggnd in the US
(Molycorp). The Japanese government supportssaalggressive policy and a more supportive roleifhatss take-
over oriented. Japan’s official development aasist (ODA) strategy calls for increased support rfoning

development in foreign countries, infrastructureszedlepment in the surrounding areas, active coojoeraior

technology transfer and protection of the environine

The nature of the potential crisis over shortagemie earth metals is more acutely voiced in Jagdoh is a major
producer of the REE magnets used in everything fnogh-performance electric motors to jewelry. I aticle
dated 21 September 2009 in the Japan Investoteehtithe Coming Rare Earth Metals Crunch”, the arsthave
pointed out that the world demand for rare earthaisaused in cell phones, hybrid cars, wind turbiaed many
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electronic applications is currently over 110,000r$ tons per year, and projected by the US Gectbvd@urvey to
grow some 71% to 188,000 tons by 2012. While fhiscast appears to have been overstated, theiaitugith
key rare earth metals is particularly acute: (@ddymium, the key component of an alloy used toerthk high-
power, lightweight magnets for electric motors gbtid cars as well as in generators for wind tuesin(2) terbium
and dysprosium are added in smaller amounts talibg to preserve neodymium’s magnetic propertiefigh
temperatures; (3) terbium, the key ingredient iw-l@attage light bulbs that use 40% less electripgy unit of
output; (4) cerium and lanthanum, used in catalgtioverters for diesel engines; and, (5) europiused in lasers.
The consumption of rare earth metals is expectegtdw as current usages grow and new uses are .foeadh
Toyota electric Prius motor requires 1 kilogran2(b) of neodymium, and each battery uses 10 tkgl&2-33 Ib)
of lanthanum. That number will nearly double undleyota’s current plans to boost the car’s fuel econ.

Japanese companies that are actively seeking Rigé&cts worldwide include the following:

Sumitomo Corp. plans to produce rare-earth metalsaizakhstan through a joint venture established

with state-owned nuclear power company Kazatompbynthe end of this year.
Using Kazatomprom'’s facilities, rare earths will tmoved from uranium ore left
over after uranium has been extracted. While theeament between the two
corporations was expected long ago and annual butas expected to reach 3,000
metric tons in 2010, (slightly less than 10% ofaldp current total imports), an
agreement was not signed until September, 201 1stakt-up, the output is expected
to be about half that previously expected.

Toyota Tsusho Corp. plans to spend a total of #idiiyen on natural resources development, mdimly
rare earths, over the next five years. It interdstart extracting the metals from tin
ore in Indonesia, and it is also considering devielp mines in such countries as
Mongolia. By expanding its rare-earth business, fihra hopes to secure stable
supplies for Japanese carmakers like Toyota Motwp C

Marubeni Corp. will start recycling rare earthsoilgh a subsidiary. It hopes to develop efficient
recycling technologies in preparation for four orefyears down the road, when
more hybrid cars will be scrapped

Mitsubishi Corp. has entered a partnership with Nederial Technologies of Canada to recover by-
products such as dysprosium and terbium from thiad?i tin mine in Brazil. The
two companies may form a joint venture and will @iog rights to purchase at least
20% of the mine’s output.

Mitsui & Co. plans to import a large volume of ttere metal from Canada. The move comes on
the heels of the firm’s investments in nickel amdbalt - other rare metals essential
for manufacturing lithium-ion batteries. Mitsui halstained exclusive sales rights to
lithium produced at a mine that Canada Lithium Coogns in the Canadian
province of Quebec. After shipping samples to pidkgustomers, Mitsui plans to
start importing around 2,000 metric tons of lithienyear from the mine in 2013 for
sale to Japanese and South Korean manufacturkifsiadn-ion batteries.

Interpretation and Conclusions

Geology

The Elliot Lake uranium-REE deposits are paleopkedthin which the economic minerals are typicalposited
in conglomerates at the base of a sedimentary cyidte host rocks are contained within the Quirk&d Syncline,
a major east-west trending fold structure locatedtmof the town of Elliot Lake. The deposits ateatabound,
commonly occurring in stacked sheet-like bodies qofartz-pebble conglomerate. Mineralization is hyost
disseminated along bedding planes and the highadeg are associated with higher concentratiorsydtfe and
well packed quartz pebbles. The weight of evidesuwggests a sedimentary origin for the minerakizati The
district wide presence of brannerite (U®@§), the main economic mineral, and U-bearing phosgghauch as
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monazite ([Ce,La,Nd,U,Th]PQ) xenotime (Y-UPQ@ and other rare earth minerals relates quite welithe
weathering of a U-Th-REE enriched (granitic) sour@yrite and to a much lesser extent, pyrrhotite,the main
minerals associated with uranium, occurring asgnesvths on detrital pyrite grains and on uraniwgjtains altering
to coffinite.

It is very unlikely that any new surface exploratjorogram will add measurably to the geologicalarsthnding of
the Property notwithstanding the possibility thetliional structure might be discovered that, imfunight affect
the uranium-bearing horizons at depth.

Exploration and Mineral Resources

No recent exploration had been completed in theg&ttyg prior to 2006. The last major historical lkxption
programs consisted of deep drilling by Kerr McGeanf sites along the axis of the Quirke Lake SyrecliThe
average hole length was approximately 1,500 mé&@90 feet). The drilling succeeded in testing titanium-
bearing Matinenda Formation at points scatteredsacthe basin at a kilometre-scale spacing (or )ndrew-grade
intersections, averaging generally less than 1s5H®g per ton, were encountered — these are in keepitigtie
general tenor of the deeper mineralization that mased during the later stages of Elliot Lake’s imgnhistory.
Most intersections contained a few narrow highadgrg sections, commonly exceeding 3-4 1B©4 per ton.

Recently, Appia has completed an airborne magreticMegaTEM electromagnetic survey which has cedlithe
Quirke Lake Syncline (basin) and shown the presehe@arious structures and dikes within the badi surveying
was completed on the Property in Buckles Townski®hincy Energy Corp. (now Energy Metals Corp.); this

failed to provide useful targets for drilling despihe recommendations of the geophysicist whaopné¢ed the data.

WGM was recently very successful in its first atpgenduring 2007 at relocating Kerr McGee drill toleThese
holes were drilled vertically from the GowgandafRation through the base of the Matinenda Formatitime BW-
sized casings examined by WGM were rusty but ottserwell preserved. WGM concluded from this the t
precise location of all of the Kerr McGee holesiddde established and the locations accuratelysared using a
GPS with a multiple-count, position averaging calitsito reduce the estimated position error. Agppias since
carried out this surveying and relocated all of tkey drill sites where economically interesting nitem
mineralization was encountered.

In 2007, WGM recommended that the Kerr McGee dhdlles be used as a means of redrilling the Banahka L
Zone in the deep basin through wedging multipletdiom the main vertical hole. Wedging off-holeaalistance
of 300 m above the Matinenda Formation could predaisecond intersection 30-35 metres away froninikiel
pierce point. By using multiple wedged holes iis tivay, the variability of mineralization can bested and the
resource potential assessed at a significantlyl@est than redrilling from surface. Appia subsauily used this
approach, successfully wedging off of two histdrizales as well as two new holes of its own drilteding 2008.
Appia’s 2007-08 winter drilling program in the Bar@aLake Zone confirmed the historical results daaddllow-up
during the latter half of 2008 extended the arghiwiwhich NI 43-101 compliant Mineral Resourcegsex

In the Teasdale Zone, Appia’s drilling during theénter 2007-08 exploration program confirmed higstati
intersections which were concentrated in an arest ofeTeasdale Lake, with holes ranging from l&éss1t300 m to
nearly 600 m in length. Former Rio Algom Chief @eist Doug Sprague’s historical resource estintatsed on
this drilling was audited by WGM and confirmed asaid expression of the amount of uranium in treagdale
Zone. Appia’s drilling enlarged the area previgughown to contain uranium resources and provitedbasis for
a NI 43-101 compliant Mineral Resources estimatésing a cut-off grade of 0.60 lbs;Og/ton, WGM'’s prior
estimate showed that the Teasdale deposit (beiatyprt of the Teasdale Zone which contains ecocealiyi
interesting uranium-rare earth metal mineralizatiod herein referred to as thEgasdale Deposi) contained an
Indicated Mineral Resource of 17.4 million tons .@LBAt) with an average grade of 1.10 IbgOglton (0.55 kg
U;0g/t) and an Inferred Mineral Resource of 48 millions (43.5 Mt) at the same grade. The Banana lrdkered
Resources were estimated by Kurt Breede, who i3 #hie co-author of the Technical Report. The tiaeo
estimates are summarized in the table below.
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NI 43-101 Compliant Uranium Mineral Resources amAtppia Property
(using 0.6 Ib YOg/t cut-off)

PP S.G. Average Grade Contained Uranium
Zone Classification Tons
(tons/n?) (Ib U3Og/ton) (Ib U30s)
Banana Lake Inferred Resources 30,315,000 3.14 20.91 27,638,000
Teasdale Lake Indicated Resources 17,400,000 3.14 10 1 19,000,000 *
Inferred Resources 48,000,000 3.14 1.10 52,700:000
* All tonnage and total Ibs 0g amounts rounded to nearest thousand or thousafdtials may not add up due to
rounding
Notes:

1. The Mineral Resources are effective as of J8|y2011.

2. Mineral Resources which are not Mineral Resedeesot have demonstrated economic viability. &kémate of Mineral
Resources may be materially affected by environalepermitting, legal, title, taxation, socio-padl, marketing, or
other relevant issues.

3. The quantity and grade of reported Inferred Rezs in this estimation are uncertain in naturd #rere has been
insufficient exploration to define these InferregsRurces as an Indicated or Measured Mineral Resoamnd it is
uncertain if further exploration will result in ugagling them to an Indicated or Measured MineraloRese category.

4. The Mineral Resources were estimated using tieadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petrote standards on
Mineral Resources and Reserves, Definitions andd&inies prepared by the CIM Standing Committee @seRve
Definitions and adopted by the CIM Council Decemb®r2005.

5. S.G. of 2.85 tonnes/m3 (or 3.14 tons/m3) wasd.use

6. Indicated amounts may not precisely sum dueuading.

The resources defined in the Banana Lake Zone Aaweverage grade that is approximately 20% hidhean the
historical estimate of 0.76 Ibs;0g per ton. The tonnage represented in the totaluress in the Teasdale Zone
represent a 3.4 fold increase over the historieaburces with only a small reduction in averagalgral.l Ibs
U;Og/ton from 1.21 Ibs/ton — a 9% reduction. Cleathgse results are seen as positive and suppoftagditional
exploration. These resources potentially repreaetéble long-term supply source for an enerdigpyuti

WGM'’s 2008 estimate of the uranium resource inTkeasdale Zone has been up-dated with a combineiuora
rare metal resource estimate. However, this l&&inate is based solely on Appia’s recent exgitmmadrilling as
the historical holes lack REE data. As a reshi, U-REE estimate summarized in the table belowedédk a
resource area (volume) that is considerably smtibar that used for the 2008 uranium-only resoestenate. The
reduction in contained uranium in the uranium-RE&ources does not imply that the additional mineatbn does
not exist, but rather that it cannot be includedhi@ volume under consideration due to the lackafching REE
assays. Of particular importance from this latesttmate is the fact that the REE and U-bearinge zesnmuch
thicker (7.22 m) than the zone that can be minedahium alone is considered (approximately 2.44 m)

Summary of Teasdale Zone Rare Earth Metal and UnaResource Estimate

A Grad Average
Resource Tonnes Tons verage wrade Thickness Contained TREE Contained Uranium
Category (‘000) (‘000) TREE U3Op (m) (‘000 Ibs) (‘000 Ibs U;0g)
(%) (Ib/ton)
Indicated 3,366 3,710 0.146 0.506 9.76 10,852 a.,87
Inferred 21,217 23,388 0.181 0.615 7.22 85,895 1,3

Notes:

1. The Mineral Resources are effective as of Ja8|y2011.

2. Mineral Resources which are not Mineral Resedeenot have demonstrated economic viability. &simate of Mineral
Resources may be materially affected by environalepiermitting, legal, title, taxation, socio-patdl, marketing, or
other relevant issues.

3. The quantity and grade of reported Inferred BRess in this estimation are uncertain in naturd #rere has been
insufficient exploration to define these Inferre@sRurces as an Indicated or Measured Mineral Resoamd it is
uncertain if further exploration will result in ugagling them to an Indicated or Measured MineraloRese category.

4.  The Mineral Resources were estimated using tieadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petrole standards on
Mineral Resources and Reserves, Definitions andd&hines prepared by the CIM Standing Committee @seRve
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Definitions and adopted by the CIM Council Decembgr2005.
5.  S.G. of 2.85 tonnes/m3 (or 3.14 tons/m3) was use
6. Indicated amounts may not precisely sum duedading.

The average grades for the individual REEs compgithhe TREE are show in the table below.

Individual REE Resource Grade Composition Summary

Light REE (lbs/ton) Heavy REE (Ibs/ton)

Categor

La Ce Pr Nd Sm Eu Gd Tb Dy Ho Er ™Tm Yb Lu Hf Y
Ind.

0.75 1.33 0.13 0.43 0.07 0.00p 0.04 0.01 0.03 0.004 0.010 0.002 0.01 0.002 0.01 0.11
Inf.

0.93 1.64 0.16 0.53 0.09 0.004 0.06 0.01 0.03 0.016 0.012 0.002 0.01 0.002 0.01 0.13
Notes:

1. The Mineral Resources are effective as of Ja@jy2011.

2. Mineral Resources which are not Mineral Resede@sot have demonstrated economic viability. €kgmate of
Mineral Resources may be materially affected byirenmental, permitting, legal, title, taxation, smeolitical,
marketing, or other relevant issues.

3. The quantity and grade of reported Inferred Rees in this estimation are uncertain in nature #uere has been
insufficient exploration to define these InferreésRurces as an Indicated or Measured Mineral Resaurd it is
uncertain if further exploration will result in ugggling them to an Indicated or Measured MineraloRese category.

4. The Mineral Resources were estimated using Hreadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petrote standards
on Mineral Resources and Reserves, Definitions@uidelines prepared by the CIM Standing Committe@&eserve
Definitions and adopted by the CIM Council Decemb®r2005.

5. S.G. of 2.85 tonnes/m3 (or 3.14 tons/m3) was.use

6. Indicated amounts may not precisely sum dueuading.

Appia’s assay data indicates that the value olRE&s present will largely vest in cerium, lanthanmsodymium
and yttrium which account for 86.3% of the totalE&Epresent in the sample population at large. dlsegcific
metals account for 88.4% of the REEs present initdecated Resources and 90.1% of the REEs présehe
Inferred Resources.

It is important to note that the foregoing resoueséimate does not invalidate the Prior ResourdienBte. When
taken together in proper context, the two estimshesl considerable light on the economic potenfithe Teasdale
Zone that has not been considered until now. Tosecaelationship between REE and uranium minextéidin has
been known for some time even if not well documeénitethe available literature. The commercial \ligbof REE
mineralization was previously demonstrated by tlstohical recovery of yttrium as a by-product ofanium
production at the Elliot Lake mines. These operetiproved that separate facilities were not reguio leach the
REEs, and that once in solution, yttrium could beily recovered. However, the mine operators igddhe other
REEs because the market was adequately servedbbgitteelsewhere.

WGM believes that the close association betweemtaeium and rare earth metals supports suppositegarding
the areas of the Teasdale Zone defined by histodiGing but untested by Appia. If the U-REE oesce is
extrapolated in a linear sense to cover the eptokthe Teasdale Zone as previously estimated BM\then the
total REE resources would be expected to increalsstantially given that the total contained uranioatlined to
date is approximately 19 Mlbs (Indicated) and 5db$(Inferred). If the REE:U ratio is sustainedotighout the
deposit, then the Teasdale Zone as outlined byridat and current drilling should contain betwet0 to 450
Mlbs of total REES at an average grade of approximately 3 to 4 Ihsfwost of which will be La ($93/kg), Ce
($96/kg) and Nd ($150/kg) with significant amoupfsY ($105.50/kg), Gd ($100.50/kg) and Pr ($138kgp/ In
WGM'’s opinion, this represents the conceptual epgtlon target for the Teasdale Zone that is nomdpeixplored

Equivalent to the total contained uranium oxide¢hie 2008 WGM uranium-only resources estimate ferehtire Teasdale
Zone divided by the uranium oxide contained in¢heent resource estimate based solely on the trégmia drilling and
then multiplied by the current TREE content.
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by Appia. The potential quantity and grade is @mtgal in nature, there has been insufficient egpion to define
a mineral resource and it is uncertain if furthgpleration will result in the target being delinedtas a mineral
resource. As shown in the table on pages 61-@&3etlturrent prices enable the REEs to add conbidevalue

(>$100/ton) to Teasdale mineralization over andvehthe value of the uranium. As the Teasdale Defosiot

currently well constrained by drill hole data, aisdopen laterally in all directions, the expecteldEE content
should be greater yet, although additional drillasgrecommended in the Technical Report will belired to prove
or disprove this concept.

The aforementioned uranium-REE resources offerfferdint and arguably more representative approacthé

resources of the Teasdale Deposit, however REEisiaeailable for only a small part of this zorfor reasons of
full disclosure and comparison as well as clatityg 2008 resource estimate text is presented i\pipendices to
the Technical Report.

Uranium Commodity Outlook

The increase in uranium prices seen during 200628@Y was dramatic, yet in constant dollar terrhs, firice

remained below its previous highs set during th&7iP979 period. In looking towards the futurecén be
demonstrated that uranium supply will be responsiveommaodity price signals, both when prices aeakening
and when they are rising. Uranium prices responehich the same manner to the supply/demand cgslesher
metals as well as the oil and gas (energy) marktorically, there has been a strong tendencyfanium prices
to overshoot the point of equilibrium, both in ngiand in falling markets. WGM believes that tbe/dpoint in

uranium prices seen during early to mid-2009 iscipof prices that have fallen unjustifiably lowelto the current
economic crisis. Relatively strong markets devetbpistorically in the 1960s and 1970s due to esiatmilitary

stockpiling programs by governments, and by reactmstruction by energy utilities. Weak marketsenhbeen
distorted by governments artificially supportingpogucers through price support programs and, inctise of the
United States, by closing its domestic marketsoreifin suppliers. At this time, and for the forae future,
WGM anticipates a more open, market-oriented ghe@ has been the case in the past.

For a variety of reasons, the uranium industry besn highly politicized. The accumulation of huganium
inventories during the 1960s, 70s and 80s causamdum prices to fall through the cost floor, andsth resources
were consumed at far below the cost of replacemdwditional sources of uranium fuel from highlyremed
uranium (weapons grade or HEU), principally fromsRa, has also put downward pressure on pricese Th
exhaustion of the uranium stockpile, the declirtielgdency for the Russians to convert HEU to fuatigruranium,
and sharply increased or planned increases tooreaohstruction has awakened a sleeping mining rameral
investment community to the looming shortage ircr@afuel. The sharp upward movement in uraniuiogsrseen

in 2006-07 resulted in some new sources of urarbeing advanced towards production and planned aseein
output at mines such as Olympic Dam.

Current reactor demands are being met, more orlygssxisting sources of supply and through lommteontracts.
The key question is whether future demands from reagtors can be satisfied through the developmiekihown
deposits in countries such as Australia and thraou@h discoveries, some of which are in Canada? riksgurces
in countries such as Mongolia have been tied up eessult of political wrangling, and governmentsngeunduly
influenced by competing foreign interests. In thierent economic climate, there is a great amotinhoertainty as
western utility companies and governments postpmngear programs for budgetary reasons. The Fikash
disaster had cast a cloud over the entire nuaersiry, however China and India are forging aheitial their own
reactor construction plans. In Canada, the pravioicOntario has announced the awarding of corgrwt the
construction of two new CANDU reactors at the Daglon nuclear power station. Based on the outcofne
Sweden’s stated 1979 goal of becoming nucleardye2010, and its domestic reliance on even moretoeanow
than it had then, WGM is highly doubtful that Germpaand Japan will actually follow through with satents
indicating a desire to become nuclear-free. Neittmuntry has alternative means of replacing theeblaad
generating capacity represented by its nucleartplasermany would become even more dependent clearu
reactors located in France. Japanese industrydametome dependent on electricity generated byaiker gas
fired generators, hardly a “green” alterative. &e&gpdly, Japan has under-utilized geothermal céphbai this is not
seen as a substantial replacement to the basedpaatity of the country’s nuclear electric industry
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The June quarterly on the uranium energy sectanétal market researchers Resource Capital ResPéyclhtd.

(“RCR") stated “The sector has faced near term uraniuice puncertainty since the crisis in Japan, as asl|
broader equity market concerns over slow US ecooativity and ongoing sovereign debt issues inatheanced
economies” (RCR, 2011). RCR concluded that “Desfie short term market impact of Japan, the lammt
uranium market fundamentals are considered soutid exipected strong and increasing demand for neskeau
power reactors, especially from China, USA, RusBilaine and India. While Germany has announcedlilit

close all 17 of its nuclear power reactors by 2Q&h 7 to remain closed with effect from the Mar2011

moratorium), many countries have publically statieeir strong continued commitment to nuclear energgst

notably, and arguably of greatest influence, the”U®/GM is of the opinion that, like in the case 8fveden,
Germany'’s stated non-nuclear energy goals will fegttainable unless the German public are willingrtport more
and more of their energy needs from highly nucteaghbours such as France. RCR further concldtidsile the

impact of the Japanese quake is expected to inghsctetionary inventory purchases, and further ydeta new
reactor construction programs are anticipatedirtipact on the contract (“Term”) price is expectedé temporary,
with the price remaining around the US$60-75/Ib knfar

WGM believes that future uranium prices will bersfgantly higher than those that exist at the motneln the

complete absence of an accumulating internatioredium stockpile, and with the participation of gedunds in
the market, spot market pricing is likely to be meplatile in the future than in the past. Theeirsion of the spot
(discount) price and the term price is a good iattic of a robust short term market. The term piscexpected to
be largely unaffected by the hedge funds becawesedhtracted volumes under term agreements areajigmauch

larger than those in “play” on the spot market.e Tarm market therefore tends to be the best itaticd actual

supply-demand dynamics.

As with many mineral commaodities, demand from Chiaa the potential to tip the balance between ssirahd

deficit. China is currently expanding its nucleapacity with 11 nuclear reactors in operationyddently passing
their safety approval and 13 under constructionth\& planned capacity of 70 GW by 2020, Chinatpureements
for nuclear fuel will demand that approximatelyA®) tonnes of natural uranium be processed intoassemblies
each year (China, 2009). Having an annual prodnatapacity of less than 1,000 tonnes of uraniumhiattime,

satisfying less than half of China’s current neetls, country’s imports from foreign sources is eoced to soar.
Without substantial new discoveries within the doynits import requirements will be significantBased on
reactors constructed and in construction, this eehvéll be in excess of 25 M Ibs per year.

Extreme differences exist between today’s uraniuarket and the conditions that prevailed during dhanium
boom that occurred during the 1970s. The usefaloémaking comparisons is limited. One can oolyatude that
uranium prices in today’s market should exceedehelich existed at a time when a substantial urarstockpile
was accumulating. The energy sector in general degn pushed to new highs on the back of uncedaint
concerning oil and gas supply shortages much a&st during the 1970s. To some extent, uraniumegritave
benefited accordingly. The negative environmeotalsequences of greater coal reliance are bettirstood now
than in the 1970s, and this makes a convincing frasgreater reliance on nuclear power generatidhis fact is
not lost on the Australian environmental movemehtcv has until now been staunchly anti-nuclear. il®¢WWGM
has analysed many of the factors influencing tiséohical and current uranium markets, a detailecketastudy is
required to better understand the future trenddeimand and supply especially since Australia isrgimg from a
long period of production limitations and the protion from countries such as Kazakhstan is growjuigkly.

Regulatory and Other Considerations

Insofar as WGM has determined through its limitestdssions with government representatives in &teltMarie,
there are no impediments in the mining and enviremial statutes that would constitute fatal flawshe Appia
project. There are no land withdrawals in the Brgparea that would negatively impact Appia’s exation plans.
However, prior to taking on any exploration activissociated with the previous mines, further dismns are
certainly required with the umbrella organizati@sponsible for the Elliot Lake remediation progrand with its
constituent members. Extreme care will be requimeslorking around areas that are thought to bsttired”, if any
yet exist.

The sustained effort to restore the Elliot Lakeexsihed to its original condition has been costly tris will be a
particularly sensitive subject insofar as local cwmities are concerned. Appia will be able to ptinthe great
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success achieved to date which should offset caacerln its discussions with local mining engineBnb
MacGregor, who has been active with Pele Mountasdarces, WGM understands that the residents iot Ethke
and its Chamber of Commerce are intensely inteddést¢he new jobs and tax revenue that renewednginiould
bring to the town. Appia should follow up with tawefficials in establishing its own presence aretility.

Recommendations
Mineral Economics

The international market for rare earth metalsihaseased markedly as, at the same time, traditemarces have
contracted. WGM recommends that Appia carry ouinitial study of the amounts of REE metals pregarthe
Elliot Lake tailings as part of a long-term strategThe reprocessing of such tailing has the p@kmt provide
early cash flow to a new mining project.

The supply and demand fundamentals of the uraniuankeh are dynamic but subject to easily quantified
measurements since reactor demand can be forexsed bn power generating capacity. Like new uraniines,
reactors also require considerable time for plagrand construction and this allows surpluses arfititdein
uranium markets to be forecast with a high degfemedainty relative to other mineral commoditiddevertheless,
uranium deposits are becoming increasingly diffitalfind, and the permitting of such depositsequiring longer
and longer lead times. If past experience is asorea uranium fuel fabricating infrastructure leely to lag mine
output. Over the longer term, key factors willdastantially increased demand due to new readitstshbalanced
against increasing production from Australia and#dnstan, and new production coming from countsigsh as
Mongolia that had little or no output in the pagts a medium term goal, Appia should undertaketaildel review

of the uranium industry to ensure it understandsniarket as it is foreseen to develop in the neatdecades.

The recent findings of the World Nuclear Associatishich meets every two years (most recently ipt&aber

2009), should be taken as a guide to overall plamsever in this period of great economic turmibig forecasts of
most experts contain a wide area of uncertaintywéen high market and low market scenarios. WGMhisertain

whether the current findings are useful in this regnic climate, and so Appia’s economic study sholoéd
completed no sooner than 2012.

It is without doubt that the Elliot Lake depositifen the potential for a stable, long term supphyucanium oxide
and rare earth metals. WGM believes that the wailbnot indefinitely ignore the presence of mdtan 200
million pounds of readily extractable uranium reniag in the Elliot Lake deposits, and many timeat th pounds
of rare earth metals.

Exploration and Engineering Studies
WGM tenders the following recommendations whichénbgen numbered for convenience.

1) An attempt should be made through Natural Resou@asada (NRCan) archives and other sources
including library records (microfiche and digitaécords) to assemble a complete production and
exploration history for the Elliot Lake camp. Tisisould include purchasing copies of all publishedks,
reports and other information on the history ofdEILake.

2) Potential uranium and rare metals resources inTdasdale Lake area should be explored by diamond
drilling as follows:

a. re-entering historical holes and placing by-passiges approximately 5 m above the uppermost
uranium reef to provide the opportunity for a setont through the mineralization to allow new core
for analysis to provide the REE data missing frdra historical assay records and to allow for
confirmatory uranium analyses;

b. new holes drilled from surface to provide in-fifitersections to the existing drilling pattern thmgre
increasing the confidence level of the Mineral Reses and converting Inferred Resources to
Indicated Resources; and
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C. new cuts through mineralization by wedging off &rig deeper drill holes in a similar manner to that
used by Appia for the Banana Lake Zone.

A provisional drilling program recommended for theasdale Zone is presented in the Technical Report.
Individual drill sites are not prioritized withiihis selection of recommended drill sites.

The uranium and REE Mineral Resources of the Téasttsne should be up-dated after the recommended
drilling is completed.

Additional work needs to be done to precisely datee the locations for new drill sites to test amflarge

the Banana Lake Mineral Resources. This drillingusd be staged in accordance with the plan reptede
in the table below as follows with the locationdrill sites adjusted according to the results ackde The

Banana Lake drilling is considered to be a secomakify task at this time as the drilling to datash
essentially confirmed the viability of the histaiestimate made by Rio Algom. There is clear i

for defining nearly 200 Mlbs in this zone.

Summary of Proposed Drill Hole Locations in the Biaa Lake Zone

Drill Site Approximate Location L(e rr:}g;h Justification
First Priority Drill Holes
A 1,200 m east of KM150-5 1,600 Tests favourable area between first Appihtyle and Kerr
(Appia BL 07-01) site McGee hole KM150-2
B 600 m NNW of KM156-5 1,600 Tests favourable ameeth of Appia hole drilled using the
KM156-5 casing and pilot hole.
Second Priority Drill Holes
C 1,100 m WNW of KM156- 1,600 Tests favourable area northwest of curreneral resources
5 area.
D 1,400 m NNW of KM156-5 1,600 Tests favourable area northwest of curreneral resources
area.
E 900 m west of KM156-5 1,600 Tests favourable arest of current mineral resources area.
F 600 m SE of KM150-2 1,600  Tests favourable amaheast of Kerr McGee hole KM150-
2 which intersected 0.68 IbsO; per ton over 3.4 m (11 ft)
Third Priority Drill Holes
G 600 m NE of KM156-1 1,600 Tests area northeatenf McGee drill hole KM 156-1
which intersected 1.76 Ibs;0g per ton over 0.6 m (2 ft).
H 450 m south of KM150-4 1,600 Tests area betweerthsof Kerr McGee drill hole KM 15@-
which intersected low values and the area of ctimeneral
resources.

Where practical, the redrilling of the existing K&étcGee holes and wedging from such holes is jestias

a means of quickly and cost-effectively buildingi@nium resource base in some areas of the Property
Wedging off-hole at a distance of 300-400 m abdwe Matinenda Formation should produce additional
intersections at least 30 metres away from thé&lmiierce point. By using multiple wedged holeghis
way, the variability of mineralization can be tekt@nd the resource potential assessed at a sagrtifyc
lower cost that redrilling from surface.

All core from new drill holes must be logged andilgsed for U and REEs in accordance with estaldishe
industry practices. At this time, provided thatreaecovery is 95% or better, WGM does not see a
significant advantage in down-hole radiometric ($pmmeter) logging over the use of a hand-held
spectrometer, however down-hole surveying shouldidel if core recoveries are less than optimal. Al
drill core samples should be analysed for uraniwingia solvent (acid) extraction process rathen tha
neutron activation analysis (which measures tavatained uranium rather than leachable uraniuml). A
samples should be analysed for the rare earth elsmesing a conventional technique and for trace
elements using a ICP-based multi-element technique.
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7 On completion of the Teasdale mineral resourcenesé, a Preliminary AssessmenPA”) should be
completed on the Teasdale Deposit, part of whichulshbe an assessment of access options including t
feasibility of dewatering the existing Panel Minerkings. The PA should also evaluate the feasjhilf
dewatering the existing mine workings under thepBrty for the purpose of in-situ acid leaching of o
developed through the taking down of existing ugdmund pillars and flooding the workings with
leachate. This option is not as capital intensiseconventional mining and avoids the issues cdadec
with tailings disposal, however achieving an acablgt recovery in an satisfactory leach time will be
dependent on attaining optimum sizing of the broten— this would likely be the most critical facto

8) The WGM NI 43-101 compliant resource estimates khba up-dated periodically as new drill hole résul
become available especially, as noted in the fonggdor the Teasdale Deposit.

9) A dialogue should be initiated with Pele MountaiasBurces to explore the feasibility of constructing
central milling and processing facility for Elliheke ores as a means of improving the economidlitiab
of individual projects. All discussions would nesarily be contingent on the discovery of a resela@se
of sufficient size and grade to justify a productatecision.

10) A dialogue should be initiated with government awitihes to determine how best Appia can carry fadva
its exploration on certain of its claims that noavé restricted access due to on-going impact ntitiga
work, and are thus subject to restrictions on serfactivities.

Program Budget

WGM has identified a staged exploration progrant,tbaer time, minimizes risk by building slowly frothe
established facts concerning the historical woNilGM proposes a budget of C $14,600,000 for a nyelir
exploration drilling project according to the folng budget. Additional costs totalling $670,000r fdata
acquisition, public forums, supporting surveys atddies are detailed in the table below. We belithat this
exploration is justified based on the positive tessaf Appia’s initial exploration programs. Thaéilling is divided
between 15,405 m on the Teasdale Zone and 17,680the Banana Lake Zone. In carrying out this wdrkling
on the Teasdale Zone offers Appia the greatesinfiatdor adding value to the project in the formhM 43-101
compliant uranium and rare metal Mineral Resources.

The proposed exploration work will substantiallycegd Appia’s needs insofar as exploration assedsmen
requirements are concerned. All costs are in Qanadbllars. To place this budget in context,eipresents an
investment of less than 10 cents (Canadian $0.&0ppund of historical uranium oxide resources fmn Appia
exploration property if the previous estimates @ RIgom and others can be shown to be correctedtesents an
investment of 16 cents per pound (Canadian $0.1&)yanium oxide resources currently outlined to 48101
standards on the Appia Property.

The Banana Lake drilling, comprising 8 deep drillés and 8 wedged holes, is proposed to test thiherty,
westerly and southeasterly extensions of minet@izaoriginally discovered by Kerr McGee and redgnt
confirmed by Appia. For planning purposes, threéases of drilling are proposed for budgetary arsh déow
reasons. This program should be executed in d@bfexnanner that is responsive to actual resulisill hole
locations do not significantly influence hole deptlat certainly may influence overall results ispect to uranium
contents. Careful attention to the geology of uhenium-bearing zones (reefs) is required. In samas, the hole
locations may allow for slightly shallower uraniumtersections as the zone is traced to the nodhaaray from the
centre of the basin, but drill site elevation (ab®ea level) will probably have a greater impachole length. A
budget is also provided for wedging off the neweoto allow Appia to develop additional cuts thrhoug
mineralization using the original hole as a piloThese wedged holes can be used to demonstrate gratl
thickness continuity.
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Appia Budget for Diamond Drilling and Associated k¢02011-12

Item Description Amount Unit Cost Unit Totals Total
Exploration Drilling
Teasdale Phase 1 12 diamond dfrill holes on Teasdale Zone including re-entering historical
Zone holes to up-grade resources and collect new REE data 4,000 m $250 $ 1,000,000
Helicopter Support for drilling on 4,000 m 310,000
Project Management and Geological * on 4,000 m approx $60/m 240,000
Assaying 1,828 $50 91,400
Room & Board * on 4,000 m approx $10/m 40,000
Consumables & Miscellaneous Costs * on 4,000 m Approx $5/m 20,000
Contingency on Subtotal ~5% of costs above ($1,701,400) 66,350
Sub-Total for Phase 1 Drilling $ 1,767,750
Phase 2 15 in-fill diamond drill holes on Teasdale Zone to up-grade resources 6,000 $250 $ 1,500,000
Helicopter Support for drilling on 6,000 m 470,000
Building ice platforms for drill sites $10,000 120,000
Project Management and Geological * 2,856 approx $60/m 360,000
Assaying 2,742 $50 137,100
Room & Board * on 6,000 m approx $10/m 60,000
Consumables & Miscellaneous Costs * on 6,000 m approx $5/m 30,000
Contingency on Subtotal ~5% of costs above ($2,677,100) 135,000
Sub-Total for Phase 2 Drilling $ 2,802,100
Phase 3 12 infill diamond drill holes on Teasdale Zone to up-grade resources 5405m $250 $ 1,351,250
Helicopter Support for drilling on5405m 420,000
Project Management and Geological * on 5,405 m approx $60/m 324,300
Assaying 2,470 $50 123,500
Room & Board * on5,405m approx $10/m 54,100
Consumables & Miscellaneous Costs * on5405m approx $5/m 27,000
Contingency on Subtotal ~5% of costs above ($2,300,150) 130,000
Sub-Total for Phase 3 Drilling $ 2,430,150
Total for Teasdale Zone Drilling $ 7,000,000
Banana  Phase 1 2 diamond drill holes to test SE & NW extensions of Zone 3,200 m $300 $ 960,000
Lake 2 wedges (including rig and crew time) 2 $20,000 40,000
Zone 2 wedged holes from initial pilot holes 1,200 m $500 600,000
Project Management and Geological 4,400 m $30 132,000
Assaying Samples 500 $32 16,000
Room & Board 4,400 $10 44,000
Consumables & Miscellaneous Costs 4,400 $5 22,000
Contingency on Subtotal 5% of costs above ($1,836,000) 86,000
Subtotal for Phase 1 Drilling $1,900,000.
00
Phase 2 4 diamond drill holes to test NW & SE extensions of Zone 6,400 m $300 1,920,000
4 wedges (including rig and crew time) 4 $20,000 80,000
4 wedged holes from initial pilot holes 2,400 m $500 1,200,000
Project Management and Geological 8,800 m $30 264,000
Assaying Samples 1,000 $32 32,000
Room & Board 8,800 m $10 88,000
Consumables & Miscellaneous Costs 8,800 $5 44,000
Contingency on Subtotal 5% of costs above ($3,672,000) 172,000
Subtotal for Phase 2 Drilling $ 3,800,000
Phase 3 2 diamond drill holes in Marsh Lake area to test NW extension of Zone 3,200 m $300 960,000
2 wedges (including rig and crew time) 2 $20,000 40,000
2 wedged holes from initial pilot holes 1,200 m $500 600,000
Project Management and Geological 4400 m $30 132,000
Assaying Samples 500 $32 16,000
Room & Board 4,400 $10 44,000
Consumables & Miscellaneous Costs 4,400 $5 22,000
Contingency on Subtotal 5% of costs above ($1,836,000) 94,000
Subtotal for Phase 3 Drilling $ 1,900,000
Total for Banana Lake Zone Drilling $ 7,600,000
GRAND TOTALFOR TEASDALE LAKE AND BANANA LAKE ZONES $ 14,600,000

* All support costs are factored on a per metre basis
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Appia Budget for Supporting Work and Studies, 2Q21-

Item Description Unit Cost

Mineral Economics Study Review of uranium market, reactor construction plaupply- $60,000
demand criteria & delivery schedules.

Public Dialogue Proactive dialogue and consensus building withoEllake and First  $60,000
Nations community leaders.

Drill Hole Surveying Additional locating and surveying of historical bsj Construction ¢~ $60,000
GIS.
Data Acquisition Search for complete historical information throdipnary/university ~ $30,000

archives & private sources.
Metallurgical Study Metallurgical recovery analysis $207,000

Preliminary Assessment Updated mineral resource estimate and economicatiah of the ~ $169,000

Study Teasdale Deposit; mining/processing options.
Sub-Total $586,000
Contingency on Subtotal ~15% of costs above ($586,000) $84,000
Total of Incidentals for Project $670,000
Support

In respect to drilling the Teasdale Zone, WGM hesvipusly recommended that Appia’s exploration paog be
staged so that, over time, risk can be minimizedbbiding slowly from the established facts condegnthe

historical work. A program of 31 vertical diamoddll holes is proposed on approximate 200 m sggcio enable
better delineation of the inferred uranium resosiraad up-grading of these resources to the indiceétegory.
Twelve of the proposed holes are located on Quides, requiring the building of ice platforms a®sas the
winter ice thickens to the point where it will canpport a work crew. A budget of $120,000 was igled for the
labour involved in flooding the ice. The locatiookcertain holes may be amended or eliminatechagdtilling

progresses, however, the overall amount of drilshguld not vary significantly from that proposestdin. With

further on-site evaluations of proposed drill himeations, it may be possible to replace some efatfrshore drill
holes with obliquely angled holes from the shomlinAlthough such drill holes would be longer thhay might
otherwise be if drilling from the optimum locatiothis approach would reduce the need for wintdlimyi and the
costs associated with ice-platform construction.

On-going exploration should be directed at develgm separate budget for confirmation of uraniusoueces in
other mineralized zones such as the Canuc Zonénathe Gemico Zones. In WGM's view, an initial lged for
2,000 to 3,000 m of drilling costing approximat&lg50,000 to $1.5 million would be appropriate focls purposes.
Future drilling on Gemico Block 3 will require agwal from the federal Nuclear Safety Commissioraliow
Denison to grant Appia the right to drill. As theea of interest is located near a major road,isndt in an area of
tailings or other former mine infrastructure, WGbtdsees no reason why such approval would be denied

Project objectives must also be re-examined perédigi in the context of uranium commodity markets this

respect, we believe that the project should bevelgtimanaged, and that a strong overall projectagan with

considerable exploration experience will be requiee control the various elements of this projdttwill require a
dedicated team at the management level to ensatddital circumstances, for example public pressdoes not
derail project operations. The project is amb#i@nd it requires favourable uranium market cood#j but it is
prefaced on what WGM believes is an excellent ojpmity to revitalize an area that has been longloeked. If

the outcome of the initial drilling in the Bananalle area is positive, programs of in-fill and coaing step-out
drilling will be required to up-grade the confiderlevel of the resources and to enlarge the ressurc
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NON-OFFERING PROSPECTUS

This Prospectus is being filed with the securitregulatory authorities in the provinces of Alber&itish
Columbia, Saskatchewan and Ontario to enable tlipdCation to become a reporting issuer pursuaapfadicable
securities legislation in the Qualifying Jurisdiets, notwithstanding that no sale of its securitiesontemplated
herein. Since no securities are being offeredyaunsto this Prospectus, no proceeds will be ragseball expenses
in connection with the preparation and filing ofstiProspectus will be paid by the Corporation frissnworking
capital.

USE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS
As at November 22, 2012, the Corporation had casburces of $1,844,607. The Corporation’s fundewaised

pursuant to various private placement offeringie Torporation may carry out a subsequent finanfotigwing
the Corporation becoming a reporting issuer butetltan be no assurance that such a financing sitidmpleted.

Use of Available Funds Amount
Costs of Prospectus $ 65,000
Completion of one diamond drill hole at Banana Lake $ 300,000
Less deposits and payments made to November 22, 201 $ (160,460)V

Metallurgical work on Teasdale Zone drill core $ 207,0000@
Less deposits made to November 22, 2012 $ (50,000%V
Completion of a PEA on the Teasdale Zone $ 169,0000@
Supporting Work and Studies (including contingeggie $ 294,000?
Operating Expenses and working capital for twelA®) (nonths $ 324,000
Unallocated cash $ 696,067

$

TOTAL 1,844,067

Note:

W $314,554 are flow-through funds, which must be exjeel on qualifying Canadian
exploration expendituresCEE”") on or before December 31, 2012

@ These items are reflected in the budget for SujsgpWork and Studies appearing at page 76 of
this Prospectus.

The following table sets out a breakdown of estedatdministrative costs of the Corporation for rilegt twelve
(12) months following the Receipt Date:

Description Amount
Accounting Fees $ 40,000
Registrar and Transfer Agent Fees $ 6,000
Management Fees $ 96,000
Geological Consulting Fees $ 100,000
Legal Fees $ 30,000
Regulatory Filing Fees $ 4,000
Shareholder Communication $ 10,000
Office Expenses $ 15,000
Travel and Accommodation $ 12,000
Other $ 11,000

TOTAL $ 324,000



78

Principal Purposes

The Corporation intends to spend the total avaglafinds as stated in this Prospectus. There may be
circumstances, however, where for sound businesons, a reallocation of funds may be necessary.

Business Objectives and Milestones

The principal business carried on and intendedetodsried on by the Corporation is the acquisitexploration
and development of mineral resource propertiese Gbrporation currently is the owner of a 100%rieséin the
Property and the holder of the interests in thek&abewan Properties. The Corporation will useaitailable
funds to incur a further $759,540 in expenditunegh®e Property as discussed below with the balércgeneral
working capital. The Corporation substantially fpemed the Phase 1 Program on the Teasdale Zowre (se
heading “The Property”) and completed 17 drill Isolle late August, 2012. The core samples have beeh to
Actlabs for assaying and results are pending. Tiéwhnical Report budgeted for a 4,000 metre dridigpam at
$1.7 million but as a result of lower drilling cesind the use of a barge rather than a helicopterobilize the
drill, the Corporation completed 8,177 metres dflidg for approximately $1.3 million. It thereferhad a
surplus of $400,000 after completing the Phaseoam at the Teasdale Zone, which funds were otkerw
allocated to CEE expenditures for 2012. In ordeintur the necessary CEE expenditures by Dece®ber
2012, the Corporation commenced an 1,800 metretdbram at Banana Lake (being the first hole fribva
Phase | drill program at Banana Lake) at a budgetstl of $300,000. The Corporation has also concertn
metallurgical work (budgeted for $207,000) and @ REudgeted for $169,000) on the Teasdale Zonepobies
and payments totalling $210,460 have been madertiswthese expenditures and are excluded from thie ca
balance at November 22, 2012. The Corporationcbasulted with WGM on these proposed expenditunes a
has retained WGM for the preparation of the PEAe Torporation’s objective is to complete the PEAtle
Teasdale Zone which will include an updated mineeaburce calculation and complete the SupportirggkwW
and Studies recommended by WGM at an additional @fob294,000. Management believes that complation
the PEA at this time will provide the Corporatioiittwsubstantial information to determine the nelktge of
exploration for the Property. The Corporation does anticipate proceeding with further exploratiom the
Banana Lake Zone or the Teasdale Zone in accordaiticghe budgets set out in the Technical Repattiout
completing a further equity financing.

DIVIDENDS OR DISTRIBUTIONS

There are no restrictions in the Corporation’scéeti or by-laws or pursuant to any agreement oerstanding
which could prevent the Corporation from payingidiénds or distributions. Neither the Corporatiar its

predecessors have declared or paid any dividendspilass of securities. The Corporation curyeintends to
retain future earnings, if any, to fund the devetept and growth of its business and does not intermhy any
cash dividends on its Common Shares for the foeddeduture. Any decision to pay dividends on @@mmon
Shares in the future will be made by the Board wé®ors on the basis of earnings, financial rezmients and
other conditions existing at the time.

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables set forth selected financidbrmation for the Corporation for the nine monémsling June 30,
2012 and the years ending September 30, 2011, 80d02009. The following summary of selected finainc
information is derived from and should be readanjanction with and is qualified in its entirety bgference to the
Corporation’s financial statements, including thates thereto, and Management’s Discussion and Aisalyf
Financial Conditions and Results of Operationstidet elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Readers should note that the audited numbers itatiies below for the years ended September 3®, 210 and
2011 have been reported under Canadian GAAP, whédeunaudited numbers as of June 30, 2012 have been
reported under IFRS.
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Statement of Operations Data

Nine
months Year ended Year ended Year ended
ended June September 30, September 30, September 30,
30, 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Revenues Nil Nil Nil Nil
Net Income (932,044) (1,098,682) (116,724) (82,771)
(Loss) from
Operations
Net Income (1,061,323) (1,060,157) (116,724) (16,971)
(Loss)
Basic and (0.03) (0.03) (0.00) (0.00)
Diluted
Income (Loss)
Per Share
Balance Sheet Data
Nine months Year ended Year ended Year ended
ended June 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2010 2009
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Total Assets 7,529,730 7,608,016 4,256,491 4,312,586
Total 1,122,981 675,837 618,054 557,425
Liabilities
Shareholder 6,406,749 6,932,179 3,638,437 3,755,161
Equity

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

The following management’s discussion and analfdi$D&A ") of the results of operations should be read in
conjunction with the unaudited condensed interinafficial statements and the accompanying noteshénine
months ended June 30, 2012 and the audited fifestei@ments and the accompanying notes for thes yraled
September 30, 2011 and 2010 contained elsewhehésifProspectus. Readers should note that the nsrdeeved
from the audited financial statements for the yearded September 30, 2011 and 2010 have beenaéportier
Canadian GAAP, while the numbers derived from thaudited condensed interim financial statementshiemine
months ended June 30, 2012 have been reported IRIBr

The Corporation does not anticipate material capitpenditures in the foreseeable future. At thddeted rate of
expenditure, the current funds available to thepGration are expected to be sufficient for a peiio@xcess of
three and one-half years.
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Results of Operations
Nine Months Ended June 30, 2012

Total operating expenses were $156,560 for thetmenths to June 30, 2012 ($139,432 for the thiestims ended
June 30, 2011). The major contributions to therype@r-year change are the increases in legal aoiggsional
fees and in non-cash share based payments.

Interest income was $11,085 for the three montlile@dune 30, 2012 ($13,284 for the three monttogemnded
June 30, 2011).

Total operating expenses were $965,124 for the mioeths to June 30, 2012 ($792,733 for the ninethsanded
June 30, 2011). The major contribution to the ymaar-year change are the increases in legal asfdgmional fees
and in non-cash share based payments.

Interest income was $33,080 for the nine monthsénlline 30, 2012 ($17,041 for the nine month pegindkd
June 30, 2011). The increase is primarily duentinareased cash position over the period in 2&l@oanpared to
2011.

The Company’s net loss and comprehensive losshiothree and nine months ended June 30, 2012 VWds213
and $1,061,327 or a $0.01 and $0.03 loss per shapectively ($119,414 and $757,388 or a $0.00%na2 loss
per share respectively for the three and nine nsoatided June 30, 2011).

Year Ended September 30, 2011

Total operating expenses for the year ended SepteB8l) 2011 were $1,123,191 compared to $122,76D10.
The major contribution to the year-over-year inseeaompared to the comparable period was the iseri@astock
based compensation - $1,000,827 (2010 - $Nil).

Interest income was $24,509 for the year, comp#&oe#i6,038 for 2010. The increase is due to incikasesh
balances held during the year.

The Corporation’s net loss before income tax wa®%3,682 compared with $116,724 in 2010. The losa011l
included increased stock based compensation expense

Capital Resources and Liquidity
Nine Months Ended June 30, 2012

At June 30, 2012, the Company had working capiteé$3)033,644 compared to $3,372,265 as at SepteBher
2011. As the Company has no operating revenumnitinues to be funded with equity-based private@mhents.
At June 30, 2012, the Company had obligations endp$1,717,856 in eligible flow-through expenditi@ or
before December 31, 2012. The Corporation’s estimn of its properties, which includes drilling damther
evaluation programs, is dependent on raising seffiaccapital resources. The Corporation’s fixed thbncosts are
approximately $15,000 per month; it has enoughniirel resources to continue operation through least the end
of the next fiscal year. The funds generated fréomfhrough financings enable the Corporation taspe its
planned exploration activities. Additional fundingll be required to maintain ongoing operations aadfully
pursue the exploration and development of its ptage The Corporation’s ability to meet its obligas and
continue as a going concern continues to be depérmtethe ability to identify and complete futuiaancings.
While the Corporation has been successful in rgiimancings to date, there can be no assuranté thiél be able
to do so in the future.

Year Ended September 30, 2011

At September 30, 2011, the Corporation had workiagjtal of $3,372,265 compared to $418,289 as pteGwher
30, 2010. In the year ended September 30, 2011Ctnporation raised approximately $1,477,500 fromivgie
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placements to fund general operations and raise@782Z50 in flow-through financing to fund CEE. The
Corporation’s exploration of its properties, whiclcludes drilling and other evaluation programsgépendent on
raising sufficient capital resources.

Common Share Data

Number Amount
# $

Balance, September 30, 2010 and 2009 39,016,525 834843
Flow-through Common Shares issued, net 1,385,833 1,779,232
Common Shares issued 1,182,000 1,477,500
Less: Value associated with warrants issued - 0,66R)
Share issue costs - (183,737)
Balance, September 30, 2011 41,584,358 7,796,776
Flow-through Common Shares issued, net 9,000 501,2
Common Shares issued November 15, 2011 20,720 90@5,
Common Shares issued December 30, 2011 2,000 02,50
Less: Value associated with warrants issued - 304D,
Share issue costs - -
Balance, June 30, 2012 41,616,078 7,835,123

For particulars on the Corporation’s prior shau#ces, please see the headings “DescriptioneoBtisiness —
Share Issuances” and “Prior Sales”.

Selected Quarterly Information (all quarters reitunder IFRS)

2011/2012 Jun 30, 2012 Mar 31, 2012 Dec 31,2011  Sept 30, 2011
$ $ $ $

Net (loss) and

comprehensive (loss) (276,213) (605,361) (179,747) (278,305)

Net loss per share —

basic and diluted (0.01) (0.01) (0.00) (0.01)

Total assets 7,529,730 7,545,874 7,627,152 87046

2010/2011 Jun 30, 2011 Mar 31, 2011 Dec 31, 2010 pt 3% 2010
$ $ $ $

Net profit/(loss) and

comprehensive profit/ (119,415) (609,793) (28,180) (15,098)

(loss)

Net loss per share —

basic and diluted (0.00) (0.01) (0.00) (0.00)

Total assets 7,622,843 7,668,851 4,559,197 64423

Related Party Transactions
Nine Months Ended June 30, 2012

During the three months ended June 30, 2012, thrap@ny incurred related party expenses of $27{@@0the

three months ended June 30, 2011 — $18,000) an@@®bTor the nine months ended June 30, 2012 (f@mine
months ended June 30, 2011 - $54,000). These saparlated to management fees paid to Tom Drivhef

Executive Officer, Michael D’Amico, Chief Financi@lfficer, and office administration services paicatcompany
where Tom Drivas is a director and officer, of whi283,306 (2011 - $225,000) is due and payabk dane 30,
2012 and included under accounts payable and atdrakilities. Amount charged for office admingstion

services is included under office and general espgn
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Compensation of key management personnel for theethnd nine months ending June 30, 2012 and 2011 i
summarized as follows:

For the three  For the three For the nine For the nine
months ended months ended months ended months ended
Jun 30,2012 Jun 30,2011 Jun 30,2012 Jun 30,2011

$ $ $ $
Compensation and Directors’ fees 24,000 15,000 (88,0 45,000
Share-based payments 100,976 96,234 745,328 673,635

Key management personnel were not paid post-retinétmenefits, termination benefits, or other loagrt benefits
during the three months ended June 30, 2012 ant 201

During the three months ended June 30, 2012, thmp@ny incurred expenses of $6,660 (for the threathso
ended June 30, 2011- $3,240) and $90,709 for ttembnths ended June 30, 2012 (for the nine mamttied June
30, 2011 - $33,344) for legal fees to a law firfated to a senior officer and director of the Companilliam R.
Johnstone. At June 30, 2012, $7,581 was due ayabfgato this related party.

As disclosed in Note 5(a) of the unaudited condenisgerim financial statements, the Corporation’sjon
exploration property was acquired from CEC, a camypzontrolled by Tom Drivas, President, CEO andir@®&or
of the Corporation.

These amounts were expensed in the period incasedministrative and general expenses. Expensesnaounts
paid and owing are measured at the exchange amount.

Year Ended September 30, 2011

During the year ended September 30, 2011, the @atipo incurred related party expenses of $72,G001 -

$72,000). These expenses related to managemermd&es Tom Drivas and office administration seed paid to
a company where Tom Drivas is a director and offioéwhich $238,306 (2010-$180,000) is due andapsyas at
September 30, 2011 and included under accountsblgayad accrued liabilities. Amount charged foricaf
administration services is included under officd general expenses.

The law firm related to William R. Johnstone, wisaaiso an officer and Director of the Corporaticmarged legal
fees in the amount of $47,882 (2010-$13,854) ofctW!$20,573 is included under professional fees&2¥J309 is
included in share issue costs. Included in aceopayable is $7,376 (2010-$0) owing to the firnthe$ individual.
As disclosed in Note 4(a) to the September 30, 28ddited financial statements, the Corporation’'soma
exploration property was acquired from CEC, a comypzontrolled by Tom Drivas, President, CEO andir@or
of the Corporation.

Carrying value of mining and exploration properties

The Corporation regularly reviews the carrying eahf its properties for impairment to determine thiee the
carrying amount of these assets will be recoverfibla future cash flows. Assumptions underlying tash flow
estimates include the forecasted prices for urardachrare earth elements, production levels, aedatipg, capital,
exploration and reclamation costs, which are sultfedsks and uncertainties. Management has déatedrthat as
at December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2012, thereimpairment of carrying value on its Ontario angl&dchewan
properties.

Future changes in accounting policy
Business combinations

CICA Section 1582 — “Business Combinations”, whiejplaces CICA Section 1581 — “Business Combinations
establishes standards for the accounting for anbasi combination. It is the Canadian GAAP equivalen
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International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 3Business Combinations”. This standard is effextior the
Corporation’s business combinations with acquisitdates on or after January 1, 2011. The adoptfothese
standards did not result in a material impact @Qbrporation’s financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements and non-contngllinterests

CICA section 1601 — “Consolidated Financial Statetse(“Section 1601”) and Section 1602 — “Non-caliing
Interests” (“Section 1602”) replaces CICA HandboBkction 1600 — “Consolidated Financial Statements”.
Sections 1601 and 1602 establish standards foaptpn of consolidated financial statements ardatcounting
for non-controlling interests in financial statertethat are equivalent to the standards under IHFR8se standards
are effective for the Corporation for financial tetaents beginning on January 1, 2011. The adopmifothese
standards did not result in a material impact @aQbrporation’s financial statements.

International Financial Reporting Standards

The Canadian Accounting Standards Board has mahdaéadoption of IFRS effective for interim andchaal

financial statements relating to fiscal years beiig on or after January 1, 2011 for Canadian plybiccountable
profit-oriented enterprises. Companies will be iegplito provide IFRS comparative information foe tliscal year
immediately preceding the year in which they fadbpt IFRS. Accordingly, the Corporation will reporterim and
annual financial statements in accordance with IBB§nning with the quarter ended December 31, 2011

The Corporation has a transition plan that compribeee major phases, including a scope, plan asdsament
phase, a design and build phase and an implemehteaiew phase culminating in the reporting of fioial
information in accordance with IFRS for Q1 2012ring fiscal 2011, the Corporation performed dethémalysis
to further assess the areas that will require agh#o accounting policies, and those which haeewatting policy
alternatives available under IFRS.

The International Accounting Standards Board caminto amend and add to current IFRS standards. The
Corporation’s conversion process includes monigpdantual and anticipated changes to IFRS stancardiselated
rules and regulations and assessing the impactiseskE changes on the Corporation and its reporitiregyding
expected dates of when such impacts would be aféect

The Corporation has elected to apply the followdptional exemptions in its preparation of an opgrstatement of
financial position dated October 1, 2010, the Ceapon’s “Transition Date”™:

» Share-based payment transactions
To apply IFRS 2 Share-based Payments only to eqstyjuments that was issued after November 7, 2002
and had not vested by the Transition Date.

» |AS 27 — Consolidated and separate financial stetgsn
To apply IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Finarffatements prospectively, as the Corporation has
elected to apply IFRS 3 Business Combinations gatsely.

* Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental cdtiigns
The company has elected to apply the exemption fidhretrospective application of decommissioning
provisions allowed under IFRS 1. As a result, thbenpany has re-measured the provisions at January 1,
2010 under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabistiand Contingent Assets and estimated the amount to
be included in the cost of the related asset bgodisting the liability to the date at which thebliity first
arose.

* IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contaih®ase
The Corporation has elected to apply the transipoovisions of IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease, therefore determiifirgrangements existing at the Transition Date
contain a lease based on the circumstances exattithgt date. The Corporation has no leases.
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IFRS 1 does not permit changes to estimates that haen made previously. Accordingly, estimatesdus the
preparation of the Corporation’s opening IFRS steet of financial position as at the Transition ®atre
consistent with those made under Canadian GAAP.

Changes to Accounting Policies

The Corporation has changed certain accountingipslito be consistent with IFRS effective or audddor early
adoption on September 30, 2012, the Corporatiarssdnnual IFRS reporting date. Adoption of IFR& had no
material impact on the Corporation’s statementsash flows for the three months ended Decembe2@11 and
the twelve months ended September 30, 2011. Thagebato accounting policies have not resulted ig an
significant change to the recognition and measuneérmfassets, liabilities, equity, revenue and eses within its
financial statements, except as disclosed below.

a) Share-based payment transactions

Under IFRS, each tranche of an award with diffenadting dates is considered a separate granhéor t
calculation of fair value, and the resulting faiflwe is amortized over the vesting period of thepeetive tranches.
Forfeiture estimates are recognized in the perloely tare estimated, and are revised for actual ifarés in
subsequent periods. An individual is classifiecaaemployee when the individual is an employeddgal or tax
purposes (direct employee) or provides serviceslainio those performed by a direct employee, idirig
Directors of the Corporation. The fair value fdrase purchase options granted to non-employeesdoisices
provided is measured at the date the serviceseamved. The fair value of the share purchaseogtgranted is
measured at the fair value of the services receiurlbss the fair value of services received caieoestimated
reliably, in which case they are valued using theck-Scholes option pricing model, taking into amebthe terms
and conditions upon which the share purchase opti@re granted.

Under Canadian GAAP, the fair value of stock-basedrds to employees with graded vesting are
calculated as one grant and the resulting fairevédurecognized on a straight line basis over #ing period.
Forfeitures of awards are recognized as they occur.

The Corporation’s accounting policies relating bare-based payment transactions have been chamged t
reflect these differences. There is no impacthenfinancial statements.

b) Impairment of (non-financial) Assets

IFRS requires a write-down of assets if the highfethe fair market value and the value in use gf@up
of assets is less than its carrying value. Vatuase is determined using discounted estimatedefdash flows.
Canadian GAAP required a write-down to estimateédvialue only if the undiscounted estimated futaash flows
of a group of assets are less than its carryingeval

The Corporation’s accounting policies relatingtgpairment of non-financial assets have been chatmed
reflect these differences and there is no impacherfinancial statements.

c) Decommissioning Liabilities (Asset Retiremertdli@ations)
IFRS requires the recognition of a decommissiorialility for legal or constructive obligations, vig
Canadian GAAP only requires the recognition of sliahilities for legal obligations. A constructivabligation

exists when an entity has created reasonable extfmets that it will take certain actions.

The Corporation’s accounting policies related toaemissioning liabilities have been changed toesfl
these differences. In management’s opinion, thésge in policy had no impact on the financialestagnts.

The conversion to IFRS had no effect on the stat¢roé cash flows for any of the periods on which are
reporting.
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Flow-Through Shares

The Corporation will, from time to time, issue flétwough Common Shares to finance a portion oéxgloration

program. Pursuant to the terms of the flow-throsbhare subscription agreements, these shareserahsf tax

deductibility of qualifying resource expendituresifivestors. Under IFRS, the Corporation bifursatee flow-

through share into i) a flow-through share premiequal to the estimated premium, if any, invesfmg for the

flow-though feature, which is recognized as a lighiand ii) share capital. Upon expenses beimguired, the
Corporation recognizes a deferred tax liability loee amount of tax reduction renounced to the $iwdders and the
premium liability is reversed. The reversal of fremium liability and the deferred tax liabilityearecognized as
tax recoveries to the extent that suitable deferagcassets are available. Under Canadian GAAPCrporation

recorded the tax cost of expenditures renounceslibscribers on the date the deductions were reeduttcthe

subscribers. Share capital was reduced and futwreme tax liabilities were increased by the taxt cofs

expenditures renounced to the subscribers, exbaptite amount was recognized as a tax recovehetextent that
suitable future tax assets were available.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Corporation does not have any off-balance sireahgements.
Financial Instruments and Other Instruments

The Corporation is required to disclose informatédyout the fair value of its financial assets aadilities. Fair
value estimates are made at the balance sheet dasesl on relevant market information and inforomeabout the
financial instrument. These estimates are subjedti nature and involve uncertainties in significanatters of
judgment and therefore cannot be determined widltipion. Changes in assumptions could signifigaatfect
these estimates.

The Corporation’s financial instruments recogniethe balance sheet consist of cash, and cashagois, GST
receivable and current liabilities. The fair vahfethese financial instruments approximate thanrying value due
to the short maturity or current market rate asgedi with these instruments.

DESCRIPTION OF COMMON SHARES

The Corporation is authorized to issue an unlimiteachber of Common Shares. As at December 12, 20&fe
were 41,616,078 Common Shares issued and outstandin

The holders of the Common Shares are entitledvidelds, if, as and when declared by the Boardigddiors, to
receive notice of meetings of Shareholders of thepQration, to one vote per share at meetingsettmareholders
of the Corporation and, upon liquidation, to reeesuch assets of the Corporation as are distrilutatihe holders
of the Common Shares. Holders of Common Shareaatichave cumulative voting rights with respect be t
election of Directors and, accordingly, holders afmajority of the votes eligible to vote at a megtiof
Shareholders may elect all the Directors of thepGration standing for election. Dividends, if amyll be paid on

a pro rata basis only from funds legally available therefor€he rights set out herein are subject to the sight
privileges, restrictions and conditions attachioghy other series or class of shares ranking sénijariority to or
on apro ratabasis with the holders of the Common Shares wiheet to dividends or liquidation. The Common
Shares do not carry any pre-emptive, subscriptietiemption or conversion rights, nor do they congaiy sinking
or purchase fund provisions. Amendments to thendgeof the Common Shares may only be made following
approval by at least two-thirds of the holders oftnon Shares voting at a duly called meeting o&hareholders.

Convertible Securities
The Corporation has implemented a Stock Option.PlAs of the date of this Prospectus, the Corponahias

granted 2,200,000 Options exercisable at $1.25pare until between February 11, 2016 and FebrLa®017.
See “Stock Option Plan”.
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As of the date hereof there are 1,@@@rrants outstanding to acquire Common Sharespaica of $1.25 expiring
December 30, 2012.

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION

There have been no material changes in the shdrlan structure of the Corporation since Decen3tie2011.

STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Corporation has adopted a stock option plas‘@ock Option Plar’) that authorizes the Corporation to grant
options for the purchase of Common Shar&@p(fons”) to any employee, executive officer, Directoraamsultant

of the Corporation and its subsidiaries to whopti@hs can be granted in reliance on a prospectdsegistration
exemption under applicable securities lawgliffible Persong, and each such person holding Options and
participating in the Stock Option Plan is hereiagfteferred to as anOptione€’). The maximum number of
Options that may be issued shall not exceed 10&eofiumber of Common Shares outstanding from tontante.

Grants of Options made to any single Eligible Perand his, her or its associates (as that ternefinet in the
Securities Act(Ontario)) shall not exceed 5% of the issued antdtanding Common Shares. The maximum
number of securities issuable to insiders (as ddfim theSecurities Acf{Ontario)) of the Corporation and their
associates, at any time, under all security basatbensation arrangements, cannot exceed 10% d$ghed and
outstanding securities of the Corporation, the mmaxn number of securities issued to insiders ofGbeporation
and their associates, within any one year perindeuall security based compensation arrangemesmsiot exceed
10% of the issued and outstanding securities oCigoration and, in the case of any one (1) inséahel his or her
associates, shall not exceed 5% of the issued atsthading securities.

The Stock Option Plan provides that the terms ef@ptions granted and the Option prices shall kedfiby the
Directors subject to the price and other restrntdionposed by the relevant regulatory authorities,shall not be
less than the market price per Common Share dtrtteeof grant. Options granted under the Stock @pRlan are
not transferable or assignable. Options grantectutite Stock Option Plan shall be for a term deiteech by the
Directors but in any event must be exercisableafperiod not in excess of five years. Options gdmunder the
Stock Option Plan shall vest in such a manner teymiéned by the Directors and the exercise pricstrbe paid in
full upon exercise of the Option. The administratand operation of the Stock Option Plan may begigkd by the
Board of Directors to a committee of the Directors.

If an Optionee ceases to be an Eligible Persontatermination for cause or resignation the O@mmill have a
period not in excess of three (3) months from take dhe person ceased to be an Eligible Persoxetaoise Options
held to the extent that the Optionee was entitbeeixercise the Options at the date of such cessatiche event of
death of the Optionee, Options previously grantexl exercisable for a period not in excess of orar yext

succeeding such death to the extent that the Ggatioras entitled to exercise the Option at the dhteath. In the
event of termination of employment otherwise thandause by reason of retirement or disability, &pgionee will

have a period not in excess of twelve (12) montbsnfthe date the person ceased to be an EligibleoRedo

exercise the Options held to the extent that theoBpe was entitled to exercise the Options atddte of such
cessation. The Board of Directors may at any tifiseontinue the Stock Option Plan. The Board a&Ciors may
amend the terms of the Stock Option Plan in thosmimstances permitted by applicable regulatonhatities.

Otherwise, amendments to the Stock Option Plan brisipproved by Shareholders of the Corporation.

The following table sets out information on the Op$ that are currently outstanding pursuant toStuek Option
Plan:

Number of Exercise price
Class of Optionee Common Shares  per Common Expiry Date
under Option Share

Executive Officers 400,000 $1.25 January 23, 2017
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Number of Exercise price
Class of Optionee Common Shares  per Common Expiry Date
under Option Share
Directors who are not 1,800,000 $1.25 February 11, 2016-
Executive Officers February 1, 2017
Employees Nil Nil N/A
Consultants Nil Nil N/A
PRIOR SALES

The following table sets out all issuances of Comi8bares since January 1, 2011:

Number of Issue Price per Nature of
Date P Total Issue Price Consideration
Common Shares Common Share i

Received

January 20, 2011 182,080 $1.25 $227,500 Cash

February 18, 2011 800,080 $1.25 $1,000,000 Cash

February 23, 2011 50,080 $1.25 $62,5000 Cash

March 17, 2011 40,00@ $1.25 $50,000 Cash
March 17, 2011 1,333,383 $1.50 $2,000,000 Cash (issued as
flow-through shares)

November 15, 2011 20,750 $1.25 $25,900 Cash
November 15, 2011 9,060 $1.50 $13,500 Cash (issued as
flow-through shares)

December 30, 2011 2,080 $1.25 $2,500 Cash

Notes:

@ Also issued 91,000 warrants to acquire Commoneshahich have since expired.

@ Also issued 400,000 warrants to acquire CommomeShet $1.25 which have since expired.

®  Also issued 25,000 warrants to acquire Commoneshair$1.25 which have since expired.

@ Also issued 20,000 warrants to acquire Commoneshair$1.25 which have since expired.

®)  Also issued 666,666 warrants to acquire CommomeShat $1.50 which have since expired; and 46,866ensation units
exercisable at $1.50 which have since expired.

®  Also issued 10,360 warrants to acquire Commoneshair$1.25 which have since expired.

™ Also issued 4,500 warrants to acquire Common Sher§1.50 which have since expired.

@) Also issued 1,000 warrants to acquire Common Shatr81.25 until December 30, 2012

PRINCIPAL SECURITYHOLDERS

To the best of the Corporation’s knowledge and thase existing information, as at the date of thisspectus,
there are no persons who own, of record or berdffcidirectly or indirectly, or exercise controt direction over
more than 10% of the issued and outstanding Contihamnes, except as set forth below:
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Name, Municipality of Number of = Number of Percentage of Percentage of
Residence Common  Optionsand Common Common Shares
Shares Warrants Shareg? on a Fully
Diluted Basis?

Canada Enerco Coff) 33,984,000 Nil 81.66% 77.53%

Notes:

@ Based on 41,616,078 Common Shares outstandinftlas date hereof.

@ Based on 2,200,000 Options outstanding as of #te dereof and 15,860 Common Shares
reserved for issuance on the exercise of outstgnaamrants as of the date hereof.

® CEC s controlled by Tom Drivas, President and GE&he Corporation.

PROMOTERS

Tom Drivas and CEC should be considered the pramaté the Corporation in that Mr. Drivas foundeck th
Corporation, serves as its President and Chief ikex Officer and controls CEC, the largest Shaladroof the
Corporation, with 33,984,000 Common Shares. Te,ddt. Drivas is the primary promoter of the Coguan’s
activities.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION
Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth the name, municiyabf residence, position or offices held with tBerporation,
date appointed, principal occupations during tive foreceding years and the number and percentagetiofy
securities of the Corporation that each of the @oes and executive officers beneficially own, dihg or indirectly,
or exercise control or direction over, as of theed# this Prospectus:

Name and Municipality  Position or Office held  Principal Occupation during the Number of
of Residence with the Corporation and Preceding Five Years Common Shares
Date Appointed Owned/
Controlled
Jack McOuat? Chairman of the Board anthitial founders of Watts, Griffis and Nil
Toronto, Ontario Director McOuat Limited (an engineering and
(July 14, 2011) geological consulting firm) in 1962

and was with the firm until his
retirement in 2004

Tom Drivas President, Chief ExecutivePresident of the Corporation, 33,984,000%
Toronto, Ontario Officer and Director President of Romios Gold Resources
(August 24, 2007) Inc., President of Alpha Delta Gas

Inc. and President of Income Plus
Realty Services Inc.

Michael D’Amico Chief Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer of Romios 500
Toronto, Ontario (January 23, 2012) Gold Resources Inc. and independent
consultant
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Name and Municipality  Position or Office held  Principal Occupation during the Number of
of Residence with the Corporation and Preceding Five Years Common Shares
Date Appointed Owned/

Controlled

William R. Johnstone  Director and Corporate  Lawyer, Partner, Gardiner Roberts 32,000

Toronto, Ontario Secretary (September 9, LLP

2009)
Brian Robertsof? Director President & Chief Executive Office 48,500

Thunder Bay, Ontario  (September 9, 2009) Source Exploration Corp. since
September 2008, Consulting Mining
Engineer, President of Victory Nickel
Inc. from February 2007 to March
2008 and President of Nuinsco
Resources Limited from March 2005
to September 2007

Thomas Skimming Director President, Thomas Skimming & Nil
Toronto, Ontarid”®  (September 9, 2009) Associates Limited

Nick Bontis®® Director, Chairman of the Associate Professor, Strategic Nil
Ancaster, Ontario Audit Committee Management, and Director,
(February 1, 2012) Undergraduate Programs, DeGroote

School of Business, McMaster
University; Executive Board, Harvest
Portfolios Group; Director, Institute
for Intellectual Capital Research Inc.;
and Chief Knowledge Officer, Knexa
Solutions

Notes:

@ Member of the Compensation Committee.

@ Member of the Audit Committee.

®  Held by CEC which is controlled by Mr. Drivas.

®  Held by Poplar Properties Inc. in which Mr. Jolongt has a 50% interest.

The term of office of the Directors expires annyat the time of the Corporation’s annual generakting. The
term of office of the executive officers expiredfat discretion of the Board of Directors.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Directoid executive officers of the Corporation, as a grdugneficially
own, directly or indirectly, or exercise control esv34,065,000 Common Shares representing 81.86%heof
41,616,078 ommon Shares issued and outstanding as of théndedef.

Biographies of Management

The following is a brief description of each of tBé&ectors and executive officers of the Corpormatiocluding
their names, ages, positions and responsibilitigls the Corporation, relevant educational backgdyprincipal
occupation or employment during the five years edéng the date hereof, experience in the Corporatimdustry
and the amount of time intended to be devoteddatffairs of the Corporation:

Executive Officers

Anastasios (Tom) Drivas — Age 60 — President, Chiéxecutive Officer and Director

Tom Drivas is a business entrepreneur with numeyeass of experience in various industries. With a
background in accounting and business developmemthas over 30 years experience in property
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acquisition, development and brokering, and 20 syeqrecifically in the mining sector. Mr. Drivassha
consistently assembled the right team for eachtiegcproject. He is the founder, President, CE@ an
Director and a major shareholder of Romios GolddReses Inc., an exploration company with major
properties in the Golden Triangle area of Britisblutnbia and additional properties in Quebec, Oatari
and Nevada. Mr. Drivas is also President and CEMapme Plus Realty, a real estate brokerage firm.
Mr. Drivas will be devoting approximately 50% ofhime to the affairs of the Corporation.

Michael D’Amico — Age 60 — Chief Financial Officer

Michael D’Amico holds a B.Com. from McMaster Unigédy and is a Chartered Accountant. He is a
former Partner at KPMG and has been working asidependent consultant providing Investor Relations
services to publicly traded companies in the resmsector. In addition, he is the Chief Finan€#icer

of Romios Gold Resources Inc., a publicly tradepl@sation company. It is anticipated that inityale

will be spending a minimum of one day per week o &ffairs of Appia, and will be responsible foe th
preparation of the financial statements and otheponting documents, including the Management
Discussion and Analysis, and will be responsible fanaging the filing of the Corporation’s Tax and
other returns.

Directors

Jack McOuat — Age 79 — Chairman of the Board and Déctor

Jack McOuat is one of the founding partners ofiH@M Group and until recently served as Chairman and
Director of Watts, Griffis and McOuat Limited. Hected as Executive Engineer for many of WGM's
projects. Mr. McOuat has broad experience in sflegts of mining. He has planned and supervistd fi
programs, engineering investigations and feagsjbslitidies all over the world. He has been condlitea
number of governments and many private sector caimapa Mr. McOuat currently sits on the Boards of
CAPVEST Income Corp., Sentry Select Primary Metatgsp, Romios Gold Resources Inc., Canadian
Income Management Inc., the general partner of W@rsified Flow-Through (12) Limited Partnership
and the general partner of NCE Diversified Flow-dugh (11) Limited Partnership. He is currently a
director of the Royal Ontario Museum and Chairlaf Heritage Governors at the ROM. Mr McOuat is
also a director of the Canadian Mining Hall of FanMr. McOuat served many years as a Board member
of Franco Nevada Corp., Cominco Ltd. (now knowrTask Resources) and Diamond Fields Resources
Inc. at the time of the Voisey's Bay discovery. hkes authored numerous articles and publicatiods an
served on numerous industry and engineering orgtoirs. He also received an Honorary Doctorata fro
the Technical University of Nova Scotia. Mr. McQuell be devoting approximately 5% of his time to
the affairs of the Corporation.

William R. Johnstone — Age 56 — Corporate Secretargnd Director

Bill Johnstone has been a partner at Gardiner RoheP since February of 2005 practicing in theaaref
corporate and securities law. Mr. Johnstone isRteetice Leader of the firm’'s Securities Law Group
Prior to that, Mr. Johnstone was the proprietorJohnstone & Company, a boutique corporate and
securities law firm, for 12 years. Mr. Johnstos been practicing law for 28 years. Mr. Johnstsradso

a director and/or officer of seven TSXV listed canjgs. Mr. Johnstone will be devoting 5% of hisdi

to the affairs of the Corporation.

Brian Robertson — Age 63 — Director

Brian Robertson is a registered Professional Emgiimethe province of Ontario with extensive expade

in all aspects of mine operations, development @nstruction. His experience includes 21 year$ wit
Placer Dome Inc. operating mines in Canada and/ingriout mine construction in South Africa. As
General Manager for Royal Oak Mines, he playedyarkée in the construction of the 50,000 tonne per
day Kemess mine located in British Columbia. Hs barried out exploration programs across Canada as
well as in Turkey and Mexico. Mr. Robertson cutherserves as President and CEO for Source
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Exploration and was formerly President of Nuinsas®urces Limited and Victory Nickel Inc. He sits 0
the Boards of Source Exploration, Corp., Auriga d>@orp. and Romios Gold Resources Inc. Mr.
Robertson holds a BSc. in Mining Engineering frdra tUniversity of Alaska and a Graduate Diploma in
Business Administration from Laurentian Universityir. Robertson will be devoting 5% of his timeth®
affairs of the Corporation.

Thomas Skimming — Age 77 — Director

Thomas Skimming is a professional geologist witlero80 years experience in the mineral resources
industry and has served as an officer and/or diremt the boards of a number of exploration andimgin
companies listed on the TSX and TSXV. Since 1M2,Skimming has represented private and public
mineral resource companies as an exploration amihgniconsultant and in this capacity, has traveled
extensively throughout Canada, United States, SAfriba, Russia, Argentina, Chile, Philippines, Bita
Panama, Guatemala, Nicaragua and a number of @nir Eastern Europe on various exploration
assignments. Mr. Skimming has been instrumentdderdiscovery and/or development of several minera
deposits in North America, the most notable belrgTeck-Corona gold deposit at Hemlo, Ontario dued t
Golden Reward gold deposit in the state of Soutkoleg U.S.A. Mr. Skimming holds a BSc degree from
the University of Michigan, U.S.A. and completedspgraduate studies in mineral exploration at McGil
University in Montreal, Canada. Currently, Mr. 8kning sits on the boards of Romios Gold Resources
Inc., Golden Predator Corp., Macmillan Minerals.laod Diadem Resources Ltd. Mr. Skimming is a
professional engineer and has been a member éfsthaciation of Professional Engineers of Ontansi
1971 and the Association of Professional Engineeds Geoscientists of the Province of British Colianb
since 2009. Mr. Skimming will be devoting 5% o§ ime to the affairs of the Corporation.

Nick Bontis — Age 42 — Director

Dr. Nick Bontis is a tenured professor of strategianagement at the DeGroote School of Business,
McMaster University. He received both his BachalbArts in 1992 (Honours Business Administration)
and his PhD from the Ivey School of Business at Whiversity of Western Ontario in 1999. His doébr
dissertation on the mutual fund industry went obécome the #1 selling thesis in Canada. He has wo
over a dozen major teaching awards and the faceftgarcher of the year twice. Mclean’s magazire ha
rated him as one of McMaster's most popular prafesfor six years. He is also a 3M National Teaghi
Fellow, a honour bestowed upon the top universityfgssors in the country. Prior to his career in
academics, Dr. Bontis was a securities analystIBCCSecurities Inc. He is also an Executive Board
Member and Director at Harvest Portfolios Group.r. Bontis will be devoting 5% of his time to the
affairs of the Corporation.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and In demnification

Under the Corporation’s directors’ and officers’simance coverage, the Corporation will be reimhires
payments made under indemnity provisions on bedfdlfirectors and officers contained in its andsitdbsidiaries’
respective constating documents, subject to a dibtiifor each loss. Individual Directors and offis will also be
reimbursed for losses arising during the performaat their duties for which they are not indemrdfiby the
Corporation, subject to a deductible that will baidpoby the Corporation. The constating documentshef
Corporation also provide for the indemnification @ertain circumstances of Directors and officers tloé
Corporation and its subsidiaries and their heid lagal representatives and persons serving imaasi capacity
from and against liability and costs in respectioy action or suit against them in respect of ttecetion of their
duties of office. The Directors and officers halsaentered into contractual indemnities with trerg@ration with
regard to the above indemnification obligations.

Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties or Satians
Corporate Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies

To the knowledge of the Corporation, no Directoregecutive officer of the Corporation is, as at tdate of this
Prospectus, or has been in the last 10 years btferdate of this Prospectus, a director, chietetkee officer or
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chief financial officer of any company (includinget Corporation) that, while that person was acfimghat
capacity,

(a) was subject to an order that was issued whéedirector or executive officer was acting in tagacity as
director, chief executive officer or chief finanldficer; or

(b) was subject to an order that was issued dfeedirector or executive officer ceased to be aatlir, chief
executive officer or chief financial officer and iwh resulted from an event that occurred while fierson
was acting in the capacity as director, chief etigewfficer or chief financial officer,

except for William R. Johnstone who was corporateetary of PacRim Resources Inc., which was ceaded by
the Ontario Securities Commission, the Alberta 8des Commission and the British Columbia Secesiti
Commission for failure to file financial statementgho is corporate secretary and a director of RaZ®ock

Resources Inc. (formerly Edda Resources Inc.), vhias cease traded by the Ontario Securities Cosionigor

failure to file financial statements until Janu@8; 2008.

To the knowledge of the Corporation, no Directoerecutive officer of the Corporation or a Shardkolholding a
sufficient number of securities of the Corporatioraffect materially the control of the Corporation

(a) is, as at the date of this Prospectus, or kas lwithin the 10 years before the date of thispeotus, a
director or executive officer of any company (irdihg the Corporation) that, while that person weting
in that capacity, or within a year of that pers@asing to act in that capacity, became bankruptienza
proposal under any legislation relating to bankzypdr insolvency or was subject to or instituted an
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with credits had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee
appointed to hold its assets; or

(b) has, within 10 years before the date of thisspectus, become bankrupt, made a proposal unger an
legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, lmecome subject to or instituted any proceedings,
arrangement or compromise with creditors, or haglcaiver, receiver manager or trustee appointéubked
the assets of the director, executive officer @rsholder,

except William R. Johnstone who was an officer dirdctor of Outlook Resources IncQutlook”) until August
2010. Outlook filed a Proposal under tBankruptcy and Insolvency Acf Canadawhich was approved by the
Court on March 21, 2011 and has not yet been fiadli

Penalties or Sanctions

To the knowledge of the Corporation, none of thee€liors or officers of the Corporation have bednjextt to any
penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relatin@anadian securities legislation or by a Canadicurities
regulatory authority or have entered into a settleivagreement with a Canadian securities regulatotiyority or
been subject to any other penalties or sanctionsosed by a court or regulatory body that would llikbe

considered important to a reasonable investor ngakiminvestment decision except for William R. Xibne who
was reprimanded by the TSXV for breaching threerégjuirements of an undertaking given to the TSX\his

capacity as an officer and director of Outlook @spect of the holding of an Annual Meeting for ©aK in

compliance with TSXV policies. Mr. Johnstone wagquired to resign as an officer and director ofl@k;, was

restricted to his then current involvement as dicexf and/or director of six TSXV listed companiaesd is required
to obtain prior written approval from TSXV beforauing any involvement as an officer and/or direcbanother
TSXV listed company. The TSXV has since grantesnission for Mr. Johnstone to be corporate secydtara

further TSXV listed company.

Individual Bankruptcies

None of the Directors or executive officers of @@rporation has, within the ten (10) years priotht® date hereof,
been declared bankrupt or made a voluntary assighimebankruptcy, made a proposal under any lejsia
relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or been subjecor instituted any proceedings, arrangementoonpromise
with creditors or had a receiver, receiver managerustee appointed to hold the assets of thatithgal.
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Conflicts of Interest

The Board of Directors of the Corporation are reggliby law to act honestly and in good faith witkiew to the
best interests of the Corporation and to disclogeiaterests which they may have in any projecvgportunity of
the Corporation. If a conflict arises, any Diredio a conflict will disclose his interest and abatfrom voting on
such matter at a meeting of the Board of Directors.

To the best of the Corporation’s knowledge and othan as disclosed herein, there are no existingotential

conflicts of interest among the Corporation, iterpoters, Directors, officers or other members ohaggement of
the Corporation except that certain of the Direstofficers, promoters and other members of manageserve as
directors, officers, promoters and members of mamamt of other public companies and therefore fiassible
that a conflict may arise between their duties alirector, officer, promoter or member of managetrafnsuch

other companies and their duties as a Directoicaffpromoter or member of management of the Gatjmn.

The Directors and officers of the Corporation aweame of the existence of laws governing accouritgbdf
directors and officers for corporate opportunityl aaquiring disclosure by Directors of conflictsioferest and the
Corporation will rely upon such laws in respectaofy Directors’ and officers’ conflicts of interest in respect of
any breaches of duty to any of its Directors arfiterfs.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained below is provided as nemliunder Form 51-102F6 (thé&drm”), as such term is
defined in National Instrument 51-102.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis provid&mmation about the Corporation’s executive congagion
objectives and processes and discusses compensgatsions relating to its named executive officgidamed
Executive Officers”) listed in the Summary Compensation Table thalofed. During its fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011, the following individuals wé&temed Executive Officers (as determined by applecab
securities legislation) of the Corporation:

» Tom Drivas, President and Chief Executive Officer

The Corporation did not have a Chief Financial €fiuntil January 23, 2012 and does not employetaim any
other individuals who would qualify as a “Named Extive Officer” because no executive officer or ¢oype of
the Corporation receives total compensation (iralgidvithout limitation salary and bonus) in exce$$150,000.

The Corporation established a Compensation ComenitteFebruary 1, 2012. The entire Board was rediplerfor
the compensation program for the Corporation’s NamErecutive Officers up to an including the perigntling
September 30, 2011.

Compensation Objectives and Principles

The Corporation is an exploration company focusedhe acquisition and exploration of mineral praspeThe
Corporation has no revenues from operations arehafperates with limited financial resources. Aesult, to
ensure that funds are available to complete schddntograms, the Board has to consider not onlyfittacial
situation of the Corporation at the time of theedetination of executive compensation, but also éstmated
financial condition of the Corporation in the futur

To date, limited compensation has been paid taCibmporation’s Named Executive Officers. It is aitated that
the Compensation Committee will re-evaluate the pemsation being paid. It is expected that compemsavill
consist of a cash component and potentially thatgrg of stock options or other share compensativangements.
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The Corporation does not provide its Named Exeeu@fficers with perquisites or personal benefitat thre not
otherwise available to all of its employees.

Compensation Processes and Goals

The deliberations of the Board are conducted inpecisl session from which management is absentsérhe
deliberations are intended to advance the key tibgscof the compensation program for the Corporesi Named
Executive Officers. At the request of the Boarce thamed Executive Officers may, from time to tirpepvide
advice to the Board with respect to the compensatiogram for the Corporation’s Named Executivecaffs.

The Corporation relies on its Board, through distus without any formal objectives, targets, cider analysis, in
determining the compensation of its Named Execu@iffecers. The Board is responsible for determynail forms
of compensation, including the provision of longateincentives through the granting of stock optitmghe Named
Executive Officers of the Corporation, and to othéncluding, without limitation, to the Corporatig Directors, to
ensure such arrangements reflect the respon@bilénd risks associated with each such officerts @inector’s
position. The Board incorporates the following goahen it makes its compensation decisions witheetsto the
Corporation’s Named Executive Officers: (i) therteting and retaining of executives who are critibath to the
success of the Corporation and to the enhancenfiesitaneholder value; (ii) the provision of fair andmpetitive
compensation; (iii) the balancing of the interesis management with the interests of the Corpor&ion
Shareholders; (iv) the rewarding of performancehlam an individual basis and with respect to tperations of
the Corporation as a whole; and (v) the presermaifaavailable financial resources.

The Implementation of the Corporation’s Compensatio Policies
Consulting Fee

During the year ended September 30, 2011, the Catipn paid the Chief Executive Officer a consugtifee of
$60,000 per annum. This amount was agreed uporebatihe Chief Executive Officer and the Corporataing
into account the following considerations:

. the Chief Executive Officer's experience gainedtigh his involvement with the Corporation and other
resource companies;

. the total number of years of the Chief Executivéidef's relevant experience; and

. the financing raised by the Corporation while thee€ Executive Officer has been in office.

The payment of this consulting fee was not depeindarthe Chief Executive Officer’s fulfillment ofhg specific
performance goals or similar criteria.

Stock Options

The granting of options to the Named Executive €ffs under the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan plswides

an appropriate long-term incentive to managementreate shareholder value. The number of optiors th
Corporation grants to each Named Executive Offieasonably reflects the Named Executive Officegecsfic
contribution to the Corporation in the executionsath person’s responsibilities. However, the nundbeptions
granted does not depend upon nor does it reflectfutfillment of any specific performance goals similar
conditions. Previous grants of options to Nameddtxive Officers are taken into consideration by Board in
developing its recommendations with respect togitamting of new options. The Corporation’'s Nameadtrive
Officer was not granted any options in the yeareen8eptember 30, 2011.

The granting of options to the non-management Borscof the Corporation under the Corporation’sc8t@ption
Plan provides an appropriate long-term incentivéh&gse Directors to provide proper independentsiget to the
Corporation with a view to maximizing shareholdatue. The number of options the Corporation grémesach of
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these Directors reasonably reflects each Directmigributions to the Corporation in his capac#yaaDirector and
as a member of one or more committees of the Bd#rdpplicable), including without limitation the ulit

Committee. Previous grants of options awarded & lttdependent Directors of the Corporation are rtaikeo

consideration when the Corporation considers ttantgrg of new options to the Independent Directdrise

Corporation’s Directors other than the Named ExgeuOfficer were granted 1,400,000 options durihg tear
ended September 30, 2011.

The compensation of Directors has to date beenrdigted by the full Board. The payment of Directdiees to the
Independent Directors recognizes their contrib@itmthe Corporation in their capacities as Inddpan Directors
and members of one or more committees of the Bdi&rdpplicable), including without limitation the wAlit
Committee. Directors did not receive fees for tearyended September 30, 2011.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table contains information about tlkempensation paid to, earned by and payable to, the
Corporation’s President and Chief Executive OfficBom Drivas, for the fiscal years ending Septen@fer2011,
September 30, 2010 and September 30, 2009. Indarooe with the Form, the Corporation does not laaneother
“Named Executive Officers” given that no executoféicer receives total salary and bonus in excésk160,000.
Specific aspects of compensation payable to the edaExecutive Officers of the Corporation are dedth in
further detail in subsequent tables.

Name and Year Salary Share- Option- Non-Equity Incentive ~ Pension  All Other Total
Principal %) Based Based Plan Compensation Value Compen-  Compen-
Position Awards Awards %) (%) sation sation

(%) (%) (%) %)
Annual Long-
Incentive Term
Plans Incentive

Plans
Tom Drivas, 2011 60,000 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 60,000
Presidentand 2010 60,000  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 60,000
C.E.O. 2009 60,000 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 60,000

Outstanding Share-Based and Option-Based Awards Grdaed to Named Executive Officers as of September
30, 2011

No options were granted by the Corporation to issned Executive Officer in the year ending Septer3be2011.

Value Vested or Earned by Named Executive Officer®uring the Year Ended September 30, 2011 Under
Option-Based Awards, Share-Based Awards and Non-Edfy Incentive Plan Compensation

The Named Executive Officer does not currently hahgy options or other share-based awards in theegmding
September 30, 2011.

Employment/Consulting Contracts

The Corporation has not entered into a written ohimg agreement with the Chief Executive Officéfom Drivas
receives $60,000 per year effective October 1, Z00&cting as Chief Executive Officer of the Corgtion. The
Corporation has agreed to pay its Chief Financféic€ $3,000 per month effective February 1, 2012.

Termination and Change of Control Benefits

Other than as noted herein, the Corporation hasongpensatory plan or arrangement with respectad\thmed
Executive Officers that results or will result frahre resignation, retirement or any other termoratif employment
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of any such officer's employment with the Corpapatifrom a change of control of the Corporatioraahange in
the responsibilities of a Named Executive Officatdwing a change in control.
Compensation of Directors
The following table contains information about t@mpensation awarded to, earned by, paid to orijpaya, the
Corporation’s Directors, other than its Named ExieuOfficers, the compensation of whom is detaitdzbve

under “Summary Compensation Table”, for the figesdr ended September 30, 2011.

Director Compensation Table

Name Salary Share- Option- Non-Equity Incentive  Pension All Other Total
(6)] Based Based Plan Compensation Value  Compensation Compensation
Awards  Awards ) (%) ) (%)
®) ()
Annual Long-
Incentive Term
Plans Incentive
Plans
Thomas Nil Nil 307,947 Nil Nil Nil Nil 307,947
Skimming
Brian Robertson Nil Nil 307,947 Nil Nil Nil Nil 307,947
William R. Nil Nil 153,973 Nil Nil Nil Nil 153,973
Johnston@
Jack McOuat Nil Nil 230,960 Nil Nil Nil Nil 230,960
Notes:

@ The fair value of the options was estimated usirgBlack-Scholes Option pricing model with the daling assumptions:
expected dividend yield of 0%; risk free interegterof 1.98%; estimated life of 5 years and expketdatility of 141%. No
options were actually exercised and no value weeived with respect to these Option-Based Awards.

@ Mr. Johnstone is legal Counsel to the Corporatimhreceives separate compensation in that capacity.

Outstanding Share-Based and Option-Based Awards Graed to Directors (Other Than Directors Who Are
Named Executive Officers) as of September 30, 2011

The following table summarizes all share-basedapiibn-based awards granted by the CorporatiotstDirectors
(other than Directors who are Named Executive @f§ovhose share-based and option-based awardarwiitsy as
of September 30, 2011 are detailed above) whiclatstanding as of September 30, 2011.

Option-Based Awards Share-Based Awards
Name Number of  Option Option Expiration Value of Number of Market or
Securities  Exercise Date Unexercised In- Shares or Payout
Underlying Price The-Money Units of Value of
Unexercised %) Options Shares that Share-
Options $) have not Based
# Vested Awards that
# have not
Vested
$)
Thomas Skimming 400,000 1.25 February 17, 2016 Nil Nil Nil
Brian Robertson 400,000 1.25 February 17, 2016 Nil Nil Nil
William R. 200,000 1.25 February 17, 2016 Nil Nil Nil

Johnstone
Jack McOuat 400,000 1.25 July 14, 2016 Nil Nil Nil
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Value Vested or Earned During the Year Ended Septeber 30, 2011 by Directors (Other Than Directors
Who are Named Executive Officers) Under Option-Bask Awards, Share-Based Awards and Non-Equity
Incentive Plan Compensation

The following table summarizes the value vestedayned during the year ended September 30, 20Dirbgtors
of the Corporation (other than Directors who arendd Executed Officers whose value vested or eatngdg the
year ended September 30, 2011 under option-baseddswshare-based awards and non-equity incentare p
compensation is detailed above) in respect of ogtimsed awards, share-based awards and non-encéwytive
plan compensation.

Name Option-Based Awards- Value Share-Based Awards- Value  Non-Equity Incentive Plan
Vested During the Year Vested During the Year Compensation- Value Earned
During the Year

®) ) %)

Thomas Skimming Nil Nil Nil
Brian E. Robertson Nil Nil Nil
William R. Johnstone Nil Nil Nil
Jack McOuat Nil Nil Nil

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

No Directors, executive officers, employees andfoxoner Directors, executive officers and employe¢she
Corporation are or were indebted to the Corporation

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Directors in fliffg their responsibilities of oversight and supsion of the
accounting and financial reporting practices aratedures of the Corporation, the adequacy of iatexocounting
controls and procedures, and the quality and iittegf financial statements of the Corporation.dddition, the
Audit Committee is responsible for directing thedidors’ examination of specific areas and for tledestion of
independent auditors to be appointed by the Shhatetsoof the Corporation.

Audit Committee Charter

The Corporation’s Audit Committee is governed syAudit Committee Charter, a copy of which is aretekereto
asSchedule “B”".

Composition of the Audit Committee

The Corporation’s Audit Committee is comprised bifee Independent Directors, and initially consistBrian
Robertson, Thomas Skimming and Nick Bontis, wittckNBontis serving as chair. All members of the Audi
Committee are financially literate as required HysR-110.

Relevant Education and Experience

Nick Bontis — Dr. Nick Bontis is a tenured professor of stgatananagement at the DeGroote School of Business,
McMaster University. He received both his BachabrArts in 1992 (Honours Business Administratiomdahis
PhD from the Ivey School of Business at The Uniigrsf Western Ontario in 1999. He is a globalycognized
management consultant and frequently appears imttha to discuss corporate performance and bisinesds.
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He is also a former staff auditor at KPMG and isrently an Executive Board Member and Director air\tést
Portfolios Group.

Brian Robertson — Mr. Robertson holds a Graduate Diploma in Bussné&dministration from Laurentian
University, Sudbury, Ontario, and has extensiveeegpce in financial matters related to public camips gained
as President and CEO of Source Exploration asagelbrmer President of Nuinsco Resources Limitati\Antory
Nickel Inc. Mr. Robertson has played a key rolainumber of financings for both public and privedenpanies.

Thomas Skimming — in his role as a professional engineer, comgylfieologist and a director and officer of a
number of resource companies, Mr. Skimming haseresd and analyzed financial statements, MD&As ahero
financial documents of many Canadian resource campa Currently, Mr. Skimming is a member of thelia
committee of Golden Predator Corp., a TSX-listesbtwce company, and formerly acted as Chief Fimduaificer

of Romios Gold Resources Inc., a public resourcengamy listed on the TSXV. Mr. Skimming has been
instrumental in a number of financial transactifrspublic and private companies.

Reliance on Certain Exemptions

The Corporation has not relied on any of the ex@nptset out in Form 52-110F1 of NI 51-110.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

As of the date hereof, the Audit Committee hasauuipted specific policies and procedures for ttgagament of
non-audit services.

External Auditor Service Fees (By Category)

The following table sets out the “audit fees”, “dulated fees”, “tax fees” and “other fees” billdor the years
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Audit Fees Audit-Related Fees Tax Fees Other Fees
September 30, 2011 $17,000 $0 $1,500 $0
September 30, 2010 $11,100 $0 $1,500 $0

Corporate Governance

The following disclosure is provided in complianaith National Instrument 58-101 — Disclosure of fanate
Governance PracticesNI 58-101") and National Policy 58-201 — Corporate Govermafiuidelines (NP 58-
201).

The Board of Directors believes that sound corgoggivernance practices are essential to the effecificient
and prudent operation of the Corporation and todhleancement of shareholder value. The Board mdcRirs
fulfils its mandate directly and through committegsregularly scheduled meetings or as requiredequency of
meetings may be increased and the nature of thedagiéems may be changed depending on the statkeof
Corporation’s affairs and in light of opportunitiasd risks which the Corporation faces. The Doexiare kept
informed of the Corporation’s operations at theseetings as well as through reports and discussiatis
Management.

Board of Directors

Four (4) of the six (6) members of the Board ofdotors, including Jack McOuat, Brian Robertson, mas
Skimming and Nick Bontis, are independent withie theaning of NI 58-201. Only Tom Drivas and With&R.
Johnstone are not independent. Mr. Drivas is thesieent and Chief Executive Officer and contrdie t
Corporation through CEC and Mr. Johnstone is thgp@Qmate Secretary of the Corporation. The BoarDiodctors
is of the view that it operates independently ofnagement. Directors are expected and encouragegetcise
independent judgment and effectively review andllehge the performance of management. All Indepand
Directors have public company experience and auoderstanding of their fiduciary duties. The Ipeiedent
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Directors will be encouraged to have open and frdidcussions and, if felt necessary, require that ion-

independent directors leave the meeting while glisbussions are undertaken. Mr. McOuat, as Chairafighe

Corporation, is responsible for chairing all megsirof the Board of Directors, providing leaderstupghe Board of
Directors, managing the Board of Directors, actisg liaison between the Board of Directors andddament and
representing the Corporation to external groupsaddition to his public company experience, Mr.Qdet has had
an extensive career in the mining industry as drthefounding partners of the WGM Group. Mr. Ma@eeased
his relationship with the WGM Group six (6) yeagoa

The following table summarizes directorships ofestfeporting issuers held by Directors of the Coafion:

Director Name of Reporting Issuer Market Position($ with Issuer

Jack McOuat CAPVEST Income Corp. TSXV Director
Canadian Income Management Inc TSX Director
Sentry Select Primary Metals Corp. TSX Director
Romios Gold Resources Inc. TSXV Director
NCE Diversified Flow-Through (12 Director of the general partner
Limited Partnership
NCE Diversified Flow-Through (11 Director of the general partner
Limited Parntership

Tom Drivas Romios Gold Resources Inc. TSXV DirecRresident and C.E.O.

William R. Active Control Technology Inc. TSXV Director and iporate Secretary

Johnstone Rockcliff Resources Inc. TSXV Director and CorperSecretary
Strait Minerals Inc. TSXV Director and Corporatec&gary
AurCrest Gold Inc. TSXV Director and Corporate Stary
Razore Rock Resources Inc. CNSX Director, CorpdBateretary

and Acting Chief Financial
Officer

Brian Aurgia Gold Corp. TSXV Director

Robertson Source Exploration Corp. TSXV President, C.E.i Birector
Romios Gold Resources Inc. TSXV Director

Thomas Golden Predator Corp. TSX Director

Skimming Romios Gold Resources Inc. TSXV Director and VPylBration
Diadem Resources Ltd. TSXV Director
Macmillan Minerals Inc. TSXV Director and C.E.O.

Nick Bontis Harvest Portfolios Group Inc. TSXV Dater

Board Mandate

The Board of Directors of the Corporation is resgble for the general supervision of the managenoérthe
business as well as for the oversight and revieth®fstrategic planning process of the Corporatidhe Board of
Directors will discharge its responsibilities ditlgcand through its committees, currently consigtof the Audit
Committee and the Compensation Committee. The dBoérDirectors meets regularly to review the busime
operations, corporate governance and financiallteesaf the Corporation. The Board’s Charter sets its
responsibilities and the duties of its memberscopy of the Board Charter of the Corporation ia@ted hereto as
Schedule “C”.
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Position Description

The Board of Directors has not adopted descriptfionthe Chairman of the Board of Directors, theeExecutive
Officer or the chairs of its committees. The BoafdDirectors will be reviewing these functions apléns to
develop such descriptions within the next year.

Orientation and Continuing Education

The Corporation does not have any formal orientagioocess for new Directors. The Corporation isstaering
what requirements will be appropriate on a go fodizasis.

Nomination of Directors

The full Board is responsible for recruiting newr&itors, proposing new Director nominees to ther@and
reviewing the performance and qualifications of&rg Directors.

Ethical Business Conduct

The Board is committed to the establishment andhteaance of appropriate ethical standards to unuéhe
Corporation’s operations and corporate practicége Torporation’'s Code of Business Conduct and Etftioe
“Cod€’) aims to encourage the appropriate standardsmdwect and behaviour of the Directors, officerspkyees
and contractors (collectively th&Cbrporation Representative$) in carrying out their roles for the Corporation.
The Corporation Representatives are expected twidtttintegrity and objectivity, striving at allnties to enhance
the reputation and performance of the Corporafidre general principles of the Code are as follows:

. Corporation Representatives must act honestlypaddaith and in the best interest of the Corporatis a
whole.
. Corporation Representatives have a duty to usecdre and diligence in fulfilling the functions dfeir

position and exercising the powers attached te #raployments.

. A Corporation Representative’s primary respongipib to the Corporation and its Shareholders abale
and there is a duty not to make improper use afrinfition acquired as a Corporation Representatike,
improper use or advantage of their position or gegan conduct likely to bring discredit upon the
Corporation. In addition, Corporation Represeng&gimust not allow personal interests, or the istené
any associated person, to conflict with the intsre$the Corporation.

. Confidential information received by CorporationpResentatives in the course of the exercise of thei
duties remains the property of the Corporatioiis improper to disclose the information, or allava be
disclosed, unless that disclosure has been auglibby the Corporation, or the person from whom the
information is provided, or it is required by law.

The Corporation has also implemented an InsidedifigaPolicy, which imposes basic trading restricticon all
employees and consultants of the Corporation awhistleblower Policy, which encourages the repgrtf any
non-compliance with the Code.

All Directors are required to notify fellow Direat of any material personal interest in any matteder the
Board'’s consideration. Having regard to the naturé extent of such interest, the affected Directay be required
to remove himself from discussion and considerabiprmnd voting on, such matter.

Compensation
On February 1, 2012 the Corporation formed a Corsgion Committee comprised of Thomas Skimming, Jack

McOuat and Nick Bontis. The Compensation Committédebe responsible for all compensation decisionsa go
forward basis.
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Board Assessments

The full Board will be responsible for reviewingttvithe Board of Directors, on an annual basisyéogisite skills
and characteristics of prospective members of thard® of Directors as well as the composition of Board of
Directors as a whole. This assessment will incladeember’s contribution, qualification as indepamigd as well as
consideration of diversity, age, skills and expaeciin the context of the needs of the Board oé@aors.

RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Common Shares of the Corpaomat speculative and involves significant risksekhshould
be carefully considered by prospective investorforeepurchasing such securities. In addition te tither
information set forth elsewhere in this Prospecths, following risk factors should be carefully i@wved by
prospective investors:

Operating History

The Corporation has a very limited history of opierss, is in the early stage of development and tnines
considered a start-up. As such, the Corporatiosulgect to many risks common to such enterpriseduding

under-capitalization, cash shortages, limitatiofith wespect to personnel, financial and other resemiand lack of
revenues. There is no assurance that the Corporatfib be successful in achieving a return on Shalders’

investment and the likelihood of success must Insidered in light of its early stage of operatiofse Corporation
has no intention of paying any dividends in theefmeable future.

Exploration, Development and Operating Risk

The exploration for and development of uranium &HE properties involves significant risks which eva
combination of careful evaluation, experience andwdedge may not eliminate. While the discoveryaafore
body may result in substantial rewards, few prapenvhich are explored are ultimately developed prtoducing
mines. Major expenses may be required to locatieestablish mineral reserves, to develop metattatgirocess
and to construct mining and processing facilitiea particular site. Whether a mineral deposit isdlcommercially
viable depends on a number of factors, some of whie: the particular attributes of the deposithsas size,
grade and proximity to infrastructure; mineral amgktal prices which are highly cyclical; and goveemn
regulations, including regulations relating to pectaxes, royalties, land tenure, land use, inmagpend exporting
of minerals and environmental protection. The exdfect of these factors cannot be accuratelyipted, but the
combination of these factors may result in the Goapion not receiving an adequate return on invksapital.

Although Appia does not currently operate a mineaow of its properties, it intends to pursue theettgpoment of
mines on the Property. There is no certainty thetexpenditures made by Appia towards the seardlegaluation
of mineral deposits will result in discoveries afemercial quantities of ore.

Mining operations generally involve a high degréeisk. Such operations are subject to all theahdg and risks
normally encountered in the exploration, developimeamd production of uranium and REE and other bmse
precious metals, including unusual and unexpectmlogic formations, seismic activity, rock burstsyve-ins,

flooding and other conditions involved in the dni§j and removal of material, any of which couldulegn damage

to, or destruction of, mines and other producinglifees, damage to life or property, environmendamage and
possible legal liability. Milling operations arelgect to hazards such as equipment failure ourfaibf retaining

dams around tailings disposal areas which maytrasehvironmental pollution and consequent lidpili

Early Stage Property

The Property is in the early exploration stage ianglithout reserves. The proposed programs on tbpePty are an
exploratory search for a mineral deposit. Developnod the Property will only follow upon obtainirgatisfactory
results. Exploration for and the development ofenéfs involve a high degree of risk and few prdpertwhich are
explored, are ultimately developed into producingperties. There is no assurance that the Corporati
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exploration and development activities will resultany discoveries of commercial bodies of ore. Tdrgg-term
success of the Corporation’s operations will baige part directly related to the cost and sucoésts exploration
programs, which may be affected by a number obfact

Insufficient Resources or Reserves

Substantial additional expenditures will be requite establish either resources or reserves onralipeoperties

and to develop processes to extract the minensis.assurance can be given that minerals will beadisred in

sufficient quantities to justify commercial opeaats or that the funds required for developmenthbmnobtained on a
timely basis or at all.

Uncertainty Relating to Inferred Mineral Resources

Inferred mineral resources cannot be convertedriteeral reserves as the ability to assess geabgantinuity is
not sufficient to demonstrate economic viabilitfpue to the uncertainty which may attach to inferreheral
resources, there is no assurance that inferredratimesources will be upgraded to resources withiicgent
geological continuity to constitute proven and @iole mineral reserves as a result of continuedoeatpbn.

Uncertainty in the Estimation of Mineral Reserves ad Resources

There is a degree of uncertainty to the estimatibmineral reserves and mineral resources and soreling

grades being mined or dedicated to future prodoctitntil mineral reserves or mineral resources areially

mined and processed, the quantity of mineral asdrve grades must be considered as estimates lmnaddition,

the quantity of mineral reserves and mineral resesimay vary depending on, among other thingsjwraand RE
prices. Any material change in quantity of mineederves, mineral resources, grade or strippitig naay affect
the economic viability of the Property. In additjothere can be no assurance that recoveries il soae

laboratory tests will be duplicated in larger sdalets under on-site conditions or during produrcti&luctuation in
uranium and REE prices, results of drilling, metadbical testing and production and the evaluatibmine plans
subsequent to the date of any estimate may regemsion of such estimate. The volume and gradeesérves
mined and processed and recovery rates may ndtebsaime as currently anticipated. Any materialicédns in

estimates of mineral reserves and mineral resouoceSppia’s ability to extract these mineral resey, could have
a material adverse effect on Appia’s results ofrafiens and financial condition.

Uranium and REE Prices

The prices of uranium and rare metals and minenassubject to change and a substantial or extedeehe in
these prices could materially and adversely affieetvalue of the Corporation’s mineral propertidhe prices of
uranium and REEs have fluctuated widely, partidylar recent years, and may experience volatile sigdificant
price movements over short periods of time. Fadioat impact on the price of uranium include dedni@n nuclear
power, political and economic conditions in uranipmducing and consuming nations, reprocessingehtsfuel
and re-enrichment of depleted uranium tails or ejaséles of excess civilian and military inventsr{encluding
from dismantling nuclear weapons) by governmentd idustry participants and products levels andsca$
production. The price of both uranium and REEafiscted by numerous factors beyond the Corporaticontrol,
including general international economic and péditiconditions, expectations of inflation, inteinatl currency
exchange rates, interest rates, global or regiomasumption patterns, speculative activities, lewl supply and
demand, increased production of uranium, rare metatl minerals due to new mine developments andoired
mining and production methods, availability and tcof metal substitutes, metal stock levels mairgdirby
producers and others, inventory carrying costs,demand for downstream products incorporating REEs.

In addition, China currently provides the vast migjoof the world’s supply of rare metals and migsr It has, in
recent years, reduced its export quotas and stamnieaksing heavier taxes on the production or expbrare metals
and minerals. These changes have resulted infiseymti increases in the price of rare metals angensils. There
can be no assurance that China will continue itseot policy and any decision by China to discamgirits current
policies could result in a significant decreaséhimprice of rare metals and minerals.
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Because the Corporation expects to derive the antigt majority of value from the value of its unam and rare
metals and minerals deposits, that value will fiaté as the price of these metals increase orareA sustained
period of declining uranium and rare metals andemils prices would materially and adversely afftut
Corporation’s financial performance, financial pimsi, results of operations and the value of itaemal properties.

Limited Number of Customers

A small number of electric utilities worldwide buyanium for nuclear power plants. Because ofithédd market
for uranium, a reduction in demand by electricitig for newly-produced uranium would adverselfeeff the
Corporation’s business.

Public Acceptance of Nuclear Energy

Because of unique political, technological and emvinental factors that affect the nuclear indugtrg, industry is
subject to public opinion risks which could haveamtverse impact on the demand for nuclear powerlirardase
the regulation of the nuclear power industry. Agident at a nuclear reactor anywhere in the weoldd impact
the continuing acceptance of nuclear energy andiuhee prospects for nuclear generation, which rhaye a
material adverse effect on Appia.

Key Personnel

The success of the Corporation will be largely aej@at upon the performance of its key officers,stitants and
employees. Locating mineral deposits dependsramaber of factors, not the least of which is thehtecal skill of

the exploration personnel involved. The succesh®fCorporation is largely dependent on the peréorce of its
key individuals. Failure to retain key individuals to attract or retain additional key individualith necessary
skills could have a materially adverse impact ugue Corporation’s success. The Corporation haspoothased
any “key-man” insurance with respect to any ofbtsectors, officers or key employees and has noectiplans to
do so.

Conflicts of Interest

Certain Directors and officers of the Corporatiore @r may become associated with other naturalureso
companies which may give rise to conflicts of ie#r In accordance with the CBCA, Directors wheeha

material interest in any person who is a party tmaterial contract or a proposed material contwith the

Corporation are required, subject to certain exoapf to disclose that interest and generally afp$tam voting on

any resolution to approve the contract. In addijtibhe Directors and the officers are requireddioh@nestly and in
good faith with a view to the best interests of @mrporation. The Directors and officers of therg@wation have
either other full-time employment or other businesstime restrictions placed on them and accorginthe

Corporation will not be the only business entegpoéthese Directors and officers.

Additional Capital

The exploration and development of the Property keijuire substantial additional financing. Fadluo obtain
sufficient financing may result in delaying or iffidéte postponement of exploration, developmenprduction on
the Property or even a loss of the Corporatiortarest in the Property. The Corporation will alsquire additional
funding to acquire further property interests. Hidity of the Corporation to arrange such finamggcin the future
will depend, in part, upon the prevailing capitahrket conditions as well as the business performarfcthe
Corporation. There can be no assurance that tigo@uion will be successful in its efforts to arge additional
financing on terms satisfactory to the Corporatidhadditional financing is raised by the issuanéeshares from
treasury of the Corporation, control of the Corpiora may change and security holders may suffeitiaddl
dilution.

Title

The mining claims that comprise the Property haseheen surveyed and, accordingly, the precisditotaf the
boundaries of the claims and ownership of minegdits on specific tracts of land comprising tharokmay be in
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doubt. Such claims have not been converted to laadeenure, and as a result, are subject to amougbliance
with assessment work requirements. Other partieg dispute the Corporation’s title to the Propektyhile the
Corporation has diligently investigated title td mdineral claims comprising the Property and, te thest of its
knowledge, title to the Property is in good stagdithis should not be construed as a guarantdteoffthe Property
may be subject to prior unregistered agreementisansfers or land claims, including First Natioasd claims, and
title may be affected by undetected defects. Tieer® guarantee that title to the Property will hetchallenged or
impugned. Also, in many countries, including Camaahd the USA, claims have been made and new claiens
being made by aboriginal peoples that call intostjoa the rights granted by the governments ofdrmmintries in
respect of resource properties.

Aboriginal Land Claims and Aboriginal Rights

The Property may in the future be the subject afriginal peoples’ land claims or aboriginal rigltaims. The
legal basis of an aboriginal land claim and abaagirights is a matter of considerable legal coxipteand the
impact of the assertion of such a claim, or thesiibs effect of a settlement of such claim upon @weporation
cannot be predicted without any degree of certaattthis time. In addition, no assurance can bergihat any
recognition of aboriginal rights or claims whetlgrway of a negotiated settlement or by judiciarmmuncement
(or through the grant of an injunction prohibitimgneral exploration or mining activity pending regmn of any
such claim) would not delay or even prevent thepGration’s exploration, development or mining aitis.

Barriers To Commercial Production

The Corporation will rely upon consultants and eshier construction and operating expertise. Thenemics of
developing mineral properties is affected by maawtdrs including but not limited to the cost okagtions, grade
of ore, fluctuating mineral markets, costs of pssieg equipment, competition, extensions on liceresa such
other factors as government regulations, includiegulations relating to title to mineral concessioroyalties,
allowable production, importing and exporting ofnmials and environmental protection. Many of thevatfactors
are beyond the control of the Corporation. Depemdin the price of minerals produced, the Corponatitay
determine that it is impractical to either commeaceontinue commercial production.

Maintaining Interests In Mineral Properties

The Corporation’s continuing right to maintain @&nership in the Property and the SaskatchewarnmSla¥ill be

dependent upon compliance with applicable laws witd agreements to which it is a party. The Cogtion’s

properties consist of various rights to acquir@rests in lands prospective for mineral exploratidrhere is no
assurance that the Corporation will be able toink#ad/or maintain all required permits and licenttecarry on its
operations. Additional expenditures will be reediby the Corporation to maintain its intereststsnproperties.
There can be no assurance that the Corporatiorhasi the funds, will be able to raise the fundsidirbe able to
comply with the provisions of the agreements retatio its properties which would entitle it to artarest therein
and, if it fails to do so, its interest in certaifthese properties may be reduced or be lost.

Acquiring Additional Properties

Significant and increasing competition exists fanemal acquisition opportunities throughout the MdorAs a result
of this competition, some of which is with largestier established mining companies with substantphbilities
and greater financial and technical resourcesCibiporation may be unable to acquire rights to @xgldditional
attractive mining properties on terms it considmseptable.

Insurance and Uninsured Risks

The Corporation’s business is subject to a numbesks and hazards including adverse environmesdatlitions,
industrial accidents, labour disputes, unusualmaxpected geological conditions, ground or slojdares, changes
in the regulatory environment and natural phenonserch as inclement weather conditions, floods amthquakes.
Such occurrences could result in damage to mimnaberties or production facilities, personal igjur death,
environmental damage to the Corporation’s propeiiethe properties of others, delays in miningnetary losses
and possible legal liability. Although the Corpaoat maintains liability insurance in amounts whittconsiders
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adequate, the nature of these risks is such tigtifies might exceed policy limits, the liabié$ and hazards might
not be insurable, or the Corporation may electtndnsure against such liabilities due to high prem costs or
other reasons, in which event the Corporation cauddir significant costs that could have a matbriablverse
effect upon its financial position.

The Corporation is not insured against environmerigks. Insurance against environmental risks l@ding

potential liability for pollution or other hazardss a result of the disposal of waste products oicguifrom

exploration) has not been generally available tmmanies within the industry. The Corporation widlripdically

evaluate the cost and coverage of the insurandasag®rtain environmental risks that is availableetermine if it
would be appropriate to obtain such insurance.twporation may be unable to maintain insuranceteer these
risks at economically feasible premiums. Insuraoceerage may not continue to be available or maty e
adequate to cover any resulting liability. Withauch insurance, and if the Corporation becomegesulo

environmental liabilities, the payment of such iiitles would reduce or eliminate its available éisnor could
exceed the funds the Corporation has to pay sadfiliies and result in bankruptcy. Should the gwation be
unable to fund fully the remedial cost of an enmir@ntal problem it might be required to enter iiriterim

compliance measures pending completion of the reduemedial work.

External Market Factors

The marketability and price of minerals which maydzquired or discovered by the Corporation wilbHected by
numerous factors beyond the control of the Corpamat The Corporation will be affected by changjrgduction
costs, the supply or/and demand for minerals, #ie of inflation, the inventory levels of minerateld by
competing companies, the political environment elmanges in international investment patterns.

Governmental and Regulatory Requirements

Government approvals and permits are currently, amay in the future be, required in connection wilie
Corporation’s operations. To the extent such apgeoware required and not obtained, the Corporatiaty be
restricted or prohibited from proceeding with pladrexploration or development activities. Faillwecomply with
applicable laws, regulations and permitting requieats may result in enforcement actions thereurideluding
orders issued by regulatory or judicial authoritesising operations to cease or be curtailed, aayg include
corrective measures requiring capital expendituresallation of additional equipment, or remediations. Parties
engaged in mining operations may be required topamsate those suffering loss or damage by reasdheof
mining activities and may be liable for civil oriminal fines or penalties imposed for violationsapiplicable laws
or regulations. Amendments to current laws, reguiatand permitting requirements, or more stringgaglication
of existing laws, could have a material adverse a@ctipon the Corporation and cause increases in atapit
expenditures or production costs or reductions emels of production at producing properties or nequ
abandonment or delays in development of properties.

Environmental Regulations

Due to the early stage of the Corporation’s operatiand its minimal capitalization, any environnaénigsues or
any changes in environmental regulations woulcbsiety adversely affect the Corporation.

All phases of the Corporation’s operations are exttbjo environmental regulation. Environmental $éagion is
becoming more strict with increased fines and p&lfor non-compliance, more stringent environraknt
assessments of proposed projects and a heightesgréed of responsibility for companies and theiriceffs,
directors and employees. There can be no assuthateenvironmental regulation will not adverselyeat the
Corporation’s operations. Environmental hazards mast on a property in which the Corporation hadsinterest
which are unknown to the Corporation at presentctvthave been caused by previous or existing owaers
operators of the property.

Environmental legislation provides for restrictioasd prohibitions on spills, releases or emissiohsarious
substances produced in association with certainngrimdustry operations, such as seepage froomggildisposal
areas, which would result in environmental pollntiéd breach of such legislation may result in timpaosition of
fines and penalties. In addition, certain type®pérations require the submission and approvaheirenmental
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impact assessments. Environmental legislation islveng in a manner which means stricter standardd a
enforcement, fines and penalties for non-compliareemore stringent.

Environmental assessments of proposed projecty eatreightened degree of responsibility for comearand
directors, officers and employees. The cost of d@mpe with changes in governmental regulationsahpstential
to reduce the profitability of operations. Therents assurance that future changes in environmeagaillation, if
any, will not adversely affect the Corporation’seogtions. The Corporation intends to fully complythwall
environmental regulations in all of the countriesvhich it is active.

Commodity Prices and Exchange Rate Fluctuations

The feasibility of mineral exploration is signifitly affected by changes in the market price ohiuna and REEs.
Uranium and REE prices fluctuate widely and area#d by numerous factors beyond the Corporatiocorgrol.
The level of interest rates, the rate of inflatitme world supply of gold and the stability of e&cige rates can all
cause significant fluctuations in uranium and REEgs. Such external economic factors are in infitnenced by
changes in international investment patterns andetaoy systems and political developments.

Dividend Policy

No dividends on the Common Shares have been paitiédoyCorporation to date. For the foreseeableréuho
dividends on the Common Shares will be paid to &hzlders.

Absence of Public Trading Market

Currently, there is no public market for the Comn8jrares and there can be no assurance that ae adiket for
the Common Shares will develop or be sustained #fteReceipt Date. If an active public markettfee Common
Shares does not develop, the liquidity of an inMestinvestment may be limited and the share pmieg decline
below the price paid for the Common Shares by suastor.

Controlling Shareholder

CEC will own approximately 81.66% of outstandingital of the Corporation on the Receipt Date. CEC
controlled by Tom Drivas, a Director and officer tife Corporation. This will make it very difficultor
Shareholders to replace incumbent management inghefuture and may have an adverse impact olicihdity
of the Common Shares.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS

The Corporation is not involved in any outstandittgeatened or pending litigation that would havenaterial
adverse effect on the Corporation.

Since the formation of the Corporation to the deeeof, management knows of no:

0] penalties or sanctions imposed against thep@uation by a court relating to provincial or
territorial securities legislation or by a secwstiregulatory authority;

(i) other penalties or sanctions imposed by aricau regulatory body against the Corporation
necessary to be disclosed for the Prospectus tetitge full, true and plain disclosure of all
material facts relating to the Corporation; and

(iii) settlement agreements the Corporation enterdo before a court relating to provincial or
territorial securities legislation or with a seci@$ regulatory authority.
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INTERESTS OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRAN SACTIONS
Tom Drivas, President, CEO and a director of thepGration controls CEC which in turn controls ther@ration.
Reference is made to the headings “Description hef Business — Acquisition of the Property”, “Privali
Securityholders”, “Promoters”, “Audit Committee ai@brporate Governance — Board of Directors” andskRi
Factors — Controlling Shareholder”. No other infied person (within the meaning of applicable sé¢iesrlaws) of
the Corporation, and no Director or officer, or afytheir respective associates or affiliates, had any material
interest, direct or indirect, by way of benefic@knership of securities or otherwise, in any tratisa since the
inception date of the Corporation.
AUDITORS, REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

Wasserman Ramsay, Chartered Accountants, Libertyar®@g HSBC Tower, 3601 Hwy 7 East, Suite 1008,
Markham, Ontario, L3R OM3 are the auditors of tlwpgdration.

The registrar and transfer agent of the Corporasokquity Financial Trust Company, 200 Universityenue,
Suite 400, Toronto, Ontario M5H 4H1.
OTHER MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in this Prospectus, th@dation has not entered into any material corgramther than
contracts entered into the ordinary course of lassin

Copies of the following material contracts arewil be, available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com:

(a) the CEC Vending Agreement;

(b) the Patrie Agreement;

(c) the Denison Agreement;

(d) the Royalty Agreement; and

(e) the EMC Agreement.
A copy of any material contract and the Technicap&t may be inspected from the date hereof and fmriod of
thirty (30) days after the Receipt Date during nalrisusiness hours at the Corporation’s head officite 1010, 25
Adelaide Street East, Toronto, Ontario M5C 3A1.

EXPERTS

The following persons or companies whose professidousiness gives authority to the report, vabmgtstatement
or opinion made by the person or company are nam¢his Prospectus as having prepared or certdigdport,
valuation, statement or opinion in this Prospectus.
Al Workman and Kurt Breede are the Authors of tleefinical Report and each is a “qualified persondefine in
NI 43-101. The Authors and WGM have not held, neze or are to receive any registered or beneficirest,

direct or indirect, in any securities of the Comg@n or its associates or affiliates.

Wasserman Ramsay, Chartered Accountants, are tlimrsuof the Corporation and are independent witthie
meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct ofiilsétute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario.
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Gardiner Roberts LLP is legal Counsel to the Caapion. As of the date hereof the partners andcisss of
Gardiner Roberts LLP, as a group, beneficially owlirectly or indirectly, less than 1% of the issuadd
outstanding Common Shares of the Corporation.

OTHER MATERIAL FACTS

Other than as disclosed herein, there are no otlaéerial facts about the Corporation that are etlosed under
any other items and are necessary in order fotospectus to contain full, true and plain disatesof all material
facts relating to the Corporation.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The unaudited condensed interim financial statemeftthe Corporation prepared by management fornthe
months ended June 30, 2012 are attached to and gartmof this Prospectus &chedule “A”. The audited
financial statements for the Corporation for theargeended September 30, 2011, September 30, 2040 an
September 30, 2009 are attached to and form pé#nisoProspectus &chedule “A”.
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GLOSSARY OF NON-TECHNICAL TERMS
“Affiliate ” has the meaning ascribed to such term irSeurities Acf{Ontario);
“Appia” means Appia Energy Corp.;
“Audit Committee” means a committee that acts as a liaison betwee@uditors, management and the Board of
Directors and ensures that the auditors have éitfath consider and discuss governance and asdiies with
parties not directly responsible for operations;
“Authors” means the authors of the Technical Report;
“Beneficial Owner’ means a holder of a beneficial interest in a ComSioare;
“Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Corporation;
“CBCA” means th&€anada Business Corporations Act

“CEC” means Canada Enerco Corp.;

“CEC Claims” means six-one (61) claims comprising the Propextguired pursuant to the CEC Vending
Agreement;

“CEC Royalties' means the royalties granted to CEC pursuantéddBC Vending Agreement;

“CEC Vending Agreement means the agreement dated November 1, 2007 bet®@&€ and the Corporation
pursuant to which the Corporation acquired the CHEms;

“CEE"” means Canadian Exploration Expenditures;

“Cod€’ means the Corporation’s Code of Business CondndtEthics;

“Common Share$ means the common shares in the authorized capitiaé €Corporation;

“Corporation” means Appia Energy Corp. and, where the contextines) includes any of its subsidiaries;
“Counsel means Gardiner Roberts LLP;

“Current Drill Program ” means the completed drill program as recommeinléae Technical Report;
“Denisori means Denison Mines Inc.;

“Denison Claim$ means the two (2) CEC Claims transferred to Demis

“Denison Agreemerit means the Assignment and Royalty Agreement betvizenison and the Corporation dated
July 22, 2009;

“Director” means a director of the Corporation and “Direstaneans all of the directors of the Corporation;
“Eligible Person$ means any employee, executive officer, directorconsultant of the Corporation and its
subsidiaries to whom Options can be granted inamek on a prospectus and registration exemptiorerund

applicable securities laws;

“EMC” means Energy Metals Corp.;



110

“EMC Agreement’” means Assumption of Obligations Agreements daMalvember 2, 2007 among the
Corporation, CEC, Quincy Gold Corp. and EMC (nowned@ by Uranium One Inc.) pursuant to which EMC has
the right to purchase from the Corporation, atdfiering price, up to 9.9% of the Common Shareséasdspursuant
to the first public offering of securities by th@i@oration by prospectus resulting in the listirighe Corporation’s
securities on a stock exchange. Alternativelyhé Corporation effects a reverse takeover, maygether business
combination with a company listed on a recognizedisexchange, EMC will have the right to purchaseclosing
of the transaction, up to 9.9% of the securitiethefresulting company at the same price as seudte issued for
the acquisition of the Corporation;

“Form” means Form 51-102F6;

“Independent Director’ means a Director who is “independent” (as defimelli 52-110) of the Corporation;
“IFRS” means International Financial Reporting Standards

“MD&A " means Management’s Discussion and Analysis;

“MNDM " means the Ministry of Northern Development andhif;

“NI 43-101" means National Instrument 43-18fandards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects

“NI 52-110 means National Instrument 52-1A0idit Committees

“NI 58-101" means National Instrument 58-1Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices

“NP 58-201 means National Policy 58-2@lorporate Governance Guidelines;

“Optione€’ means a person holding Options under the Stodio@Plan;

“Options” means the options granted by the Corporation ®ptirchase of Common Shares to Eligible Persons;

“Patrie Agreement’ means the vending agreement dated February 208 B8tween Dan Patrie Exploration Ltd.
and the Corporation;

“Patrie Claims” means the six (6) claims comprising the Propadguired pursuant to the Patrie Agreement;

“Patrie Royalty” means the 1% Uranium Production Royalty on thei®&laims for all Uranium sold at a price of
at least US$130 per pound,;

“PEA” means Preliminary Economic Assessment;

“Prior Resource Estimaté means the mineral resource estimate prepared G{¥Mh 2008, referred to on page 49
of this Prospectus;

“Property” means the 100 mining claims located in Beangdg®o Bouck, Buckles, Gunterman, Joubin and
Lehman Townships, Sault Ste. Marie Mining Divisiamthe Province of Ontario inclusive of the CEGii@is, the
Patrie Claims and the Staked Claims;

“Prospectus$ means this preliminary Non-Offering ProspectutedeSeptember 27, 2012;

“Qualified Persor’ means a qualified person as defined in NI 43-101;

“Qualifying Jurisdictions” means the provinces of Alberta, British Columtsaskatchewan and Ontario;

“Receipt Daté means the date a receipt is issued for the firadtrctus of Appia by the Qualifying Jurisdictions;
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“Royalty Agreement means the royalty agreement dated February 22 2@tween CEC and the Corporation to
clarify the terms of the CEC Royalties;

“Saskatchewan Claim% means the Corporation’s interests in 10 mineralines in the Athabasca Basin of
Saskatchewan;

“Shareholder(s) means the holder(s) of Common Shares;

“Staked Claims means the number aflaims staked by CEC and transferred to Appia d&eddaims directly
staked by Appia all comprising part of the Property

“Stock Option Pla’ means the plan adopted by the Corporation autimyithe Corporation to grant Options to
Eligible Persons;

“Technical Report’ means the technical report entitled “A TechniRalview of the Appia Energy Corp. Rare Earth
Metal-Uranium Property, Elliot Lake District, Nortbentral Ontario, Canada” dated July 18, 2011 emitby Al
Workman, P. Geo and Kurt Breede, P. Eng of Wattgfissand McOuat Limited;

“Teasdale Zon& means that portion of the Property located in IBes Township approximately 1 km east of the
former Can-Met Mine and situated obliquely on sr{land down dip) about 4 km southeast of the Plslivae on
which WGM has calculated a rare earth metal andiunaresource. Reference is made to the TechRiepbrt and
the disclosure under the heading “The Propertyfdiather particulars;

“TSXV” means the TSX Venture Exchange; and

“WGM " means Watts, Griffis and McOuat Limited.
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%Sselma_]’l 3601 Hwy 7 East, Suite 1008. Markham, Ontario L3R 0M3
Tel. 905-948-8637 Fax 905.948.8638

Ral’nsay email: wrami@wassermanramsay.ca

Chartered Accountants

AUDITORS’ CONSENT

We have read the Non-Offering Prospectus of Appia Energy Corp. (the “Corporation”) dated December 12, 2012.
We have complied with Canadian generally accepted standards for an auditor’s involvement with offering
documents.

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the above-mentioned Prospectus of our report to the Shareholders of
the Corporation on the balance sheets of the Corporation as at September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and the
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, Deficit and Cash Flows for the periods then ended. Our report is
dated December 23, 2011.

lﬂwnwww@awub

Chartered Accountants

December 12, 2012
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.

CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the three and nine months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
(unaudited)
(Expressed in Cdn $)



Appia Energy Corp.
Condensed Interim Statements of Financial Position
(Expressed in Cdn $)

Unaudited
As at June 30 September 30 October 1
2012 2011 2010
$ $ $
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents (note 4) 1,607,362 1,765,825 629,712
Cash and cash equivalents for future exploration activities (note 4) 1,717,856 1,898,160 -
Accounts receivable 6,532 5,248 572
Prepaid expenses 71,601 6,208 7,859
3,403,351 3,675,441 638,143
Mineral properties
Acquisition costs (note 5) 725,916 725,916 597,593
Deferred exploration expenditures (note 5) 3,400,463 3,206,659 3,020,755
7,529,730 7,608,016 4,256,491
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable & accruals 369,707 300,051 219,853
Common shares subscribed, not issued - 3,125 -
369,707 303,176 219,853
Deferred flow-through share premium liability 236,241 260,908 -
Deferred income tax 517,033 360,837 398,200
1,122,981 924,921 618,053
Contingencies and commitments (note 10)
Shareholders' equity
Share capital (note 6(a)) 7,835,123 7,796,776 4,834,343
Warrants (note 6(c)) 1,302 117,091 -
Contributed surplus (note 6(d)) 1,863,246 1,000,827 -
Deficit (3,292,922) (2,231,599) (1,195,905)
6,406,749 6,683,095 3,638,438
7,529,730 7,608,016 4,256,491

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed interim financial statements

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD ON September 27, 2012

"Anastasios (Tom) Drivas" "William R. Johnstone"
Anastasios (Tom) Drivas William R. Johnstone



Appia Energy Corp.
Condensed Interim Statements of Changes in Equity
(Expressed in Cdn $)

Unaudited
Share Capital Warrants Contributed Surplus Deficit Total
$ $ $ $ $

At October 1, 2010 4,834,343 - - (1,195,905) 3,638,438
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period - - - (757,389) (757,389)
Common shares issued, net 1,477,500 1,477,500
Flow throw shares issued, net 1,779,232 - - - 1,779,232
Value associated with warrants issued (110,562) 110,562 - - -
Share-based payments - - 673,634 - 673,634
Share issuance costs (169,413) 6,529 - - (162,884)

At June 30, 2011 7,811,100 117,091 673,634 (1,953,294) 6,648,531
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period - - - (278,305) (278,305)
Common shares issued, net - - - - -
Flow throw shares issued, net - - - - -
Value associated with warrants issued - - - - -
Share issuance costs (14,324) - - - (14,324)
Share-based payments - - 327,193 - 327,193

At September 30, 2011 7,796,776 117,091 1,000,827 (2,231,599) 6,683,095
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period - - - (1,061,323) (1,061,323)
Common shares issued, net 28,400 - - - 28,400
Flow throw shares issued, net 11,250 - - - 11,250
Flow through warrants expired - (117,091) 117,091 - -
Value associated with warrants issued (1,302) 1,302 - - -
Share-based payments - - 745,328 - 745,328

At June 30, 2012 7,835,123 1,302 1,863,246 (3,292,922) 6,406,749




A-5
Appia Energy Corp.

Condensed Interim Statements of Profit and Loss, and Comprehensive Profit and Loss
(Expressed in Cdn $)

Unaudited
For the nine months ended For the three months ended
June 30 June 30

2012 2011 2012 2011
$ $ $ $

Expenses
Professional fees 147,862 50,553 33,969 23,595
Management fees and salaries 45,000 45,000 15,000 15,000
Office and general 22,747 17,460 5,919 4,351
Shareholder communication 4,187 6,086 695 253
Share-based payments 745,328 673,634 100,977 96,233
Loss for the period before the following (965,124) (792,733) (156,560) (139,432)
Interest income 33,080 17,041 11,085 13,284
Net loss for the period (932,044) (775,692) (145,475) (126,148)
Deferred income tax (129,279) 18,303 (130,738) 6,734
Net profit/(loss) and comprehensive profit/(loss) (1,061,323) (757,389) (276,213) (119,414)
Deficit, beginning of period (2,231,599) (1,195,905) (3,016,709) (1,833,880)
Deficit, end of the period (3,292,922) (1,953,294) (3,292,922) (1,953,294)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 40,990,872 40,166,027 41,324,850 40,726,389
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.03) $ (0.02) $ (0.01) $ (0.00)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed interim financial statements



Appia Energy Corp.

Condensed Interim Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in Cdn $)

Unaudited

For the nine months ended

June 30
2012 2011
$ $
Operating activities
Net loss for the period (1,061,323) (757,389)
Items not affecting cash:
Deferred income tax 129,279 (18,303)
Share-based payments 745,328 673,634
(186,716) (102,058)
Net change in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable (1,284) (1,650)
Prepaid expenses (65,393) 2,071
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 66,530 75,043
(186,863) (26,594)
Investing activities
Mineral property acquisition costs - (128,323)
Deferred exploration expenditures (193,804) (139,092)
(193,804) (267,415)
Financing activities
Private placement of common shares 41,900 3,556,250
Share issue expense - (162,884)
41,900 3,393,366
Change in cash and cash equivalents (338,767) 3,099,357
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 3,663,985 629,712
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 3,325,218 3,729,069
Cash comprises:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,607,362 1,781,856
Cash and cash equivalents for
future exploration activities 1,717,856 1,947,213
3,325,218 3,729,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed interim financial statements
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.

Notes to Condensed Interim Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

(expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise stated)
(Unaudited)

1. Nature of operations and going concern

Appia Energy Corp. (“Appia” or "the Company") has interests in resource properties and is in the process
of determining whether its properties contain resources that are economically recoverable.

The accompanying unaudited condensed interim financial statements of the Company have been
prepared by, and are the responsibility of, the Company’s management.

These unaudited condensed interim financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
which assumes that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business for the foreseeable future. As at June 30, 2012 the Company had no sources
of operating cash flows. The Company will therefore require additional funding which, if not raised, would
result in the curtailment of activities and project delays. The Company had working capital of $3,033,644
as at June 30, 2012, and has incurred losses since inception, resulting in an accumulated deficit of
$3,292,922 as at June 30, 2012. The Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern is uncertain and is
dependent upon its ability to continue to raise adequate financing. There can be no assurances that the
Company will be successful in this regard, and therefore, there is doubt regarding the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, and accordingly, the use of accounting principles applicable to a going
concern. These condensed interim financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be
necessary if the “going concern” assumption were not appropriate. If the “going concern” assumption
were not appropriate for these interim financial statements, then adjustments to the carrying values of the
assets and liabilities, the expenses and the balance sheet classifications, which could be material, would
be necessary.

The recoverability of expenditures on its resource properties and related deferred exploration
expenditures is dependent upon the existence of resources that are economically recoverable,
confirmation of the Company's ownership interests in the claims, the ability of the Company to obtain
necessary financing to complete the exploration and the development of the properties, and upon future
profitable production or proceeds from disposition thereof.

2. Basis of preparation and statement of compliance with IAS 34

These unaudited condensed interim financial statements form part of the period covered by the
Company’s first IFRS annual financial statements IFRS represents standards and interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and comprise IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”), and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee
(“IFRICs") or for the former Standing Interpretations Committee (“SICs”).These unaudited condensed
interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34- Interim Financial Reporting
and on the basis of IFRS standards and interpretations expected to be effective as at the Company’s first
IFRS annual reporting date, September 30, 2012 with significant accounting policies as described in Note
3.

These unaudited condensed interim financial statements may not contain all the disclosures required by
IFRS for annual financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited
annual financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2011 prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“Canadian GAAP”). The basis of preparation of these
unaudited condensed interim financial statements is different to that of the Company’s most recent annual
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financial statements due to the adoption of IFRS. An explanation of how the transition to IFRS with a
transition date of October 1, 2010 has affected the reported financial position and financial performance
of the Company is provided in Note 12.

IFRS 1 — First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS 1") governs the first-
time adoption of IFRS. IFRS 1 in general requires accounting policies under IFRS to be applied
retrospectively to determine the opening balance sheet of the Company as of transition date of October 1,
2010, and allows certain exemptions.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for fair presentation have been
included in these unaudited condensed interim financial statements. Operating results for the nine months
ended June 30, 2012, may not be indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending
September 30, 2012.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The IASB continues to amend and add to current IFRS standards and interpretations with several projects
underway. Accordingly, the accounting policies adopted by the Company for the Company’s first IFRS annual
financial statements will be determined as at September 30, 2012. In the event that accounting policies
adopted at September 30, 2012 differ materially from the accounting policies used in the preparation of these
unaudited condensed interim financial statements, these unaudited condensed interim financial statements
will be restated to retrospectively account for the application of those policies adopted at September 30, 2012.

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these unaudited condensed interim financial
statements are as follows:

Presentation Currency
The Company's presentation currency and functional currency is the Canadian dollar ("$").
Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and notes. By their nature, these
estimates, judgments and assumptions are subject to measurement uncertainty and the effect on the financial
statements of changes in such estimates in future periods could be material. These estimates are based on
historical experience, current and future economic conditions, and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The more significant areas are as
follows:

Critical accounting estimates

The amounts recorded for share-based payment transactions are based on estimates. The Black-Scholes
model is based on estimates of assumptions for expected volatility, expected number of options to vest,
dividend rate, risk-free interest rate and expected life of the options.

The recoverability of amounts shown for exploration and evaluation assets is dependent on the discovery of
economical reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain financing to complete development of the
properties and on future production or proceeds of disposition.

Management's assumption of no material restoration, rehabilitation and environmental obligation, is based on
the facts and circumstances that existed during the period.

Future income tax assets and liabilities are computed based on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities on the balance sheet and their corresponding tax values. Future income tax assets also
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result from unused loss carry- forwards and other deductions. The valuation of future income tax assets is
adjusted, if necessary, by use of a valuation allowance to reflect the estimated realizable amount.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash, demand deposits and high-interest savings vehicles with an
initial tern of less than 90 days.

Foreign Currency Translation

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each statement of financial
position date, monetary assets and liabilities are translated using the period-end exchange rate. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities are translated using the historical rate on the date of the transaction.

All gains and losses on translation of these foreign currency transactions are included in the statement of loss
and comprehensive loss.

Exploration and Evaluation Assets

Exploration and evaluation expenditures include the costs of acquiring licenses, costs associated with
exploration and evaluation activity, and the fair value (at acquisition date) of exploration and evaluation assets
acquired in a business combination. Exploration and evaluation expenditures are capitalized as incurred.
Costs incurred before the Company has obtained the legal rights to explore an area are recognized in profit or
loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment based on the indicators of impairment in IFRS
6.

Once the technical feasibility and commercial viability of the extraction of mineral resources in an area of
interest are demonstrable, which management has determined to be indicated by a feasibility study,
exploration and evaluation assets attributable to that area of interest are first tested for impairment and then
reclassified to mining property and development assets.

Recoverability of the carrying amount of any exploration and evaluation assets is dependent on successful
development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively, sale of the respective areas of interest.

It is management’s judgment that none of the Company’s exploration and evaluation assets have reached the
development stage and as a result are all considered to be exploration and evaluation assets.

Share-based Payments

The Company grants stock options to buy common shares of the Company to directors, officers and services
providers. The board of directors grants such options for periods of up to five years, with vesting periods
determined at its sole discretion and at prices equal to or greater than the closing market price on the day
preceding the date the options were granted.

The fair value of share purchase options granted is recognized as an expense or charged to mineral
properties as appropriate, with a corresponding increase in equity.

The fair value for share purchase options granted to those providing services is measured at the grant date
and each tranche is recognized using the accelerated method basis over the period during which the share
purchase options vest. The fair value of the share purchase options granted is measured using the
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Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share
purchase options were granted.

At each financial position reporting date, the amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share purchase options that are expected to vest.

Income Taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity.

Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax payable with regards to previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deferred tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates
expected to apply when the asset is realized or the liability settled.

The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period
that substantive enactment occurs.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. To the extent that the Company does not consider it probable that a
deferred tax asset will be recovered, the deferred tax asset is reduced.

The following temporary differences do not result in deferred tax assets or liabilities:

. the initial recognition of assets or liabilities, not arising in a business combination, that does not affect
accounting or taxable profit;

. goodwill not deductible for tax purposes; and

. investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities where the timing of reversal of the

temporary differences can be controlled and reversal in the foreseeable future is not probable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied

Restoration, Rehabilitation and Environmental Obligations

A legal or constructive obligation to incur restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs may arise when
environmental disturbance is caused by the exploration, development or ongoing production of a mineral
property interest. Such costs arising from the decommissioning of plant and other site preparation work,
discounted to their net present value, are provided for and capitalized at the start of each project to the
carrying amount of the asset, as soon as the obligation to incur such costs arises. Discount rates using a pre-
tax rate that reflect the time value of money are used to calculate the net present value. These costs are
charged against profit or loss over the economic life of the related asset, through amortization using either an
unit-of-production or the straight-line method as appropriate. The related liability is adjusted for each period
for the unwinding of the discount rate and for changes to the current market-based discount rate, amount or
timing of the underlying cash flows needed to settle the obligation.
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Costs for restoration of subsequent site damage which is created on an ongoing basis during production are
provided for at their net present values and charged against profits as extraction progresses. The Company
has no material restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs as the disturbance to date is minimal.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance expense (“notional interest”).

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, the provision is reversed. The
Company presently does not have any amounts considered to be provisions.

Flow through shares

The Company will, from time to time, issue flow-through common shares to finance a portion of its exploration
program. Pursuant to the terms of the flow-through share subscription agreements, these shares transfer the
tax deductibility of qualifying resource expenditures to investors. On issuance, the Company bifurcates the
flow-through share into i) a flow-through share premium, equal to the estimated premium, if any, investors pay
for the flow-through feature, which is recognized as a liability, and ii) share capital. Upon expenses being
incurred, the Company recognizes a deferred tax liability for the amount of tax reduction renounced to the
shareholders and the premium liability is reversed. The reversal of the premium liability and the deferred tax
liability are recognized as tax recoveries to the extent that suitable deferred tax assets are available.

Loss per share

Loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year. Since the Company is in a loss position, the effects of exercising share purchase options and warrants
are anti-dilutive.

Impairment

Mineral properties are reviewed on a quarterly basis and when changes in circumstances suggest their
carrying value may become impaired. Management considers mineral properties to be impaired if the carrying
value exceeds the estimated undiscounted future projected cash flows from the use of the property and its
related assets and their eventual disposition. If impairment is deemed to exist, the property and its related
assets will be written down to fair value. Fair value is generally determined using a discounted cash flow
analysis. Management determined that there was no impairment of carrying value on its properties in the
current period.

Accounting pronouncements issued but not yet adopted

The following standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with earlier
adoption permitted. The Company has not early adopted these standards and is currently assessing the
impact they will have on the condensed interim financial statements.

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements: IFRS 10 establishes principles for the presentation and
preparation of consolidated financial statements when an entity controls one or more other entities. IFRS 10
supersedes IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, and SIC-12, Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities.

10



IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements: IFRS 11 establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint
arrangement. IFRS 11 supersedes current IAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13, Jointly Controlled
Entities-Non — Monetary Contributions by Venturers.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: IFRS 12 applies to entities that have an interest in a
subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an associate or an unconsolidated structured entity.

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurements: IFRS 13 defines fair value, sets out a single IFRS framework for
measuring value and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The IFRS 13 applies to IFRSs that
require or permit fair value measurements or disclosures about fair value measurements (and measurements,
such as fair value less costs to sell, based on fair value or disclosures about those measurements), except in
specified circumstances.

In July 2011, the IASB agreed to defer the effective date of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments from 2013 to 2015.
The standard is the first part of a multi-phase project to replace IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement.

IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: IAS 28 has been updated and it is to be applied by all
entities that are investors with joint control of, or significant influence over, an investee. The scope of the
current IAS 28 Investments in Associates does not include joint ventures. Early adoption is permitted.

IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements: In June 2011, the IAS issued amendments to IAS 1 that
requires an entity to group items presented in the statement of comprehensive income on the basis of
whether they may be reclassified to earnings subsequent to initial recognition. For those items presented
before taxes, the amendments to IAS 1 also require that the taxes related to the two separate groups be
presented separately. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012,
with earlier adoptions permitted.

4. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents and cash and cash equivalents held for future exploration activities consists of
cash and investments in Canadian Chartered Bank demand money market funds.

On November 15, 2011, the Company completed a private placement of 9,000 flow-through units for
gross proceeds of $13,500. These funds were committed to be expended on Canadian Exploration
Expenditures ("CEE") and are therefore not available for current working capital purposes.

During the nine months to June 30, 2012, the Company spent a total of $193,805 on exploration
activities, including committed funds raised in the prior fiscal year, leaving a balance of $1,717,856 at
June 30, 2012 to be spent on Canadian Exploration Expenditures (“CEE”).

5. Mineral properties

Acquisition costs

Ontario
Elliot Lake  Saskatchewan Total
$ $ $
Balance, September 30, 2010 597,593 - 597,593
Total additions for the period - 128,323 128,323
Balance, September 30, 2011 597,593 128,323 725,916
Total additions for the period - - -
Balance June 30, 2012 597,593 128,323 725,916
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5. Mineral properties (continued)

During fiscal 2011, the Company patrticipated in staking 26,657 hectare uranium and rare earth
prospects in Saskatchewan for total consideration and costs of $128,323. The Company holds
interests between 50 to 90% in these 10 mineral properties in the Athabaska Basin area in the
province of Saskatchewan.

Deferred exploration expenditures

Total
$
Balance, September 30, 2010 3,020,755
Additions:
Assaying 70,004
Subcontract labour 102,084
Other 13,816
Total additions for the period 185,904
Balance, September 30, 2011 3,206,659
Additions:
Assaying 2,460
Drilling 150,000
Subcontract labour 28,334
Other 13,010
Total additions for the period 193,804
Balance, June 30, 2012 3,400,463

Note: To date all deferred exploration expenditures have been incurred on the Company'’s Elliot Lake Property.
Ontario, Elliot Lake

(a) On November 1, 2007, the Company acquired a 100% interest in 61 mining claims (the “Vended
Property”) known as the Elliot Lake property located in Beange, Bolger, Bouck, Buckles, Gunterman and Joubin
Townships, Sault Ste. Marie Mining Division in the Province of Ontario. As part of the acquisition agreement the
Company issued 35 million common shares to Canada Enerco Corp. (“CEC”), a company controlled by the
President, CEO and Director of the Company, at a stated value of $218,212. CEC retains a 1% Uranium Production
Payment Royalty and a 1% Net Smelter Returns Royalty on any precious or base metals payable provided the price
of uranium is greater than US$130 per pound (collectively the “CEC Royalty”). . Any mining claims acquired by

the Company within 20 kilometres from the existing boundary of the Vended Property are subject to the CEC
Royalty.

The Company also entered into two (2) share option agreements with CEC whereby the Company had
the option to buy back 1,000,000 of the common shares of the Company at the price of $1 per share,
expiring August 31, 2008 and 9,000,000 common shares at the price of $2 per share, subject to
adjustment downward, in tranches of 1,000,000 shares, expiring November 2, 2012. In the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2008, the Company exercised the first option for the 1,000,000 common shares by
payment to CEC of $1,000,000. These shares were returned to treasury for cancellation in fiscal 2009.
The second option was conditional upon the Company spending at least $10 million on exploration on the
property prior to November 1, 2011, to define an NI 43-101 compliant uranium mineral resource on the
property. The maximum purchase price for the option was to be determined as $0.10 multiplied by the
number of pounds of uranium resource defined in the Ni 43-101 report. In the event that the maximum
purchase price was less than $20 million, the option price of the 9 million shares would be adjusted to
equal the maximum purchase price divided by 10 million. The Company did not spend the required $10
million on exploration and the second option expired on November 1, 2011.

Pursuant to an Assumption of Obligations Agreement dated November 2, 2007 among the Company,

CEC, Quincy Gold Corp. and Energy Metals Corp. (“EMC”), the Company assumed certain obligations of
CEC to Quincy and EMC giving the Company a 100% interest in the Elliot Lake property free and clear of
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all liens, charges and encumbrances in consideration for granting to EMC the right to purchase up to
9.9% of the equity of the Company (the “Participation Right”) pursuant to an initial financing or an initial
public offering or a going public transaction pursuant to a business combination at the same price and
terms as other subscribers and a $250,000 credit (the “Credit”) towards the Participation Right. Since the
date of the agreement mentioned above, EMC has been acquired by Uranium One. In fiscal year 2008,
250,000 common shares of the Company were issued to EMC in consideration for the Credit.

(b)  The Company transferred 2 of the claims acquired from CEC as disclosed in (a) above to Denison
Mines Inc. in return for rights of access and use of infrastructure as well as a 3% Net Smelter Returns
Royalty on any product produced from the claims. No gain or loss has been recognized on this transfer.

(c) On February 27, 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Dan Patrie Exploration Ltd.
(“DPE”) to acquire an option to earn a 100% interest in 6 mineral claims comprising 50 claim units in the
Buckles and Joubin Townships in Sault Saint Marie Mining Division in the Province of Ontario in
consideration for the payment of $20,000 cash and the issuance of 50,000 common shares at a price of
$1 per share. DPE retains the right to a 1% Uranium Production Payment Royalty (“Royalty”) payable
when the uranium is sold from the claims at a price of at least US$130 per pound. The Company has the
right and option to purchase one-half (1/2) of the Royalty from DPE for $1,000,000. If DPE wishes to sell
the remaining Royalty to a third party, it shall first offer the remaining Royalty to the Company on the
same terms on which they have received the offer from a bona fide third party which they are prepared to
accept.

(d) During fiscal 2010 the Company staked an additional 35 claims in the Elliot Lake area for
additional cost of $35,950. All staked claims above are subject to the CEC Royalty as outlined in
paragraph (a) above. Pursuant to a Royalty Agreement dated February 2, 1012, CEC and the Company
clarified the terms of the CEC Royalty.

6. Share capital
(a) Common shares

The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of no par value common shares. The following
table provides the details of changes in the number of issued common shares

Number Amount

# $

Balance, September 30, 2010 and 2009 39,016,525 4,834,343
Flow through common shares issued, net 1,385,833 1,779,232
Common shares issued 1,182,000 1,477,500
Less: Value associated with warrants issued - (110,562)
Share issue costs - (183,737)
Balance, September 30, 2011 41,584,358 7,796,776
Flow through common shares issued, net 9,000 11,250
Common shares issued November 15, 2011 20,720 25,900
Common shares issued December 30, 2011 2,000 2,500
Less: Value associated with warrants issued - (1,302)
Balance, June 30, 2012 41,616,078 7,835,123

During the 2011 fiscal year the Company entered into private placement agreements to raise funds for
exploration and working capital by way of a private placement of gross proceeds of $1,477,500 in the
aggregate through the issuance of 1,182,000 working capital units of the Company at $1.25 per unit (“WC
unit”) and 1,385,833 flow-through units of the Company at $1.50 per flow-through unit (“FT unit”) for gross
proceeds of $2,078,750. Each WC unit consisted of one common share and one-half common share
purchase warrant (“WC Warrant”). Each full WC Warrant entitles the holder to acquire one common share
at a price of $1.75 for 12 months following the closing date; if the Company is not a reporting issuer in the
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Province of Ontario within 6 months following the closing date then each full WC Warrant will be
exercisable at $1.25 per share for 12 months from the closing date. Each FT unit consists of one
common share and one-half common share purchase warrant (“FT Warrant”). Each full FT Warrant is
exercisable at a price of $2 per share for 12 months following the closing date; if the Company is not a
reporting issuer within 6 months from the closing date then the exercise price will be $1.50 per share for
12 months following the closing date.

Finder fees were paid on the flow-through private placements by payment of cash commissions of
$162,884 and by the issuance of 46,666 broker compensation warrants (“Broker’s Unit Warrant”). Each
Broker Unit Warrant entitles the holder to acquire a unit of the Company at exercise price of $1.50 per
unit for 12 months from the closing date. Each broker unit consists of one common share (“Broker
Common Share”) and one-half common share purchase warrant (“Broker Warrant”). 46,666 common
shares was reserved for the Broker Common Shares issuable on the exercise of the Broker’'s Unit
Warrants and 23,333 Broker Warrants were created and reserved for issuance to be issued as fully paid
and non-assessable Broker Warrants on the exercise of the Broker’s Unit Warrants. Each Broker Warrant
entitles the holder thereof to acquire a common share (“Broker Warrant Share”) at an exercise price of
$2.00 per Broker Warrant share until 12 months from the Closing Date, and if the Company is not a
reporting issuer in the Province of Ontario within six (6) months following the Closing Date, at an exercise
price of $1.50 per Broker Warrant Share until 12 months from the Closing Date.

Also included under share issue costs are legal fees in the amount of $27,309 and fair value of broker
warrants issued in the amount of $6,529. The fair value of the broker’s warrants was estimated using
Black Scholes pricing model with the following assumptions: risk free weighted average interest rate of
1.15%, expected dividend yield of nil, expected volatility of 30% and expected life term of 12 months.

On November 15, 2011, the Company completed a private placement of 20,720 working capital units
(“WC unit”) at $1.25 per unit for gross proceeds of $25,900. Each WC unit consists of one common share
of the Company and one-half of a common share purchase warrant (“WC warrant”). Each full WC warrant
entitles the holder thereof to purchase one common share of the Company at a price of $1.75 per
common share for twelve months following the Closing Date; and if the Company is not a reporting issuer
in the Province of Ontario within six months following the Closing Date, each full WC warrant shall entitle
the holder to purchase one common share of the Company at $1.25 per common share for twelve months
following the Closing Date.

On November 15, 2011, the Company completed a private placement of 9,000 flow-through units (“FT
unit”) at $1.50 per unit for gross proceeds of $13,500. Each FT unit consists of one flow-through share
(“FT share”) of the Company and one-half of a common share purchase warrant (“Warrant”). Each full
Warrant entitles the holder thereof to purchase one common share of the Company at a price of $2.00
per common share for twelve months following the Closing Date; and if the Company is not a reporting
issuer in the Province of Ontario within six months following the Closing Date, each full Warrant shall
entitle the holder to purchase one common share of the Company at $1.50 per common share for twelve
months following the Closing Date.

On December 30, 2011, the Company completed a private placement of 2,000 working capital units (“WC
unit”) at $1.25 per unit for gross proceeds of $2,500. Each WC unit consists of one common share of the
Company and one-half of a common share purchase warrant (“WC warrant”). Each full WC warrant
entitles the holder thereof to purchase one common share of the Company at a price of $1.75 per
common share for twelve months following the Closing Date; and if the Company is not a reporting issuer
in the Province of Ontario within six months following the Closing Date, each full WC warrant shall entitle
the holder to purchase one common share of the Company at $1.25 per common share for twelve months
following the Closing Date.

(b) Common share purchase options
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The Company has created a stock option plan for the benefit of directors, officers and consultants. The
total number of shares which may be reserved and set aside for issuance to eligible persons may not
exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding common shares.

(b) Common share purchase options (continued)

As at June 30, 2012 2,200,000 common shares were reserved for the exercise of stock options granted
under the Company’s stock option plan (the “Plan”).

The following table provides the details of changes in the number of issued common share purchase
options during the period:
Weighted-average

Options exercise price

# $

Outstanding at September 30, 2010 - -
Granted 1,400,000 1.25
Outstanding at September 30, 2011 1,400,000 1.25
Granted 800,000 1.25
Outstanding at June 30, 2012 2,200,000 1.25
Options exercisable at June 30, 2012 1,600,000 1.25

On February 17, 2011, the Company issued 1,000,000 stock options exercisable at $1.25 per share until
February 17, 2016 to directors of the Company. Half of the options granted are exercisable on or after the
date of grant; the remaining options are exercisable on or after February 17, 2012.

On July 14, 2011, the Company issued 400,000 stock options exercisable at $1.25 per share until July
14, 2016 to a director of the Company. Half of the options granted are exercisable on or after the date of
grant; the remaining options are exercisable on or after July 14, 2012.

On January 23, 2012, the Company issued 400,000 stock options exercisable at $1.25 per share until
January 23, 2017 to a director of the Company. Half of the options granted are exercisable on or after the
date of grant; the remaining options are exercisable on or after January 23, 2012.

On February 1, 2012, the Company issued 400,000 stock options exercisable at $1.25 per share until
February 1, 2017 to an officer of the Company. Half of the options granted are exercisable on or after the
date of grant; the remaining options are exercisable on or after February 1, 2012.

Number of Number Remaining Exercise price per
stock options exercisable  contractual life share Expiry date
1,000,000 1,000,000 43.6 months $1.25 February 17, 2016
400,000 200,000 48.5 months $1.25 July 14, 2016
400,000 200,000 54.8 months $1.25 January 23, 2017
400,000 200,000 55.0 months $1.25 February 1, 2017
2,200,000 1,600,000

The weighted average fair value of all the options granted and outstanding is $0.90 per option, each
contract fair value having been estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing model with
the following assumptions: risk-free weighted-average interest rate is 1.98%, expected dividend yield of
nil, expected volatility of 97%-141% and expected life term is 60 months. Under this method of
calculation, the Company has recorded $745,328 as stock based compensation during the nine months
ended June 30, 2012, being the fair value of the options vested during the nine months ended June 30,
2012. Options that have been issued and remain outstanding vest half immediately on the date of grant
and half in twelve months from the date of grant.
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(c) Warrants

On certain issuances of common shares, the Company grants warrants entitling the holder to acquire
additional common shares of the Company, and the Company grants warrants as consideration for

services associated with the placement of such common share issues.

The following table provides the details of changes in the number of outstanding common share purchase

warrants:
Number Amount
# $
Balance September 30, 2010 and 2009 - -
Private placement warrants issued 1,283,916 110,562
Brokers warrants issued 69,999 6,529
Balance September 30, 2011 1,353,915 117,091
Private placement warrants issued 15,860 1,302
Warrants expired (1,353,915) (117,091)
Balance June 30, 2012 15,860 1,302

Certain issuances of common shares include warrants entitling the holder to acquire additional common

shares of the Company. A summary of the outstanding warrants is as follows:

Number Remaining Exercise price
exercisable contractual life per share Expiry date
Warrants 4,500 4.5 months $1.50 November 15, 2012
Warrants 10,360 4.5 months $1.25 November 15, 2012
Warrants 1,000 6 months $1.25 December 30, 2012
Balance, June 30, 2012 15,860

7. Contributed surplus

A summary of changes in contributed surplus is as follows:

Amount

$

Balance, September 30, 2010 -
Stock based compensation 1,000,827
Balance, September 30, 2011 1,000,827
Stock based compensation 745,328
Common shares purchase warrants expired 117,091
Balance, June 30, 2012 1,863,246

The number of common shares outstanding on June 30, 2012 was 41,616,078. Taking into account
outstanding share purchase options, and warrants, the fully diluted common shares that could be

outstanding on June 30, 2012 was 43,831,938.

8. Related party transactions

During the three months ended June 30, 2012, the Company incurred related party expenses of $27,000
(for the three months ended June 30, 2011 — $18,000) and $67,000 for the nine months ended June 30,
2012 (for the nine months ended June 30, 2011 - $54,000). These expenses related to management fees
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paid to Tom Drivas, Chief Executive Officer, Michael D’Amico, Chief Financial Officer and office
administration services paid to a Company where Tom Drivas is a director and officer, of which $283,306
(2011 - $225,000) is due and payable as at June 30, 2012 and included under accounts payable and
accrued liabilities. Amount charged for office administration services is included under office and general
expenses.

Compensation of key management personnel and directors for the three and nine months ending June
30, 2012 and 2011 is summarized as follows:

For the three For the three For the nine For the nine
months ended months ended months ended months ended
Jun 30, 2012 Jun 30, 2011 Jun 30, 2012 Jun 30, 2011
$ $ $
Compensation and directors’ fees 24,000 15,000 58,000 45,000
Share-based payments 100,976 96,234 745,328 673,635

Key management personnel were not paid post-retirement benefits, termination benefits, or other long-
term benefits during the three and nine months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.

During the three months ended June 30, 2012, the Company incurred expenses of $6,660 (for the three
months ended June 30, 2011- $3,240) and $90,709 for the nine months ended June 30, 2012 (for the
nine months ended June 30, 2011 - $33,344) for legal fees to a law firm related to a senior officer and
director of the Company, William R. Johnstone. At June 30, 2012 $7,581 was due and payable to this
related party.

These amounts were expensed in the period incurred as administrative and general expenses. Expenses
and amounts paid and owing are measured at the exchange amount.

As disclosed in Note 5(a) of the condensed interim financial statements, the Company’s major exploration

property was acquired from a related party.

9. Financial instruments and risk management

Categories of financial assets and liabilities

Under IFRS, financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: Fair value
through profit and loss (“FVTPL”), held to maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets and other financial liabilities. The carrying values of the Company’s financial instruments,
including those held for sale are classified into the following categories:

June 30 September 30

2012 2011

$ $

FvTPL @ 3,325,218 3,663,985
Loans and receivables ©? 6,532 5,248
Other financial liabilities © 369,708 300,051

(2) Includes cash, committed cash and short-term investments.
(2) Includes accounts receivable related to HST tax refunds.
(3) Includes accounts payable and bank overdraft.
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Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts for the Company'’s financial instruments approximate their fair values because of
the short-term nature of these items.

() Cash and cash equivalents and cash and cash equivalents held for future exploration are
designated as FVTPL financial assets and are recorded at market value. The interest on deposits is
insignificant.

(i) H.S.T. receivable is designated as loans and receivables and is recorded at cost.

(iif) Accounts payable is designated as other financial liabilities and is recorded at cost.

Risks arising from financial instruments and risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company.

The Company uses various methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These
methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rate and other price risks.

(a) Market risk

(i)  Price risk

Commodity price risk

Commodity price risk is the risk of financial loss resulting from movements in the price of the Company’s
commodity inputs and outputs. The Company is exposed to commaodity price risk arising from the
fluctuation of the value of the metals it is exploring for. The Company does not manage commaodity price
risk through the use of derivative instruments.

Sensitivity

Anticipated changes in the value of uranium and rare earth elements would not, in management’s opinion,
change the recognized value of any of the Company’s financial instruments.

(ii) Cash flow fair value interest rate risk

The Company does not have interest-bearing borrowings for which general rate fluctuations apply. The
Company is exposed to interest rate risk to the extent of the balance of the bank accounts.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the group. Credit risk arises from cash and deposits with banks and financial institutions
as well as credit exposures to outstanding receivables.

The Company has no concentration of credit risk. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the
condensed interim financial statements are adjusted for any impairment and represent the Company’s
maximum exposure to credit risk.

(c) Liquidity risk
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Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining at all times sufficient cash, liquid investments and
committed credit facilities to meet the Company’s commitments as they arise. The Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows. The Company is currently assessing all options to address its liquidity issues. It is not possible
to determine with any certainty the success and adequacy of these initiatives.

10. Capital disclosures

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, based on the funds available to
the Company, in order to support the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties. The
capital of the Company consists of capital stock, warrants and contributed surplus.

The properties in which the Company currently has an interest are in the exploration stage; as such the
Company is dependent on external financing to fund its activities. In order to carry out the planned
exploration and pay for administrative costs, the Company will spend its existing working capital and
intends to raise additional amounts as needed. The Company will continue to assess new properties and
seek to acquire an interest in additional properties if it feels there is sufficient geologic or economic
potential and if it has adequate financial resources to do so.

Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this
approach, given the relative size of the Company, is reasonable.

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year ended
September 30, 2011 and the period ended June 30, 2012. The Company is not subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

11. Contingencies and commitments

As at June 30, 2012 the Company has no contingent obligations.

12. Impact of adoption of IFRS

The Company has elected to apply the following optional exemptions in its preparation of an opening
statement of financial position dated October 1, 2010, the Company'’s “Transition Date”:

e Share-based payment transactions
To apply IFRS 2 Share-based Payments only to equity instruments that were issued after
November 7, 2002 and had not vested by the Transition Date.

« Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental obligations
The company has elected to apply the exemption from full retrospective application of
decommissioning provisions allowed under IFRS 1. As a result, the company has re-
measured the provisions at October 1, 2010 under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets and estimated the amount to be included in the cost of the related
asset by discounting the liability to the date at which the liability first arose.

« IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

The Company has elected to apply the transition provisions of IFRIC 4 Determining Whether
an Arrangement Contains a Lease, therefore determining if arrangements existing at the
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Transition Date contain a lease based on the circumstances existing at that date. The
Company has no leases.

IFRS 1 does not permit changes to estimates that have been made previously. Accordingly,
estimates used in the preparation of the Company’s opening IFRS statement of financial position as
at the Transition Date are consistent with those made under Canadian GAAP.

Reconciliation of comprehensive loss, and liabilities:

Year ended Nine months ended

September 30, 2011 June 30, 2011
$ $
Comprehensive loss
Comprehensive loss under Canadian GAAP (1,060,157) (775,692)
Adjustments for flow-through shares accounting 24,464 18,303
treatment
Comprehensive loss under IFRS (1,035,693) (757,389)
September 30, June 30,
2011 2011
Liabilities
372,661 411,186
Deferred income tax, Canadian GAAP
Adjustments for flow-through shares under IFRS (11,823) 869
Deferred income tax, under IFRS 360,837 412,055
Deferred liabilities for flow-through shares, under IFRS 260,908 267,361
Total adjustments under IFRS 249,083 268,230

Reconciliation of equity

Oct1, 2010 Sept 30,2011 Jun 30, 2011

Total shareholders’ equity, Cdn GAAP 3,638,437 6,932,178 6,916,759
Adjustments for flow-through shares under IFRS - (249,083) (268,230)
Total shareholders’ equity IFRS 3,638,437 6,683,095 6,648,529

Changes to Accounting Policies

The Company has changed certain accounting policies to be consistent with IFRS effective or
available for early adoption on September 30, 2012, the Company's first annual IFRS reporting date.
Adoption of IFRS has had no material impact on the Company’s statements of cash flows for the
nine months ended June 30, 2012 and the twelve months ended September 30, 2011. The changes
to accounting policies have not resulted in any significant change to the recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, equity, revenue and expenses within its financial statements,
except as disclosed below.

a) Share-based payment transactions
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Under IFRS, each tranche of an award with different vesting dates is considered a separate grant
for the calculation of fair value, and the resulting fair value is amortized over the vesting period of
the respective tranches. Forfeiture estimates are recognized in the period they are estimated,
and are revised for actual forfeitures in subsequent periods.

An individual is classified as an employee when the individual is an employee for legal or tax
purposes (direct employee) or provides services similar to those performed by a direct employee,
including directors of the Company. The fair value for share purchase options granted to non-
employees for services provided is measured at the date the services are received. The fair
value of the share purchase options granted is measured at the fair value of the services
received, unless the fair value of services received cannot be estimated reliably, in which case
they are valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the share purchase options were granted.

Under Canadian GAAP, the fair value of stock-based awards to employees with graded vesting
are calculated as one grant and the resulting fair value is recognized on a straight line basis over
the vesting period. Forfeitures of awards are recognized as they occur.

The Company's accounting policies relating to share-based payment transactions have been
changed to reflect these differences. There is no impact on the financial statements.

Impairment of (non-financial) Assets

IFRS requires a write-down of assets if the higher of the fair market value and the value in use of
a group of assets is less than its carrying value. Value in use is determined using discounted
estimated future cash flows. Canadian GAAP required a write-down to estimated fair value only
if the undiscounted estimated future cash flows of a group of assets are less than its carrying
value.

The Company's accounting policies relating to impairment of non-financial assets have been
changed to reflect these differences and there is no impact on the financial statements.

Decommissioning Liabilities (Asset Retirement Obligations)

IFRS requires the recognition of a decommissioning liability for legal or constructive obligations,
while Canadian GAAP only requires the recognition of such liabilities for legal obligations. A
constructive obligation exists when an entity has created reasonable expectations that it will take
certain actions.

The Company's accounting policies related to decommissioning liabilities have been changed to
reflect these differences. In management’s opinion, this change in policy had no impact on the
financial statements.

Flow-through shares

The Company will, from time to time, issue flow-through common shares to finance a portion of
its exploration program. Pursuant to the terms of the flow-through share subscription
agreements, these shares transfer the tax deductibility of qualifying resource expenditures to
investors. Under IFRS, the Company bifurcates the flow-through share into i) a flow-through
share premium, equal to the estimated premium, if any, investors pay for the flow-through
feature, which is recognized as a liability, and ii) share capital. Upon expenses being incurred,
the Company recognizes a deferred tax liability for the amount of tax reduction renounced to the
shareholders and the premium liability is reversed. The reversal of the premium liability and the
deferred tax liability are recognized as tax recoveries to the extent that suitable deferred tax
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assets are available. Under Canadian GAAP, the Company recorded the tax cost of
expenditures renounced to subscribers on the date the deductions were renounced to the
subscribers. Share capital was reduced and future income tax liabilities were increased by the
tax cost of expenditures renounced to the subscribers, except that the amount was recognized
as a tax recovery to the extent that suitable future tax assets were available.

The net effects of the change in accounting for flow-through shares are as follows:

Effect on statements of financial position: Oct1, 2010 Sept 30,2011 Jun 30, 2011

$ $ $
Increase (decrease) in share capital (82,250) (355,798) (355,798)
Recognize flow-through share premium - 260,908 267,361
Increase (decrease) in deficit 82,250 106,714 87,568
Increase (decrease) in deferred income tax liability - (11,824) 869

Effect on statements of comprehensive loss:

Record tax recoveries as the liability is reduced based

on the pro-rata expenditures in the period ) 24,464 18,303
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of
Appia Energy Corp.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Appia Energy Corp., which comprises of the balance sheets :
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and the statements of loss and comprehensive loss, deficit and cash flows for the
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Cane
generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enabl
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audit
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ett
requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are f
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financ
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of int
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making this risk assessments, the auditor consi
internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design at
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivene:
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and t
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fine
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Appia Energy Corp.
at September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accor

with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.
w
Markham, Ontario E

December 23, 2011 Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
(Incorporated under the Federal Laws of Canada)

BALANCE SHEETS - FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS
2011 2010 009
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,765825 $ 629,712 $ 750,201
Cash and cash equivalents held for future explorghiote 3) 1,898,160 - -
Amounts receivable 5,248 572 885
Prepaid expenses 6,208 7,859 3,717
3,675,441 638,143 754,803
Long term:
Interest in mineral propertigblote 4) 725,916 597,593 561,643
Deferred exploration expenditur@sote 4) 3,206,659 3,020,755 2,996,140
3,932,575 3,618,348 3,557,783
$ 7,608,016 $ 4,256,491 $ 4,312,586
LIABILITIES
Current:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 54,369 % 39,854 % 39,225
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - related paffiete 6) 245,682 180,000 120,000
Common shares subscribed, not iss{idate 11) 3,125 - -
303,176 219,854 159,225
Future income tagNote 7) 372,661 398,200 398,200
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital stockNote 5(a)) 8,152,574 4,916,593 4,916,593
Warrants(Note 5(c)) 117,091
Contributed surpluéNote 5(d)) 1,000,827 - -
Deficit (2,338,313) (1,278,156) (1,161,432)

6,932,179 3,638,437 3,755,161

$ 7,608,016 $ 4,256,491 $ 4,312,586

See Nature of Operations (Note 1)

Approved on behalf of the Board:

"Tom Drivas" "William R. Johnstone"
Anastasios (Tom) Drivas, Director William R. Johnstone

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements

2
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

2011 2010 2009
Operating expenses:
Management fees $ 60,000 $ 60,000 $ 60,000
Office and general 23,774 38,258 22,247
Professional fees 38,590 24,504 43,505
Stock-compensation expen@ote 5(b)) 1,000,827 - -
1,123,191 122,762 125,752
Less: Interest income 24,509 6,038 42,981
Net loss for the year before income tax (1,098,682) (116,724) (82,771)
Future income tax recovery 38,525 - (65,800)
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year $ (1,060,157) $ (116,724) $  (16,971)
Basic and diluted loss per share 0.03 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Weighted average number of shares outstanding
-basic and diluted 40,624,506 39,016,525 39,016,525

STATEMENTS OF DEFICIT

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

2011 2010 2009
Deficit, beginning of year $ (1,278,156) $ (1,161,432) $ (206,807)
Shares purchased and cancelled - - (937,654)
Net loss for the year (1,060,157) (116,724) (16,971)
Deficit, end of year $ (2,338,313) $ (1,278,156) $ (1,161,432)

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

Cash was provided by (used in) the following activities:
Operating:
Loss for the year
Add: items not requiring an outlay of cash:
Stock-based compensation expense
Future income tax
Net change in non-cash working capital itdidete 8)

Investing:
Investments in mineral properties
Deferred exploration expenditures

Financing:
Common share issued for cash - net of cash share issue costs

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents are made up as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents held for future exploration activities

2011 2010 2009
$ (1,060,157) $ (116,724) $  (16,971)
1,000,827
(38,525) - (65,800)
80,298 56,800 125,294
(17,557) (59,924) 42,523
(128,323) (35,950) (1,922)
(185,904) (24,615) (917,283)
(314,227) (60,565) (266,812)
3,366,057 - )
3,366,057 - ;
3,034,273 (120,489)  (224,289)
629,712 750,201 974,490
$ 3663985 $ 629,712 $ 750,201
$ 1765825 $ 629,712 $ 750,201
1,898,160 - -
$ 3663985 $ 629712 $ 750,201

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements

4



A-29

APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2010

1. Nature of Operations and going concern:

Appia Energy Corp. (theCompany’) has interests in mining properties and is in the process of determining whether
or not its properties contain resources that are economically recoverable.

The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared by, and are the responsibility of the
Company’'s management.

The recoverability of expenditures on its resource properties and related deferred exploration expenditures is
dependent upon the existence of resources that are economically recoverable, confirmation of the Company’s
ownership interests in the claims, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary financing to complete the exploration
and the development of the properties, and upon future profitable production or proceeds from disposition thereof.

As at September 30, 2011 the Company has working capital of $3,372,265. The Company has no source of operating
cash flows. The Company’s ability to meet its obligations and continue as a going concern is dependent on the ability
to identify and complete future financings. While the Company has been successful in raising financing’s to date,
there can be no assurance that it will be able to do so in the future.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles. The financial statements have, in management’s opinion, been properly prepared
within reasonable limits of materiality and within the framework of the accounting policies summarized below:

a) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents and cash and cash equivalents held for future exploration consists of cash and
investments in Canadian money market mutual funds.

b) Mineral properties:

The Company carries its mineral resource properties at cost. Exploration expenditures relating to these properties,
reduced by sundry income, are charged to deferred expenditures as incurred. If the property is brought into
commercial production, the deferred expenditures will be amortized using the unit of production method based on
the proven and probable ore reserves of the mine. Should an entire group of mining claims in an area be disproved
or abandoned, the related acquisition costs and exploration expenditures will be written off. If the Company
surrenders an interest in a property, any proceeds from the disposition of that part of the property is applied to
reduce the carrying cost of the property to zero prior to any gain being recognized on the partial disposition.

The net carrying value of mineral properties does not represent the present or future realizable value of such
properties. The realization of these assets is dependent upon confirmation of the Company’s ownership interest in
the claims and attaining viable commercial operations or proceeds from disposition.

An impairment loss will be recognized on a mineral property when the carrying value of the property is not
recoverable and exceeds its fair value. Mineral properties are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not be recoverable. The factors to be considered by
management in this determination include current operating results, trends and prospects, as well as the effects of
obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors.

c) Long-lived assets:

The Company monitors the recoverability of long-lived assets, based on factors such as current market value,
future asset utilization, business climate and future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of the
related assets. The Company’s policy is to record an impairment loss in the period when it is determined that the
carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. The impairment loss is calculated as the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the undiscounted estimate of future cash flows from the asset.
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2010

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):

d)

f)

9)

h)

Earnings per share:

The Company has adopted the recommendations of the CICA Handbook section 3500, Earning pé&tFBiare (“

The section requires the presentation of both basic and diluted EPS on the face of the income statement regardless
of the materiality of the difference between them. In addition, the section requires the use of the treasury stock
method to compute the dilutive effects of options, warrants and similar instruments as opposed to the previous
method used which was the imputed earnings approach. The section also requires the disclosure of a
reconciliation of the calculation of basic and diluted EPS.

Income taxes:

The Company has adopted the liability method of accounting for income taxes as outlined in the provisions of
Section 3465 of the Handbook of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. Under this method, current
income taxes are recognized for the estimated taxes payable for the current year. Future income tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the tax and accounting bases of assets and liabilities as
well as for the benefit of losses available to be carried forward to future years for tax purposes that are likely to be
realized.

Asset retirement obligations:

The Company has adopted CICA 3110, “Asset Retirement Obligations” which requires that the estimated fair
value of liabilities for asset retirement obligations be recognized in the period in which they are incurred. A
corresponding increase to the carrying amount of the related asset is recorded and depreciated over the life of the
asset. The estimates used in the valuations are based primarily on legal and regulatory requirements. It is possible
that the Company’s estimates of its ultimate reclamation and closure liabilities could change as a result of changes
in regulations, the extent of environmental remediation required, the means of reclamation or cost estimates.
Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively from the period the estimate is revised.

An obligation has not been recorded with respect to asset retirement obligations (i.e. environmental remediation)
for the Company’s exploration and development properties. This is based on the fact that the mining and
processing activities that give rise to the legal obligation have not yet occurred and/or the environmental
disturbance which has occurred is not yet significant.

Use of estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount
of revenues and expenses during the period. The significant areas requiring the use of management estimates are
the carrying value of mineral resource properties, the valuation of common shares issued for mineral properties,
the determination of income taxes assets and liabilities and the valuation of warrants and stock based
compensation. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement:

This standard prescribes when a financial asset, financial liability, or non-financial derivative is to be recognized

on the balance sheet and whether fair value or cost-based methods are used to measure the recorded amounts. |
also specifies how financial instrument gains and losses are to be presented. All derivatives are recorded on the
balance sheet at fair value. Mark-to-market adjustments on these instruments are included in net income, unless
the instruments are designated as part of a cash flow hedge relationship.

All other financial instruments will be recorded at cost or amortized cost, subject to impairment reviews. The
criteria for assessing other than temporary impairment remain unchanged. Transaction costs incurred to acquire
financial instruments are included in the underlying balance. Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets
are accounted for on the trade date.
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2010

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):

i)

)

K)

Comprehensive Income:

This standard requires the presentation of a statement of comprehensive income and its components.
Comprehensive income includes both net earnings and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income
includes holding gains and losses on available-for-sale investments, gains and losses on certain derivative
instruments and foreign currency gains and losses relating to self-sustaining foreign operations, all of which are
not included in the calculation of net earnings until the period that the related asset or liability affects income.

Accounting Changes:

Effective May 1, 2007, the Company adopted revised CICA Section 1506 “Accounting Changes”, which requires
that: a) a voluntary change in accounting policies can be made if, and only if, the changes result in more reliable
and relevant information; b) changes in accounting policies are accompanied with disclosures of prior period
amounts and justification for the change; and c) for changes in estimates, the nature and amount of the change
should be disclosed. The Company has not made any voluntary change in accounting policies since the adoption
of the revised standard.

Upon adoption of the new standards on financial instruments, the Company designated HST/GST receivable as
loans and receivables, which are measured at amortized cost. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are
classified as other financial liabilities, which are measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate
method.

Except for the reclassifications noted above, the adoption of these new standards had no impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

Capital Disclosures:

Handbook Section 1535 specifies the disclosures of (i) an entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing
capital; (ii) quantitative data about what the entity regards as capital; (iii) whether the entity has complied with any
capital requirements; and (iv) if it has not complied, the consequences of such non-compliance.

Financial Instruments:

Handbook Sections 3862 and 3863 replaced Handbook s.3861, Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation,
revising and enhancing its disclosure requirements, and carrying forward unchanged its presentation requirements.
These new sections place increased emphasis on disclosures about the nature and extent of risks arising from
financial instruments and how the entity manages those risks.

Accounting pronouncements not yet adopted:

International Financial Reporting Standards:

In February 2008, the CICA Accounting Standards Boaft$B’) confirmed that the changeover to International
Financial Reporting StandarddfRS”) from Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principl&XAP”) will be

required for both interim and annual financial statements for all publicly traded companies, effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The AcSB stated in their exposure draft that early adoption is permitted. The
Company has the appropriate resources committed to the development of its IFRS changeover plan.
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):
Business combinations:

In January 2009, the CICA issued Handbook Section 1582, “Business combinations,” which replaces the existing
standards. This section establishes the standards for the accounting of business combinations, and states that all asset:
and liabilities of an acquired business will be recorded at fair value. Obligations for contingent considerations and
contingencies will also be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date. The standard also states that acquisition-
related costs will be expensed as incurred and that restructuring charges will be expensed in the periods after the
acquisition date. This standard is equivalent to the International Financial Reporting Standards on business
combinations. This standard is applied prospectively to business combinations with acquisition dates on or after
January 1, 2011. Earlier adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this
standard on the Company'’s financial statements.

Non-controlling interests:

In January 2009, the CICA issued Handbook Section 1602, “Non-controlling interests,” which establishes standards
for the accounting of non-controlling interests of a subsidiary in the preparation of consolidated financial statements
subsequent to a business combination. This standard is equivalent to the International Financial Reporting Standards
on consolidated and separate financial statements. This standard is effective for 2011. Earlier adoption is permitted.
Management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard on the Company’s financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements:

In January 2009, the CICA issued Handbook Section 1601, “Consolidated financial statements,” which replaces the
existing standards. This section establishes the standards for preparing consolidated financial statements and is
effective for 2011.

Apart from additional disclosure requirements, it is not anticipated that adoption of these new standards will have a
major impact on the Company.

3. Cash and cash equivalents held for future exploration:

Cash and cash equivalents held for future exploration activities consists of cash and investments in Canadian money
market mutual funds.

On December 31, 2010, the Company completed a private placement of 52,500 flow-through shares for gross
proceeds of $78,750 and on March 17, 2011 the Company completed a private placement of 1,333,333 flow-through
shares for gross proceeds of $2,000,000. These funds were committed to be expended on Canadian Exploration
Expenditures (CEE”) and are therefore not available for current working capital purposes.

Of the total raised in flow-through funds $180,590 has been spent on CEE leaving a balance of $1,898,160.

4. Mineral properties:

Acquisition costs:

Ontario
Elliot Lake Saskatchewan Total
$ $ $
Balance, September 30, 2008 559,721 - 559,721
Total additions for the period 1,922 - 1,922
Balance, September 30, 2009 561,643 - 561,643
Total additions for the period 35,950 - 35,950
Balance, September 30, 2010 597,593 - 597,593
Total additions for the period - 128,323 128,323
Balance September 30, 2011 597,593 128,323 725,916
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

4. Mineral properties (continued):

Deferred exploration expenditures:
Ontario Elliot Lake $

Balance, September 30, 2008 2,078,857
Additions:

Assaying 14,432

Drilling 723,530

Subcontract labour 159,295

Other 20,026
Balance, September 30, 2009 2,996,140
Additions:

Assaying -

Subcontract labour 24,615
Balance, September 30, 2010 3,020,755
Additions:

Assaying 70,004

Subcontract labour 102,084

Other 13,816
Total additions for the period 185,904
Balance, September 30, 2011 3,206,659

(&) On November 1, 2007, the Company acquired a 100% interest in 61 mining claims (the “Vended Property”)
known as the Elliot Lake property located in Beange, Bolger, Bouck, Buckles, Gunterman and Joubin
Townships, Sault Ste. Marie Mining Division in the Province of Ontario. As part of the acquisition agreement
the Company issued 35 million common shares to Canada Enerco Corp. (“CEC”), a company controlled by the
President, CEO and Director of the Company, at a stated value of $218,212. CEC retains a 1% Uranium
Production Payment Royalty and a 1% Net Smelter Returns Royalty on any precious or base metals payable
provided the price of uranium is greater than US$130 per pound (collectively the “CEC Royalty”). Any mining
claims acquired by the Company within 20 kilometres from the existing boundary of the Vended Property are
subject to the CEC Royalty.

The Company also entered into two (2) share option agreements with CEC whereby the Company has the option
to buy back 1,000,000 of the common shares of the Company at the price of $1 per share, expiring August 31,
2008 and 9,000,000 common shares at a $2 per share price, subject to adjustments, in tranches of 1,000,000
shares, expiring November 2, 2012. The second option is conditional upon the Company spending at least $10
million on exploration on the property prior to November 2, 2011, to define an NI 43-101 compliant uranium
mineral resource on the property. The Company shall determine the maximum purchase price as $0.10
multiplied by the number of pounds of uranium. In the event that the maximum purchase price is less than $20
million the option price of the 9 million shares will be adjusted to equal the maximum purchase price divided by
10 million. In the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, the Company exercised the first option agreement for
the 1 million common shares. These shares were returned to treasury for cancellation in fiscal 2009. The
Company did not spend the required $10 million on exploration and the second option expired on November 1,
2011.

Pursuant to an Assumption of Obligations Agreement dated November 2, 2007 among the Company, CEC,
Quincy Gold Corp. and Energy Metals CorpeEfIC"), the Company assumed certain obligations of CEC to
Quincy and EMC giving the Company a 100% interest in the Elliot Lake property free and clear of all liens,
charges and encumbrances in consideration for granting to EMC the right to purchase up to 9.9% of the equity of
the Company (theParticipation Right”) pursuant to an initial financing or an initial public offering or a going

public transaction pursuant to a business combination at the same price and terms as other subscribers and a
$250,000 credit (theCredit”) towards the Participation Right. Since the date of the agreement mentioned
above, EMC has been acquired by Uranium One. In fiscal year 2008, 250,000 common shares of the Company
were issued to EMC in consideration for the Credit.

9
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

4. Mineral properties (continued):

(b) The Company transferred 2 of the claims acquired from CEC as disclosed in (a) above to Denison Mines Inc. in
return for rights of access and use of infrastructure as well as a 3% Net Smelter Returns Royalty on any product
produced from the claims. No gain or loss has been recognized on this transfer.

(c) On February 27, 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Dan Patrie ExploratidbPEQ. t¢
acquire an option to earn a 100% interest in 6 mineral claims comprising of 50 claim units in the Buckles and
Joubin Townships in Sault Saint Marie Mining Division in the Province of Ontario in consideration for the
payment of $20,000 cash and the issuance of 50,000 common shares at a price of $1 per share. DPE retains the
right to a 1% Uranium Production Payment RoyaltRdgyalty”) payable when the uranium is sold from the
claims at a price of over US$130 per pound. The Company has the right and option to purchase one-half (1/2) of
the Royalty from DPE for $1,000,000. If DPE wishes to sell the remaining Royalty to a third party, it shall first
offer the remaining Royalty to the Company on the same terms on which they have received the offer from a
bona fide third party which they are prepared to accept.

(d) During the prior year the Company staked an additional 32 claims in the Elliot Lake area for additional cost of
$35,950. All staked claims above are subject to the CEC Royalty as outlined in paragraph (a) above.

(e) During the current year, the Company patrticipated in staking a 26,657 hectare uranium and rare earth prospects
in Saskatchewan for total consideration and costs of $128,323. The Company holds between 50 to 90% interest
in these 10 mineral properties in the Athabaska Basin area in the province of Saskatchewan. Two claims are in
the process of being transferred.

5. Capital stock:
(a) The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares.

Common shares have been issued as follows:

Number Value
Balance as at September 30, 2010 and 2009 39,016,525% 4,916,593
Issued pursuant to flow through private placements 1,385,833 2,078,750
Issued pursuant to private placements 1,182,000 1,477,500
Less: Value associated with warrants issued - (110,562)
Less: share issue costs - (196,722)
Reduction re: future income tax liability flow-through shgidste 6) - (12,985)
Balance as at September 30, 2011 41,584,358 $ 8,152,574

During the current year the Company entered into private placement agreements to raise funds for exploration and
working capital by way of a private placement of gross proceeds of $1,477,500 in the aggregate through the
issuance of 1,182,000 working capital units of the Company at $1.25 perWi@thit”) and 1,385,833 flow-

through units of the Company at $1.50 per flow-through ufiT init”) for gross proceeds of $2,078,750. Each

WC unit consisted of one common share and one-half common share purchase WaiCaWigfrant ). Each

full WC Warrant entitles the holder to acquire one common share at a price of $1.75 for 12 months following the
closing date; if the Company is not a reporting issuer in the Province of Ontario within 6 months following the
closing date then each full WC Warrant will be exercisable at $1.25 per share for 12 months from the closing
date. Each FT unit consists of one common share and one-half common share purchase Miaki&rtrht ”).

Each full FT Warrant is exercisable at a price of $2 per share for 12 months following the closing date, if the
Company is not a reporting issuer within 6 months from the closing date then the exercise price will be $1.50 per
share for 12 months following the closing date.

10
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

5. Capital stock (continued):

Finder fees were paid on the flow-through private placements by payment of cash commissions of $162,884 and by t
issuance of 46,666 broker compensation warraBoker's Unit Warrant ”). Each Broker Unit Warrant entitles the
holder to acquire a unit of the Company at exercise price of $1.50 per unit for 12 months from the closing date. Each
broker unit consists of one common shair¢ker Common Share’) and one-half common share purchase warrant
(“Broker Warrant ). 46,666 common shares was reserved for the Broker Common Shares issuable on the exercise c
the Broker’'s Unit Warrants and 23,333 Broker Warrants were created and reserved for issuance to be issued as fully
paid and non-assessable Broker Warrants on the exercise of the Broker’'s Unit Warrants. Each Broker Warrant entitle
the holder thereof to acquire a common shaBedker Warrant Share”) at an exercise price of $2.00 per Broker

Warrant share until 12 months from the Closing Date, and if the Company is not a reporting issuer in the Province of
Ontario within six (6) months following the Closing Date, at an exercise price of $1.50 per Broker Warrant Share until
12 months from the Closing Date.

Also included under share issue costs are legal fees in the amount of $27,309 and fair value of broker warrants issu
in the amount of $6,529. The fair value of the brokers warrants was estimated using Black Scholes pricing model wit
the following assumptions: risk free weighted average interest rate of 1.15%, expected dividend yield of nil, expected
volatility of 30% and expected life term of 12 months.

(b) Common share purchase options:
The Company has created a stock option plan for the benefit of directors, officers, key employees, and consultants. T
total number of shares which may be reserved and set aside for issuance to eligible persons may not exceed 10% of
issued and outstanding common shares. As at September 30, 2011, 1,400,000 common shares were reserved for th
exercise of stock options granted under the Company’s stock option plaPl@h®.”

The following table provides the details of changes in the number of issued common share purchase options during t

period:
Options Weighted-average exercise price
# $
Outstanding at September 30, 2010 and 2009 - -
Granted 1,400,000 1.25
Outstanding at September 30, 2011 1,400,000 1.25
Options exercisable at September 30, 2011 700,000 1.25

On February 17, 2011, the Company issued 1,000,000 stock options exercisable at $1.25 per share until February 1
2016 to directors of the Company. Half of the options granted are exercisable on or after the date of grant; the
remaining options are exercisable on or after February 17, 2012.

On July 14, 2011, the Company issued 400,000 stock options exercisable at $1.25 per share until July 14, 2016 to a

director of the Company. Half of the options granted are exercisable on or after the date of grant; the remaining optio
are exercisable on or after July 14, 2012.

11
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

5. Capital stock (continued):

Number

of stock Number Remaining Exercise price

options exercisable contractual life per share Expiry date
1,000,000 500,000 52.6 months $1.25 February 17, 2016

400,000 200,000 57.5 months $1.25 July 14, 2016
1,400,000 700,000

The weighted average fair value of all the options granted and outstanding is $1.43 per option, each contract fair valt
having been estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing model with the following assumptions: ris|
free weighted-average interest rate is 1.98%, expected dividend yield of nil, average expected volatility of 141% and
expected life term is 60 months. Under this method of calculation, the Company has recorded $1,000,827 as stock
based compensation during the twelve months ended September 30, 2011, being the fair value of the options vested
during the twelve months ended September 30, 2011. Options that have been issued and remain outstanding vest h
immediately on the date of grant and half in twelve months from the date of grant.

(c) Warrants:

On certain issuances of common shares, the Company grants warrants entitling the holder to acquire additional
common shares of the Company, and the Company grants warrants as consideration for services associated with th
placement of such common share issuances. Fair value of warrants issued was estimated using Black Scholes pricin
model with the following assumptions: risk free weighted average interest rate of 1.15%, expected dividend yield of
nil, average expected volatility of 30% and expected life term of 12 months.

The following table provides the details of changes in the number of outstanding common share purchase warrants:

Number
# $
Balance September 30, 2010 and 2009 - -
Private placement warrants issued 1,283,916 110, 562
Brokers warrants issued 69,999 6,529
Balance September 30, 2011 1,353,915 117,091

12
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

5. Capital stock (continued)

Certain issuances of common shares include warrants entitling the holder to acquire additional common shares of
Company. A summary of the outstanding warrants is as follows:

Remaining
Number contractual Exercise price

exercisable life per share Expiry date
Warrants 26,250 3 months $1.50 December 31, 2011
Warrants 146,000 3.7 months $1.25 January 20, 2012
Warrants 400,000 4.6 months $1.25 February 18, 2012
Warrants 25,000 4.8 months $1.25 February 23, 2012
Warrants 20,000 5.6 months $1.25 March 17, 2012
Warrants 666,666 5.6 months $1.50 March 17, 2012

Balance, September 30,2011 1,283,916

Certain issuances of common shares include warrants as partial consideration to the agent for services associated with
the share issues. A summary of the outstanding broker warrants is as follows:

Remaining
Number contractug Exercise price p
exercisable life share Expiry date
Compensation warrants 46,666 5.6 month $1.50 March 17, 2012
Brokers’ Warrants 23,333 5.6 month $1.5( March 17, 2012

Balance, September 30, 2011 69,999

(d) Contributed surplus:

A summary of changes in contributed surplus is as follows:

Amount
$

Balance, September 30, 2010 -
Stock based compensation 1,000,827
Balance, September 30, 2011 1,000,827

The number of common shares outstanding on September 30, 2011, is 41,584,358. Taking into account outstanding
share purchase options and warrants, the fully diluted common shares that could be outstanding on September 30,
2011, is 44,338,273.

6. Related party transactions:

During the year ended September 30, 2011, the Company incurred related party expenses of $72,000 (2010-$72,000,
2009 - $72,000). These expenses related to management fees paid to Tom Drivas and office administration services
paid to a Company where Tom Drivas is a director and officer, of which $238,306 (2010-$180,000, 2009 - $120,000)
is due and payable as at September 30, 2011 and included under accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Amount
charged for office administration services is included under office and general expenses.

The Company'’s solicitor, William R. Johnstone, who is also an officer of the Company, charged legal fees in the
amount of $47,882 (2010-$13,854, 2009 - $27,297) of which $20,573 is included under professional fees and $27,309
is included in share issue costs. Included in accounts payable is $7,376 (2010-$0, 2009 - $3,252) owing to the firm of
this individual.

As disclosed in Note 4(a), the Company’s major exploration property was acquired from a related party.

13
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

6. Related party transactions (continued):

These transactions are recorded at the exchange amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed
to by the related parties.

7. Future income tax:

The Company has incurred tax losses of approximately $551,350 which may be used to reduce future taxable income.
The potential benefit of these losses will expire in the fiscal years ended September 30, if unused, as follows:

2028 $ 216,800
2029 101,100
2030 135,650
2031 97,800

$ 551,350

In addition to the above, the Company has approximately $1,122,628 in Canadian Development and Exploration
expenditures which can be deducted from taxable income without expiry

The components of future income tax assets (liabilities) at the Company’s statutory rate of 16.50% (2010 - 16.50%, 200¢
16.50%) is as noted below:
2011 2010 2009

$ $ $
Non-capital loss 90,901 71,700 52,450
Mineral Properties (463,562) (450,650) (450,650)
Valuation allowance - (19,250) -
Liability recognized in the financial statements (372,661) (398,200) (398,200)

As required by CICA Handbook EIC 146, the Company has, for renunciations of flow-through amounts, treated the
future income tax liability related to this temporary difference as a reduction in share capital at the time that the
expenditure is renounced. In fiscal year 2011 this amounted to $12,985 and was included in share issue costs.

8. Supplemental cash flow information:

Net change in non-cash working capital: 2011 2010 2009
$ $ $
Amounts receivable (4,676) 313 108,482
Prepaid expenses 1,651 (4,142) (3,300)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 83,323 60,629 20,112

80,298 56,800 125,294
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

9. Financial instruments:
Credit risk:
The Company is currently not exposed to any significant credit risk.
Liquidity rate risk:

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining at all times sufficient cash, liquid investments and committed
credit facilities to meet the Company’'s commitments as they arise. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate cash reserves and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. The Company is
currently assessing all options to address its liquidity issues. It is not possible to determine with any certainty the
success and adequacy of these initiatives.

The Company does not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes.
Market Risk:
a) Interest rate risk:

At September 30, 2011, the Company has cash and cash equivalent balances. The Company’s current policy is to
invest cash in investment-grade short-term deposit certificates issued by its banking institution. The Company
periodically monitors the investments it makes and is satisfied with the credit rating of its bank. The Company
considers interest rate risk to be minimal as investments are short-term.

b) Foreign Currency risk:

A portion of the Company’s transactions occur in foreign currencies (U.S. dollars) and the Company is therefore
exposed to risk from currency fluctuations. This risk is not considered significant.

c) Price risk:

The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to commodity prices. The Company closely monitors
commodity prices to determine the appropriate course of action to be taken by the Company.

Sensitivity to Financial Risks:

The Company has designated its cash equivalents as held-for-trading, measured at fair value. Amounts
receivable are classified as loans and receivables, which are measured at amortized cost. Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities, which are measured at amortized cost.

The carrying amounts for cash equivalents, amounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
loan payable on the balance sheet approximate fair value because of the limited terms of these instruments.
There were no changes in the year ended September 30, 2011 that occurred that were attributed to financial risks.

The Company considers interest rate risk to be minimal as investments and the loan payable are short-term. lItis
expected that future financings will be secured from equity placements.

The Company does not hold any significant balances in foreign currencies to give rise to foreign exchange risk.

Price risk is remote since the Company is not a producing entity.
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APPIA ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

10. Capital disclosures:

11.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, based on the funds available to the
Company, in order to support the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties. The capital of the
Company consists of capital stock and accumulated deficit. The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative
return on capital criteria for management, but rather relies on the expertise of the Company’s management to sustain
future development of the business.

The properties in which the Company currently has an interest are in the exploration stage. Accordingly, the
Company is dependent on external financing to fund its activities. In order to carry out the planned exploration and
pay for its administrative costs, the Company will spend its existing working capital and raise additional amounts as
needed. The Company will continue to assess new properties and seek to acquire an interest in additional properties
if it feels there is sufficient geological or economic potential and if it has adequate financial resources to do so.

Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this approach, given the
relative size of the Company, is reasonable.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year ended September 30,
2011.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Subsequent events:

On November 15, 2011, the Company raised additional working capital by way of private placements of $25,900
through the issuance of 20,720 working capital unfgGunit”) of the Company at $1.25 per unit. Each WC unit
consists of one common share of the Company and one half of a common share purchase Warsaatrgnt ).

Each full WC warrant entitles the holder to purchase one common share at a price of $1.75 per share for 12 months
following the closing date and if the Company is not a reporting issuer in the province of Ontario within six months
following the closing date, each full WC warrant is exercisable at a price of $1.25 per common share for 12 months
following the closing date.

On November 15, 2011, the Company also raised flow through funds by way of private placements of $13,500
through the issuance of 9,000 flow-through unitsT(unit”) of the Company at $1.50 per FT Unit. Each FT unit

consists of one flow-through common share of the Company and one half of a common share purchaseR¥arrant (“
warrant”). Each full FT warrant entitles the holder to purchase one common share of the Company at the price of
$2.00 per share for 12 months following the closing date and if the Company is not a reporting issuer in the province
of Ontario within six months following the closing date, each full FT warrant is exercisable at a price of $1.50 per
common share for 12 months following the closing date.
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SCHEDULE “B”
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

Purpose of the Audit Committee

The purpose of the Audit Committee (thedmmitte€”) of the Board of Directors (theBbard”) of the Corporation
is to assist the Board in fulfilling its respondéilyi for the oversight of the financial reportinggeess. The purpose
of this Charter is to ensure that the Corporatia@intains a strong, effective and independent axatitmittee, to
enhance the quality of financial disclosure madehgyCorporation and to foster increased invesborfidence in
both the Corporation and Canada’s capital markkts the intention of the Board that through theolvement of
the Committee, the external audit will be condudtetependently of the Corporation’s managementguee that
the independent auditors serve the interests ofeBblders rather than the interests of manageménheo
Corporation. The Committee’s primary duties argpomsibilities are to:

» identify and monitor the management of the prinkcijgks that could affect the reliability of finaiat reporting;

* monitor the integrity of the Corporation’s finanlci@porting process and system of internal conteér
financial reporting and accounting compliance;

» be directly responsible for overseeing the workhaf external auditor including monitoring the indegence
and performance of the external auditor;

» be directly responsible for overseeing the interaglew processes;

* monitor the Corporation’s compliance with appli@ldégal and regulatory requirements affecting faiain
reporting; and

» provide an avenue for effective communication amtiregaudit committee, external auditor, manageraadt
the Board.

The Committee has the authority to conduct anystigation appropriate to fulfilling its responsibés, and it has
direct access to the external auditor as well gsr@nin the Corporation. The Committee has thbaity to retain,
at the Corporation’s expense, special legal, adooginor other consultants or experts it deems sgag in the
performance of its duties.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The Committee shall consist of at least three {@ctbrs appointed by the Board as provided fahi by-laws of
the Corporation and may be removed by the Boaiitsidiscretion. Each member of the Committee nimgstin
independent director and must be financially literar become financially literate within a reasdeabme after his
or her appointment to the Committee. At least @)emember of the Committee shall have accountinelated
financial management expertise. The Committeel sfshblish procedures for quorum, notice and tgmad

meetings subject to the proviso that a quorum dielho less than two (2) Committee members. Wh#eBoard
may recommend a Chair for the Committee, the Cotemishall have the discretion to appoint the Cfraim

amongst its members.

The Canadian Securities Administrator€8A”) state that an audit committee member is indepatd he or she
has no direct or indirect material relationshiphatite issuer; that is, a relationshimat could, in the view of the
Board, reasonably interfere with the exercise @& thembe's independent judgment. The CSA notes that these
relationships may include commercial, charitablequistrial, banking, consulting, legal, accountingfamilial
relationshipsThe regulations also include a list of situationattare defined to be material relationships.

The Board shall determine, in its business judgmesiether an individual is financially literate leasupon the
regulatory definition of financial literacy, meaginthe ability to read and understand a set of fiman
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statements that present a breadth and level of lexity of accounting issues that are generally comparable to
the breadth and complexity of the issubat can reasonably be expected to be raised byCtrporation’s
financial statements. It is the view of the regoilatthat it is not necessary for a member to hasenaprehensive
knowledge of generally accepted accounting prirsi@nd generally accepted auditing standards twbsidered
financially literate.

Disclosure must be made in the Corporation’s Infoion Circular (1C”) for its annual meeting or in the
Corporation’s Annual Information FormAtF ") of the name of each Committee member and whetherot the
member is independent and financially literate. shbuld also describe the education and experieficeach
member that is relevant to his or her responsigglins a Committee member. If a member is not iedégnt, the
Corporation must explain why.

Meetings of the Audit Committee

The Committee shall meet at least four times anpuabrresponding with the Corporation’s financiaporting
cycle, or more frequently as circumstances dictdtiee Committee Chair will prepare an agenda iraade of each
meeting. The Secretary will circulate the agenalad supporting materials sufficiently in advancetted meeting to
allow members an appropriate period of time to arepfor the meeting. The Committee will generatlyite
members of management and the external auditotteacheach meeting. The Committee shall meet tafiyaat
least annually with management and the externat@ui discuss any matters that the Committeeacheof these
groups believes should be discussed. In addittehCommittee may considier camerasessions at the beginning
and/or conclusion of each meeting to discuss plyatny matters of interest or concern to the mambe

Responsibilities and Duties of the Audit Committee

Management is responsible for adopting and applgmgnd accounting principles; for designing, impéaing and
maintaining effective processes related to intecaatrol over financial reporting; and for preparithe annual and
interim financial statements, management’s discumssind analysis ID&A ") and other continuous disclosure
documents. The external auditor is responsibledmducting an independent audit and for formingopimion on
the annual financial statements. The Committeegponsible for overseeing these financial repgmirocesses.
Committee members should conduct themselves infamied, vigilant and effective manner.

Members of the Committee should rely on informatfamished to them by others only if they believda be
reliable for the purpose of making their decisiorghey should act in accordance with their own kieglge and
training.

The Committee shall be responsible for the follayvdpecific matters:

1. Accounting policies

(@) Review all of the Corporation’s critical accountipglicies and all major issues regarding accounting
principles and financial statement presentatiomslding any significant changes in the Corpordtion
selection or application of accounting principles).

(b) Review major changes in the Corporation’s accognpiolicies and practices.

(c) Review with the external auditor and managementetktent to which changes or improvements in
financial or accounting practices, as previousporéed to the Committee, have been implemented.

2. Financial reporting process and financial statesent

(@) In consultation with management and the externalitay inquire as to the integrity of the
Corporation’s financial reporting processes, baoiterinal and external, and any major issues aseto th
adequacy of internal control.
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Review significant accounting and reporting issuasluding complex or unusual transactions and
highly judgmental areas.

Review recent professional and regulatory pronoomecds and understand their impact on the
financial statements.

Review issues related to liquidity, capital resegrand contingencies that could affect liquidity.
Review all plans for treasury operations includiimgncial derivatives and hedging activities.

Review all material off-balance-sheet transacti@musitingent liabilities and transactions with retht
parties.

Discuss with the external auditor the matters teterally accepted auditing standards in Canada
require to be communicated with the Committee.

Review and discuss with management and the extauitor the Corporation’s quarterly and annual
financial statements, MD&A, IC, AIF and annual anterim press releases before they are publicly
disclosed by the Corporation and recommend thgiral by the Board.

Periodically assess the adequacy of proceduresaire dor the review of the Corporation’s public
disclosure of financial information extracted orided from the Corporation’s financial statements.

Consider reviewing other financial information pided to analysts and rating agencies.

Following completion of the annual audit, reviewtlweach of management and the external auditor
any significant issues, concerns or difficulties@mtered during the course of the audit including
major issues that arose during the course of thd& and, which have subsequently been resolved and
those issues that have been left unresolved; kepuating and audit judgments; and levels of
misstatements identified during the audit, obtajniexplanations from management and, where
necessary, the external auditor, as to why centgsstatements might remain unadjusted.

Receive and review reports from other Board commegtwith regard to matters that could affect
financial reporting.

(m) Oversee the resolution of disagreements betweerageament and the external auditor regarding

(n)

(0)

financial reporting.

Discuss with the external auditor the quality armt just the acceptability of the Corporation’s
accounting principles.

Regularly review with the external auditor any aupioblems or difficulties and management’s
response.

External auditor

@)

(b)

Be directly responsible for the selection, appomrin compensation, retention, termination and
oversight of the work of the Corporation’s extermaaiditor, and in such regard recommend to the
Board the nomination of the external auditor fopmpal by the shareholders. Monitor audit
engagement partner rotation requirements.

Pre-approve all audit and non-audit services tprogided to the Corporation or its subsidiary eesit
by the external auditor including fees and termshis regard, establish which non-audit servites t
external auditor shall be prohibited from providing doing so, the Committee should consider:
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i whether the skills and experience of the audit fimake it a suitable supplier of the non-audit
services;

i whether there are safeguards in place to help erhat there is no threat to the external auditors’
objectivity and independence in the conduct ofdhdit resulting from providing such services;
and

i the nature of the non-audit services, the relagedlévels, and the fee levels individually and in
aggregate relative to the audit fee.

The Committee satisfies the pre-approval requirgrmesubsection 3(b) if:

i the aggregate amount of all the non-audit servibes were not pre-approved is reasonably
expected to constitute no more than five per cB)(of the total amount of fees paid by the
Corporation and its subsidiary entities to the @oagion’s external auditors during the fiscal year
in which the services are provided,;

i the Corporation or the subsidiary entity of the @wation, as the case may be, did not recognize
the services as non-audit services at the timbeoéhgagement; and

iii the services are promptly brought to the attentbthe Committee and approved, prior to the
completion of the audit, by the Committee or by onenore of its members to whom authority to
grant such approvals has been delegated by the @wam

The Committee may delegate to one or more indepgndembers of the Committee the authority to
pre-approve non-audit services in satisfactiorhefrequirement in subsection 3(b).

The pre-approval of non-audit services by any martdh@rhom authority has been delegated pursuant
to subsection 3(d) must be presented to the Comendt its first scheduled meeting following such
pre-approval.

The Committee satisfies the pre-approval requirénresubsection 3(b) if it adopts specific policies
and procedures for the engagement of the non-aediices, if:

i the pre-approval policies and procedures are @etai to the particular service;
i the Committee is informed of each non-audit senére
iii the procedures do not include delegation of the @ittee’s responsibilities to management.

Prior to commencement of the annual audit, revieth the external auditor the proposed audit plan
and scope of work.

Review the audit representation letters with paféicattention to non-standard representations.
Review and monitor the content of the external taugli management letter, in order to assess whether
it is based on a good understanding of the Corjorat business and establish whether

recommendations have been acted upon and, ifirotgasons they have not been acted upon.

Consider, assess and report to the Board with deggathe independence and performance of the
external auditor, and for such purpose:

i Review the formal written statement and letter sittieoh by the external auditor that outlines all
relationships between the external auditor andCigoration, and its affiliates and associates.
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i Actively engage in a dialogue with the externalitardvith respect to any disclosed relationships
or services and their impact on the objectivityralependence of the external auditor.

i Conduct a periodic evaluation (taking into accotlng opinions of management) of the external
auditors’ qualifications, performance and indepemge and present to the Board the Committee’s
conclusion in such regard.

iv Consider obtaining and reviewing at least annualhgport from the external auditor describing
the firm’s quality control procedures and any miateissues raised by the firm’'s most recent
review of internal quality control or by any govarental or professional inquiry or investigation.

Review and approve the Corporation’s hiring poBciegarding partners, employees and former
partners and employees of the present and fornterre auditors.

Internal controls and risk management

@)

(b)

(©

Receive and review the interim and annual CEO an@ Certifications filed with securities regulatory
authorities.

Receive and review reports from management anéxternal auditors with regard to the reliability
and effective operation of the Corporation’s act¢munsystem and internal controls.

Discuss with senior management their certificatdbrinternal control over financial reporting, asdan
when required by regulation.

Internal review and legal compliance

@)
(b)

(©

(d)

Review and approve management’s decisions relattdtetneed for internal review.

Review the mandate, budget, plan, changes in plzivjties, organization structure and qualificago
of the internal review function.

Review significant reports prepared as a resulthef internal review together with management’s
response and follow-up to these reports.

On at least an annual basis, review with the Catmr’'s counsel any legal matters that could have a
significant impact on the Corporation’s financidhtements, the Corporation’s compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and any inquiréegived from regulators or governmental agencies.

Additional responsibilities

@)
(b)

(©

(d)

Review and reassess the adequacy of the Committieaiter on an annual basis.

Determine that the IC or the AIF discloses the wxthe Committee’s charter, a description of any
specific policies and procedures for the engagemienbn-audit services, and the aggregate feesdbill
by the external auditor in each of the last twoy@jrs, by service fee category.

Review the process for communicating the CorponiicCode of Business Conduct and Ethics to
company personnel, and for monitoring complianegetvith.

Discuss guidelines and policies to govern the med® which risk assessment and risk management
have been and are handled, even if the primaryoresiility for risk assessment and management is
assigned to another Board committee. The Corparatimajor financial and business risks exposures
and the steps management has taken to monitoramibtsuch exposures should be discussed.
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Establish procedures and policies for the following

i the receipt, retention and treatment of complairdseived by the Corporation regarding
accounting, internal accounting controls or auditinatters; and

i the confidential, anonymous submission by employ#ethe Corporation of concerns regarding
guestionable accounting or auditing matters.

Prepare and review with the Board an annual pedona evaluation of the Committee, the Chair of
the Committee and its individual members.

Review the appointments of the Corporation’s Cligfancial Officer and any other key financial
executives involved in the financial reporting pss.

Review financial and accounting personnel succagd@nning within the Corporation.
Periodically review a summary of all related pargnsactions and potential conflicts of interest.

Report regularly to the Board, including matterstsas the quality or integrity of the Corporation’s
financial statements, and compliance with legakegulatory requirements.

Review expenses incurred by selected senior exesuti
Conduct or authorize any review or investigatior aonsider any matters of the Corporation the

Committee believes is within the scope of its reslulities and establish procedures for such mevie
or investigation as may be required.



SCHEDULE “C”
BOARD CHARTER

The Board of Directors (theBbard”) of Appia Energy Corp. (the Corporation”) is responsible for the
stewardship of the business and affairs of the @atjpn on behalf of the shareholders by whom theyelected
and to whom they are accountable.

The Board shall be constituted with at least th{@eindividuals who are independent directors. ebiors are
considered to be independent if they have no dioedindirect material relationship with the Corpiima. A
“material relationship” is a relationship which éduin the view of the Corporation’s Board of Ditexs, be
reasonably expected to interfere with the exeraisedirector’s independent judgment.

The Board shall appoint one director as Chairmi@he Chairman shall be an independent director. Qterman
is responsible for the leadership of the Boardfandpecific functions to ensure the independericeeBoard.

The Senior Officers are accountable to the Boardafloauthority delegated to the positions. Fa furposes of
these Corporate Governance Policies, Senior Offgtell be defined as any person holding the pwsitd
President, CEO, CFO, COO or Vice President of Exgtion.

The Board has the following overall responsibititie

* in conjunction with management, establishing thedaion and strategies for the Corporation and toang
the implementation of those strategies; and

* monitoring compliance with regulatory requiremeautsl setting the tone for ethical behaviour anddztedts.

The monitoring and ultimate control of the businekthe Corporation is vested in the Board. Thar8ts primary
responsibility is to oversee the Corporation’s hass activities and management for the benefih@fQorporation
and its shareholders. The specific responsitslitiethe Board include:

e selection, appointment, monitoring, evaluation, asding and if necessary the removal of the Seificers
of the Corporation;

* in conjunction with management, development of #teategic planning process and approving and
appropriately monitoring plans, new investments, jomacapital and operating expenditures, capital

management, acquisitions, divestitures and majudifig activities;
* monitor and review annually the success of managemémplementing the approved strategies andsplan

* establishing appropriate levels of delegation ® Senior Officers to allow them to manage the Catian’s
operations efficiently;

* monitoring actual performance against planned perdoce expectations and reviewing operating inféiona

e appreciation of areas of significant business aisll ensuring arrangements are in place to adeguatgiage
those risks;

e overseeing the management of safety and occuphtibealth, environmental issues and community

development;

* satisfying itself that the financial statementstiofé Corporation fairly and accurately set out thearicial
position and financial performance of the Corpamafior the period under review;



* satisfying itself that there are appropriate rapgrsystems and controls in place to assure thedBbat proper
operational, financial, compliance, risk managensamtt internal control processes are in place anctifaning
appropriately;

e ensuring that appropriate external audit arrangésreme in place and operating effectively;
* developing the Corporation’s approach to corpogatesrnance issues;

* having a framework in place to help ensure thatGoeporation acts legally and responsibly on alttera
consistent with the Code of Business Conduct ahit&tand

* reporting to shareholders.

At all times the Board retains full responsibilifgr guiding and monitoring the Corporation; howevéar
discharging its stewardship it makes use of conemstt To this end, the Board has established thmnvfog
committees:

e Audit Committee; and

e Compensation Committee.
The Corporation also has in place a Disclosure Citteencomprised of the CEO and the Corporate Smgret

Each director has the right to seek independeriegsmnal advice on matters relating to his positie a director of
the Corporation at the Corporation’s expense, stilife the prior approval of the Chairman which Emalt be
unreasonably withheld.

The independent members of the Board shall meatladg during the year without any member of the
Corporation’s management present. Generally thesetings will be held prior to regular Board meg$inAny
material business items arising from these meethgl be brought to the attention of the Corpo&geretary and
such matters will be added to the agenda of thenegularly scheduled Board meeting.

In the event of a conflict of interest or whereaemtial conflict of interest may arise, involveidedtors will, unless
the remaining directors resolve otherwise, withdfeem deliberations concerning the matter. The Badwes not
specify a maximum term for which a director maychoffice.

The responsibility for the day-to-day operation aubinistration of the Corporation is delegatedtry Board to
the Senior Officers. The Board ensures that #asntis appropriately qualified and experiencediscldrge their
responsibilities and has in place procedures tesasthe performance of the Senior Officers.



CERTIFICATE OF THE CORPORATION
DATED: December 12, 2012

This Prospectus constitutes full, true and plastidisure of all material facts relating to the sii@s previously
issued by the Corporation as required by the siéesifiegislation of Alberta, British Columbia, Sasthewan and
Ontario.
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Brian Robertson Jack McOuat
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